
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
APRIL 17, 2006 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The Acting City Manager 



 

 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 



NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

April 17, 2006 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Marvin Walker – Faith Apostolic 
Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Recording for the Blind & Dyslexic Week of April 24–29, 2006 ............................ 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 376 Colebrook 1 

C-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment ( File Number ZOTA 201) – Article 28.30.00, 
Indoor Commercial Recreation in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District 2 

C-3 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 222) – Article XXVIII, Antique or 
Classic Automobile Sales in the M-1 Light Industrial District 3 



 

 

C-4 Rezoning Application – Proposed Medical Office, East Side of Stephenson 
Highway, North of Fourteen Mile and South of Maple, Section 35 – R-C to O-M (Z 
715) 3 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 4 

D-1 No Postponed Items 4 

CONSENT AGENDA: 4 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 4 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 5 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 5 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: 5 

a) Proclamation – Recording for the Blind & Dyslexic Week of April 24–29, 2006.... 5 
b) Law Day Proclamation – May 1, 2006 .................................................................. 5 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 5 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – Asphalt Patching Material ........................................................... 5 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Roof 
Replacement Fire Station 1 .................................................................................. 5 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Low Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – Dispatch Recording System ....................................................... 6 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Iron Fence at 
Museum................................................................................................................ 6 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Contract 06-7 – 
Olympia and Tacoma Special Assessment District Paving and Storm Sewer ...... 6 

E-5 Request for Special Event Sign to be Placed on Civic Center Grounds – National 
Day of Prayer 7 

E-6 Private Agreement for Boys & Girls Club of Troy – Project No. 06.901.3 7 

E-7 Request for Acceptance – Permanent Sanitary Sewer Easement and Permanent 
Sidewalk Easement – Saib P. Talia – Sidwell #88-20-25-352-045 7 

E-8 Private Agreement for Longfellow Site Condominiums – Project No. 05.915.3 7 



 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 8 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 8 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Charter 
Revision Committee; Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees & Retiree 
Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust; Historic District Commission; Municipal Building 
Authority; Parks & Recreation Board; and Personnel Board 8 

F-2 Traffic Committee Recommendations – March 15, 2006 10 

F-3 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Preserves of Timbercrest Site 
Condominium, West of Fernleigh, South Side of Wattles Road, Section 24 – R-1C 11 

F-4 Proposed Co-location on Sylvan Glen Golf Course Communications Tower 11 

F-5 Reconsideration of Resolution #2006-04-177 – Bid Waiver – Integrated Security 
Management System Installation with Time Tracker Software and Maintenance 11 

F-6 Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – Contract Renewals – Emerald Food Service 
at Community Center and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 13 

F-7 Request for Special Meeting – Review of Applications for Employment for Position 
of City Manager 14 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 14 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 14 

a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1970 Larchwood – May 8, 2006.......................... 14 
b) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5361 Livernois – May 8, 2006............................. 14 
c) Proposed Budget for the Fiscal Year 2006-2007 – May 15, 2006 ...................... 14 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted 14 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 14 

H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 14 



 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 14 

I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 14 

REPORTS: 15 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 15 

a) Historic District Study Committee/Final – January 3, 2006................................. 15 
b) Historic Commission/Final – January 24, 2006................................................... 15 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – March 1, 2006 ........... 15 
d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – March 1, 2006 ........... 15 
e) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – March 1, 2006 ..................................... 15 
f) Planning Commission/Final – March 14, 2006 ................................................... 15 
g) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – March 28, 2006 .................................... 15 

J-2 Department Reports: 15 

a) Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – MML Legislative 
Conference in Lansing........................................................................................ 15 

b) Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – NLC 
Congressional Cities Conference in Washington, DC ........................................ 15 

c) Council Member Dave Lambert’s Travel Expense Report – MML Legislative 
Conference in Lansing........................................................................................ 15 

d) Council Member Dave Lambert’s Travel Expense Report – NLC 
Congressional Cities Conference in Washington, DC ........................................ 15 

e) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of March, 2006 .......... 15 
f) Troy Fire Department – 2004 Annual Report...................................................... 15 
g) 2006 City of Troy Assessment Roll and Board of Review Report....................... 15 
h) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction – March, 

2006 ................................................................................................................... 15 
i) City Manager’s Office – Transmittal of Proposed Fiscal Year 2006/2007 

Annual Budget .................................................................................................... 15 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 15 

a) Letter of Thanks to Tonni Bartholomew and the Clerk’s Office from Ashley 
Anderson, White Lake Township Election Secretary .......................................... 15 

b) Letter of Appreciation to Lori Bluhm from Troy Community Coalition 
Regarding the Presentation at the Troy Town Hall Meeting ............................... 15 

c) Letter of Thanks to Paula Bratto from Craig Nardi Regarding Excellent 
Service ............................................................................................................... 15 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 15 

a) Resolution from the City of Oak Park Supporting Full Formula Funding of 
State Revenue to Local Governments................................................................ 15 

b) Resolution from the City of Royal Oak Encouraging the Oakland County 
Parks and Recreation Commission to Purchase Catalpa Park........................... 15 



 

 

J-5  Calendar 15 

J-6  Communication from the Purchasing Department Regarding State of Michigan 
MiDEAL Purchasing Program – Office Supply Contract with Office Max 15 

J-7  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regarding Law Day 2006 15 

J-8  Communication from the Department of Public Works Regarding Water Main 
Tapping Crew and Continuing Education 16 

J-9  Communication from Risk Management Regarding City Employees’ Short-term 
Disability (STD), Long-term Disability (LTD), Life, and Accidental Death and 
Dismemberment (AD&D) Insurance Coverage 16 

J-10  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regarding City of Troy v. Ronald 
Greismayer 16 

J-11  Communication and Requests from the Troy Daze Committee for 2006 Magic of 
Fall/Troy Daze Festival 16 

J-12  Communication from the Police Department Regarding the Troy Daze Festival 
Hours of Operation 16 

J-13  Communication from the Police Department Regarding State of Michigan 
Homeland Security Grant 16 

J-14  Order of Case Dismissal from the State of Michigan Department of Labor & 
Economic Growth, Michigan Tax Tribunal – COBASYS, LLC v. City of Troy 16 

STUDY ITEMS: 16 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 16 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 16 

CLOSED SESSION: 16 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 16 



 

 

ADJOURNMENT 16 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 17 

Monday, April 24, 2006 (Budget Study Session) Regular City Council ................. 17 
Monday, May 1, 2006 (Budget Study Session II) Special/Study City Council ....... 17 
Monday, May 8, 2006 Regular City Council .......................................................... 17 
Monday, May 15, 2006 Regular City Council ........................................................ 17 
Monday, May 22, 2006 CANCELLED Regular City Council.................................. 17 
Monday, June 5, 2006 Regular City Council ......................................................... 17 
Monday, June 19, 2006 Regular City Council ....................................................... 17 
Monday, July 10, 2006 Regular City Council......................................................... 17 
Monday, July 24, 2006 Regular City Council......................................................... 17 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 17, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Marvin Walker – Faith 
Apostolic Church 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:   
a) Recording for the Blind & Dyslexic Week of April 24–29, 2006    
  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 376 Colebrook  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
Proposed Resolution A (For Approval) 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 17, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 
cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:   
              
         . 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Mr. Lawrence Delbec, 376 
Colebrook, for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit 
outdoor parking of a Chevrolet cube van in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for  
    (not to exceed two years). 
 
Or Proposed Resolution B (For Denial) 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance pursuant to 
Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Mr. Lawrence Delbec, 376 
Colebrook, for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit 
outdoor parking of a Chevrolet cube van in a residential district is hereby DENIED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment ( File Number ZOTA 201) – Article 28.30.00, 

Indoor Commercial Recreation in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Article IV (Definitions) and XXVIII (M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT) of 
Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy be ADOPTED to read as written in the proposed 
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 201), City Council Draft dated March 22, 2006, as 
recommended by the Planning Commission and City Management; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Performance Theaters SHALL NOT be included in the definition 
for Indoor Commercial Recreation Facility; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 17, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission and City Management SHALL 
STUDY the potential for developing standards for permitting Performance Theaters by Special Use 
Permit in the M-1 Light Industrial District. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-3 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 222) – Article XXVIII, Antique or Classic 

Automobile Sales in the M-1 Light Industrial District  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Article IV (DEFINITIONS) and Article XXVIII (M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL ZONING 
DISTRICT), of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, be AMENDED to read as written in the 
proposed City Council Public Hearing Draft Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 222), 
dated March 24, 2005, as recommended by the Planning Commission and City Management. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-4 Rezoning Application – Proposed Medical Office, East Side of Stephenson 

Highway, North of Fourteen Mile and South of Maple, Section 35 – R-C to O-M (Z 
715)  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the R-C to O-M rezoning request, located on the east side of Stephenson 
Highway, north of Fourteen Mile and south of Maple, in Section 35, part of parcels 88-20-35-
327-013 (500 Stephenson Highway) and 88-20-35-327-015 (550 Stephenson Highway), being 
12.994 acres in size, is described in the following legal descriptions and illustrated on the 
attached survey drawings: 
 

500 Stephenson Hwy.: 
 

T2N, R11E, Part of the South ½ of Section 35 described as: 
 

Lot 2 of Robbins Executive Park West Subdivision (Liber 143, pgs. 14, 15, 16, and 17 of 
Oakland County Records).  Containing ±7.144 ac. more or less, and subject to 
restrictions and easements of record. 

 
550 Stephenson Hwy.: 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 17, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

T2N, R11E, Part of the South ½ of Section 35 described as: 
 
Part of Lot 3 of Robbins Executive Park West Subdivision (Liber 143, pgs. 14, 15, 16, 
and 17 of Oakland County Records) described as:  Commencing at the South ¼ corner 
of Section 35; thence N 89°06’11” W, 771.06 ft. along the South line of Section 35; 
thence N 01°13’00” E, 1674.93 ft. to the Point of Beginning; thence N 01°13’00” E, 
509.00 ft. along the East right-of-way line of Stephenson Hwy. (M-150) (204.00 ft. wide); 
thence S 88°47’00” E, 447.28 ft.; thence S 01°13’00” W, 321.35 ft.; thence S 88°47’00” 
E, 144.00 ft.; thence S 01°13’00” W, 187.65 ft.; thence N 88°47’00” W, 591.28 ft. to the 
Point of Beginning.  Containing ±5.85 ac. more or less, and subject to restrictions and 
easements of record. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 17, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of April 3, 2006 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamations be APPROVED: 
 
a) Proclamation – Recording for the Blind & Dyslexic Week of April 24–29, 2006  
b) Law Day Proclamation – May 1, 2006 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Asphalt Patching Material           
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That a one-year contract for asphalt patching material is hereby AWARDED to the 
lowest bidder meeting specifications, Saginaw Asphalt Paving Company of Saginaw, MI, at unit 
prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 23, 2006, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contract expiring April 30, 2007; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements; and 
 
FINALLY, BE IT RESOLVED, That bids for Item 2, QPR/UPM Picked-up are hereby 
REJECTED.   
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Roof Replacement Fire 

Station 1           
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 17, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

RESOLVED, That a contract to replace the roof at Fire Station #1 located at 1019 E. Big 
Beaver Road is hereby AWARDED to the low bidder, Envision Builders, Inc. of Brighton, MI, at 
an estimated total cost of $30,039.00, for the 50-year asphalt fiberglass shingle system at unit 
prices contained on the attached bid tabulation opened March 22, 2006, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.   
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Low Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Dispatch Recording System           
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish and install a dispatch recording system in the Police 
Department including a two-year maintenance program is hereby AWARDED to the lowest 
acceptable bidder meeting specifications, DSS Corporation of Southfield, MI, for an estimated 
project cost of $51,405.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Iron Fence at Museum           
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to remove and dispose of existing fence and fabricate and install a 
Custom Iron Fence for the Troy Museum is hereby AWARDED to the low total bidder, 
American Fence and Supply Co., Inc. of Oak Park, Michigan for an estimated project cost of 
$25,245.00. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOVED, That if additional work is required that could not be foreseen, 
such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost 
or $2,524.50; CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of properly executed contract 
documents, including insurance certificates, bonds, and all other specified requirements. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Contract 06-7 – 

Olympia and Tacoma Special Assessment District Paving and Storm Sewer          
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That Contract No. 06-7, Olympia and Tacoma Special Assessment District Paving 
and Storm Sewer, be AWARDED to Cadillac Asphalt, L.L.C., 4751 White Lake Road, 
Clarkston, MI 48346 at an estimated total cost of $499,916.00; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 17, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 
E-5 Request for Special Event Sign to be Placed on Civic Center Grounds – National 

Day of Prayer 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request of Lori Wagner, representing the Troy National Day of Prayer 
Christian Task Force, to place a 30 square foot banner on the lawn in front of City Hall from 
April 27, 2006, through May 4, 2006, in conjunction with an event to be held at the Limited 
Public Forum of the Veteran’s Plaza is hereby APPROVED. 
 
E-6 Private Agreement for Boys & Girls Club of Troy – Project No. 06.901.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Boys & Girls Club of Troy, is hereby APPROVED for 
the installation of paving, storm sewer, water main and sidewalk on the site and in the adjacent 
right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 Request for Acceptance – Permanent Sanitary Sewer Easement and Permanent 

Sidewalk Easement – Saib P. Talia – Sidwell #88-20-25-352-045 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Permanent Sanitary Sewer Easement, and the Permanent Sidewalk 
Easement, both being part of the Clark Gas Station, store #1050, redevelopment project are 
hereby ACCEPTED; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Private Agreement for Longfellow Site Condominiums – Project No. 05.915.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 17, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Quattro Development Co., Inc. is hereby APPROVED 
for the installation of sanitary sewer, storm sewer and soil erosion controls on the site and in the 
adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the 
documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 11 “F”.  

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Charter 
Revision Committee; Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees & Retiree 
Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust; Historic District Commission; Municipal 
Building Authority; Parks & Recreation Board; and Personnel Board 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 17, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled   
 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council  (9 Regular Members; 3 Alternates) – 3 Year Terms 
 

(Alternate) Unexpired Term Expires 11/01/06 
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/09 
 
Charter Revision Committee  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/09 
 
Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees & 
Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust 
Appointed by Council (8) – 3 Year Term 
 

(Council Rep) Term Expires 04/15/09 
 
Historic District Commission  One member, an architect if available 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms  Two members, chosen from a list submitted by a 
  duly organized history group or groups 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06  (Student) 
 
 Term Expires 05/16/09 (Architect) 
 
 Term Expires 05/16/09 
 
 Term Expires 05/16/09 
 
 
Municipal Building Authority  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 17, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
Parks & Recreation Board  
Appointed by Council  (10) – 3 Year Terms 
 

(Advisory Committee for Sr. Citizens Rep) Term Expires 04/30/07 
 
Personnel Board 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/09 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/09 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Traffic Committee Recommendations – March 15, 2006 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
(a) City Council Support of Beaumont Hospital’s Request to the Road Commission for 

Oakland County for Relief of Traffic Safety Concerns on Dequindre 
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUPPORTS Beaumont Hospital’s request to the Road 
Commission for Oakland County for relief of traffic safety concerns on Dequindre, including a 
dedicated left turn arrow for northbound traffic during peak times, and enhancing the visibility of 
the existing crosswalk as is done for school crosswalks. 
 
(b)  Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones at 336 Minnesota 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for the establishment of 
fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch at 336 Minnesota. 
  
(c) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones at 342 Minnesota 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for the establishment of 
fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch at 342 Minnesota. 
 
 
(d) Installation of Signs – No Through Traffic at Fire Stations 1 and 5 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 17, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for NO THROUGH 
TRAFFIC signs to be installed at Fire Stations 1 and 5, locations to be determined by Lt. 
Matlick. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Preserves of Timbercrest Site 

Condominium, West of Fernleigh, South Side of Wattles Road, Section 24 – R-1C 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Site Condominium Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 
of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development 
of a One-Family Residential Site Condominium known as Preserves of Timbercrest Site 
Condominium, located west of Fernleigh, on the south side of Wattles Road, including 6 home 
sites, within the R-1C zoning district, being 2.26 acres in size, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Proposed Co-location on Sylvan Glen Golf Course Communications Tower  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Acknowledgement and Lease between MetroPCS Michigan, Inc. and the 
City of Troy for co-location on the Sylvan Glen Golf Course tower is hereby APPROVED, and 
the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents on behalf of the 
City, a copy of the Acknowledgement and Lease shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Reconsideration of Resolution #2006-04-177 – Bid Waiver – Integrated Security 

Management System Installation with Time Tracker Software and Maintenance   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 17, 2006 
 

- 12 - 

RESOLVED, That Resolution #2006-04-177, Moved by Beltramini and Seconded by Stine, as it 
appears below be RECONSIDERED by City Council: 
 

WHEREAS, SimplexGrinnel is an authorized, licensed installer in Michigan of the 
Andover Controls security system;  
 
WHEREAS, The SimplexGrinnel system has the ability to track both building 
security and worker time and attendance;  
 
WHEREAS, It is desirable that the same security system is installed at the DPW 
facility as in the Police and Fire Departments since the programmed ID cards 
currently in place could be used for the entry and egress of any authorized 
employee from the DPW site (building and grounds);  
 
WHEREAS, It will be possible for Police Department to monitor the DPW facility 
from Police Communications with compatible equipment and software; and  
  
WHEREAS, The DPW facility may be added to the maintenance contract currently 
established with SimplexGrinnel for the Police Department’s system. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are 
hereby WAIVED and the City of Troy is AUTHORIZED to enter into a contract 
with SimplexGrinnel of Farmington Hills, MI, for labor and materials to install an 
Integrated Security Management System with the inclusion of the Time Tracker 
software and programming in accordance with their proposal dated February 13, 
2006 for an estimated amount of $147,416.80 with maintenance, after the 2-year 
warranty period, provided in accordance with the existing maintenance agreement 
covering the Police Department’s system, approved by Resolution #2005-12-557. 

 
Yes: All-6 
No:  None 
Absent: Howrylak 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
RECOMMENDED AMENDMENT TO THE MOTION #2006-04-177 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Resolution #2006-04-177 be AMENDED by STRIKING “February 13, 2006” 
in the final NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED and INSERTING “March 27, 2006” in its 
place. 
 
Yes:  
No:  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 17, 2006 
 

- 13 - 

 
PROPOSED AMENDED RESOLUTION 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04-177 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, SimplexGrinnel is an authorized, licensed installer in Michigan of the 
Andover Controls security system;  
 
WHEREAS, The SimplexGrinnel system has the ability to track both building security 
and worker time and attendance;  
 
WHEREAS, It is desirable that the same security system is installed at the DPW facility 
as in the Police and Fire Departments since the programmed ID cards currently in 
place could be used for the entry and egress of any authorized employee from the 
DPW site (building and grounds);  
 
WHEREAS, It will be possible for Police Department to monitor the DPW facility from 
Police Communications with compatible equipment and software; and  
  
WHEREAS, The DPW facility may be added to the maintenance contract currently 
established with SimplexGrinnel for the Police Department’s system. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby 
WAIVED and the City of Troy is AUTHORIZED to enter into a contract with 
SimplexGrinnel of Farmington Hills, MI, for labor and materials to install an Integrated 
Security Management System with the inclusion of the Time Tracker software and 
programming in accordance with their proposal dated March 27, 2006 for an estimated 
amount of $147,416.80 with maintenance, after the 2-year warranty period, provided in 
accordance with the existing maintenance agreement covering the Police Department’s 
system, approved by Resolution #2005-12-557. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-6 Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – Contract Renewals – Emerald Food Service at 

Community Center and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the contracts to provide a Café and Pro Shop operation in the Community 
Center, and food and beverage service at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course with Emerald Food 
Service be RENEWED for a two-year period effective May 1, 2006 – May 1, 2008; and    
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 17, 2006 
 

- 14 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the agreement amendments, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-7 Request for Special Meeting – Review of Applications for Employment for Position 

of City Manager  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That a Special Meeting in closed session is hereby SCHEDULED pursuant to 
§15.268(f) of the Open Meetings Act for the purpose of review of applications for employment 
for the position of City Manager on Wednesday, April 26, 2006 as recommended, or on 
Thursday, May 4, 2006, at 7:30 PM in the Council Board Room. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1970 Larchwood – May 8, 2006  
b) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5361 Livernois – May 8, 2006  
c) Proposed Budget for the Fiscal Year 2006-2007 – May 15, 2006  
    
G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted 
   

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 17, 2006 
 

- 15 - 

REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Historic District Study Committee/Final – January 3, 2006 
b) Historic Commission/Final – January 24, 2006 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – March 1, 2006  
d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – March 1, 2006  
e) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – March 1, 2006 
f) Planning Commission/Final – March 14, 2006 
g) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – March 28, 2006  
 

J-2 Department Reports: 
a) Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – MML Legislative 

Conference in Lansing  
b) Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – NLC Congressional Cities 

Conference in Washington, DC  
c) Council Member Dave Lambert’s Travel Expense Report – MML Legislative Conference 

in Lansing  
d) Council Member Dave Lambert’s Travel Expense Report – NLC Congressional Cities 

Conference in Washington, DC  
e) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of March, 2006  
f) Troy Fire Department – 2004 Annual Report  
g) 2006 City of Troy Assessment Roll and Board of Review Report   
h) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction – March, 2006  
i) City Manager’s Office – Transmittal of Proposed Fiscal Year 2006/2007 Annual Budget 
  
J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
a) Letter of Thanks to Tonni Bartholomew and the Clerk’s Office from Ashley Anderson, 

White Lake Township Election Secretary  
b) Letter of Appreciation to Lori Bluhm from Troy Community Coalition Regarding the 

Presentation at the Troy Town Hall Meeting  
c) Letter of Thanks to Paula Bratto from Craig Nardi Regarding Excellent Service 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   
a) Resolution from the City of Oak Park Supporting Full Formula Funding of State Revenue 

to Local Governments  
b) Resolution from the City of Royal Oak Encouraging the Oakland County Parks and 

Recreation Commission to Purchase Catalpa Park 
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Communication from the Purchasing Department Regarding State of Michigan 

MiDEAL Purchasing Program – Office Supply Contract with Office Max  
 
J-7  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regarding Law Day 2006 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 17, 2006 
 

- 16 - 

J-8  Communication from the Department of Public Works Regarding Water Main 
Tapping Crew and Continuing Education 

 
J-9  Communication from Risk Management Regarding City Employees’ Short-term 

Disability (STD), Long-term Disability (LTD), Life, and Accidental Death and 
Dismemberment (AD&D) Insurance Coverage 

 
J-10  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regarding City of Troy v. Ronald 

Greismayer 
 
J-11  Communication and Requests from the Troy Daze Committee for 2006 Magic of 

Fall/Troy Daze Festival 
 
J-12  Communication from the Police Department Regarding the Troy Daze Festival 

Hours of Operation 
 
J-13  Communication from the Police Department Regarding State of Michigan 

Homeland Security Grant 
 
J-14  Order of Case Dismissal from the State of Michigan Department of Labor & 

Economic Growth, Michigan Tax Tribunal – COBASYS, LLC v. City of Troy  
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 17, 2006 
 

- 17 - 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, April 24, 2006 (Budget Study Session)....................... Regular City Council 
Monday, May 1, 2006 (Budget Study Session II) ............. Special/Study City Council 
Monday, May 8, 2006................................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, May 15, 2006.............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, May 22, 2006 CANCELLED ....................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, June 5, 2006............................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, June 19, 2006............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, July 10, 2006 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, July 24, 2006 .............................................................. Regular City Council 

 
 



 PROCLAMATION  
 Recording for the Blind & Dyslexic Week 

 April 24 – 29, 2006 
 
WHEREAS, Recording for the Blind & Dyslexic of Michigan, located at 5600 Rochester Road 
in Troy, Michigan, is a non-profit volunteer organization serving people who cannot read standard 
print because of a visual, learning or other physical disability; and 
 
WHEREAS, Their mission is “to promote educational and professional success by converting 
printed materials into audio format” and those audio textbooks are provided free of charge to over 
9,000 Michigan members, grades kindergarten through graduate school; and  
 
WHEREAS, The careful reading of textbooks, descriptions of graphs, charts, diagrams, maps, 
tables and so forth, by the dedicated and highly trained volunteers at Recording for the Blind & 
Dyslexic of Michigan gives reading-disabled students equal access to the written word; and 
 
WHEREAS, Every year the demand for their services grows, and it is estimated that more than a 
quarter of a million learning disabled students ages 6 to 21 could benefit from the use of audio 
textbooks; and 
 
WHEREAS, Recording for the Blind & Dyslexic of Michigan will be conducting their 12th 
Annual Record-a-Thon, the purpose of which is to record as many textbooks as possible for six 
continuous days during the Week of April 24 – 29, 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, Recording for the Blind & Dyslexic of Michigan will start this event with a 
Celebrity Kickoff on Monday, April 24, 2004 at 10:00 a.m.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
proclaims the week of April 24 – 29, 2006, as “Recording for the Blind & Dyslexic Week” in 
honor of the hard-working local volunteers who diligently give of their time and talents, not to 
mention their treasure, to provide equal educational opportunities to those who cannot read and 
who learn by listening. 
 
Presented this 24th day of April 2006. 
 

CampbellLD
Text Box
A-01a



 
 
 
DATE:   April 10, 2006 
 
 
 
TO:   John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   376 Colebrook 
 
 
 
 
On March 13, 2006, information was sent to Mr. Lawrence Dalbec that identified 
restrictions related to a commercial vehicle located on residential property.  As part of 
that information, he was advised that the Chevrolet cube van parked on the property did 
not comply with the exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  He was given 
the option to remove the vehicle or appeal to City Council for relief of the Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, Mr. Dalbec has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests that a 
public hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has 
been scheduled for your meeting of April 17, 2006. 
 
The property in question is basically 100 feet wide and 139 feet deep.  It has an overall 
area of 15,349 square feet.  Based upon the requirements of Section 40.56.00 of the 
Troy Zoning Ordinance, a total of 757 square feet of detached accessory building could 
be constructed.  The home has a total living space area of 2,211 square feet.  There 
already exists a 1,256 attached garage.  Another 402 square feet of attached garage 
could be constructed. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 



 



 







 



 



 



 



 



 1

DATE:  April 7, 2006 
 
TO: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate & Development 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT 

AMENDMENT (ZOTA 201) – Article 28.30.00 Indoor Commercial 
Recreation in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Planning Commission and City Management recommend approval of ZOTA 201. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of ZOTA 201 at the July 12, 2005 
Regular meeting.  On November 14, 2005, City Council conducted a public hearing on 
ZOTA 201 at which time there was discussion whether the Planning Commission should 
or should not review definitions of performance theaters and performance studios that 
will be prepared by City Management.  A resolution was adopted by City Council to 
postpone ZOTA 201 to the November 28, 2005 City Council meeting, so City 
Management could develop and present proper definitions of performance theaters and 
performance studios to the Planning Commission.   
 
The Planning Commission considered the item at the December 13, 2005 Regular 
meeting.  At the meeting the Planning Commission passed the following motion:   

 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-192 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Drake-Batts 
 
RESOLVED, That the definitions for performance studio and performance 
theater provided by City Management are acceptable to the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



 2

The Planning Commission passed a second motion at the December 13, 2006 Regular 
meeting: 

 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-193 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, The City of Troy has a problem in its industrial zone of a multitude 
of vacancies and the tax base is being eroded; therefore the Planning 
Commission hereby recommends to the City Council that Paragraph 04.20.73, 
Indoor Commercial Recreation Facility, include performance studios, 
performance theaters and art studios, and that other facilities may be included in 
this paragraph as well as the facilities named in that paragraph in the language in 
front of us tonight.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

Performance theaters do not have the same characteristics as indoor commercial 
recreation uses.  A significant difference between the two uses is performance theaters 
generate traffic because of the audience watching the performance, while indoor 
commercial recreation generates traffic because of actual participation in the activity.  
City Management agrees with the general concept of expanding the range of uses 
permitted in the M-1 Light Industrial District.  However, it is City Management’s position 
that performance theaters should not be included in the same category as indoor 
commercial recreation uses.  The Planning Commission discussed this issue at the 
February 14, 2006 Regular meeting and passed the following Resolution #PC-2006-02-032:  

 
Resolution # PC-2006-02-032 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby rescinds Resolution # PC-
2005-12-193, which was approved by the Planning Commission at the Regular 
Meeting on December 13, 2005. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



 3

Following this resolution, resolution #PC-2006-02-033 was passed: 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-02-033 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission and City Management shall study 
the potential for developing standards for permitting Performance Theaters by 
Special Use Permit in the M-1 Light Industrial District. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
SUMMARY OF PLANNING COMMISSION ACTIONS ON ZOTA 201 

 
The following is a summary of Planning Commission actions regarding ZOTA 201: 
1. The Planning Commission recommended approval of ZOTA 201. 
2. The definitions for performance studio and performance theater provided by City 

Management are acceptable to the Planning Commission. 
3. The Planning Commission and City Management shall study the potential for 

developing standards for permitting Performance Theaters by Special Use Permit 
in the M-1 Light Industrial District. 

 
 
 
Reviewed as to Form and Legality: _____________________ _______ 
 Lori Grigg Bluhm  Date 
 City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. ZOTA 201 City Council Draft, dated March 22, 2006. 
2. City Management memo to City Council dated November 10, 2005. 
3. Definitions for Performance Studio And Performance Theater 
4. Minutes from the November 14, 2005 City Council meeting. 
5. Minutes from December 13, 2005 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
6. Minutes from the February 14, 2006 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 

 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 201 Trade_Industrial Arts or Dance Schools in M-1\CC Public Hearing 04 17 06.doc 



 1

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL DRAFT – MARCH 22, 2006 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Article IV of Chapter 39 
 
Article IV of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to add a new 
section 04.20.73, which defines Indoor Commercial Recreation Facilities, to read 
as follows: 
 
04.20.73 INDOOR COMMERCIAL RECREATION FACILITY:  An enterprise 

conducted entirely within a building, which receives a fee in return for 
the provision of some recreational activity or facility.  Such activities 
and facilities include racquetball, tennis courts, gymnasiums, 
swimming pools, skating rinks, performance studios, skateboard 
parks, climbing facilities, miniature golf courses, indoor driving ranges, 
batting cages, firing ranges, basketball courts, soccer fields and 
similar activities or facilities.  Such facilities may provide ancillary 
accessory uses such as pro shops or snack bars.  

 
04.20.734 JUNK YARDS: an open area where waste, used or secondhand 

materials are bought and sold, exchanged, stored, baled, packed, 
disassembled, or handled including, but not limited to; scrap iron and 
other metals, paper, rags, rubber tires, and bottles.  A "junk yard" 
includes automobile wrecking yards and includes any area of more 
than two hundred (200) square feet for storage, keeping or 
abandonment of junk but does not include uses established entirely 
within enclosed buildings. 

 
Section 3 – Amendment to Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 
 
Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to add a 
new Section 28.30.09 which permits Indoor Commercial Recreational Facilities 
as Special Uses in the M-1 Light Industrial District, to read as follows:  



 2

28.30.09 Indoor commercial recreation facilities, subject to the following 
conditions: 

 
  A. Off-street parking requirements shall be determined based on 

the Zoning Ordinance requirements.  
 
28.30.109 Other uses of a similar character to those permitted above, and which 

will not be injurious or have an adverse effect on adjacent areas, and 
may therefore be permitted subject to such conditions, restrictions 
and safeguards as may be deemed necessary in the interest of public 
health, safety and welfare. 

 
 
Section 4.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance 
adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of 
this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions 
pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses 
committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with 
the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such 
offense. 
 
Section 5.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 6.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ____. 



 3

 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 201 Trade_Industrial Arts or Dance Schools in M-1\ZOTA 201 CC Draft 03 27 06.doc 



November 10, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate & Development 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT 

AMENDMENT (ZOTA–201) – Article 28.30.00 Commercial Indoor 
Recreation in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Management and the Planning Commission developed language for this ZOTA.  
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on July 12, 2005 and recommended 
approval of Version “A”, which includes performance theaters.  After the Planning 
Commission recommendation, further discussions raised concerns of the 
appropriateness of performance theaters in M-1 Zoning District.  No one envisioned 
that performance theaters would be included in the commercial indoor recreation 
definition.  This inclusion had simply been missed in earlier reviews of the 
amendments.  Based upon the intent of the indoor commercial recreation in the M-1 
district ZOTA, City Management recommends approval Version ”B”, which excludes 
performance theaters and permits dance and performance studios.  If City Council 
desires to clarify this intent with the Planning Commission, resolution “C” was prepared 
that will refer the ZOTA back to the Planning Commission. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Link School of the Arts (1077 Rankin) submitted a Zoning Ordinance text 
amendment application to permit dance schools in the M-1 district.  The Planning 
Commission determined that arts and dance schools should be included in a category 
known as indoor commercial recreation, and this category should be considered as a 
use permitted by Special Use Approval in M-1.   
 
Commercial Indoor Recreation Facilities are appropriate uses in the M-1 Light 
Industrial District for a number of reasons:  

 
1. These uses are compatible with uses presently permitted in the M-1 district;  
2. The text amendment will be consistent with abutting communities, which 

generally permit similar uses in their industrial districts;  
3. The amendment will encourage the re-use of buildings and properties in the M-

1 District; and  
4. There are a significant number of vacant, relatively large, high-ceilinged 

buildings that would be appropriate for these types of uses.   



The definition of “Indoor Commercial Recreation Facility” considered at the Planning 
Commission Public Hearing included the uses dance studios and performance 
theaters.  It was the intent to permit dance and performance studios, but not the intent 
to permit performance theaters, such as Freedom Hill located in the City of Sterling 
Heights.  This potential situation was identified by Richard Carlisle, the City’s Planning 
Consultant, following the Planning Commission Public Hearing.  Therefore, three 
resolutions are prepared for City Councils consideration.   Version “A” is the Planning 
Commission’s recommendation which includes performance theaters.  Version “B” is 
City Management’s recommendation, which excludes performance theaters but still 
includes dance and performance studios.  Version “C” refers ZOTA 201 to the 
Planning Commission to consider the removal of performance theaters from ZOTA 
201. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. ZOTA 201, City Council Public Hearing Draft Version “A” 
2. ZOTA 201, City Council Public Hearing Draft Version “B” 
3. Minutes from July 12, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 201 Trade_Industrial Arts or Dance Schools in M-1\CC Public Hearing Memo 11 14 05.doc 
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT VERSION “A” 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Article IV of Chapter 39 
 
Article IV of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to add a new 
section 04.20.73, which defines Indoor Commercial Recreation Facilities, to read 
as follows: 
 
04.20.73 INDOOR COMMERCIAL RECREATION FACILITY:  An enterprise 

conducted entirely within a building, which receives a fee in return for 
the provision of some recreational activity or facility.  Such activities 
and facilities include racquetball, tennis courts, gymnasiums, 
swimming pools, skating rinks, dance studios, performance theaters, 
skateboard parks, climbing facilities, miniature golf courses, indoor 
driving ranges, batting cages, firing ranges, basketball courts, soccer 
fields and similar activities or facilities.  Such facilities may provide 
ancillary accessory uses such as pro shops or snack bars.  

 
04.20.734 JUNK YARDS: an open area where waste, used or secondhand 

materials are bought and sold, exchanged, stored, baled, packed, 
disassembled, or handled including, but not limited to; scrap iron and 
other metals, paper, rags, rubber tires, and bottles.  A "junk yard" 
includes automobile wrecking yards and includes any area of more 
than two hundred (200) square feet for storage, keeping or 
abandonment of junk but does not include uses established entirely 
within enclosed buildings. 

 
Section 3 – Amendment to Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 
 
Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to add a 
new Section 28.30.09 which permits Indoor Commercial Recreational Facilities 
as Special Uses in the M-1 Light Industrial District, to read as follows:  



28.30.09 Indoor commercial recreation facilities, subject to the following 
conditions: 

 
  A. Off-street parking requirements shall be determined based on 

the Zoning Ordinance requirements.  
 
28.30.109 Other uses of a similar character to those permitted above, and which 

will not be injurious or have an adverse effect on adjacent areas, and 
may therefore be permitted subject to such conditions, restrictions 
and safeguards as may be deemed necessary in the interest of public 
health, safety and welfare. 

 
 
Section 4.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance 
adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of 
this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions 
pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses 
committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with 
the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such 
offense. 
 
Section 5.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 6.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ____. 



 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 201 Trade_Industrial Arts or Dance Schools in M-1\ZOTA 201 CC Public Hearing Draft Version 
A 10 10 05.doc 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT VERSION “B” 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Article IV of Chapter 39 
 
Article IV of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to add a new 
section 04.20.73, which defines Indoor Commercial Recreation Facilities, to read 
as follows: 
 
04.20.73 INDOOR COMMERCIAL RECREATION FACILITY:  An enterprise 

conducted entirely within a building, which receives a fee in return for 
the provision of some recreational activity or facility.  Such activities 
and facilities include racquetball, tennis courts, gymnasiums, 
swimming pools, skating rinks, dance and performance studios, 
skateboard parks, climbing facilities, miniature golf courses, indoor 
driving ranges, batting cages, firing ranges, basketball courts, soccer 
fields and similar activities or facilities.  Such facilities may provide 
ancillary accessory uses such as pro shops or snack bars.  

 
04.20.734 JUNK YARDS: an open area where waste, used or secondhand 

materials are bought and sold, exchanged, stored, baled, packed, 
disassembled, or handled including, but not limited to; scrap iron and 
other metals, paper, rags, rubber tires, and bottles.  A "junk yard" 
includes automobile wrecking yards and includes any area of more 
than two hundred (200) square feet for storage, keeping or 
abandonment of junk but does not include uses established entirely 
within enclosed buildings. 

 
Section 3 – Amendment to Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 
 
Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to add a 
new Section 28.30.09 which permits Indoor Commercial Recreational Facilities 
as Special Uses in the M-1 Light Industrial District, to read as follows:  



28.30.09 Indoor commercial recreation facilities, subject to the following 
conditions: 

 
  A. Off-street parking requirements shall be determined based on 

the Zoning Ordinance requirements.  
 
28.30.109 Other uses of a similar character to those permitted above, and which 

will not be injurious or have an adverse effect on adjacent areas, and 
may therefore be permitted subject to such conditions, restrictions 
and safeguards as may be deemed necessary in the interest of public 
health, safety and welfare. 

 
 
Section 4.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance 
adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of 
this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions 
pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses 
committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with 
the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such 
offense. 
 
Section 5.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 6.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ____. 



 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 201 Trade_Industrial Arts or Dance Schools in M-1\ZOTA 201 CC Public Hearing Draft Version 
B 10 10 05.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 
 

12. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 201) – 
Article 28.30.00  Arts and Dance Schools (Commercial Recreation) in Light 
Industrial Zoning Districts 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment relating to arts and dance schools in the light industrial zoning 
districts.  Mr. Miller reported that City Management recommends approval of 
ZOTA 201 as printed on the draft ZOTA dated June 24, 2005.   
 
There was a brief discussion relating to commercial recreation in the RC zoning 
districts.  It was determined to discuss this at a future study meeting.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-121 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 28.30.09, pertaining to indoor commercial recreation facilities in 
the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District, and related additional definitions, be 
amended as printed on the Proposed Planning Commission Public Hearing Draft 
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 



DEFINITIONS FOR  
PERFORMANCE STUDIO AND PERFORMANCE THEATER 

 
 

The following resolution was approved by the Planning Commission on the December 
13, 2005 Planning Commission Regular meeting:  

 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-192 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Drake-Batts 
 
RESOLVED, That the definitions for performance studio and performance 
theater provided by City Management are acceptable to the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

The following definitions were provided to the Planning Commission by City 
Management for consideration at the December 13, 2005 Planning Commission 
Regular meeting: 

 
• PERFORMANCE STUDIO: A building or a portion of a building where the 

principal use of the space is the provision of instruction in the various arts, 
including but not limited to dance, theater, music, and singing.  This shall not 
preclude student performances. 

 
• PERFORMANCE THEATER: A building or portion of a building where the 

principal use of the space is dramatic, dance, or musical performances or 
similar activities, in front of an audience, including performances on film, 
television, music video, or multimedia.  Performance theaters shall include 
theaters, assembly halls, concert halls or similar places of assembly. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 201 Trade_Industrial Arts or Dance Schools in M-1\Definitions for PC Consideration 11 29 05.doc 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final November 14, 2005 

C-4 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 201) – Article 28.30.00, 
Commercial Indoor Recreation in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District 

 
Resolution #2005-11-508 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 201)-Article 28.30.00, 
Commercial Indoor Recreation in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District be POSTPONED 
until the Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, November 28, 2005 so that 
City Management can develop and present proper definitions of “performance studios” and 
“performance theaters” for Article IV of the Zoning Ordinance to the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 

TABLED ITEM 
 

6. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 201) – Article 28.30.00  Arts 
and Dance Schools (Commercial Recreation) in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning 
District 
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief review of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment relating to commercial indoor recreation in the M-1 Light Industrial 
Zoning District.   
 
Discussion followed on the following: 

• Negative affects of large performance theaters; i.e., parking, intense land 
use, design.  

• Current vacancy rate. 
• Tax base. 
• Existing zoning district that allows large performance theaters [B-2 and B-

3]. 
• Future of industrial area. 

 
Mr. Carlisle said large performance theaters are a consumer-oriented type of use 
that would produce more traffic mixed with the industrial style traffic.  Mr. Carlisle 
recommended that the members refine and create specific requirements in the 
Zoning Ordinance with respect to large performance theaters.   
 
Tennis bubbles, art studio/galleries, and motion picture theaters were discussed 
with respect to the definitions of performance studio and performance theater. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-192 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Drake-Batts 
 
RESOLVED, That the definitions for performance studio and performance 
theater provided by City Management are acceptable to the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 13, 2005 

Resolution # PC-2005-12-  (motion withdrawn) 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Paragraph 04.20.73, Indoor Commercial Recreation Facility, include 
both performance studios and performance theaters as well as all the other uses 
that are proposed in the text in front of us tonight.   
 
Mr. Vleck asked that the motion be amended to include the word “may” before 
“include both performance studios and performance theaters” so the activities are 
not limited and also to include the term “art studios”.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain, with agreement from Mr. Vleck, withdrew the motion on the 
floor, and restated it as follows.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-193 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, The City of Troy has a problem in its industrial zone of a multitude 
of vacancies and the tax base is being eroded; therefore the Planning 
Commission hereby recommends to the City Council that Paragraph 04.20.73, 
Indoor Commercial Recreation Facility, include performance studios, 
performance theaters and art studios, and that other facilities may be included in 
this paragraph as well as the facilities named in that paragraph in the language in 
front of us tonight.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Schultz, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 14, 2006 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

13. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 201) – Article 28.30.00 
Commercial Indoor Recreation in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed Resolutions # PC-2005-12-192 and # PC-2005-12-193 
passed at the December 13, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting.  He 
reported City Management recommends that the Planning Commission rescind 
Resolution # PC-2005-12-193.  City Management further recommends that the 
commercial indoor recreation facilities not include performance theaters, and that 
consideration be given to developing separate special use standards for 
performance theaters in the M-1 Light Industrial district.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-02-032 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby rescinds Resolution # PC-
2005-12-193, which was approved by the Planning Commission at the Regular 
Meeting on December 13, 2005. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Littman asked if the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment was 
forwarded to City Council. 
 
Mr. Miller stated that the proposed ZOTA has not been forwarded to the City 
Council as of yet.  Mr. Miller said a thorough explanation would accompany the 
report to City Council.  He indicated that recreational uses in the M-1 zoning 
district would go forward to City Council.  Mr. Miller clarified that dance studios 
and performance studios would be included in the recommendation as uses 
permitted in indoor recreation, but performance theaters would be excluded.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 14, 2006 

Resolution # PC-2006-02-033 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission and City Management shall study 
the potential for developing standards for permitting Performance Theaters by 
Special Use Permit in the M-1 Light Industrial District. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



 1

 
Date: April 7, 2006 
 
To: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From: Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
Subject: AGENDA ITEM – PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT 

AMENDMENT (ZOTA 222) – Article XXVIII, Antique or Classic Automobile 
Sales in the M-1 Light Industrial District 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of this item at the March 14, 2006 
Regular meeting.  City Management agrees with the Planning Commission and 
recommends approval of ZOTA 222. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A representative of Birmingham Auto World submitted a text amendment application to 
permit classic and antique automobile sales operations as conditional uses in the M-1 
district.  Presently the Zoning Ordinance does not permit stand alone used automobile 
sales in the M-1 Light Industrial District.  New car sales agencies are permitted by 
special use approval in the M-1 district when developed as a planned center or complex 
specializing in new car sales.  New and used car salesrooms, showrooms or offices are 
permitted by right in the B-3 and H-S districts.  Outdoor sales spaces for exclusive sale 
or lease of new or second-hand automobiles, trucks, mobile homes, trailers or 
recreational vehicles are permitted by special use approval in the B-3 and H-S districts. 
 
City Management supports the concept of classic and antique automobile sales in the 
M-1 district.  The petitioner provided draft language, which was modified by City 
Management.  The attached minutes demonstrate that the petitioner supports the 
proposed ZOTA 222 City Council Public Hearing Draft. 
 
The proposed amendment permits classic or antique automobile sales subject to 
conditional use approval in the M-1 Light Industrial District subject to the following 
specific standards:   

• There shall be no outdoor storage of materials or vehicles. 
• No automobile repair or service shall be permitted, unless special use approval is 

granted by the City. 
• Sales of automobiles on site shall be exclusively limited to antique or classic 

automobiles; no sales of new or conventional used cars shall be permitted. 
• Antique or classic automobiles located on site and offered for sale shall be in 

operable condition. 

campbellld
Text Box
C-03



 2

A definition for antique or classic automobiles was created using the State of Michigan 
classification for historical automobiles.  
 
A public hearing is scheduled for the April 17, 2006 City Council Regular meeting.   
 
 
 
Reviewed as to Form and Legality: _____________________ _______ 
 Lori Grigg Bluhm  Date 
 City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments:  

1. ZOTA 222 – City Council Public Hearing Draft. 
2. Minutes from March 14, 2006 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 

 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
 
cc: File/ ZOTA 222 
 Applicant 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 222 Classic and Antique Auto Sales in M-1\CC PH ZOTA 222 Memo 04 17 06.doc 
 
 



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department  3/24/06 1

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2 – Amendment to Articles IV and XXVIII of Chapter 39 
 
Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to permit 
classic or antique automobile sales subject to conditional use approval in the M-1 
Light Industrial District subject to specific standards.  Furthermore, Article IV 
Definitions is amended to provide a definition for antique or classic automobiles.  
 
(Underlining, except for major section titles, denotes changes.) 
 
 
04.20.12 AUTOMOBILE, ANTIQUE OR CLASSIC: an automobile that is 

classified as historical or is eligible to be classified as historical by the 
State of Michigan, which is over twenty-six (26) years old, and which 
is owned as a collector’s item and used primarily for exhibition and 
educational purposes. 

 
 
28.25.07 Antique or Classic Automobile Sales Agencies for antique or classic 

automobiles shall be permitted subject to the following: 
 

A. There shall be no outdoor storage of materials or vehicles. 
 
B. No automobile repair or service shall be permitted, unless 

special use approval is granted by the City. 
 

C. Sales of automobiles on site shall be exclusively limited to 
antique or classic automobiles; no sales of new or conventional 
used cars shall be permitted. 

 
D. Antique or classic automobiles located on site and offered for 

sale must be in operable condition. 
 



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department  3/24/06 2

Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance 
adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of 
this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions 
pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses 
committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with 
the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such 
offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2006. 
 
 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 222 Classic and Antique Auto Sales in M-1\City Council Public Hearing Draft ZOTA 222 4 17 06.doc 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 14, 2006 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT REQUEST (ZOTA 
222) – Articles 04.00.00 and 28.25.00  Classic and Antique Auto Sales Facilities in the 
M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
Zoning Ordinance text amendment and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the Planning Commission Public Hearing draft language.   
 
Gregory Need, attorney, 39533 Woodward Avenue, Bloomfield Hills, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. Need announced the two principals of Birmingham Auto 
World were also present.  He provided a brief explanation for the request and indicated 
his clients are supportive of the text revisions presented by City Management.  Mr. Need 
asked the members for a favorable recommendation to City Council.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Vleck addressed Section 28.25.07 (D) of the proposed text that states antique or 
classic automobiles located on site and offered for sale must be in operable condition.  
He suggested the elimination of the text to also allow inoperable automobiles on site.   
 
Mr. Need said his clients have no preference on the wording of that section because all 
their vehicles are in operable condition. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-03-045 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that Articles IV DEFINITIONS and XXVIII M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT, 
pertaining to Antique or Classic Automobile Sales Agencies in the M-1 District, be 
amended as printed on the Proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, Planning 
Commission Public Hearing Draft.  
 
Yes: Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Vleck 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck said he would prefer the deletion of Section 28.25.07 (D) because it would 
allow more flexibility to potential people who wish to service classic automobiles in the 
M-1 district.   

 



 1

 
 
DATE:  April 7, 2006 
 
TO: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION – 

Proposed Medical Office, east side of Stephenson Highway, north of 
Fourteen Mile and south of Maple, Section 35 – R-C to O-M     (Z 715) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan and compatible 
with existing zoning districts and land uses.  The Planning Commission recommended 
approval of this item at the March 14, 2006 Regular meeting.  City Management agrees 
with the Planning Commission and recommends approval of the rezoning application.   
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Robbins Investments LLC.  
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the east side of Stephenson Highway, north of Fourteen Mile 
and south of Maple, in Section 35. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant originally applied to rezone a 16-acre parcel made up of three separate 
properties.  One of the properties (466 Stephenson) approximately 3 acres in area was 
withdrawn from the application prior to the March 14, 2006 Planning Commission 
meeting.  The subject parcel is now comprised of the two remaining properties (500 and 
550 Stephenson) and totals approximately 13 acres in area.    
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
Two existing office buildings presently sit on the property. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-C Research Center. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
O-M Office Mid-Rise. 

campbellld
Text Box
C-04



 2

Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The application indicates that the proposed use is medical office building. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: R-C Research Center. 
South: R-C Research Center. 
East: R-C Research Center and O-1 Office Building.  
West: M-1 Light Industrial. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: Office. 
South: Office.  
East: Office. 
West: Light Industrial.  
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed O-M Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
 Any use permitted as a principal use in the O-1 Office Building. 
 

Data processing and computer centers, including sales, service and maintenance of 
electronic data processing equipment. 

 
 Any use charged with the principal function of office-type research or technical 

training. 
 
 Other uses similar to the above uses. 
 
 Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 

The following uses shall be permitted provided they are included in the office use 
structure or other principal structures as indicated in Section 25.20.00 "Principal 
Uses Permitted", or are attached to such structures by means of a fully enclosed 
structural attachment, and therefore shall not be permitted as freestanding 
structures. Such secondary structures shall be designed so as to provide a logical 
extension of the floor plan of the principal structures, and shall utilize exterior 
materials similar to or harmonious with such principal structures. 

 
  A) Personal service establishments which perform services on the 

premises including, but not limited to: barber shops, beauty parlors, 
tailor shops, and photographic studios. 



 3

  B) Retail business establishments which supply commodities on the 
premises including, but not limited to: millinery shops, clothing shops, 
shoe shops, pharmacy or apothecary shops, interior decorating 
shops, flower shops, office supply and stationery shops, notion and 
gift shops. 

 
  C) Restaurants or other places serving food or beverage, except those 

having the character of an open front store, drive-in or carry-out 
establishment so called. 

 
  D) Entertainment and recreation facilities including, but not limited to: 

theaters, auditoriums, sports and health facilities. 
 
  E) Clubs, fraternal organizations and service clubs whose activities are 

not carried on as a business. 
 
  Such uses shall, in total, occupy no more than twenty (20) percent of the 

floor area of the building complex of which they are a part. 
 

Utility sub-stations, transformer stations or gas regulator stations (without 
storage yards). 

 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 

Hotels or motels may be permitted by the City Council, following a report and 
recommendation by the Planning Commission. 

 
Outside seating, assembly, and activity areas for restaurants and hotels, may be 
permitted by the City Council. 

 
 Mechanical or laboratory research involving testing or evaluation of products, or 

prototype or experimental product or process development. 
 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
Access to the property is provided from Stephenson Highway. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant proposes no additional construction on the property. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property.   
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The Future Land Use Plan classifies this parcel as Office/Research.  The Research 
classification has a primary correlation with the R-C District and a secondary correlation 
with the M-1, O-1, O-M and O-S-C Districts.  The application is therefore consistent with 
the Future Land Use Plan.  The area was designated Light Industrial on the Master 



 4

Land Use Plan in 1965, designated Industrial/Research on the 1971 Plan and then 
designated Office/Research on the 2002 Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards: 
The location standards for the O-M Office Mid-Rise District in Article 25.40.00 may be 
applied when the application of such a classification is consistent with the intent of the 
Master Land Use Plan, and therefore involves (1) Areas indicated as mid-rise office 
(Article 25.40.02) or (2) Areas designated for higher intensity office development, when it is 
determined that the total community would be more effectively and property served by the 
application of O-M zoning than by the application of a more intense office district (Article 
25.40.03). 
 
While the property is not classified as mid-rise office on the Future Land Use Plan, the 
property is classified as Office/Research, which correlates with the O-M district.  The 
application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Minutes from March 14, 2006 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
3. Letter from applicant requesting withdrawal of 466 Stephenson from the 

subject parcel, dated March 13, 2006. 
4. Supporting statement from applicant. 
5. Letter of support dated April 5, 2006. 

 
 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 715) 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-715 Robbins INvestments Sec. 35\CC Public Hearing Z 715 4 17 06.doc 
 







I75

JO
H

N
 R

MAPLE

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

A
D

A
M

S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

BIG BEAVER

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

SOUTH BLVD

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

SQUARE LAKE

FOURTEEN MILE

S
TE

P
H

E
N

S
O

N

M
A

IN

I75



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-C TO O-M &/OR O-1









ELLIO
TT

N 
I75 

O
N

R
P

S 
I7

5 
O

FR
P

S I75

BU
R

TM
A

N

LY
O

N

N
 I75

C
H

IC
AG

O

R
E

D
W

O
O

D

KEY WEST

STE
P

H
EN

S
O

N

WACON

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED OFFICE USE OF EXISTING BLDG.
FROM R-C TO O-M &/OR O-1
W SIDE OF STEPHENSON HWY., N OF FOURTEEN MILE RD.
SEC.  35  (Z-715)

±0 100 200 300 400
Feet

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-C TO O-M &/OR O-1



ELLIO
TT

N 
I75 

O
N

R
P

S 
I7

5 
O

FR
P

S I75

BU
R

TM
A

N

LY
O

N

N
 I75

C
H

IC
AG

O

R
E

D
W

O
O

D

KEY WEST

STE
P

H
EN

S
O

N

WACON

(R-C) Research
Center District

(R
-1

E)
 O

ne
 F

am
ily

R
es

id
en

tia
l D

is
tri

ct

(O-1) Office
Building
District

(M-1) Light
Industrial
District

(B-3) General
Business
District

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED OFFICE USE OF EXISTING BLDG.
FROM R-C TO O-M &/OR O-1
W SIDE OF STEPHENSON HWY., N OF FOURTEEN MILE RD.
SEC.  35  (Z-715)

±0 100 200 300 400
Feet

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-C TO O-M &/OR O-1



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 14, 2006 

REZONING REQUEST 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 715) – Proposed Office Use of 
Existing Buildings, West side of Stephenson Hwy, North of Fourteen Mile Road, 
Section 35 – From R-C (Research Center) to O-M (Office Mid-Rise) and/or O-1 
(Office Low Rise) District 
 
Mr. Miller identified three pieces of correspondence distributed to the members 
prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting; i.e., written request from the petitioner 
to withdraw one parcel from the rezoning request; a proposed Resolution to 
correspond to the exclusion of that parcel, and a boundary survey showing the 
withdrawn parcel.   
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning and noted that the rezoning was advertised for both O-M and 
O-1.  Mr. Miller reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the revised rezoning request.   
 
The petitioner, Michael Surnow of Robbins Investments LLC, 7115 Orchard Lake 
Road, West Bloomfield, was present.  Mr. Surnow said the property is needed for 
medical office use.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Motzny confirmed the rezoning request as revised does not need to be re-
advertised and the members could proceed with the request.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-03-043 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
WHEREAS, The applicant has requested that a parcel approximately 3.047 acres 
in size, described in the legal description as Lot 1 of Robbins Executive Park West, 
referred to as 466 Stephenson Highway, be withdrawn from the rezoning 
application, and 
 
WHEREAS, The applicant wishes to proceed with the rezoning of the remaining 
portion of the property, described in the legal description as Lot 2 and part of Lot 3 
of Robbins Executive Park West, referred to as 500 and 550 Stephenson Highway. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 14, 2006 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby 
recommends to the City Council that the R-C to O-M rezoning request, located 
on the west side of Stephenson Highway, north of Fourteen Mile Road, within 
Section 35, being approximately 13 acres in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 









CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 3, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, April 3, 2006, at City Hall, 500 W. 
Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:31 P.M. 
 
Pastor Vince Messina of Woodside Bible Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield  
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak (Absent) 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member  
 
Resolution #2006-04-163 
Moved by Lambert    
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Council Member Howrylak’s absence at the Regular City Council meeting of 
Monday, April 3, 2006 is EXCUSED due to being out of the county.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentation: On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented Larry Alexander 
and John Witz a proclamation in appreciation of the role they and Susan Sherer played 
in the success of Super Bowl XL and in recognition of the positive impact that their 
contribution had on Troy’s residents and business community. 

  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5152 Prentis 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the petitioner and the 
public. 
 
 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 3, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

Resolution #2006-04-164 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s); and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: No condition 
designated by City Council; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Mr. Bujar Rexha, 5152 Prentis, 
for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Dodge cube van in a residential district is hereby DENIED. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
C-2 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 3463 Crooks Road  
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment; seeing no member of the public 
wishing to speak, the Mayor closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Resolution #2006-04-165 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 3, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 
commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s); and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: No condition 
designated by City Council; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Mr. Timothy Clyne, 3463 
Crooks Road, for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to 
permit outdoor parking of a GMC cube van in a residential district is hereby DENIED. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 Overhead Easement for Detroit Edison – Sidwell #20-23-354-048 
  
Resolution #2006-04-166 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Detroit Edison to grant an overhead easement over the 
property with Sidwell #88-20-23-354-048 is GRANTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Council directs the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the 
easement document. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 3, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

D-2 Board and Committee Appointment to the Traffic Committee 
  
Resolution #2006-04-167 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Stine 
 
RESOLVED, That the following person is hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Sarah Binkowski Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2006-04-168 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item E-2 and E-5, which shall be considered after Consent 
Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
E-3 City of Troy Proclamations:  
 
Resolution #2006-04-168-E-3 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamations be APPROVED: 
 
a) Oakland County Community Development Week – April 17 – 23, 2006  
b) Proclamation Celebrating the Success of Super Bowl XL Thanks to Larry Alexander, 

John Witz and Susan Sherer 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 3, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement  - Trailer Mounted 4-ton Asphalt Hot Patcher          
 
Resolution #2006-04-168-E-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase one (1) Spaulding, 4-ton trailer mounted asphalt hot 
patcher from Bell Equipment Company is hereby APPROVED through the Oakland County 
Cooperative Purchasing Agreement at an estimated cost of $10,241.00. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Contract 06-1 

Rochester at Wattles and Square Lake – Mill and Overlay          
 
Resolution #2006-04-168-E-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Contract No. 06-1, Rochester at Wattles and Square Lake mill and overlay, 
be AWARDED to Ajax Paving Industries, Inc., 830 Kirts Blvd., Suite 100, Troy, MI 48084 at an 
estimated total cost of $298,196.02; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – New Oakland County Emergency Radio Equipment Including Two 
Sole Source Vendors          

 
Resolution #2006-04-168-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to purchase emergency radio equipment from M/A Com, Inc. of 
Lynchburg, VA and Cynergy Wireless of Troy, MI are hereby APPROVED through Oakland 
County Cooperative Purchasing Agreements; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy Police Department is AUTHORIZED to purchase 
additional radio equipment from Television Equipment Associates of New York and SetCom 
Communications of California, the sole source vendors for additional ancillary equipment 
compatible with equipment currently in use, for an estimated total project cost of $102,000.00; 
at prices contained in Appendix 1, Detailed Cost Estimates, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 3, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Option to Renew – Printing of Troy Today          
 
Resolution #2006-04-168-E-4d 
 
WHEREAS, On April 18, 2005, a one-year contract with the option to renew for two additional 
one-year periods for the printing of the Troy Today quarterly newsletter was awarded to the 
lowest bidder meeting specifications, Grand River Printing & Imaging of Belleville, Michigan 
(Resolution #2005-04-183-E-4e); and 
 
WHEREAS, Grand River Printing & Imaging has agreed to exercise the option to renew the first 
of two additional one-year periods under the same prices, terms, and conditions; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract for one 
additional year is hereby EXERCISED with Grand River Printing & Imaging to provide printing 
of the quarterly Troy Today newsletter for an estimated total cost of $70,060.72 per year, plus 
the actual cost of bulk rate postage, under the same prices, terms, and conditions as the 
original contract, to expire upon completion of the Spring 2007 issue. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  State of Michigan Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement MiDEAL – Commercial Lawn Equipment          
 
Resolution #2006-04-168-E-4e 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase one (1) commercial zero turn riding mower from John 
Deere Company, 2000 Deere Run, Cary, NC is hereby APPROVED through the terms of the 
State of Michigan Cooperative Purchasing Agreement, MiDEAL, at an estimated total cost of 
$12,247.00. 
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Low Bidders Meeting 

Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products          
 
Resolution #2006-04-168-E-4f 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to purchase 2006 season requirements of turfgrass protection 
products are hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidders meeting specifications as follows: 
 
BIDDERS ITEMS
Tri-Turf of Farmington Hills, MI 4,7,37 
Verdicon/UAP of Linden, MI 16,17,21,25 
Great Lakes Turf, LLC of Grand Rapids MI 5,8,13,14,15,18,27,28,29,30,31,34,35,36 
Turfgrass Incorporated of South Lyon MI 3,6,9,10,11,12,26,32,33 
ProSource One Professional Products of Tecumseh, MI 19,23,24 
Lesco, Inc., of Cleveland Ohio 1,20,22 
Carso, Inc., of Camargo, IL 2 
 
for an estimated total cost of $139,900.00, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 
March 7, 2006, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 3, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

E-6 Acceptance of Five Easements and Warranty Deed from Amberwood 
Condominiums of Troy, Inc. – Sidwell #88-20-03-226-010 

 
Resolution #2006-04-168-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That the five easements and one warranty deed received from Amberwood 
Condominiums of Troy, Inc., owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-03-226-010 are hereby 
ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds Office, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2006-04-169 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield   
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of March 27, 2006 
be APPROVED as corrected. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
E-5 Park and Ride Agreement with Royal Transportation and City of Troy 
 
Resolution #2006-04-170 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Park and Ride Agreement between Royal Transportation Company and 
the City of Troy is hereby APPROVED, conditioned upon Royal’s submission of a Certificate of 
Insurance acceptable to the City; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the Agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 3, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA) b) City Council Appointments: Advisory 
Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; 
Board of Zoning Appeals and Troy Daze Advisory Committee 

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments  
 
Resolution #2006-04-171 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) 
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval - Council Alternates (2) - Term expires with term of office 
 
Cristina Broomfield Term expires 11/09/09 
 
Wade Fleming Term expires 11/09/09 
 
Brian Murphy Term expires 06/30/07 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
(b)  City Council Appointments
 
Resolution #2006-04-172 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities
Appointed by Council (9 Regular Members; 3 Alternates) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Chelsea Weidman Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 
Gina Hyun Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 3, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

Board of Zoning Appeals 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Christopher Fejes Term Expires 04/30/09 
 
Troy Daze Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Years 
 
Kasey Wang Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
F-2 Election Precincts 12 and 13 Relocation of Polling Location 
 
Resolution #2006-04-173 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has deemed that the current location of Precincts #12 and #13 at 
the Fire-Police Training Facility – 4850 John R has insufficient parking and cannot adequately 
serve the City of Troy electors assigned to that polling location; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has found an alternative polling location at Bethesda Romanian 
Pentecostal Church – 2075 E. Long Lake that will sufficiently serve the electors of the City of 
Troy. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy, Precincts #12 and #13 located at the 
Fire-Police Training Facility at 4850 John R be RELOCATED to Bethesda Romanian 
Pentecostal Church located at 2075 E. Long Lake effective with the Primary Election scheduled 
for Tuesday, August 8, 2006. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
F-3 Contract for Greenstar & Associates, LLC for Right-of Way Services 
 
Resolution #2006-04-174 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, It has been determined that it would be in the best interest of the City of Troy to 
enter into a contract for right-of-way services in lieu of hiring a Senior Right of Way 
Representative; 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 3, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

WHEREAS, Greenstar & Associates, LLC has submitted a proposal to provide right-of-way 
services for authorized project hours up to 1310 hours per year for the next two years, with a 
one year option to renew, and at an estimated total cost of $98,250, as outlined in a 
memorandum from the Real Estate & Development Department dated March 20, 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, In the event additional hours or projects are added to those described in 
Addendum A of the above referenced memorandum, the proposed contract provides the 
flexibility to add up to 190 hours per year for a total cost not to exceed $112,500.    
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the agreement between the City of Troy and 
Greenstar & Associates, LLC to provide right-of-way services is hereby APPROVED, and the 
Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the Agreement documents; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the contract is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission 
of properly executed documents including insurance certificates and any other specified 
requirements. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
F-4 City of Troy v. Linda and Raymond Winter 
 
Resolution #2006-04-175 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Consent Judgment between the City of Troy and Raymond and Linda 
Winter is hereby APPROVED, the City Attorney is AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, 
a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
F-5 Transfer of WOW Cable Franchise 
 
Resolution #2006-04-176 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, WideOpenWest Michigan, LLC (WOW!) is a current cable franchisee for the City of 
Troy, a Local Franchise Authority within the Intergovernmental Cable Communications Authority 
(ICCA); and 
  
WHEREAS, On December 27, 2005, WideOpenWest Holdings and Racecar Acquisition, LLC 
submitted an FCC Form 394 Application for Franchise Authority Consent to Assignment or 
Transfer of Control of Cable Television Franchise; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 3, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

 WHEREAS, The City of Troy is relying upon such information as contained in the above 
referenced FCC Form 394 application and supporting documents, as well as additional 
supplemental information provided by WideOpenWest Holdings, LLC, in the consideration of 
the application, and based on the information provided therein, the City of Troy intends to 
approve the application and consent to the transfer of control of the cable television franchise 
currently held by WideOpenWest Holdings to Racecar Acquisition, LLC, upon the belief that the 
consent is in the best interest of the City of Troy. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:  
 
The City of Troy CONSENTS to the transfer of control of the cable franchisee from 
WideOpenWest Holdings, LLC to Racecar Acquisition, LLC, in the manner described in the 
Agreement and Plan of Merger dated December 13, 2005, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. As soon as possible, and prior to the closing on the transfer of the cable franchise 
from WideOpenWest Holdings, LLC to Racecar Acquisition, LLC, WideOpenWest 
Michigan LLC will promptly notify the City of Troy in writing of any change in service 
or operation in the City of Troy’s cable system and/or change in the personnel directly 
responsible for the operation of the City of Troy’s system in contemplation of, or as a 
result of consummation of the Agreement and Plan of Merger; and 

2. As soon as possible, and prior to the closing on the transfer of the cable franchise 
from WideOpenWest Holdings, LLC to Racecar Acquisition, LLC, WideOpenWest 
Michigan LLC will promptly and properly remediate all existing defaults under the 
current Cable Franchise Agreement with the City of Troy, and will also confirm in 
writing that it has no knowledge of any other defaults other than those identified and 
remedied; and    

3. As soon as possible, and prior to the closing on the transfer of the cable franchise 
from WideOpenWest Holdings, LLC to Racecar Acquisition, LLC, WideOpenWest 
Michigan LLC and all of the parties to the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated 
December 13, 2005 will provide a written statement that the Transferee and 
Transferor will provide full and immediate cooperation with respect to the franchise 
fee review or audit being conducted by the City of Troy and/or the ICCA. All parties to 
the Agreement shall cooperate with the audit or fee review, which includes but is not 
limited to transmitting all necessary information to the auditors and/or attorneys that 
have requested said information, within ten (10) days from the request; and   

4. As soon as possible, and prior to the closing on the transfer of the cable franchise 
from WideOpenWest Holdings, LLC to Racecar Acquisition, LLC, Racecar Acquisition 
LLC agrees in writing to accept and be bound by the Cable Franchise Agreement and 
the current cable regulatory and telecommunications ordinances of the City of Troy. 
In all instances, Racecar Acquisition LLC will assume all obligations (known or 
unknown) of the existing franchise; and   

5. The City of Troy and/or the other ICCA Communities allege that there is an existing 
default of the Cable Franchise Agreement, since the Franchisee has failed to pay the 
correct amount of franchise fees and PEG fees. The parties agree to cooperate in a 
review of these past payments, without admitting liability. However, if a default on the 
current Cable Franchise Agreement is found to exist, then it shall be remedied, as 
provided in condition #2; and   

6. All prior agreements and undertakings by WideOpenWest Holdings, LLC, between 
WideOpenWest Holdings, LLC and the ICCA or any of the ICCA member 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 3, 2006 
 

- 12 - 

communities, apart from the Franchise Agreement, shall remain in full force and 
effect, and Racecar Acquisition, LLC shall honor any such agreement or undertaking; 
and   

7. The City of Troy’s approval of the transfer of the Cable Franchise shall be 
automatically revoked if the Agreement and the Plan of Merger is not consummated 
by July 31, 2006, or if the Agreement and Plan of Merger is terminated prior to that 
time without having been consummated; and  

8. The ICCA and the City of Troy shall be reimbursed within thirty days by any of the 
parties to the Agreement and Plan of Merger of December 13, 2005, for the 
reasonable expenses incurred by the ICCA and/or the City of Troy that are directly 
attributed to the ICCA or the City of Troy for their consideration of the transfer 
application. 

  
The City of Troy’s grant of consent to the transfer of the Cable Franchise Agreement, from 
WideOpenWest Holdings, LLC to Racecar Acquisitions, LLC, pursuant to the Agreement 
and Plan of Merger dated December 13, 2005, SHALL be effective immediately, subject to 
the above conditions. The Acting City Manager of the City of Troy is hereby AUTHORIZED 
to enter into and EXECUTE and DELIVER a certificate, as well as such other documents 
that may be necessary, evidencing this resolution, as long as any additional documents are 
consistent with this resolution, without further act or resolution of the City Council. 
 
WideOpenWest Michigan, LLC shall promptly notify the City of Troy upon the closing of the 
transaction, as described in the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated December 13, 2005. 
 

Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
F-6 Bid Waiver – Integrated Security Management System Installation with Time 

Tracker Software and Maintenance 
 
Resolution #2006-04-177 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, SimplexGrinnel is an authorized, licensed installer in Michigan of the Andover 
Controls security system;  
 
WHEREAS, The SimplexGrinnel system has the ability to track both building security and 
worker time and attendance;  
 
WHEREAS, It is desirable that the same security system is installed at the DPW facility as in 
the Police and Fire Departments since the programmed ID cards currently in place could be 
used for the entry and egress of any authorized employee from the DPW site (building and 
grounds);  
 
WHEREAS, It will be possible for Police Department to monitor the DPW facility from Police 
Communications with compatible equipment and software; and  
  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 3, 2006 
 

- 13 - 

WHEREAS, The DPW facility may be added to the maintenance contract currently established 
with SimplexGrinnel for the Police Department’s system. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED 
and the City of Troy is AUTHORIZED to enter into a contract with SimplexGrinnel of Farmington 
Hills, MI, for labor and materials to install an Integrated Security Management System with the 
inclusion of the Time Tracker software and programming in accordance with their proposal 
dated February 13, 2006 for an estimated amount of $147,416.80 with maintenance, after the 
2-year warranty period, provided in accordance with the existing maintenance agreement 
covering the Police Department’s system, approved by Resolution #2005-12-557. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA-201) – Article 28.30.00, Indoor Commercial 

Recreation in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District – April 17, 2006  
b) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 222) – Article XXVIII, Antique or Classic 

Automobile Sales in the M-1 Light Industrial District – April 17, 2006  
c) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 376 Colebrook – April 17, 2006  
d) Rezoning Application – Proposed Medical Office, East Side of Stephenson Highway, 

North of Fourteen Mile and South of Maple, Section 35 – R-C to O-M (Z 715) – April 17, 
2006  

Noted and Filed 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums: No Memorandums Submitted 
   

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 3, 2006 
 

- 14 - 

REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Traffic Committee/Final – October 19, 2005  
b) Traffic Committee/Final – January 18, 2006  
c) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – January 19, 2006  
d) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – February 7, 2006  
e) Traffic Committee/Final – February 15, 2006 
f) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – February 21, 2006 
g) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – March 7, 2006  
h) Planning Commission/Draft – March 14, 2006 

Noted and Filed 

J-2 Department Reports: 
a) Police Department – Selection of Sergeant Donald Ostrowski to Serve on the U.S. 

Department of Homeland Security/Office of Infrastructure Protection Panel 
b) Finance Department – City Council Expense Report – March, 2006  
c) City Attorney’s Office – 2006 First Quarter Litigation Report 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
a) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Paula Talarico, Martell Elementary PTO President, 

In Appreciation of the Internet Safety Presentation by Detective Mork  
Noted and Filed 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-6  Award of Excellence from the Michigan Concrete Paving Association for Coolidge 

Highway Realignment at Wattles Road 
Noted and Filed 

 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:59 P.M. 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 City Ordinance, Chapter 28 and the Tree Ordinance and Landscape Design and 

Tree Preservations Standards 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested 
 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 3, 2006 
 

- 15 - 

The meeting RECONVENED at 10:22 P.M. 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:23 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 



 PROCLAMATION  
 Recording for the Blind & Dyslexic Week 

 April 24 – 29, 2006 
 
WHEREAS, Recording for the Blind & Dyslexic of Michigan, located at 5600 Rochester Road 
in Troy, Michigan, is a non-profit volunteer organization serving people who cannot read standard 
print because of a visual, learning or other physical disability; and 
 
WHEREAS, Their mission is “to promote educational and professional success by converting 
printed materials into audio format” and those audio textbooks are provided free of charge to over 
9,000 Michigan members, grades kindergarten through graduate school; and  
 
WHEREAS, The careful reading of textbooks, descriptions of graphs, charts, diagrams, maps, 
tables and so forth, by the dedicated and highly trained volunteers at Recording for the Blind & 
Dyslexic of Michigan gives reading-disabled students equal access to the written word; and 
 
WHEREAS, Every year the demand for their services grows, and it is estimated that more than a 
quarter of a million learning disabled students ages 6 to 21 could benefit from the use of audio 
textbooks; and 
 
WHEREAS, Recording for the Blind & Dyslexic of Michigan will be conducting their 12th 
Annual Record-a-Thon, the purpose of which is to record as many textbooks as possible for six 
continuous days during the Week of April 24 – 29, 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, Recording for the Blind & Dyslexic of Michigan will start this event with a 
Celebrity Kickoff on Monday, April 24, 2004 at 10:00 a.m.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
proclaims the week of April 24 – 29, 2006, as “Recording for the Blind & Dyslexic Week” in 
honor of the hard-working local volunteers who diligently give of their time and talents, not to 
mention their treasure, to provide equal educational opportunities to those who cannot read and 
who learn by listening. 
 
Presented this 24th day of April 2006. 
 

CampbellLD
Text Box
E-03a



CITY OF TROY 
LAW DAY PROCLAMATION 

May 1, 2006 
 
WHEREAS, Law Day is a celebration of our great heritage of liberty, justice, and 
equality under law; and 
 
WHEREAS, our nation’s Founders created a doctrine of separation of powers among 
the three branches of government – executive, legislative, and judicial; and 
 
WHEREAS, in an effort to balance any accumulation of power, our nations’s Founders 
included a system of checks and balances in the Constitution, and this system ensures 
that each branch serves as a constraint on, and is constrained by, the powers of other 
branches; and 
 
WHEREAS, our system of separation of powers and checks and balances stands as a 
model for other nations of the world; and 
 
WHEREAS, the theme of Law Day 2006 , “Liberty Under the Law: Separate Branches, 
Balanced Powers,” provides an opportunity to acknowledge that although the separate 
branches of government have their separate spheres and separate powers, they work 
together for the common good. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy 

proclaims Monday, May 1, 2006, as Law Day.  We urge the citizens, schools, 
businesses, and media of the City of Troy to use this occasion to dedicate ourselves to 
preserve and strengthen the rule of law. 
 

 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  

 
Cristina Broomfield, Mayor Pro Tem  David A. Lambert, Councilman 

 
Robin E. Beltramini, Councilwoman  Wade Fleming, Councilman 

 
Martin Howrylak, Councilman  Jeanne M. Stine, Councilwoman 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03b



March 29, 2006 
 
To:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award- Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Asphalt Patching Material 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On March 23, 2006, sealed bid proposals were opened to furnish one-year requirements of Asphalt 
Patching Material.  After reviewing these proposals, City management recommends awarding a contract 
for Item 1, QPR- Delivered to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Saginaw Asphalt Paving Co. of 
Saginaw, MI, for an estimated total cost of $28,350.00, at unit prices contained in the attached bid 
tabulation.  Asphalt Patching Materials are purchased on an as needed basis throughout the year based 
upon estimated quantities.   
 
In addition, staff recommends rejecting Item 2, QPR/UPM picked up.  Proposals submitted for the item 
are being rejected because the cost savings gained by awarding to the apparent low bidder, Saginaw 
Asphalt Paving Company at $58.00/ton, would be offset by transportation and fuel costs traveling to their 
plant in Saginaw.  Secondly, Barrett Paving was not considered for award of Item 2 because it is more 
cost effective to have material delivered at $63.00 per ton rather than picked up at their Mt. Clemens plant 
for $70.00 per ton.  Therefore, in times of emergencies, material to be picked-up will be purchased on an 
as needed basis utilizing the informal three-quote process. 
 
SUMMARY 
Saginaw Asphalt Paving Co. 
Item Est. Qty Description   Price Per     Est. Total 
1.   450 ton QPR – Delivered  $63.00/ton  $ 28,350.00 
   
    Estimated Total Cost    $ 28,350.00 
 
EXPLANATION OF BIDS NOT MEETING SPECIFICATIONS 
The alternate bid submitted by Barrett Paving Materials Inc. for Item #1, QPR/UPM- Delivered was not 
awarded because the cold patch mixture, CP-6, does not meet the requirements of the current Michigan 
Department of State Highways Standard Specifications as listed in the bid proposal.   They stated that a 
different liquid mixture is used and failed to provide CP-6 specifications to confirm product conformity. 
 
The CP5 product, bid by Ajax Materials, did not meet bid specifications as listed.  CP5, a lower grade cold 
patch, has a higher sand content, thereby reducing product workability and performance, and requiring 
repeated patching.  

 
BUDGET 
Funds for these materials are available through the Public Works operating budgets for Streets and 
Water, as monies clear through the balance sheet Inventory Account for Asphalt. 
 
28 Vendors Notified via the MITN System 
  3 Bid Responses Rec’d 
  2 Bids did not meet specifications 
  2 No Bids: (1) Company does not handle the type of product specified. 
  (1) Company chose not to bid, but requested to remain on the bidder’s list.  
 
Prepared by:  Emily Frontera, Administrative Aide                                  

CampbellLD
Text Box

CampbellLD
Text Box
E-04a



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT  06-09
Opening Date -- 3/23/06 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 1
Date Prepared -- 3/29/05 ASPHALT PATCHING MATERIAL

 
VENDOR NAME: * SAGINAW BARRETT PAVING

 ASPHALT PAVING MATERIALS
COMPANY INC

ITEM EST QTY
# (TONS) DESCRIPTION Price/Ton Price/Ton

1 450 QPR/UPM or Approved Alternate - Delivered 63.00$                70.00$                
Standard Train Load 50 Tons 50 Tons

2. 100 QPR/UPM or Approved Alternate ($58.00) ($70.00)
Picked up as needed

ESTIMATED TOTAL FOR ITEM BEING AWARDED 28,350.00$         N/A

HOURS OF OPERATION: 8 - 5pm 7 - 3:30pm
Notice of Delivery: 24 Hrs 24 Hrs
For Saturdays: Blank Call

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX 
Cannot Meet

PROXIMITY: Location-- I75 & M13 Mt. Clemens
Miles-- 87 Miles Blank

TERMS: Net 30 Days Net 30 Days

WARRANTY: Blank Blank

DELIVERY:  (Item 1) 1-2 days Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:              Y or N Yes Yes
DMS:
 Ajax Materials Corporation - $60.00/Ton - Reason: Alternate product - CP5, a lower grade cold patch

 Barrett Paving (Alternate Bid) - $60.00/Ton - Reason: CP6 does not meet current State Highway Standards as specified

NO BIDS PROPOSAL - One(1) Year Requirements of Asphalt Patching Material
Unique Paving Materials
Carrier & Gable, Inc.

* DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER
ATTEST:
Emily Frontera
Tom Rosewarne
Charlene McComb Jeanette Bennett
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:\ Asphalt Paving Materials ITB-COT 06-09

RECOMMEND REJECTION Item #2







April 6, 2006 
 
To:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From:  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
Subject: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low Bidder –  

Roof Replacement Fire Station 1  
 

RECOMMENDATION 
On March 22, 2006, bid proposals were opened to provide for a roof replacement at Fire 
Station 1, 1019 E. Big Beaver Road.  This bid includes unit prices for additional material 
replacement as necessary.  City management recommends the contract be awarded to 
the low bidder, Envision Builders Inc. of Brighton, MI, for an estimated total cost of 
$30,039.00, for the 50-year asphalt fiberglass shingle system, at unit prices contained in 
the attached bid tabulation.  The cost includes an allowance to replace 1x6 trim boards 
and fire retardant plywood. 
 
The award is contingent upon contractor submission of properly executed bid 
documents, including insurance certificates, bonds, and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
BACKGROUND 

• The roof shingles at Station 1 have begun to curl up, and are showing severe 
signs of aging. At the recommendation of both the Building and Building 
Operations departments, it was determined that the roof needs to be replaced. 

 
• After the existing roofing material is removed, an inspection of the existing roof 

surface will be made by representatives of the Building and Fire Departments to 
determine if any additional plywood sheets will be required.  The final cost of the 
roof replacement will be determined by the amount of exterior grade wood 
replaced. 

 
• The manufacturer guarantees the roofing material specified for fifty- (50) years. 

 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the Fire Buildings and Repairs Capital Account Number 
401344.7975.055. 
 
 
107 Vendors Notified via the MITN System 
   1 Vendor Walk-In  
   5 Bid Responses Received 
 
 
Prepared by: Richard Sinclair, Assistant Fire Chief 

CampbellLD
Text Box
E-04b



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-08
Opening Date -- 3/22/06 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 3
Date Prepared -- 4/6/06 ROOF REPLACEMENT - FIRE STATION #1

VENDOR NAME: *

CHECK #:
CHECK AMOUNT:

PROPOSAL: ROOF REPLACEMENT OF FIRE STATION #1 at 1019 East Big Beaver, TROY
To remove and replace the roof system in accordance with specifications for a 50-Year, Asphalt
              Fiberglass Shingle System

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF:

Additional Costs:  Normalized Price  feet/Sheets Price feet/Sheets
 1 x 2 2.70$             0        LF -$               0        LF
 1 x 6 3.00$             10        LF -$               10        LF
 1 x 10 3.50$             0        LF -$               0        LF
 1 x 12 3.70$             0        LF -$               0        LF
 1/2" Plywood 90.00$           0      Sht 48.00$           0      Sht
 3/4" Plywood 105.00$         0      Sht -$               0      Sht
15/32" Fire Retardant T. Plywood 125.00$        1      Sht 57.00$           1      Sht

ESTIMATED TOTAL FOR MATERIALS 155.00$         57.00$           

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL:

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N
Date

INSURANCE: Can Meet
Cannot Meet

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation
24 Hr Phone No.

COMPLETION DATE:
Can Meet
Cannot Meet

BIDDER QUESTIONNAIRE:
Attached
Not Attached

TERMS:

WARRANTY:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y or N

ADDENDUM 1: Y or N
ATTEST:
Rick Sinclair * BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW BIDDER
Mark Stimac
Cheryl Stewart
Linda Bockstanz Jeanette Bennett

Purchasing Director
G:Roof Replacement- Fire Station #1 ITB-COT 06-08

ENVISION BUILDERS WEATHERSEAL HOME
INC IMPROVEMENTS

4485401222
$3,000.00

29,884.00$                          37,900.00$                            

4480290156
$3,000.00

30,039.00$                         37,957.00$                           

XX

XX

7 - 5
810-632-9191

XX
BY JUNE 30, 2006

Yes
3/13/006

Yes
3/13/006

XX

 8 - 6
586-323-1188

XX

XX

Net 30 When Complete

Yes Yes

Yes Yes

Blank Blank

Per Specifications Blank



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-08
Opening Date -- 3/22/06 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 3
Date Prepared -- 4/6/06 ROOF REPLACEMENT - FIRE STATION #1

VENDOR NAME:

CHECK #:
CHECK AMOUNT:

PROPOSAL: ROOF REPLACEMENT OF FIRE STATION #1 at 1019 East Big Beaver, TROY
To remove and replace the roof system in accordance with SPECIFICATIONS FOR A 50-Year, Asphalt
               Fiberglass Shingle System

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF:

Additional Costs:  Normalized Price  feet/Sheets Price feet/Sheets
 1 x 2 1.60$               0        LF 4.50$             0        LF
 1 x 6 1.90$               10        LF 5.00$             10        LF
 1 x 10 2.50$               0        LF 5.50$             0        LF
 1 x 12 3.50$               0        LF 5.75$             0        LF
 1/2" Plywood 50.00$             0      Sht 56.00$           0      Sht
 3/4" Plywood 55.00$             0      Sht 64.00$           0      Sht
15/32" Fire Retardant T. Plywood 60.00$            1      Sht 2.40$             1      Sht

ESTIMATED TOTAL FOR MATERIALS 79.00$             52.40$           

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL:

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N
Date

INSURANCE: Can Meet
Cannot Meet

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hr of Operation
24 Hr Phone No.

COMPLETION DATE:
Can Meet
Cannot Meet

BIDDER QUESTIONNAIRE:
Attached
Not Attached

TERMS:

WARRANTY:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y or N

ADDENDUM 1: Y or N

G:Roof Replacement- Fire Station #1 ITB-COT 06-08

Price Bros. Roofing & Butcher & Baecker 
Construction, Inc. Construction

830003934 199745072
$3,000.00 $3,000.00

38,950.00$                              39,900.00$                                

39,029.00$                              39,952.40$                                

Yes Yes
3/13/2006 3/13/2006

XX XX

9 - 5 8 - 5
248-225-4660 248-852-2323

XX XX
BY JUNE 30, 2006

XX XX

Blank As Specified

2 Years As Specified

Blank Blank

Yes Yes

No Yes



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-08
Opening Date -- 3/22/06 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 3
Date Prepared -- 4/6/06 ROOF REPLACEMENT - FIRE STATION #1

VENDOR NAME:

CHECK #:
CHECK AMOUNT:

PROPOSAL: ROOF REPLACEMENT OF FIRE STATION #1 at 1019 East Big Beaver, TROY
To remove and replace the roof system in accordance with specifications for a 50-Year, Asphalt
               Fiberglass Shingle System

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF:

Additional Costs:  Normalized Price  feet/Sheets
 1 x 2 2.50$           0        LF
 1 x 6 3.00$           10        LF
 1 x 10 4.00$           0        LF
 1 x 12 5.50$           0        LF
 1/2" Plywood 60.00$         0      Sht
 3/4" Plywood 70.00$         0      Sht
15/32" Fire Retardant T. Plywood 80.00$        1      Sht

ESTIMATED TOTAL FOR MATERIALS 110.00$       

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL:

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N
Date

INSURANCE: Can Meet
Cannot Meet

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hr of Operation
24 Hr Phone No.

COMPLETION DATE:
Can Meet
Cannot Meet

BIDDER QUESTIONNAIRE:
Attached
Not Attached

TERMS:

WARRANTY:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y or N

ADDENDUM 1: Y or N

G:Roof Replacement- Fire Station #1 ITB-COT 06-08

Bloomfield Construction
Company

191555085
$3,000.00

43,325.00$                           

43,435.00$                           

Yes
3/13/2006

XX

8 - 4
248-521-5201

XX
BY JUNE 30, 2006

XX

Blank

Blank

Blank

Yes

Yes











April 4, 2006 
 
To:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From:  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Gert Paraskevin, IT Director 

Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – 
  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Dispatch Recording System 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On January 13, 2006, bid proposals were opened for the purchase and 
installation of a Police and Fire dispatch center recording system.  After 
reviewing the proposals, City management recommends awarding the contract to 
the lowest acceptable bidder meeting specifications, DSS Corporation of 
Southfield, MI, for an estimated total cost of $51,405.00.  
  
The award is contingent upon contractor submission of properly executed bid 
and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.  
 
SUMMARY 
The recording system currently in use requires replacement due to age and 
scarcity of replacement parts.  The equipment proposed will support faster 
turnaround of recordings used by investigators, attorneys and the public through 
the use of CD’s and email.  The proposal includes quality assurance software for 
evaluating call takers in the dispatch center, 24/7 system monitoring and 
redundancy features.  A second year service warranty is included in the cost.  
 
EXPLANATION OF BIDS NOT MEETING SPECIFICATIONS 
The City received three other bids that were lower than the recommended 
vendor, but were disqualified for the following reasons.  State Electronics, was 
disqualified for being in default with the City on another contract.  BIS Digital did 
not meet the specifications requiring references of installations of identical 
hardware, software and architecture in other Public Safety agencies with ongoing 
support.   DSS Corporation submitted an alternate bid, which did not utilize THIN-
Client technology as specified.    
 
BUDGET 
Funds for this project are available through the Police Department Capital 
Account #401325.7980.055. 
 
95 Vendors Notified via the MITN System 
  6 Bids Received 
  3 Bids did not meet specifications 
 
Prepared by: Cathy Brandimore, Communications Manager 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04c



CITY OF TROY        ITB-COT  05-56
Opening Date -- 1/13/06 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 1
Date Prepared -- 4/4/06 DISPATCH RECORDING SYSTEM

VENDOR NAME: *

PROPOSAL : TO FURNISH AND INSTALL A DISPATCH RECORDING SYSTEM IN THE POLICE DEPARTMENT AND
             PROVIDE TWO YEAR MAINTENANCE PROGRAM ACCORDING TO SPECIFICATIONS

PROPOSAL:   DISPATCH RECORDING SYSTEM

Complete for the sum of: 51,405$      39,335$       35,505$       
Make: NICE
Model: NICE Log
Training:

OPTIONAL: Dispatcher Evaluation 3,995$         
Option A:

2nd Year Maintenance Program 5,507$         5,990$         
Option B:

Quality Assurance Software: 6,750$         25,695$       

TOTAL FOR PROJECT: * 51,405$      51,592$       67,190$      

TECHNICIANS: Technicians Literature Technical Info - 
Information attached Y or N Not as specified Not as specified Not as specified

DSS Investigator Literature Technical Info - 
DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE: Y or N Capture 911 Yes Yes

SERVICE INFORMATION:
Phone Numbers: 248.569.6440 Attached to Bid 888.434.4486
"800" Support Line 888.305.3428 888.434.4486 888.434.4486

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hours of Operation 7am-6pm 8am-8pm 8am-8pm
24 Hr Phone No. 888.305.3428 888.434.4486 888.434.4486

REFERENCES: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

TERMS: BLANK BLANK NET 30 DAYS

WARRANTY:      As Specified      As Specified       As Specified

DELIVERY: BLANK BLANK 60 Days ARO

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK No Exceptions Refer to Technical
Information

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:     Y or N Yes Yes Yes
DMS:
 State Electronics Co, Inc ($27,487) Reason: Defaulted vendor
 Bis Digital ($39,745) Reason: No references for identical system w/ongoing support in another public safety agency
 DSS Corporation ($39,900) Reason: Platform not THIN-Client technology as specified

ATTEST: * DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER ___________________________
 Aileen Bittner Jeanette Bennett
 Cathy Brandimore Purchasing Director
 Linda Bockstanz

NOTE:  No bidder met all proposal requirements in the first round of evaluations.
G: ITB-COT 05-56 Dispatch Recording System

INCLUDED

Higher Ground
Capture 911

NICE
INC

DigiVoice
Corporation

DSS 
CORPORATION

Davacord
DigiVoice XE









April 5, 2006 
 
 
To:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low 
  Bidder – Iron Fence at Museum 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On March 28, 2006, bid proposals were opened to fabricate and install a custom 
iron fence on the North boundary of the Museum property.  Included in the 
project is the removal and disposal of the existing fence.  City management 
recommends awarding the contract to the low total bidder, American Fence and 
Supply Co., Inc. of Oak Park, Michigan for an estimated project cost of 
$25,245.00. 
 
In addition, staff requests authorization to approve additional work as needed 
due to unforeseen circumstances not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 
SUMMARY   
The existing fence on the North side of the Museum property has deteriorated 
over the years and was determined to be unsafe, and in such poor condition that 
it could not be reused.  The award recommendation is made on a low total basis 
due to insurance and bonding requirements. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for this project are available in the Capital Account for Museum General 
Repairs, #401804.7975.900. 
 
50 Vendors Notified via the MITN System 
  5 Bid Responses Received 
 
 
Prepared by: Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04d



Opening Date -- 03/28/06 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-10
Date Prepared --  4/5/06 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 2

CUSTOM IRON FENCE AT MUSEUM

VENDOR: * American Fence Future Fence Troy Ornamental Nationwide
& Supply Company Company Iron & Fence Fence & Supply

CHECK # 9213762996 3680 102032930 738898823
AMOUNT 4,000.00$           4,000.00$        4,000.00$          4,000.00$           

PROPOSAL:  Remove & Dispose of Existing Fence and Furnish all equipment, material, and labor to Install & Fabricate a 
                     Custom Iron Fence at the Troy Historical Museum in accordance with the specifications and drawings
PROPOSAL A:

Removal & Disposal of Existing Fence 1,344.00$           1,970.00$         1,000.00$          1,222.00$            

PROPOSAL B:
Fabrication & Delivery of New Fence 19,501.94$         18,895.00$       21,000.00$        46,500.00$          

PROPOSAL C:
Installation of Custom Iron Fence 4,399.36$           5,640.00$         7,000.00$          7,000.00$            

GRAND TOTAL OF PROPOSALS A - C: 25,245.30$         26,505.00$      29,000.00$        54,722.00$         

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes No Yes No
Date 3/23/2006 Blank 3/20/2006 Blank

INSURANCE Can Meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Net 30 Net 30 Blank Net 30 Days

COMPLETION DATE:  Can Meet XX XX XX XX
 Cannot Meet - But
 Offers:

SERVICE FACILITY: Location Oak Park Warren Detroit Chesterfield
24 Hr Phone # Blank 810-523-1988 313-869-6222 586-484-5166

TERMS Net 30 Net 30 Blank Net 30 Days

COMPLETION DATE

WARRANTY:

EXCEPTIONS: Blank N/A Blank None

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT SIGNED: Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

* DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER
ATTEST:
Ron Hynd
Charlene McComb _______________________________
Loraine Campbell Jeanette Bennett
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 06-10 Custom Iron Fence - Museum

BY JUNE 1, 2006

AS SPECIFIED



Opening Date -- 03/28/06 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-10
Date Prepared -- 4/5/06 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 2

CUSTOM IRON FENCE AT MUSEUM

VENDOR: Vulcanmasters 
Welding Co.

CHECK # 665332641
AMOUNT 4,000.00$           

PROPOSAL:  Remove & Dispose of Existing Fence and Furnish all equipment, material, and labor to Install & Fabricate a 
                     Custom Iron Fence at the Troy Historical Museum in accordance with the specifications and drawings
PROPOSAL A:

Removal & Disposal of Existing Fence 7,725.00$            

PROPOSAL B:
Fabrication & Delivery of New Fence 57,830.00$          

PROPOSAL C:
Installation of Custom Iron Fence 23,175.00$          

GRAND TOTAL OF PROPOSALS A - C: 88,730.00$         

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes
Date 3/27/2006

INSURANCE Can Meet
Cannot Meet XX

+$2,400.00

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: $57,830 Upon Completion of Fabrication
$30,900 Bal Due After Installation

COMPLETION DATE:  Can Meet
 Cannot Meet - But XX
 Offers: 60 Days from Award

SERVICE FACILITY: Location Detroit
24 Hr Phone # 313-843-5043

TERMS Net 30

COMPLETION DATE Attached to Bid

WARRANTY: As Specified

EXCEPTIONS: All or None
Award

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT SIGNED: Y or N Yes

G:ITB-COT 06-10 Custom Iron Fence - Museum







campbellld
Text Box
E-04e





 
 
DATE:   March 30, 2006 

  
 

 
TO:   John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Request for Special Event Sign  

to be placed on Civic Center Grounds 
 
 

 
The Troy National Day of Prayer Christian Task Force, through it’s representative Lori 
Wagner, has secured a permit to hold an event within the Limited Public Forum at the 
Veteran’s Plaza on May 4, 2006.  They have done so through the Parks and Recreation 
Department in accordance with the policy that was adopted last year by City Council.  In 
addition to the event itself that is to be held from 11:30 am till 1:30 pm on that day, they 
have also requested a banner be placed on the front lawn of City Hall for the week 
preceding the event.   
This application has been submitted and is being reviewed under the provisions of 
Section 85.03.01 of the Sign Ordinance on Special Event Signs.  Those provisions 
require approval of the property owner for the placement of the Special Event Sign.  
Since the sign is proposed to be placed on City property, the applicants seek City 
Council’s approval for the placement of the sign. 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
E-05







campbellld
Text Box
E-06













campbellld
Text Box
E-07













campbellld
Text Box
E-08













CampbellLD
Text Box
F-02



















































 1

DATE:  April 7, 2006 
 
TO: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate & Development 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM REVIEW – Preserves of 

Timbercrest Site Condominium, west of Fernleigh, south side of 
Wattles Rd., Section 24 – R-1C  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
On March 14, 2006 the Planning Commission recommended approval of the 
Preserves of Timbercrest Site Condominium, subject to the following condition: 
 
1. The applicant must get a wetlands determination for the parcel as per 

Section 3.43.01(9).  The Planning Department will ensure that the report is 
submitted for consideration by City Council prior to Preliminary Site 
Condominium Approval.  If the report indicates there are State-regulated 
wetlands on the parcel, the item will come back to Planning Commission 
for consideration. 

 
A wetlands determination was completed for the property on March 20, 2006 by 
King & MacGregor Environmental, Inc.  The report indicates that there are no 
wetland areas on the property.  The City of Troy Environmental Specialist walked 
the site and agrees with the findings of no wetlands on the parcel.  City 
Management agrees with the Planning Commission and recommends approval 
of the Preliminary Site Plan for Preserves of Timbercrest Site Condominium. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner of the property is Jean Claude and Anna Vidal.  The applicant is 
Mondrian Properties Stone Haven Development LLC. 
 
Location of subject property: 
The property is located west of Fernleigh, on the south side of Wattles Rd., in 
Section 24. 
 
Size of subject parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 2.26 acres in area.   

campbellld
Text Box
F-03



 2

Description of proposed development: 
The applicant is proposing a 6-unit site condominium, with access to Wattles 
Road.  The proposed street is private and single-loaded, with units along only the 
east side of the street.  A drain and detention basin owned by the State of 
Michigan abuts the development to the west. 
 
The applicant has provided a drawing that illustrates the potential future 
development to the south of the parent parcel.  The drawing indicates the 
potential for approximately 29 units, which would be accessible to the public 
street to the east in Timbercrest Estates. 
 
Current use of subject property: 
A single family residence presently sits on the property. 
 
Current use of adjacent parcels: 
North: Single family residential. 
South: Single family residential. 
East: Single family residential. 
West: Drain and detention basin.   
 
Current zoning classification: 
The property is currently zoned R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
Zoning classification of adjacent parcels: 
North: R-1C One Family Residential. 
South: R-1C One Family Residential. 
East: R-1C One Family Residential.  
West: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
Future Land Use Designation: 
The property is designated on the Future Land Use Plan as Low Density 
Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Compliance with area and bulk requirements of the R-1C One Family Residential 
District: 
 
Lot Area: Minimum lot area in the R-1C district is 10,500 square feet.  The 
applicant meets this requirement. 
  
Lot Width:  The minimum required lot width is 85 feet.  The applicant meets this 
requirement. 



 3

Height:  Maximum permitted height is 2 stories or 25 feet.  The applicant will be 
required to meet this requirement. 
 
Setbacks: Front:  30 feet required.  30 feet provided. 
 Side (least one):  10 feet.  10 feet provided. 
 Side (total two):  20 feet.  20 feet provided.  
 Rear:  40 feet.  40 feet provided. 
 
Minimum Floor Area:  1,200 square feet. The applicant will be required to meet 
this requirement. 
 
Maximum Lot Coverage:  30%. The applicant will be required to meet this 
requirement. 
 
The applicant meets the area and bulk requirements of the R-1C One Family 
Residential District. 
 
Off-street parking and loading requirements:  
The applicant will be required to provide 2 off-street parking spaces per unit. 
 
Environmental provisions: 
The applicant proposes a landscape buffer along Wattles Road.   
 
Storm water detention: 
The applicant proposes to utilize the existing storm water detention basin on the 
abutting property to the west. 
 
Natural features and floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no natural features located on the 
property.  A wetland determination prepared by King & MacGregor 
Environmental, Inc. indicates there are no wetlands on the parcel.  
 
Subdivision Control Ordinance, Article IV Design Standards  
 

Lots: All units meet the minimum area and bulk requirements of the 
Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Streets: The proposed development has direct vehicular access to Wattles 
Road.  The interior street will be a private road, 28 feet wide within a 40-
foot wide private road easement. 
  
Sidewalks: The applicant is proposing to construct an 8-foot wide sidewalk 
on the south side of Wattles.  The applicant is also proposing to construct 
a 5-foot wide sidewalk on the east side of the proposed interior private 
road.   



 4

Utilities: The parcel is served by public water and sewer. 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps. 
2. Drawing showing possible future development, prepared by Beckman 

Wehbe Corp., dated 3-2-2006. 
3. Wetlands determination prepared by King & MacGregor, dated March 20, 

2006. 
4. Minutes from March 14, 2006 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
 
 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/Preserves of Timbercrest Site Condominium 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Preserves of Timbercrest Sec 24\CC Prelim App Pres of Timbercrest Site Condo 04 
17 06.doc 



JO
H

N
 R

MAPLE

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

A
D

A
M

S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

BIG BEAVER

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

SOUTH BLVD

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

SQUARE LAKE

FOURTEEN MILE

S
TE

P
H

E
N

S
O

N

M
A

IN

I75



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SITE PLAN REVIEW
PROP. PRESERVES OF TIMBERCREST

SITE CONDOMINIUM



E WATTLES

AN
VIL

FO
R

G
E

G
AT

E

FER
N

LEIG
H

KETTLE

FAIR
FAX

EU
C

LID
GREENSBORO

HORSESHOE

SPRINGTIME

GENICK
FO

R
SYTH

BIRCHDALE
R

AM
B

LE
W

O
O

D

HISTORIC

HARVEST

WOODINGHAM

M
ID

D
LEBU

R
Y

SITE PLAN REVIEW
PROPOSED PRESERVES OF TIMBERCREST 
SITE CONDOMINIUM
S SIDE OF WATTLES, BTWN. FORGE & FERNLEIGH
SEC. 24 (ZONED R-1C)SITE PLAN REVIEW

PROP. PRESERVES OF TIMBERCREST
SITE CONDOMINIUM

±0 200 400 600100
Feet

TI
M

BE
RC

RE
ST

 S
.C

. 

UN
DE

R 
CO

NS
TR

UC
TI

O
N



(R-1C) One Family Residential District

E WATTLES

AN
VIL

FO
R

G
E

G
AT

E

FER
N

LEIG
H

KETTLE

FAIR
FAX

EU
C

LID
GREENSBORO

HORSESHOE

SPRINGTIME

GENICK
FO

R
SYTH

BIRCHDALE
R

AM
B

LE
W

O
O

D

HISTORIC

HARVEST

WOODINGHAM

M
ID

D
LEBU

R
Y

SITE PLAN REVIEW
PROPOSED PRESERVES OF TIMBERCREST 
SITE CONDOMINIUM
S SIDE OF WATTLES, BTWN. FORGE & FERNLEIGH
SEC. 24 (ZONED R-1C)SITE PLAN REVIEW

PROP. PRESERVES OF TIMBERCREST
SITE CONDOMINIUM

±0 200 400 600100
Feet

TI
M

BE
RC

RE
ST

 S
.C

. 

UN
DE

R 
CO

NS
TR

UC
TI

O
N















PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 14, 2006 
  
 

 1 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN 
 

10. SITE PLAN REVIEW – Preserves of Timbercrest Site Condominium, 6 
units/lots proposed, West of Fernleigh, South side of Wattles Road, 
Section 24, Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for 
the proposed site condominium and reported it is the recommendation of 
City Management to approve the application with the condition that a 
wetlands determination is submitted.   
 
The petitioner, Joe Maniaci of Mondrian Properties, 1111 W. Long Lake 
Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Maniaci said the width of the lot dictated a 
private street to accommodate buildable lots.   
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment.   
 
Lou Messina of 3910 Forge, Troy, was present.  Mr. Messina voiced 
opposition to the proposed development.  He said the proposed homes 
would face the back yards of the residential homes on Forge and the 
proposed private road would be behind their back yards.  Mr. Messina 
voiced concern with additional traffic exiting onto Wattles Road.  Mr. 
Messina said residents on Forge have maintained the retention area behind 
their homes.   
 
Shirley Roberts of 3896 Forge, Troy, was present.  Ms. Roberts voiced her 
concern about the private road that would be behind her house.  She enjoys 
outside activities with her small grandchildren and is concerned for their 
safety.   
 
Michael Long of 3882 Forge, Troy, was present.  Mr. Long voiced opposition 
to the proposed development.  He said the development seems to be poorly 
designed and houses are just being jammed in.  Mr. Long addressed 
concern with vehicular headlights from the cul de sac reflecting on the 
residential homes on Forge.   
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Mr. Savidant confirmed that the retention area to the rear of the homes on 
Forge is owned by the State of Michigan and is approximately 100 feet in 
width.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 14, 2006 
  
 

 2 

Resolution # PC-2006-03-047 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, 
that the Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family 
Residential Development), as requested for Preserves of Timbercrest Site 
Condominium, including 6 units, located west of Fernleigh on the south side 
of Wattles Road, Section 24, within the R-1C zoning district be granted, 
subject to the following condition: 
 
1. The applicant must get a wetlands determination for the parcel as per 

Section 3.43.01(9).  The Planning Department will ensure that the 
report is submitted for consideration by City Council prior to 
Preliminary Site Condominium Approval.  If the report indicates there 
are State-regulated wetlands on the parcel, the item will come back to 
Planning Commission for consideration. 

 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Miller explained the wetlands determination is a requirement of the site 
plan application and the Planning Department erred in accepting the 
application without a wetlands determination.  
 
Mr. Littman asked for further information on the retention area.   
 
Larry Hendrick of 3868 Forge was present.  Mr. Hendrick provided 
information on the retention basin.  He said all the subdivision water goes 
into the basin.  The pumping station shuts off with a heavy rainfall [5-year 
rain].  Mr. Hendrick estimated the basin filled up about 15 times since he’s 
lived there (34 years), and said the overflow water goes into the creek at the 
south end.  He said water would not go on the proposed development, nor 
does it go onto the residential properties on Forge.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the State-owned property as relates to 
landscaping and maintenance.  
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Vleck 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 14, 2006 
  
 

 3 

Mr. Vleck would prefer a landscaped buffer between the private road and 
the residential homes on Forge.   

 



TO: Members of Troy City Council   
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 

Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Services 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

DATE: April 11, 2006 

  
  

SUBJECT: Proposed co-location on Sylvan Glen communications tower  
 

 

 
 
MetroPCS Michigan, Inc. has requested the opportunity to co-locate on the 

communications tower located at Sylvan Glen Golf Course.  Since there are already four 
providers, in addition to the City, MetroPCS will need to reinforce the structure to allow for 
this co-location to occur.  Other providers on the tower include AT & T, Nextel, Verizon 
and T-Mobile.  This reinforcement will not increase the height of the tower, but instead will 
add support beams to the existing tower.  This reinforcement may also allow for one 
additional provider or an expansion of the City of Troy’s equipment on the Tower.  The 
tower is currently owned by AT & T, who has reached an agreement with MetroPCS for 
this requested co-location.  The tower will eventually be the property of the City of Troy, 
pursuant to the terms of the Lease Agreement.   

 
MetroPCS has agreed to pay rent to the City in the amounts that are being paid 

by the other providers, as well as be bound by similar terms and conditions, as reflected in 
the attached and incorporated Acknowledgement and Lease.  

 
It is our recommendation that Council approve this Acknowlegement and Lease 

between the City of Troy and MetroPCS Michigan, Inc..  As always, if you have any 
questions, please let us know.  

 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04



ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND LEASE 
 

 This Acknowledgment and Lease (the “Acknowledgment”) is made this 
_____ day of ____________, 2006, between MetroPCS Michigan, Inc.  
(hereinafter MetroPCS), a Delaware corporation, whose business address is 
28505 Schoolcraft Rd., Building 6, Livonia, MI 48150 and the City of Troy 
(hereinafter “City”), a Michigan municipal corporation, whose address is 500 W. 
Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI 48084.  
 

A. The City and Wireless PCS, Inc., d/b/a AT & T Wireless Services (AT 
& T) entered into a Ground Lease dated October 6, 1998 (the “Lease”) 
pertaining to the lease of a certain part of the City’s property located at 
the Sylvan Glen Golf Course, Troy, Michigan (the “Property”), to 
enable AT & T to construct a communication tower and equipment 
shelter (collectively referred to as the “Tower”) for use by AT & T, the 
City, and by other telecommunications companies.  

 
B. Under the terms of the Lease, AT & T is required to allow other 

telecommunications companies to utilize the Tower constructed by AT 
& T, with the rental for such use of the Tower space and a part of the 
City’s property payable to the City.  Nextel, Verizon, T-Mobile, and the 
City of Troy currently have equipment located on the Tower and also in 
the equipment shelter or its immediate vicinity.   

 
C. MetroPCS is interested in leasing a part of the Tower and having 

equipment on the ground next to the Tower, as authorized by the 
Lease.  However, the Tower will need to be reinforced before any 
additional equipment can be placed on the Tower.   

 
D. The parties are desirous of setting forth their agreements with respect 

to the utilization of the Tower.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, MetroPCS and the City agree as follows:  
 

1. Lease.  The City leases to MetroPCS and MetroPCS leases from 
the City a portion of the real estate adjacent to the Tower, not 
exceeding 15x 20‘, for placement of an outdoor cabinet for 
MetroPCS’s equipment for the Tower, together with a non-exclusive 
easement for ingress and egress over the adjacent real property as 
legally described in the access easement and the utilities easement 
under the Lease.  The location of the outdoor cabinet shall be in a 
mutually advantageous location, which shall be agreed to in 
advance of placement in writing by both the City of Troy as well as 
MetroPCS.  In addition, MetroPCS may construct reinforcements to 
the Tower that would allow MetroPCS to utilize the vertical space at 
110 feet on the Tower, unless modified by a written amendment 



executed by the City, MetroPCS, and AT&T.  MetroPCS’s Facilities 
and easement are collectively referred to as “MetroPCS’s 
Premises”.   This does not preclude a replacement or a repair of the 
City’s antennae that currently exist on the tower.   

 
2. Consideration and Term.  MetroPCS shall complete modifications 

and reinforcement of the Tower to allow for their equipment, as well 
the equipment of another possible co-locator, on the Tower.  This 
modification shall be completed at the sole expense of MetroPCS, 
in accordance with the attached specifications completed by a 
registered structural engineer, which are incorporated by reference.  
These modifications are Tenant Improvements, and shall comply 
with the conditions and requirements of paragraph 6 of the lease 
between A T & T and the City of Troy (attached and incorporated 
by reference) concerning Tenant Improvements.   MetroPCS can 
recoup some of these modification costs from subsequent 
commercial providers seeking to co-locate on the Tower, as long as 
MetroPCS and the subsequent commercial co-locator have 
reached agreement prior to the execution of any leases for the 
Tower or the real estate surrounding the Tower.  In addition, 
MetroPCS shall pay the City as annual rent for the Premises each 
year during the term of this Lease the rent specified on the attached 
Exhibit A.  The annual payments are non-refundable.  The annual 
payments shall be made on or before July 1 of each year.  
However, the first payment (July 1, 2006-June 30, 2007) shall not 
be due until the commencement of construction, which shall be not 
later than June 30, 2006.  The payment for the first year shall be 
pro-rated from July 1 to the date that construction commences.  
The term of this Acknowledgement shall be three (3) years with two 
(2) five year renewals and a third renewal term of three (3) years.  

 
3. Notification.  Any written communication between the parties shall 

be sent to the following:  
 

(a) City:  City Manager, City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver 
Rd., Troy, MI 48085, with a copy sent to City Attorney, 
City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI  48084 

 
(b) MetroPCS Michigan, Inc., 28505 Schoolcraft Road, 

Building 6, Livonia, MI 48150, with a copy to MetroPCS 
Michigan, 8144 Walnut Hill Lane, Suite 800, Dallas, TX 
75231.   

 
4. Consent to be bound by Lease.  MetroPCS agrees and 

acknowledges that it has reviewed the terms of the Lease between 
the City of Troy and AT & T.  MetroPCS agrees to be bound by the 



terms of the Lease (paragraphs 1-36 of the Lease) as if it were a 
tenant under such Lease.  Such terms are incorporated by 
reference into this Acknowledgement.  

 
5. Insurance and Indemnity.  Prior to the commencement of 

construction, MetroPCS shall provide the City with copies of 
insurance naming the City as an additional insured party, as 
required by paragraph 21 of the Lease.  MetroPCS agrees to 
assume the risks of a tenant under such Lease and indemnity the 
City in accordance with the terms set forth in the Lease, including 
but not limited to, the indemnification pertaining to hazardous 
substances.  

 
6. Waiver of City’s Lien.  The City waives any lien rights it may have 

concerning MetroPCS’s Facilities that are deemed MetroPCS’s 
personal property and not fixtures, and MetroPCS has the right to 
remove the same at any time without the City’s consent.  

  
7. Assignment.  MetroPCS may not assign, or otherwise transfer all 

or any part of its interest in this Acknowledgment or in MetroPCS’s 
Premises without the prior written consent of the City; provided 
however that MetroPCS may assign or transfer this 
Acknowledgement without prior approval by the City to any of its 
partners, subsidiaries, affiliates, or to a person or entity acquiring by 
purchase, merger or operation of law a majority of the value of the 
assets of MetroPCS or to its lenders.  The City may assign this 
Acknowledgment upon written notice to MetroPCS, subject to the 
assignee assuming all of the City’s obligations herein, including but 
not limited to those set forth in Paragraph 5 above.   

 
8. Authority.  By execution of this Acknowledgement, each party 

acknowledges that it has the authority to execute this document on 
behalf of the party for whom it is signing this Agreement.  

 
9. Inconsistencies.  In the case of any inconsistencies between the 

terms and conditions contained in the Lease Agreement entered 
into October 6, 1998, between the City and AT & T, hereby 
acknowledged, the terms and conditions herein shall control.  

 
10. Termination.  This Acknowledgement may be terminated without 

further liability on thirty (30) days prior written notice as follows:   
 

(a) by either party upon a default of any covenant, 
condition or term hereof by the other party, which 
default is not cured within sixty (60) days of receipt of 
written notice of default;  



(b) by MetroPCS if it does not obtain, after reasonable 
efforts, licenses, permits, or other approvals necessary 
to the construction or operation of MetroPCS’ Facilities; 

(c) by MetroPCS if MetroPCS is unable to occupy or utilize 
MetroPCS Premises, despite its reasonable efforts, due 
to ruling or directive of the FCC or other governmental 
or regulatory agency, including but not limited to a take 
back of frequencies; or  

(d) by MetroPCS if MetroPCS determines that MetroPCS 
Premises are not appropriate for its operations for 
technological reasons, including without limitation signal 
strength or interference, due to interference from the 
City or from third parties, provided that MetroPCS must 
present City with documentation reasonably acceptable 
to City evidencing such technological problems.      

 
11. Interference.  City shall not permit any other tenant or occupant of 

any portion of the Property to engage in any activities or operations 
which interfere with the communications operations of MetroPCS.  
In the event such interference occurs and does not cease promptly, 
the parties acknowledge that continuing interference will cause 
irreparable injury to MetroPCS, and therefore MetroPCS shall have 
the right to bring a court action against the interfering third party to 
enjoin such interference or to terminate this Acknowledgement 
immediately upon notice to City.  Under no circumstances shall City 
be liable for interference caused by third parties.  

 



 
IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have executed this 
Acknowledgment on the date set forth below.  
 
 
WITNESS:      MetroPCS Michigan, Inc.  
 
_______________________  _________________________ 
 
      By:   Patrick Markey  

Its:  GM/ VP   
   

_______________________  
 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this ______ day of 
____________, 2006 by Patrick Markey, GM/VP of MetroPCS Michigan, Inc.  
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Notary Public 
       ___________ County, ________ 
       My Commission Expires _______  
 



 
 
 
WITNESS:       CITY OF TROY 
 
   _________________________  By:  _______________________ 

       Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
        
  _________________________  By:  _______________________ 

     Tonni L. Bartholomew 
     City Clerk  
 
 

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this ______ day of 
____________, 2006 by the Mayor of the City of Troy, and Tonni L. 
Bartholomew, Troy City Clerk.     
 
       __________________________ 
       Notary Public 
       ___________ County, Michigan 
       My Commission Expires _______  
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

RENT 
 

Years 1-3        Annual Rent 
 
 

1. July 1, 2006- June 30, 2007    $16,800 
2. July 1, 2007- June 30, 2008    $16,800 
3. July 1, 2008- June 30, 2009    $16,800 
 
Years 5-9 
 
4. July 1, 2009- June 30, 2010    $19,200 
5. July 1, 2010- June 30, 2011    $19,200 
6. July 1, 2011- June 30, 2012     $19,200 
7. July 1, 2012- June 30, 2013    $19,200 
8. July 1, 2013- June 30, 2014    $19,200 

 
Years 9-13 

 
9. July 1, 2014- June 30, 2015    $21,600 
10. July 1, 2015- June 30, 2016    $21,600 
11. July 1, 2016- June 30, 2017    $21,600 
12. July 1, 2017-June 30, 2018    $21,600 
13. July 1, 2018-June 30, 2019    $21,600 
 
Years 14-16 

 
14. July 1, 2019-June 30, 2020    $24,000 
15. July 1, 2020-June 30, 2021    $24,000 
16. July 1, 2021-June 30, 2022    $24,000 

 
 



















































To: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From: Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
 
Date: April 12, 2006 
 
Subject: Reconsideration of Resolution #2006-04-177 
 
 
 
Resolution #2006-04-177, Bid Waiver – Integrated Security Management System 
Installation with Time Tracker Software and Maintenance was passed by City 
Council at their Regular meeting on Monday, April 3, 2006 with an error in the 
proposal date in the final NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED. The date was 
incorrectly inserted as February 13, 2006 instead of March 27, 2006. Corrected 
resolutions are attached for reconsideration. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-05



 
 
 
March 27, 2006 
 
City Of Troy    
Department Of Public Works 
4693 Rochester Road 
Troy, MI. 48085 
 
Attn: Sam Lamerato 
 
Re: RFP - Security Management System  
 
 
Dear Mr. Lamerato: 
 
SimplexGrinnell submits the following Revised proposal to furnish and install the Security 
Management System consisting of Access Control, Gate Controls, CCTV Surveillance, and Fire 
Alarm Systems at the City of Troy / DPW facility.  Our proposal includes the following, 
statement of work, scope of services, clarification, and bill of materials. 
 
This proposal is based on the documentation provided by your company and our recent meeting 
dated 1/18/06. SimplexGrinnell’s design team has spent considerable time and effort analyzing 
the various aspects of this project and we feel that we have assembled a response, which will 
meet the objectives set forth in your documentation. The results are as follows: 
 
 
STATEMENT OF WORK  
 
A. Objective: 
 
City Of Troy / DPW seeks a method to secure and control access to their facility.  The proposed 
security management systems shall have the ability to control and monitor access to building 
perimeter, and survey the yard \ parking lot.  The system shall utilize the City of Troy’s existing 
security file server and badge card format connect to the City’s LAN/WAN network.  The 
proposed system must have the ability to control and monitor all aspects of the security 
management system locally at the DPW facility. 
 



City Of Troy / DPW  
Security Management System  
Page 2 
 
B. Solution: 
 
This can be achieved by SimplexGrinnell acting as the Prime Contractor and accepting 
responsibility for equipment procurement, installation, and coordination of the project. This 
responsibility includes engineering, detail design layouts, equipment procurement, fabrication 
and assembly, system programming, electrical installation and materials, testing, training, and 
warranty support as outlined in the Scope of Services section of this document. 
 
C. Benefits 
 

o One common system providing standardization. 
o Secured and controlled point of entry. 
o Centralized alarm Monitoring. 
o Same security supplier used at other City Of Troy facilities. 
o Turnkey installation, reducing design and implementation cost. 
o Reduced administration cost, utilizing one contractor. 
o Expedite commissioning, utilizing one contractor. 

 
D. Customer Requirements 
 
The customer is required to provide the following: 
 

o Owner to furnish all network connection to SimplexGrinnell equipment as required. 
o Owner to furnish all phone lines for connection of SimplexGrinnell equipment as 

required. 
o Owner to make available 110VAC/240VAC power required for all control equipment. 
o Owner to furnish all site work (i.e.; saw cutting, trenching, concrete pads, etc.) as 

required for gate operator installation. 
o Owner to furnish miscellaneous door hardware, and alignments as necessary. 
o Owner to provide access to all areas were work will commence. 
o Owner to furnish all PC hardware. 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES  
 

Access Control System 
 

We propose to furnish and install (1) security access control workstation connect to the City 
of Troy’s security file server.  Photo Badge capture and production will be generated at either 
the Troy Police Department or locally if voluntary alternate is accepted.  We will also furnish 
and install (18) proximity card readers with associated control panels and security door 
devices (i.e., request-to-exit devices, alarm monitoring contacts) as described below.  



City Of Troy / DPW  
Security Management System  
Page 3 

 
1. Main Entrance Door - SG will supply and install (1) proximity card reader on the inner 

vestibule glass door, (2) desk mounted remote door release buttons, (1) door alarm 
monitoring contact, (1) request-to-exit motion detector, and electric door locking 
hardware interfaced with the handicap door operator, and (2) emergency desk mounted 
panic buttons. 

2. Employee Entrance - SG will supply and install (1) proximity card reader on the exterior 
of the double glass doors (1) request-to-exit motion detector, (2) door alarm monitoring 
contacts, and associated electric door locking hardware. 

3. Employee Entrance Ring Station – SG will supply and install (2) proximity card readers 
(punch in & out) and (1) display clock for the use of time entry. 

4. Field Supervisors Office - SG will supply and install (1) request-to-exit motion detector, 
(1) door alarm monitoring contacts, for door status monitoring only. 

5. Sign Shop - SG will supply and install (1) proximity card reader on the exterior of the 
double steel doors (1) request-to-exit motion detector, (2) door alarm monitoring 
contacts, and associated electric door locking hardware.  

6. Water Room - SG will supply and install (1) proximity card reader on the exterior of the 
double steel doors (1) request-to-exit motion detector, (2) door alarm monitoring 
contacts, and associated electric door locking hardware.  Also supply and install (1) 
overhead door alarm monitoring contact. 

7. Mud Room - SG will supply and install (1) proximity card reader on the exterior of the 
single steel doors (1) request-to-exit motion detector, (1) door alarm monitoring contacts, 
and associated electric door locking hardware. 

8. Water Storage Bldg. - SG will supply and install (3) overhead door alarm monitoring 
contacts for door status monitoring only, and (1) proximity card reader to control and 
disarm monitoring contacts. 

9. Maintenance Yard Exit / Entry - SG will supply and install (2) proximity card readers 
inbound / outbound control of gate barriers, (2) Card reader stanchions, (2) Hands-free 
phones, (2) Barrier Gate Arms with associated loop detectors connected to under ground 
safety loops. 

10. Main Garage - SG will supply and install (2) proximity card readers for inbound control 
of the east & west pedestrian garage door entrances (2) request-to-exit motion detector, 
(2) door alarm monitoring contacts, and associated electric door locking hardware.  In 
addition to the above SG will also supply and install (4) overhead door alarm monitoring 
contacts and (4) Pedestrian door alarm contact for door status monitoring, and (1) 
proximity card reader to control and disarm monitoring contacts. 



Security Management System  
Page 4 
 

11. Streets Equipment Garage - SG will supply and install (1) proximity card reader on the 
inbound side of the north / west pedestrian door (1) request-to-exit motion detector, (1) 
door alarm monitoring contacts, and associated door locking hardware.  In addition to the 
above SG will supply and install (6) overhead door alarm monitoring contacts and (1) 
Pedestrian door alarm contact for door status monitoring only, and (1) proximity card 
reader to control and disarm monitoring contacts.  In addition a audible horn will be 
installed in this area if overhead doors remain open longer than the predetermined time 
allocated in security software. City Of Troy / DPW  

 
12. Server / Phone Room Door  - SG will supply and install (1) proximity card reader on the 

exterior of the single steel doors (1) request-to-exit motion detector, (1) door alarm 
monitoring contacts, and associated electric door locking hardware, (1) network 
controller and connectivity, (1) UPS battery system, (1) access control panel with 
associated power supplies and back-up batteries. 

13. Remote Workstation (location TBD) – SG will supply and install (1) Continuum client 
software workstation on owner furnished desktop PC.  Provide and install remote view 
CCTV camera software on owner furnished desktop PC. 

 
CCTV Surveillance 

 
We propose to furnish and install (1) digital video recording system with associated software 
and hardware connected via the City of Troy’s LAN/WAN network. All cameras will be 
recorded via a time schedule or video motion for a minimum of thirty days.  We will furnish 
and install (4) pan/tilt/zoom color cameras, (2) fixed color interior dome cameras, and (1) 
Four-way quad color dome camera with associated hardware (i.e.; power supplies, 
converters, mounting brackets, etc.) as described below. 

  
1. Server / Phone Room – SG will supply and install head-end equipment in the server / 

phone room this will consist of; (1) digital video recorder w/ software, (1) 15” color flat 
screen display monitor, (1) keyboard & mouse, (1) power distribution unit, (1) UTP 
video receiver HUB, (1) vertical equipment rack with associated front plexi-glass door, 
lock hardware, and venting fans. 

2. Main Lobby Entrance – SG will supply and install (1) fixed interior color dome camera 
with a standard lens behind the receptionist desk viewing the main entrance and 
surrounding lobby area. 

3. Main Hallway – SG will supply and install (1) Four-way quad color dome camera for 
main hallway intersection viewing. 

4. Mud Room – SG will supply and install (1) fixed exterior color dome camera with a 
standard lens on the interior side of the Mud room entrance viewing personnel requesting 
entrance in to facility.    



Security Management System 
Page 5 
 

5. N.W, & S.W. Exterior Corners - SG will supply and install a (2) pan /tilt /zoom color 
exterior dome cameras to view and monitor the perimeter of building and yard \ parking 
lot areas.  The S.W. camera will be programmed for automatic call-up upon exit / entry of 
the gate operators. 

 
6. Main Garage - SG will supply and install a (1) interior pan /tilt /zoom color dome camera 

to view and monitor the garage area, perimeter entrances, overhead doors, and parts crib. 
 This camera will be programmed for automatic call-up and record upon alarm activation 
and after hour monitoring. City Of Troy / DPW  

 
7. Remote Workstation (Location TBD) - SG will supply and install on owner furnished 

PC, CCTV monitoring and control software for multi-screen viewing / control and 
playback of all cameras connected to network.  Note: Remote viewing software can be 
installed on additional PC workstations having the same ability as described above.  

8. S.E. Front Entrance Exterior Corner - SG will supply and install a (1) pan /tilt /zoom 
color exterior dome cameras to view and monitor the perimeter of building and parking 
lot areas. 

 
Fire Alarm System 

 
We propose to furnish and install a fire alarm monitoring and evacuation system at the City 
Of Troy / DPW facility.  After reviewing the proposed floor plan we have developed a 
system layout, which will meet local and state building codes. We have allowed for 
approximately 5% increase in panel capacity and field devices to meet code requirements.  
Additional work performed is as follows: 

 
1. Furnish and install (1) addressable Fire Alarm Panel including but limited to, power 

distribution modules, back-up batteries, addressable zone cards, zone module cards, 
event reporting DACT, and expansion bay kit. 

2. Furnish and install field indicating and notification devices, as required by code.  
(Approximately 56 – horn strobes, 5 – strobes, 6 – smoke detector, 2 – heat detector, 8 - 
relay output modules, 4-duct detectors, 12-manual pull stations). 

3. Furnish and install necessary indicating and notification circuits require to facilitate 
above devices to meet all code requirements. 

4. Furnish system engineering and drafting with as-build information after completion of 
project. 

5. Furnish final system test checkout and start-up as required to complete the above 
referenced scope of work. 

6. Furnish system programming and configuration as required for the above referenced 
devices. 

7. Furnish system training as required for above system. 
8. Furnish a One-year parts and labor warranty on the above referenced project 



Security Management System 
Page 6 
 

 
SimplexGrinnell Services 

 
We propose to furnish the following services as a turnkey contractor to complete the subject 
job on time and within budget. 
 
1. Engineering - SG will supply system engineering and drafting this will include system 

riser diagrams, floor plan layouts, panel terminations, device termination, mounting 
details, and as-build information after completion of project.  City Of Troy / DPW  

2. SG will supply (1) electronic copy in (AutoCAD format), and (3) sets of reproducible.  
3. Cabling - SG will supply and install all associated control and communication circuits as 

required for the above referenced devices. 
4. Conduit and Boxes  - SG will supply and install all conduit and electrical back-boxes for 

exterior installation as required for the above referenced devices.  
5. Power Circuits  - SG will supply and install all necessary 110VAC/240VAC power as 

required for the above referenced devices. 
6. Programming  - SG will supply system programming and configuration as required for 

the above referenced devices. 
7. Project Management  - SG will supply on-site supervision and coordination of all trades 

required to complete the above referenced scope of work.   
8. Technical Support  - SG will supply final system test checkout and start-up as required to 

complete the above referenced scope of work. 
9. Training - SG will supply system training upon final completion project. 
10. Warranty – SG will supply a Two-year parts and labor warranty on the above referenced 

project. 
 
PRICING 
 
Access Control System ………………………………………………………$81,466.00 
 
CCTV Surveillance System.………………………………………………….$29,450.00 
 
Fire Alarm System…………………………………………………………….$45,628.00 
 
TOTAL COST:          $156,544.00 
 
We are offering a Cost Reduction option of 5% if all three proposed systems are accepted, this is 
a cost saving of $7,828.00.  In addition to the cost reduction we also offering the Time Tracker 
Software (See optional pricing on page 7) at no addition cost if all three proposed system are 
accepted.  The result of this cost saving will bring our new total systems cost to; $148,716.00. 
 
Note: See attached bill of materials for unit prices, and list of labor services. 



City Of Troy / DPW  
Security Management System 
Page 7 
 
OPTIONAL PRICING 

1. Provide Time tracker software and necessary programming for time entry reporting (see 
attached data sheets for software functionality):  Add $5,822.00 

2. Provide cost deduct for electrical permits if City of Troy waves all cost:  
Deduct -$1,300.00. 

 
 
CLARIFICATIONS TO OUR BID 
 

1. Pricing does not include sales or uses taxes add if required by law. 
2. All SimplexGrinnell standard terms and conditions apply. 
3. Our proposal is based upon straight time 1st shift, Monday-Friday 7:00 am - 3:30 PM, 

weather permitting.  
4. Owner to provide access to areas required to perform the above referenced work.  
5. Our proposal does not include permits and fees. 
6. Owner to furnish all network connection to SimplexGrinnell equipment as required. 
7. Owner to make available 110VAC/240VAC power required for all control equipment. 
8. Owner to furnish all site work (i.e.; saw cutting, trenching, concrete pads, etc.) as 

required for gate operator installation. 
9. Owner to furnish miscellaneous door hardware, and alignments as necessary. 
10. Owner to furnish all PC hardware. 
11. Price is valid for 60 days. 

 
 
 
Thank you for opportunity to provide you with a response on this proposal, and if you should 
have any further questions please do not hesitate to give us a call. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
SimplexGrinnell LP 
 
 
John E. Keith 
Account Manager 
 
Cc: W. Moore  
 J. Bennett 



 April 7, 2006 
 
 
TO: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
 Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – Contract 

Renewals – Emerald Food Service at Community Center and 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
City management recommends the contract with Emerald Food Service to 
provide Café and Pro Shop operations in the Community Center, and food and 
beverage service at the Sanctuary Golf Course be renewed for a two-year period 
effective May 1, 2006 – May 1, 2008 as allowed by the two (2) agreements.   
This recommendation is based on positive evaluations performed by Parks and 
Recreation staff at the Community Center and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course and 
the willingness of Emerald Food Service to make adjustments in their operations 
to accommodate community groups who utilize these facilities.    
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A three-year contract with Emerald Food Service to provide a café/pro shop at 
the Community Center was approved by City Council (Resolution #2002-01-014) 
on January 7, 2002.  At the end of this three-year contract period, the Agreement 
was amended with the Agreement at the Sanctuary Lakes Golf Course 
(Resolution #2004-08-441) to allow a combined expiration date of May 1, 2006 
and aligned both contracts with the start of food service operations at Sanctuary 
Lakes Golf Course.     
 
During the contract period, the contractor was evaluated (exhibit 1) by staff and 
achieved positive evaluation scores.  Emerald Food has been receptive to 
change their policies to accommodate patron recommendations.   
 
Specifically, the contractor has agreed to develop a discounted snack menu 
(exhibit 2) for 501c(3) non-profit resident groups who meet at the Community 
Center monthly in response to criticism of high prices from the Senior Advisory 
Committee.  
 
A summary of comments from users is attached for review. 
 
 
Reviewed as to Form and Legality:  __________________________   ________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  Date 
 
 
Prepared by:  Kraig Schmottlach, Community Center Facility Manager  

campbellld
Text Box
F-06









































































 1

AGREEMENT 
FOOD SERVICE AT SANCTUARY LAKE GOLF COURSE  

 
 

THIS “AGREEMENT” entered into on________________, 2006, between the CITY OF 

TROY, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan 48084, hereinafter referred to as the “City”, 

and Emerald Food Services I, L.L.C., a Michigan limited liability company, whose address is 

1980 Greenfield, Berkley, Michigan 48072, hereafter known as the food service provider for 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, hereinafter referred to as the “Operator”; 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
In consideration of the City granting to the Operator the exclusive privilege and right of 

conducting the sale of food, beverages including alcoholic beverages, vending machines, and 

catering rights for golf outings at the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. REVENUE SHARING PLAN:  Simultaneously with this Agreement, the Operator and 

the City are entering into an Agreement for use of the kitchen at the Troy Community Center, 

catering rights and the rental of space at the Community Center.  The Community Center 

Café/Pro Shop Agreement sets up a revenue sharing plan.   

The parties to this Agreement  (Food Service at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 

Agreement) desire to use the same revenue sharing plan as set out in the Community Center 

Café/Pro Shop Agreement and, for computation purposes, the parties desire to combine the 

gross receipts for the food and beverage operation at both the Community Center Café/Pro 

Shop and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, including all monies derived from the operation of the 

café/pro shop, catering service including off-premises catering where food was prepared in the 

Troy Community Center kitchen but excluding revenue from coffee/tea service at the Center for 

seniors from 8:00 a.m. to noon, the golf course grill room, the golf course outside food service 

area, catering for golf outings and sundry items at both locations less Michigan Sales Tax (6% 

as of the date of this Agreement). Vending machine sales shall be included as part of the 



 2

revenue sharing plan as set out in the Community Center Café/Pro Shop Agreement, 

Parargraph 3.  A sixteen percent (16%) service fee in lieu of a gratuity may be added to catering 

for golf outings only. That 16% service fee shall be included in the gross receipts under this 

Agreement. In exchange, the Operator agrees to pay the City an incremental percentage of the 

combined yearly gross receipts of both facilities with a guaranteed minimum per year based on 

the revenue sharing plan as follows:  

 
Yearly Gross Receipts                 % to City 

     0 to $200,000      $10,000 guaranteed minimum 
                                              (Minimum guaranteed per year) 

                          $200,001 to $300,000                 7 

    $300,001 to $600,000      10 

    $600,001 per year or more                             12  

  
  
 Within sixty (60) days after the end of each combined fiscal year (that is, the fiscal year 

for both the Troy Community Center Café/Pro Shop and the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course food 

service), the Operator will provide an accounting of gross receipts from that previous combined 

fiscal year with the amount due the City of the percentage of gross receipts under the revenue 

sharing plan.  The City has the right to request documentation of the reconciliation and shall be 

provided with access to books and records of the Operator for review or audit, if deemed 

necessary.  If additional monies are due the City for that previous combined fiscal year of 

operation, those monies shall be paid forthwith to the City but no later than sixty (60) days after 

the end of that previous combined fiscal year.  In the event that the Operator submits 

documentation acceptable to the City that it has overpaid the City during that previous combined 

fiscal year of the operation under the revenue sharing plan, the City will refund the overpayment 

to the Operator. 

 



 3

 The parties agree that the final figure accepted by the City as the previous combined 

fiscal year gross receipts shall be used to compute payments under the Agreement for the 

current fiscal year of operation if the option to renew the Agreement is exercised.  That figure 

shall be divided by 12 to obtain the monthly payment amount for the current combined fiscal 

year of operation.  Those payments shall continue to be due and payable to the City on the first 

(1st) of each month and calculated as set out above.  At the end of each combined fiscal year 

that the Agreement is in effect by extensions of the Agreement, or whenever the Agreement is 

terminated, the Operator will provide an accounting of gross year receipts for the previous 

combined previous fiscal year, and/or for the current combined fiscal year to date if there is a 

termination of the Agreement prior to the end of a contract period, and reconcile the amount 

paid to the City with the amount due the City and the terms and conditions set out above for any 

money due to the City or any refund due to Operator shall apply.  

 
2. SEPARATE AGREEMENTS:  It is understood and agreed that a separate Agreement 

establishing terms and conditions between the City and Operator for food, catering and vending 

service at Troy Community Center Café/Pro Shop is being signed simultaneously with this 

Agreement.  That Agreement for Sanctuary Lake Golf Course includes the revenue sharing plan 

as set out in Paragraph 1 of this Agreement.  If the Agreement for the Community Center 

Café/Pro Shop is terminated or not extended but this Agreement is not terminated or is 

extended, the revenue sharing plan set out in Paragraph 1 shall continue in effect without 

including gross receipts from the Troy Community Center food, catering and/or vending service.  

Renewal or extension of this Agreement is not contingent on renewal or extension of the 

Agreement for the Community Center Café/Pro Shop Agreement. 

 
3.  USE OF KITCHEN AND LIMITATIONS:  The Operator shall provide a food/beverage 

service to all users of the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course.  The Operator shall be the exclusive 

caterer of commercially prepared food/beverages served at the golf course.  User groups that 



 4

wish to have food/beverages catered for their events shall make arrangements, including 

payment, directly with the Food Service Operator.  The Operator’s services shall include 

preparation, delivery, and clean up of food and/ or beverages.   

 
  4. HOURS OF OPERATION:  The operating schedule for the Sanctuary Lake Golf 

Course shall be as follows unless the designated City representative provides written 

amendments to the following schedule:    

 
              

MINIMUM OPENING DATES AND TIMES 
 
April 1st – April 25th:    Monday thru Sunday 7:30 am  
 
April 26th – May 16th:    Monday thru Sunday 7:00 am 
 
May 17th – June 6th:    Monday thru Sunday 6:30 am 
 
June 7th – August 22nd:    Monday thru Friday 6:30 am 
  Saturday & Sunday 6:00 am 
 
August 23rd – September 5th:    Monday thru Sunday 6:30 am 
 
September 6th – September 26th:    Monday thru Sunday 7:00 am 
 
September 27th – November 15th:   Monday thru Sunday 7:30 am 
 

Note:  Opening dates and times are subject to change to meet user demand.  A 

minimum of 72 hours notice will be given for all changes.   

 
OPERATING TIMES FOR OUTSIDE GRILL AND BEVERAGE CART 

 
The Outside Grill and Beverage Cart are expected to be open and running daily.  The 

outside grill is to be opened no later than 9:30 a.m. and close no earlier than 5:00 p.m. daily. 

Upon agreement with the Director of Golf, the schedule may be changed to due weather and/or 

special circumstances.    



 5

 Vending machines will be placed and filled for operation during the normal golf season 

with the exception of any vending machines that are placed in the golf range area.  The golf 

range vending machines will be maintained during the entire year. 

 
5.  MAINTENANCE OF PREMISES:  The Operator shall maintain the interior of the 

kitchen/dining area, vending area(s), outside food service area, the service window, if 

applicable, and all adjacent areas in a clean and neat manner and in compliance with all City 

ordinances, State law and applicable health standards and regulations.  The Operator shall 

maintain the trash receptacles in all kitchen / dining areas.  The Operator is responsible for 

cleaning all equipment and reporting any type of mechanical problem to the Parks and 

Recreation Department. The City has a contractor for the cleaning of all restrooms.  However,  

the Operator shall be responsible for making sure that all restrooms which are located in the 

kitchen and grilling area only are kept in a clean and neat manner when the restroom cleaning 

contractor is not on site.  This includes the picking up of all trash left on floors or counter-tops, 

restocking hand towels, toilet tissue, soap, and emptying any trash receptacles if needed.  It will 

be the responsibility of the Operator to lock entrance and exit gates to the facility at the end of 

each day. 

 
6.  OPERATOR’S EMPLOYEES:  The Operator shall provide appropriate uniforms and 

name badges for its employees and shall require that all employees maintain themselves and 

their uniforms in a clean and neat appearance.  The Operator is responsible for all wages, 

benefits or any other condition of employment and acknowledges that its employees have no 

employment relationship with the City. The City shall have the right to mandate that the 

Operator terminate an employee for inappropriate behavior.  All employees serving alcoholic 

beverages shall do so within the guidelines of the State of Michigan Liquor Laws and may be 

terminated due to violations of this law. 

 



 6

7. INSPECTION AND REPAIRS:  The City shall have the right to enter and/or inspect 

the kitchen area at any reasonable time and make repairs and/or improvements, as it deems 

necessary.  The City will pay the expense of periodic maintenance caused by normal wear and 

tear of the kitchen equipment. Any maintenance or repair to Operator equipment is the sole 

responsibility of the Operator.  Other repairs will be done at the City’s expense unless it is 

determined that the repair was necessary due to the misuse or negligence of the Operator, its 

employees and/or agents in which event the Operator shall be responsible for the costs of said 

repairs.  The City will make every effort to notify the Operator in advance if non-City employees 

will be entering onto the premises at the City’s request.  Any additions, repairs and/or 

improvements made on the premises shall become the property of the City. 

 

8. SERVING OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES:   

 

(A) The City shall require the Operator to maintain its liquor license for the premises known as 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course under the Operator’s name and keep the license in good standing 

during the term of the Agreement.  Violation of the State of Michigan Liquor laws will be 

considered as a violation of the Agreement and may result in termination of the Agreement at 

the City’s discretion.  Employees serving alcoholic beverages shall do so in compliance with the 

State of Michigan Liquor laws and guidelines as set forth by the Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission.  Serving violations by an employee will be just cause for termination of the 

Agreement at the City’s discretion, and the Operator shall be deemed responsible if such 

conduct occurs.  The Operator shall in no way jeopardize the liquor license obtained for the 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course facility. 

 

(B) The City grants to the Operator the possession and control of the Sanctuary Lake Golf 

Course, which includes the Outside Grill, for the limited purpose of controlling and monitoring 



 7

the consumption of alcohol on the premises, including the collection of money for alcoholic 

beverages.  The City reserves to itself the exclusive right to operate the golf business at 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, including the collection of all fees related to playing of golf and the 

operation of a pro shop.  

 

(C The Operator agrees to assume the responsibilities of a liquor licensee at Sanctuary Lake 

Golf Course, and agrees to be responsible for all sanctions and/or penalties assessed for 

alleged violations of the Michigan Liquor Control Commission’s Administrative Rules and 

Regulations and/or federal, state, or local laws concerning the sale of alcohol at Sanctuary Lake 

Golf Course.  This includes the assumption of a licensee’s responsibility for the actions of the 

Operator’s employees, agents and/or representatives who sell alcohol. 

 

(D) The Operator agrees that there shall be no sales of alcohol on the Sanctuary Lake Golf 

Course proper, but that the Operator, if licensed to do so by the Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission, may sell up to two beers per golfer at the Club House or the Outside Grill, which 

the golfer can then take onto the golf course for consumption. 

 

(E) The City agrees to provide the Operator with a motorized golf cart, at no charge, for 

operation by the Operator’s employees on the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, in order to facilitate 

monitoring of alcohol consumption.  The Operator agrees to coordinate its operation of the golf 

cart with the City’s Director of Golf Operations, and understands and agrees that the City may 

provide back up security to monitor alcohol consumption on the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course. 

 

(F) The Operator recognizes and agrees that the operation and control of normal golf activities 

lies exclusively with the City, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement. 



 8

 

(G) The Operator agrees to indemnify and hold the City harmless from any and all claims arising 

out of the sale of alcoholic beverages by the Operator, its employees, its agents and/or its 

representatives which occurred on City property. 

 

(H) Both the City and the Operator acknowledge that a liquor license in the restaurant industry 

has a significant market value. Operator further acknowledges that if it desired to open a 

restaurant with liquor service in the private sector, it would have to secure a liquor license.  The 

liquor license would have to be approved by a municipality, which might have a limited number 

of licenses or no licenses available; or the Operator might have to pay a substantial amount of 

money to purchase an existing liquor license from another liquor licensee. Operator 

understands that the City is not in the restaurant industry but desires to enhance the services 

available to the public at the City’s Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, a municipal golf course, by 

having food and beverage service on the premises.  The Operator acknowledges that it is the 

City’s responsibility to insure a smooth transition of any food or beverage service at the 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course if the Operator’s Agreement is not renewed or if it is terminated.  

Therefore, the City is willing to forgo payment by the Operator of the market value of the liquor 

license which the City has agreed to approve for issuance to the food service vendor of the 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course as part of the award of the bid in this matter, but if and only if, the 

food service vendor, in this instance the Operator, transfers the liquor license acquired by the 

food service vendor, in this instance the Operator, for Sanctuary Lake Golf Course to the City or 

the City’s approved vendor at the termination of the Agreement by either party for any cause 

and/or for non-renewal of the Agreement.  The Operator understands that this paragraph is an 

essential term and condition of this Agreement that the liquor license acquired by the Operator 

shall remain with the premises known as Sanctuary Lake Golf Course. The Operator 

understands that, but for the Operator’s agreement to the terms and conditions in this 



 9

paragraph, that City Council would not have approved this Agreement.  Therefore, the Operator 

shall transfer the liquor license acquired for the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course to the new food 

service vendor selected by the City Council or to the City upon termination for any cause or by 

any party of the Agreement or upon non-renewal of the Agreement. 

 

(I) Upon termination of this Agreement by either party or upon expiration and non-renewal of the 

Agreement, the Operator shall cooperate fully and professionally to insure the transfer of the 

liquor license to the new food service vendor or the City, at the City’s discretion. The Operator 

acknowledges that failure to cooperate in the transfer of the liquor license as set out herein will 

result in severe money damages to the City, loss of the liquor license and loss of the market 

value of the liquor license by the City.  In lieu of a denial by a court of specific performance 

under this Agreement for the transfer of the liquor license to the City or a new food service 

vendor approved by the City, the City shall be entitled to payment of the market value of the 

liquor license in the amount of $100,000.00, representing a minimum market value of the liquor 

license. 

 

(J) Although the term of this Agreement is a two (2) year period commencing on May 1, 2006, 

the City agrees that if this Agreement is terminated prior to April 30, 2008 by the City for 

reasons other than violation of the State of Michigan Liquor Law and guidelines as set forth by 

the Michigan Liquor Control Commission, the City will purchase and take possession of all non-

food inventory including by way of example, but not limited to, dishes, small wares, silverware, 

glasses, serving pieces, equipment (including any specialized golf carts), non Emerald Food 

Service signage, and the like. The cost for such purchases shall be the Operator’s documented 

cost of acquisition for such items minus depreciation based on the rules and regulations 

published by the Internal Revenue Service Act 1986, as amended. The Operator shall also have 

the discretion to remove those items from the premises and not receive payment as set out 



 10

herein. The City shall pay the costs of the non-food inventory as set out herein within sixty (60) 

days after receipt of documentation of Operator’s cost.  

 

(K) Additionally, within the period and under the conditions as set out in the above paragraph, 

the City shall also pay to the Operator the documented cost associated with the acquisition of a 

liquor license for example, the application and processing fee. The City shall not be responsible 

for the potential market value of the liquor license, any unopened liquor or other items not 

directly related to the acquisition of a liquor license. The City shall pay the costs for the 

acquisition of the liquor license as set out herein within sixty (60) days after receipt of 

documentation of Operator’s cost. 

 

9. ENTERTAINMENT:  There shall be no entertainment including, but not limited to, 

music, singers, dancing, videos, movies, DVD’s, modeling, magicians, without approval of the 

Director of Parks and Recreation. 

 

10. KITCHEN SUPPLIES / EQUIPMENT AND MODIFICATION:  The Operator shall 

provide all necessary supplies and personnel to staff the operation of the kitchen/dining area(s), 

catering service for golf outings, and vending machines that are required and not on the 

Kitchen Equipment List attached to the Request for Proposal.  Building and/or equipment 

modifications shall be approved in advance by the Director of Parks and Recreation or his or her 

designated representative and shall become the property of the City at the conclusion or upon 

termination by either party of this Agreement.  Additionally, the designated City representative 

shall approve equipment brought into the facility by the Operator or at the request of the 

Operator in advance of delivery to the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course.  Any modification or 

addition of equipment required by the Oakland County Health Department shall be the 

responsibility of the Operator. 



 11

 
11.  PRICES / PRICE AND HOUR CHANGES:  Products sold or marketed, the prices 

charged, and the operation schedules of the kitchen/dining area(s) are subject to regulation by 

the City and, once established, no changes shall be made without prior approval of the Director 

of Parks and Recreation or his/her designee. Prices will be re-evaluated at the conclusion of 

each year of the Agreement.  Increases in prices shall be no greater than the percentage 

increase of the Consumer Price Index of Food Eaten Away from Home. Prices shall be posted 

for patrons and a detailed printed description of prices shall be available for review by the City. 

 

12.  RECORDS:  The Operator shall keep accurate records of all sales and receipts 

through the use of computerized/electronic cash registers which provide daily tapes and reports. 

The City, prior to commencement of the Agreement, shall approve the cash registers that will be 

used for the operation of the food services described in this agreement.  At the City’s option, 

Operator shall make available for inspection by the City, or it’s designated representative or 

shall submit forthwith at City’s request,  a copy of its monthly Michigan Department of Treasury 

Sales Tax Return.  An annual report, summarizing the monthly reports, shall be submitted to the 

City within sixty (60) days after the first anniversary date of the Agreement and each year 

thereafter that the Agreement is in effect. The City shall have the right to inspect the books, 

records, and inventories of the Operator at any reasonable time. 

 

13. ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT / INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  The Operator 

shall have no authority or power to assign, sublet and/or transfer any rights, privileges or 

interests under this Agreement without prior written consent from the City.  The Operator 

acknowledges that it is an independent contractor with no authority to bind the City to any 

contracts or agreements, written or oral. 

 



 12

14. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  The Operator shall at all times be in compliance with 

all federal and state statutes and City ordinances and with all Oakland County Health 

Department licensing requirements, rules and regulations.  The serving of alcoholic beverages 

will be in full compliance with State of Michigan Liquor Laws.  The Operator will be responsible 

to obtain a State of Michigan Liquor License and keep it in force during the term of the contract.  

If the Operator receives liquor violations that jeopardize the facility’s liquor license, the violations 

will be considered a breach of contract and, at the City’s discretion, the contract may be 

terminated.     

 

15.  INSURANCE:   The Operator shall maintain liability insurance for any actions, 

claims, liability or damages caused to persons and/or property arising out of the operation 

and/or maintenance of the food service, kitchen/dining area(s) and its catering operation for golf 

outings where food has been prepared in the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course food preparation 

area(s), in addition to liquor liability insurance, product liability insurance, and worker’s 

compensation.  All insurance coverage shall be approved by the City.  Certificates of Insurance 

shall comply with the sample form attached to the Request for Proposal.  The City shall be 

named as an additional insured under all policies except worker’s compensation.  All insurance 

companies must be licensed and admitted to do business in the State of Michigan.  All 

insurance set out herein shall be maintained for the duration of the Agreement.  Failure to 

maintain coverage or to continue to maintain coverage shall be considered a breach of contract 

with immediate termination of the Agreement at the will of the City.  The Operator is responsible 

for any deductibles under its policies of insurance.  The Operator agrees to indemnify and hold 

the City harmless for any claims, actions, liabilities or damages arising out of the operation, 

maintenance or management of the food service, kitchen/dining area(s), vending area(s), on-

premises catering for golf outings where food has been prepared in the Sanctuary Lake Golf 

Course food preparation area(s). 



 13

 
16. REPORTS OF CLAIMS:  Copies of all claims, damage, or accident reports received 

by the Operator, its employees and/or agents, whether submitted to an insurance company or 

not, relating to any damage or accident that occurred or is alleged to have occurred shall be 

sent to the City. 

 

17.  PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES:  The Operator shall be liable for any personal 

property taxes assessed against its equipment or inventory. 

 

18.  UTILITY COSTS:  The City will pay utility costs. 

 

19. TERM OF AGREEMENT:  The effective date of this Agreement is May 1, 2006 and 

shall terminate two (2) years from that date or on April 30, 2008 unless cancelled by either party 

upon ninety (90) days written notice sent by certified mail as set out in Paragraph 20. 

Cancellation may be without cause by either party. If cancellation by the City is without cause 

prior to April 30, 2008, the additional terms of Paragraphs 8(J) and 8(K) shall apply. At the end 

of the term of this Agreement, the City may at its option renew this Agreement for any number of 

two (2) year periods under the same terms and conditions as set out in this Agreement if 

approved by City Council and if agreed to by the Operator. 

 

20.  NOTICE:  All written notices to be given under this Agreement shall be mailed by 

certified mail, return receipt requested, to the other party at its address set forth herein or at 

such address as the party may provide in writing from time to time.  Any such notice shall be 

deemed to have been received five days subsequent to mailing.  

 



 14

21. SECTION HEADINGS.  All section headings contained herein are for the 

convenience of reference only and are not intended to define or limit the scope of any provision 

of this Agreement. 

 

22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This Agreement incorporates by reference the Request for 

Proposal, General Specifications, Vendor’s Questionnaire, and the Operator’s Proposal as set 

out herein.  These documents constitute the entire Agreement and any changes thereto shall be 

in writing signed by both the parties unless otherwise set out in the Agreement.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Operator have executed this Agreement. 
 
 
EMERALD FOOD SERVICES I, L.L.C.   CITY OF TROY, 

 

____________________________  __________________________ 
By:  Kim Haveraneck    By:  Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
Member      
       __________________________ 
       By: Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
Dated:_________________ 
 

 
 





 1

AGREEMENT FOR THE COMMUNITY CENTER CAFÉ/PRO SHOP 
 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT entered into on___________, 2006, between the 

CITY OF TROY, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan  48084, hereinafter 

referred to as the “City”, and EMERALD FOOD SERVICES I, L.L.C., a Michigan 

limited liability company, whose address is 1980 Greenfield Road, Berkley, 

Michigan 48072, as the Café/Pro Shop Operator, hereinafter referred to as the 

“Operator”; 

WITNESSETH: 

 In consideration of the City granting to the Operator the exclusive privilege 

and right of conducting the sale of food, beverages, and other sundry pro shop 

related articles, including catering rights but excluding those times when 

Operator is preempted as set out in Paragraph 8, in the Troy Community Center, 

3179 Livernois, Troy, Michigan  48083, the Operator agrees as follows: 

1. REVENUE SHARING PLAN:  Simultaneously with this Agreement, the 

Operator and the City are entering into an Agreement for Food Service at 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course. The parties to this Agreement (Agreement for the 

Community Center Café/Pro Shop) desire to use the same revenue sharing plan 

as set out in the Agreement for Food Service at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 

and, for computation purposes, the parties desire to combine the gross receipts 

for the food and beverage operation at both the Community Center Café/Pro 

Shop and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, including all monies derived from the 

operation of the café/pro shop, catering service including off-premises catering 

where food was prepared in the Troy Community Center kitchen but excluding 



 2

revenue from coffee/tea service at the Community Center for seniors from 8:00 

a.m. to noon, the golf course grill room, the golf course outside food service area, 

catering for golf outings and sundry items at both locations less Michigan Sales 

Tax (6% as of the date of this Agreement).  Vending machine sales at the Troy 

Community Center only shall be included as part of the revenue sharing plan as 

set out in Paragraph 3. In exchange, the Operator agrees to pay the City an 

incremental percentage of the combined yearly gross receipts of both facilities 

with a guaranteed minimum per year based on the revue sharing plan as follows: 

Yearly Gross Receipts                 % to City 

0 to $200,000      $10,000 guaranteed minimum 
                                              (Minimum guaranteed per year) 

                       $200,001 to $300,000                7 

    $300,001 to $600,000      10 

    $600,001 per year or more                        12 

 Within sixty (60) days after the end of each combined fiscal year (that is, 

the fiscal year for both the Troy Community Center Café/Pro Shop and the 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course food service), the Operator will provide an 

accounting of gross receipts from that previous combined fiscal year with the 

amount due the City of the percentage of gross receipts under the revenue 

sharing plan.  The City has the right to request documentation of the 

reconciliation and shall be provided with access to books and records of the 

Operator for review or audit, if deemed necessary.  In additional monies are due 

the City for that previous combined fiscal year of operation, those monies shall 

be paid forthwith to the City but no later than sixty (60) days after the end of that 



 3

previous combined fiscal year.  In the event that the Operator submits 

documentation acceptable to the City that it has overpaid the City during that 

previous combined fiscal year of the operation under the revenue sharing plan, 

the City will refund the overpayment to the Operator. 

 The parties agree that the final figure accepted by the City as the previous 

combined fiscal year gross receipts shall be used to compute payments under 

the Agreement for the current fiscal year of operation if the option to renew the 

Agreement is exercised.  That figure shall be divided by 12 to obtain the monthly 

payment amount for the current combined fiscal year of operation.  Those 

payments shall continue to be due and payable to the City on the first (1st) of 

each month and calculated as set out above.  At the end of each combined fiscal 

year that the Agreement is in effect by extensions of the Agreement, or whenever 

the Agreement is terminated, the Operator will provide an accounting of gross 

year receipts for the previous combined previous fiscal year, and/or for the 

current combined fiscal year to date if there is a termination of the Agreement 

prior to the end of a contract period, and reconcile the amount paid to the City 

with the amount due the City and the terms and conditions set out above for any 

money due to the City or any refund due to Operator shall apply.  

2. SEPARATE AGREEMENTS:  It is understood and agreed that a separate 

Agreement establishing terms and conditions between the City and Operator for 

food service at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course is being signed simultaneously with 

this Agreement.  That Agreement for Sanctuary Lake Golf Course includes the 

revenue sharing plan as set out in Paragraph 1 of this Agreement.  If the 



 4

Agreement for Food Service at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course is terminated or not 

extended but this Agreement is not terminated or is extended, the revenue 

sharing plan set out in Paragraph 1 shall continue in effect without including 

gross receipts from Sanctuary Lake Golf Course.  Renewal or extension of this 

Agreement is not contingent on renewal or extension of the Sanctuary Lake Golf 

Course Agreement. 

3. VENDING MACHINES:  The Operator shall have the exclusive right to 

contract with a vendor to provide for vending machine service at the City of Troy 

Community Center.  The Operator shall in no way represent to any persons, 

corporations or any other entity that they are acting as an agent of the City of 

Troy or have the authority to bind the city to any contracts.  No vending machine 

shall contain cigarettes, tobacco products or alcoholic beverages but rather shall 

contain food and non-alcoholic beverage items only.  The Director of Parks and 

Recreation or his or her designee shall approve the vending machine items and 

prices.  Gross receipts from vending machines sales shall be included as part of 

the revenue sharing plan set out in Paragraph 1.  Those gross receipts shall be 

that percentage of revenue paid to the Operator under its contract with the 

vending machine vendor.  Those gross receipts shall be added into total gross 

receipts per year and paid to the City as provided in Paragraph 1.  

  The City shall have the right to verbally request a copy of the signed 

agreement or any amendments, supplements or subsequent agreements 

between the Operator and the vending machine vendor or vendors and the 

Operator shall provide the same within ten (10) days of the request. 



 5

4. LOCATION OF VENDING MACHINES:  The Director of Parks and Recreation, 

or his or her designee, shall have the sole discretion to determine where the 

vending machines are placed in the Community Center and how many vending 

machines shall be on the premises at any one time.  Once the initial 

determination is made regarding the location and number of vending machines, 

the Director of Parks and Recreation shall give thirty (30) days written notice of 

any change to the location and number of vending machines. 

5. OPERATIONAL HOURS OF VENDING MACHINES:  All vending machines 

shall be accessible to the public when the Café/Pro Shop is closed to the public. 

6. MAINTENANCE OF PREMISES AND REPAIR OF VENDING MACHINES:  

The Operator is responsible for the cleaning, maintenance and repair of the 

vending machines and all costs associated with the cleaning, maintenance and 

repair of the vending machines.  The Operator shall make a good faith effort to 

see that the vending machines are fully operational at the times set out in 

Paragraph 5.  If the City notifies the Operator of the need for cleaning, 

maintenance or repair of any vending machine and the Operator fails to correct 

the problem within three (3) days, the City may take reasonable action to correct 

the problem.  Any costs incurred by the City for the cleaning, maintenance or 

repair of the vending machines will be the responsibility of the Operator. Invoices 

submitted to the Operator by the City for reimbursement of said costs shall be 

paid within fifteen (15) days. 

7. USE OF KITCHEN AND LIMITATIONS:  The Operator shall provide a 

food/beverage service to all users of the Troy Community Center.  The Operator 



 6

shall provide coffee/tea service in the Dining Room for seniors from 8:00 a.m. to 

noon at a maximum price of $ .30/cup. 

 The Operator shall be the exclusive caterer of commercially prepared 

food/beverage served in the following rooms of the Troy Community Center: 

301,302,303, 304,305 AND 402.  Another caterer may be used if the Operator is 

first consulted and acknowledges that it cannot provide the food requested by a 

group.  User groups that wish to have food/beverages catered for their meetings 

shall make arrangements, including payment, directly with the Operator. 

 The Operator’s services shall include preparation, delivery and clean-up of 

food/beverages. 

 The Operator shall not have the exclusive catering rights to serve pre-

packaged food/beverage and items prepared from scratch at home for meetings 

and events in rooms not set out in this Paragraph.  User groups will be permitted 

to bring snacks and food made from scratch at home but not meals to serve its 

members. 

 The Operator shall provide complimentary dinner and beverages for 100 

persons from the catering menu for one (1) Parks and Recreation Department 

program each year of the Agreement (for example, the Friday Frolic or Senior 

Dance).  Said event will be chosen at the discretion of the City. 

8. PREEMPTION OF USE OF KITCHEN:  The Operator shall have exclusive use 

of the kitchen except if preempted by the Troy Parks and Recreation Department 

for special programs and events.  The City will make every effort to notify the 

Operator of those programs and events as soon as possible before each event.  



 7

The Operator, who at the effective date of this Agreement, is also the provider of 

senior lunches for the Senior Citizen Nutrition Program in Troy, acknowledges 

that, if in the future, the Operator is no longer providing senior lunches under that 

program that the contractor for the Senior Citizens Nutrition Program will preempt 

the Operator for use of the kitchen during the times it is necessary to prepare 

senior lunches for that program, generally, Monday through Friday from 6:00 

a.m. to 2:00 p.m.  Operator will not be allowed any use of the kitchen during 

those times it is preempted as set out herein. 

9. HOURS OF OPERATION: The operating schedule for the Café/Pro Shop, 

unless preempted as set out in Paragraph 8, shall be as follows: 

A. Monday to Friday:  7:00 a.m. to 1:30 p.m. and 5:00 p.m. to  

8:00 p.m. 

B. Saturday and Sunday:  9:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. 

C. The schedule may change to meet user demand as agreed to by the 

parties. 

10. MAINTENANCE OF PREMISES:  The Operator shall maintain the interior of 

the kitchen/dining area (except the dining area floor), the service window, if 

applicable, and all adjacent areas in a clean and neat manner and in compliance 

with all City ordinances, State law and applicable health standards and 

regulations.  The Operator shall maintain the trash receptacles in the 

kitchen/dining area.  The Operator is responsible for cleaning all equipment and 

reporting any type of mechanical problem to the Parks and Recreation 

Department. 



 8

11. OPERATOR’S EMPLOYEES:  The Operator shall provide appropriate 

uniforms and name badges for its employees and shall require that all employees 

maintain themselves and their uniforms in a clean and neat appearance.  The 

Operator is responsible for all wages, benefits or any other condition of 

employment and acknowledges that its employees have no employment 

relationship with the City.  The City shall have the right to mandate that the 

Operator terminate an employee for inappropriate behavior.  The Operator shall 

have three (3) days from the date that is first has information that the City has 

requested that an employee be terminated, to file a written request for an 

informal meeting with the Department of Parks and Recreation. That request 

shall set out the reason for the Operator’s objection to the City’s request to 

terminate the employee and the Operator’s proposal as to what action, if any, 

should be taken against the employee.  The City and the Operator shall meet 

informally as soon as possible at a mutually convenient date and make a good 

faith effort to resolve their differences.  If an agreement regarding the employee 

cannot be reached, the Operator shall terminate the employee. 

12. INSPECTIONS AND REPAIRS:  The City shall have the right to enter and/or 

inspect the kitchen area at any reasonable time and make repairs and/or 

improvements as it deems necessary.  The expense of periodic maintenance 

caused by normal wear and tear of the kitchen equipment will be paid by the City.  

Other repairs will be done at the City’s expense unless it is determined that the 

repair was necessary due to the misuse or negligence of the Operator, its 

employees and/or agents in which event the Operator shall be responsible for the 



 9

costs of said repair.  The City will make every effort to notify the Operator in 

advance if non-City employees will be entering onto the premises at the City’s 

request.  Any additions, repairs and/or improvements made on the premises shall 

become property of the City. 

13. NO INTOXICATING LIQUOR:  The Operator, its employees and/or agents 

shall not sell intoxicating liquor or permit and/or knowingly allow intoxicating 

liquor to be consumed in the kitchen/dining area or in any part of the Community 

Center where it is catering.  The Operator shall be deemed responsible if such 

conduct occurs.  The Operator shall not sell or provide intoxicating liquor for off-

premises catering where food has been prepared in the Troy Community Center 

kitchen. 

14. KITCHEN SUPPLIES/EQUIPMENT AND MODIFICATIONS:  The Operator 

shall provide all necessary small cooking utensils and disposable supplies and 

personnel to staff the operation of the kitchen/dining area and the catering 

service.  Building and/or equipment modifications shall be approved in advance 

by the City and shall become the property of the City at the conclusion or upon 

termination by either party of this Agreement. Additionally, the City shall approve 

equipment brought into the facility by the Operator or at the request of the 

Operator in advance of delivery to the Community Center. 

15. PRICES/PRICE AND HOURS CHANGES:  Products sold or marketed, the 

prices charged and the operation schedules of the kitchen/dining area are 

subject to regulation by the City and , once established, no changes shall be 

made without prior approval of the Director of Parks and Recreation or his/her 



 10

designee.  Prices will be re-evaluated at the conclusion of each year of the 

Agreement.  Increases in prices shall be no greater than the percentage increase 

of the Consumer Price Index of Food Eaten Away from Home.  Prices shall be 

posted for patrons and a detailed printed description of prices shall be available 

for review by the City. 

16. RECORDS:  The Operator shall keep accurate records of all sales and 

receipts through the use of computerized/electronic cash registers which provide 

daily tapes and reports.  Those cash registers shall be approved by the City prior 

to commencement of the Agreement.  The Operator shall submit a copy of its 

monthly Michigan Department of Treasury Sales Tax Return by the 20th date of 

the month following the month for which the Return was filed.  An annual report, 

summarizing the monthly reports, shall be submitted to the City within sixty (60) 

days after the first anniversary date of the Agreement and each year thereafter 

that the Agreement is in effect. The City shall have the right to inspect the books, 

records and inventories of the Operator at any reasonable time. 

17. RENTAL OF ADDITIONAL SPACE:  In addition to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement, the Operator shall be entitled to the use of an additional 464 

square feet of space within the Troy Community Center as shown on the 

attached Exhibit A for a rental payment of $6,960.00 per year or $580.00 per 

month ($15.00 per square foot).  By the first (1st) day of each month, the 

Operator shall pay rent of $580.00 per month for this space. This space is to be 

used only for office and for business relating to the operation of the Troy 

Community Center and/or Sanctuary Lake Golf Course food service. This 



 11

provision for rental of space runs with this Agreement only and shall become null 

and void at the expiration of the Agreement or at the termination for any reason 

and the space shall be vacated within ten (10) days of the either of those 

occurrences. 

A. Equipment and Building Modifications:  The Operator shall provide all 

necessary equipment, supplies and building modifications for the 

space.  Building modifications and additions, including but not limited 

to fixtures, a door, carpeting, electrical outlets and voice/data 

connections must be approved by the City in advance and shall 

become the property of the City at the expiration or termination of this 

Agreement.  The costs associated with building modifications that are 

necessary to make the space a viable office shall be the responsibility 

of the Operator.  Equipment brought into the space must also be 

approved in advance by the City. 

B. Maintenance:  The Operator shall maintain the interior of the space in 

a clean and neat manner and in compliance with all City ordinances 

and State law.  This includes, but is not limited to, the removal of trash 

to the proper containers. 

C. Hours of Availability:  The Operator acknowledges that the rental 

space shall only be available during the hours of operation of the Troy 

Community Center.  The Operator also waives any claim or cause of 

action regarding the non-availability of the space as set out herein or 

for emergency periods when, due to weather electrical power outages, 



 12

or acts of nature, the Troy Community Center remains closed for 

operation. 

18. ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT/INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  The 

Operator shall have no authority or power to assign, sublet and/or transfer any 

rights, privileges or interests under this Agreement without prior written consent 

from the City.  The Operator acknowledges that it is an independent contractor 

with no authority to bind the City to any contracts or agreements, written or oral. 

19. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  The Operator shall at all times be in 

compliance with all federal and state statutes and the City ordinances and with all 

Oakland County Health Department licensing requirements, rules and 

regulations. 

20. INSURANCE:  The Operator shall maintain liability insurance in the amount 

of three million ($3,000,000.00) dollars for any actions, claims, liability or 

damages caused to persons and/or property arising out of the operation and/or 

maintenance of the food service, kitchen/dining area and its catering operation 

both on-premises and off-premises where food has  been prepared in the Troy 

Community Center kitchen, in addition to product liability insurance and worker’s 

compensation.  All insurance coverage shall be approved by the City.  

Certificates of Insurance shall comply with the sample form attached to the 

Request for Proposal.  The City shall be named as an additional insured under all 

policies except worker’s compensation.  All insurance companies must be 

licensed and admitted to do business in the State of Michigan.  All insurance set 

out herein shall be maintained for the duration of the Agreement.  Failure to 



 13

maintain coverage or to continue to maintain coverage shall be considered a 

breach of contract with immediate termination of the Agreement at the will of the 

City.  The Operator is responsible for any deductibles under its policies of 

insurance. 

21. INDEMNIFY/HOLD HARMLESS:  The Operator agrees to indemnify and hold 

the City harmless for any claims, actions, liabilities or damages arising out of the 

operation, maintenance or management of the food service, kitchen/dining area, 

on-premises catering and off-premises catering where food has been prepared in 

the Troy Community Center kitchen. 

22. REPORTS OF CLAIMS:  Copies of all claims, damage or accident reports 

received by the Operator, its employees and/or its agents, whether submitted to 

an insurance company or not, relating to any damage or accident that occurred 

or is alleged to have occurred shall be sent to the City. 

23. PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES:  The Operator shall be liable for any 

personal property taxes assessed against its equipment or inventory. 

24. UTILITY COSTS:  The City will pay utility costs. 

25. TERM OF AGREEMENT:  The effective date of this Agreement is May 1, 

2006 and shall terminate two (2) years from that date or on April 30, 2008 unless 

cancelled by either party upon ninety (90) days written notice sent by certified 

mail as set out in Paragraph 26. Cancellation may be without cause by either 

party. At the end of the term of this Agreement, the City may at its option renew 

this Agreement for any number of two (2) year periods under the same terms and 



 14

conditions as set out in this Agreement if approved by City Council and if agreed 

to by the Operator.   

26. NOTICE:  All written notices to be given under this Agreement shall be 

mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the other party at its address 

set forth herein or at such address as the party may provide in writing from time 

to time. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been received five days 

subsequent to mailing. 

27. SECTION HEADINGS:  All section headings contained herein are for the 

convenience of reference only and are not intended to define or limit the scope of 

any provisions of this Agreement. 

28. SEVERABILITY: If any provision of this Agreement or the application of such 

provision to any person, entity or circumstance shall be held invalid, the 

remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such provision to persons, 

entities or circumstances, other than those as to which it is held invalid, shall not 

be affected. 

29. ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This Agreement incorporates by reference the 

Request for Proposal and the Operator’s Proposal as thought fully set out herein. 

These documents constitute the entire Agreement and any changes thereto shall 

be in writing signed by both parties unless otherwise set out in this Agreement. 

 

 

 

 



 15

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Operator have executed this 

Agreement. 

EMERALD FOOD SERVICES I, L.L.C.         CITY OF TROY, 

____________________________         __________________________ 
Kim Haveraneck            By:  Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
Member      
               __________________________ 
               By: Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
Dated:__________________ 
 
 



G:/PEC Correspondence/2006/Memos/PC06M.029 

 
Date:  April 12, 2006 

To:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
From:  Peggy E. Clifton, Human Resources Director 
Re: Agenda Item – Request for Special Meeting:  Review of Applications for 

Employment for Position of City Manager 

Pursuant to §15.268(f) of the Open Meetings Act, it is requested that a Special 
Meeting be scheduled with City Council in closed session for the purpose of review of 
applications for employment for the position of City Manager.   
 
The Mercer Group is in the process of evaluating the qualifications of all candidates, 
and has requested that dates be confirmed for a special meeting with City Council 
and for conducting the formal interviews.  Tom Dority has recommended Wednesday, 
April 26, 2006 as an optimum date for the Special Meeting in that he and Susan 
Gapter-Dority will already be in this part of the country.  (They will be in Cincinnati the 
following morning for another project, and have indicated that the cost of travel could 
be shared between the two municipalities.)  A report would be sent the previous week 
with the resumes of potentially eight semi-finalists.  Ideally, between three and five 
finalists would progress to the interview phase. 
 
For final interviews, Mr. Dority is recommending Saturday, May 20th, with Friday, May 
19th reserved for other events as desired by City Council (such as tours, meeting 
administrative staff, public informal reception, etc.).  The interview process will take 
place in open session. 
 
The scheduling is restricted in light of the fact that both Susan Gapter-Dority and Tom 
Dority are scheduled for surgery on May 9th and May 23rd respectively, which prevent 
them from traveling the weeks following those dates.  However, in the event that April 
26th is not available for the Special Meeting, a possible alternate date is Thursday, 
May 4, 2006.  This latter date, however, would leave less time in which to conduct in-
depth background investigations prior to the interviews.   
 
Please advise if further information is needed. 
 
PEC/bjm 

Attachment 

campbellld
Text Box
F-07



 
 
DATE:   April 5, 2006 
 
 
 
TO:   John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Announcement of Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   1970 Larchwood 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Michael Fakoury was sited by the Building Department relating to commercial 
vehicles located outdoors on his property.  As part of that violation, he was advised that 
the Ford Dump truck, GMC van, and trailer parked on the property did not comply with 
the exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  He was given the option to 
remove the vehicle or appeal to City Council for relief of the Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, Mr. Fakoury has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests that a 
public hearing be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has been 
scheduled for your meeting of May 8, 2006. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

CampbellLD
Text Box
G-01a





 



 



 



 
 
DATE:   April 5, 2006 
 
 
 
TO:   John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Announcement of Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   5361 Livernois 
 
 
 
 
On May 5, 2003, City Council approved an appeal filed by Mr. Brian Van Tongeren of 
the restrictions regarding the outdoor storage of a commercial vehicle at the property at 
5361 Livernois.  That approval for the outdoor storage of a Chevrolet cube van was for 
a two year time frame and will expire in May of this year.   
 
In response to our correspondence on the matter, Mr. Van Tongeren has filed a new 
appeal.  The appeal requests that a public hearing be held in accordance with the 
ordinance.  A public hearing has been scheduled for your meeting of May 8, 2006. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

CampbellLD
Text Box
G-01b





 





 



CITY OF TROY 
 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON PROPOSED CITY BUDGET 

 
 
 
 
In accordance with Section 8.3 of the Charter of the City of Troy, notice is hereby given 
that the City Council will conduct a public hearing on the budget for the fiscal year 2006-
2007 at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan, on May 15, 2006 at 7:30 p.m., or 
as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit. 
 
The property tax millage rate proposed to be levied to support the proposed budget 
will be a subject of this hearing. 
 
A copy of the proposed budget will be on file in the City Clerk’s office and the City 
Public Library for inspection by the public during regular office hours for one week prior 
to the public hearing. 
 
 
 
 
 
     Tonni L. Bartholomew 
     City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Please publish on April 24, and May 1, 2006) 
 
Note: (The bold face type must be 11 point) 

CampbellLD
Text Box
G-01c



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE – FINAL JANUARY 3, 2006 
 
This Meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was held Tuesday, January 3, 
2006 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. The meeting was called to order at 7:35 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL            PRESENT: Kevin Lindsey 
   Charlene Harris-Freeman 
   Kinda Hupman 
   Bob Miller 
   Linda Rivetto 
 
  ABSENT: Paul Lin 
   Marjorie Biglin 
    
     STAFF: Loraine Campbell 
 
 
Resolution #HDSC-2006-01-001 
Moved by Hupman  
Seconded by Rivetto 
 
RESOLVED, That the absences of Lin and Biglin be excused  
Yes: 6  Lindsey, Harris-Freeman, Hupman, Miller and Rivetto 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #HDSC-2006-01-002 
Moved by Harris-Freeman  
Seconded by Hupman 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of December 21, 2005 be approved  
Yes: 6  Lindsey, Harris-Freeman, Hupman, Miller and Rivetto 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

2356 E. Long Lake de-listing 
The resolution to de-list this property is on the agenda for the January 9, 2006 
City Council meeting.. 

 
 3864 Livernois Boundary Amendment 

City Council approved the amendment to Chapter 13 revising the boundary of the 
historic district at 3864 Livernois. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



2 

 
Above-Ground Surveys of Troy Historic Districts 
Kevin Lindsey reviewed with the commission the directions and terminology 
outlined in the Manual for Historic and Architectural Surveys in Michigan. Each 
commission member was assigned a draft survey to be completed by February. 
 Lindsey  5871 Hilmore 
 Harris-Freeman 2955 Quail Run 
 Rivetto  completes Stone School 3995 W. South Blvd. 
    Emerson Church 4230 Livernois 
 Hupman  4320 John R 
 Lin   36551 Dequindre 
 Biglin   6071 Livernois 
 Campbell  Museum Bldg. At 60 W. Wattles Rd. 
 

The Troy Historic Study Committee Meeting was adjourned at 8:30 PM.  The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday, February 7, 2006 at 7:30 p.m. at the Troy Museum & 
Historic Village.  

 
 
 
                  
Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 

 
 

 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



1 

TROY HISTORIC COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL JANUARY 24, 2006 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic Commission was held Tuesday, January 24, 
2006 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. Rosemary Kornacki called the meeting to 
order at 8:05 P.M.  
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT:  Rosemary Kornacki 
   Roger Kaniarz 
   Kevin Lindsey 
   Brian Wattles 
   Vera Milz 
   Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager 
   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
  ABSENT: Remedios Solarte 
   Terry Navratil  
 
Resolution #HDC-2006-01-001 
Moved by Lindsey  
Seconded by Wattles 
 
RESOLVED, That the absences of Solarte and Navratil be approved 
Yes: 5  Kornacki, Kaniarz, Lindsey, Wattles and Milz 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #HDC-2006-01-002 
Moved by Lindsey  
Seconded by Navratil 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of October 25, 2005 be approved 
Yes: 5  Kornacki, Kaniarz, Lindsey, Wattles and Milz  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Capital Projects 
Slate Roof Repairs  
The Butcher and Baeker Construction Co. completed work on the slate roof 
including installation of new flashings, snow guards, baffles and soffits in the 
eaves and leaded copper gutters and downspouts. They also replaced rotted 
boards around the east chimney and broken slates. Twelve inches of insulation 
were blown into the attic in the main portion of the building. They will return when 
the weather breaks to insulate the attic area above the Pioneer Room. Because 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



2 

there is no access panel to this portion of the roof, they will remove a section of 
slate and roof board, blow in the insulation and replace the roof materials.  
 
Masonry Repairs to Township Hall 
Poe Restoration and Waterproofing Co. completed their work. Some touch-up 
work on the railings was required in January. 
 
Fencing 
Fence will be installed in the spring. We will now compile the specifications for 
the new fence and along Lange Street. 

 
B. Programs 

See Attendance Reports 
 
The spring calendar has been submitted to Troy Today. Staff have also outlined 
all summer programs and identified themes for the special events for 2006. 
 
The Historical Society and Museum Guild and the City will co-sponsor Music in 
the Air–2006 to provide a second year of summer concerts on the green. Six 
music groups have been identified and booked. Staff has prepared grant 
applications to the Michigan Council for the Arts to cover up to 1/3 of the 
performance fees. Community Affairs will reinvest last year’s grant receipts into 
this year’s concerts and Loraine has earmarked $1,000 of the Museum Budget 
for the concerts. She has met with City Administration to solicit $2,000 from 
business sponsors to the remaining costs for the concerts. We will request a 
donation of $2 at the door for concertgoers this season. 
 
The Historical Society and Museum Guild wish to co-sponsor with the Museum, a 
vintage car show on July 15 called Troy Museum’s Motoring Memories. The 
show will feature 100 vintage cars displayed on the green. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
A. Grants 

The self-assessment portion of the MAP will be submitted to IMLS by February 1. 
 

B. Website 
Debra Newby has been working with Judy Sutton and Community Affairs to 
design a new, more comprehensive website for the Museum. We hope to have it 
on line in the first quarter of 2006. 
 

C. New Acquisitions: 
See attached reports.  

 
D. Troy Historical Society Liaison Report 

The Letter of Agreement between the City and the Historical Society was 
approved by City Council on January 23. 



3 

Closing on 109 Lange St. is tentatively set for the end of February. The Historical 
Society has the funds required for the closing.  
The Heritage Campaign Advisory Committee has met and will suggest strategies 
for approaching potential donors.  

 
E. Reports and Communications 

a. Staff 
Museum Aide- Interpreter Rainbow Pettovello has submitted her 
resignation. Her last day of work was January 10, 2006. Loraine has 
requested that the position vacancy be posted as soon as possible. 
 

b. Commission 
Brian Wattles discussed the work of the Image and Feel Committee of the 
Troy Futures Project. 

 
The Troy Historic Commission Meeting was adjourned at 9:30 p.m.  The next regular 
meeting will be held Tuesday, March 28, 2006 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. 
 

 
                  
Rosemary Kornacki 
Chairman 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
MARCH 1, 2006 

 1

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, March 1, 2006, at the lower level conference room at City Hall.  
Angela Done called the Meeting to order at 7:03 P.M. 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan, member S. Burt, member  
   A. Done, member  T. House, member 
   P. Manetta, member D. Pietron, member  
   M. Pritzlaff, alternate J. Stewart, member  
   S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent: Fuhrman, alternate  EA 

P. Hammond, member  EA 
    
ITEM B – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF JANUARY 4, 2006 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of  February 1, 2006 be approved.  
Supported by Manetta.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM C – VISITORS, DELEGATIONS AND GENERAL PUBLIC 
Dale R. Zygnowicz and Carlene Geier, Troy residents, attended the meeting as guests. 
 
ITEM D – NEW BUSINESS 
SHAPE, Students Having Access to Parents and Educators, is looking for volunteers to 
assist students who need extra attention with testing, reports, etc.  If interested or you 
have any questions, contact Judy Lipson at 248-823-3872, or jlipson2@troy.k12.mi.us. 
 
Stewart reported that Troy Daze is considering having a handicapped ramp installed for 
the indoor stage and making the entertainment tent more accessible. 
   
Werpetinski reported the district wide sensitivity training for fourth grade Schroeder 
School students will be held 3/15/06 at the Troy School District Services Building.  
Members of our Committee have been invited to participate.  Volunteers are needed to 
staff the various stations as well as answer questions from the students. 
 
This Committee would like to extend our thanks to the City Council for the dinner and 
night out at the Appreciation Banquet. 
 
ITEM E – REGULAR BUSINESS 
Burt will attend the City Council meeting on 3/20/06 and Manetta on 4/3/06.   
 
Buchanan has reserved a table for this Committee’s use at the Senior Expo, Tuesday, 
3/21/06.  Committee members are invited to help staff the table during this event, 10:00 
a.m. to 2:00 p.m. 
 

CampbellLD
Text Box
J-01c



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
MARCH 1, 2006 

 2

Buchanan made a motion, Burt seconded, to have Done continue as Chairperson for 
another 6 months.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM F – OLD BUSINESS 
On 4/5/06, 3 persons from Lawrence Tech University, including a student and instructor 
of Freedom by Design, will attend our meeting and provide feedback as to how the 
architectural students are educated to incorporate accessibility into new construction. 
 
Burt made a motion, seconded by Buchanan, that this Committee’s long term goal will 
be working toward a boundless playground for the City of Troy.  Pritzlaff will contact the 
City Attorney to determine what role we can play in fundraising and Burt will contact the 
Boundless Playground organization for assistance.  Stewart’s involvement with Parks & 
Recreation could help with their support and assistance.   
 
This Committee’s short term goal will include sensitivity training and educating the next 
generation on accessibility issues by encouraging more youth programs and 
involvement.  Burt and House will also contact Margene Scott, with the Michigan 
Municipal League, regarding their fall conference schedule. 
 
ITEM G - INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
On 3/14/06 Jazzy Java, Supporters of Different Learners will show a DVD simulating 
situations that handicap people experience in their every day lives. 
 
ITEM H – CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Martin Howrylak, Councilman, suggested at a Council meeting that it could be 
advantageous for Troy to accept donations of corporate gifts if used to improve City 
facilities.  We as a Committee support this suggestion. 
 
ITEM I – ADJOURN 
Pietron made a motion to adjourn at 8:53 which was seconded by Burt. 
 
 
                                                                 _______________________________ 
                         Angie Done, Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
MARCH 1, 2006 

 1

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, March 1, 2006, at the lower level conference room at City Hall.  
Angela Done called the Meeting to order at 7:03 P.M. 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan, member S. Burt, member  
   A. Done, member  T. House, member 
   P. Manetta, member D. Pietron, member  
   M. Pritzlaff, alternate J. Stewart, member  
   S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent: Fuhrman, alternate  EA 

P. Hammond, member  EA 
    
ITEM B – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF JANUARY 4, 2006 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of  February 1, 2006 be approved.  
Supported by Manetta.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM C – VISITORS, DELEGATIONS AND GENERAL PUBLIC 
Dale R. Zygnowicz and Carlene Geier, Troy residents, attended the meeting as guests. 
 
ITEM D – NEW BUSINESS 
SHAPE, Students Having Access to Parents and Educators, is looking for volunteers to 
assist students who need extra attention with testing, reports, etc.  If interested or you 
have any questions, contact Judy Lipson at 248-823-3872, or jlipson2@troy.k12.mi.us. 
 
Stewart reported that Troy Daze is considering having a handicapped ramp installed for 
the indoor stage and making the entertainment tent more accessible. 
   
Werpetinski reported the district wide sensitivity training for fourth grade Schroeder 
School students will be held 3/15/06 at the Troy School District Services Building.  
Members of our Committee have been invited to participate.  Volunteers are needed to 
staff the various stations as well as answer questions from the students. 
 
This Committee would like to extend our thanks to the City Council for the dinner and 
night out at the Appreciation Banquet. 
 
ITEM E – REGULAR BUSINESS 
Burt will attend the City Council meeting on 3/20/06 and Manetta on 4/3/06.   
 
Buchanan has reserved a table for this Committee’s use at the Senior Expo, Tuesday, 
3/21/06.  Committee members are invited to help staff the table during this event, 10:00 
a.m. to 2:00 p.m. 
 

CampbellLD
Text Box
J-01d



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
MARCH 1, 2006 

 2

Buchanan made a motion, Burt seconded, to have Done continue as Chairperson for 
another 6 months.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM F – OLD BUSINESS 
On 4/5/06, 3 persons from Lawrence Tech University, including a student and instructor 
of Freedom by Design, will attend our meeting and provide feedback as to how the 
architectural students are educated to incorporate accessibility into new construction. 
 
Burt made a motion, seconded by Buchanan, that this Committee’s long term goal will 
be working toward a boundless playground for the City of Troy.  Pritzlaff will contact the 
City Attorney to determine what role we can play in fundraising and Burt will contact the 
Boundless Playground organization for assistance.  Stewart’s involvement with Parks & 
Recreation could help with their support and assistance.   
 
This Committee’s short term goal will include sensitivity training and educating the next 
generation on accessibility issues by encouraging more youth programs and 
involvement.  Burt and House will also contact Margene Scott, with the Michigan 
Municipal League, regarding their fall conference schedule. 
 
ITEM G - INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
On 3/14/06 Jazzy Java, Supporters of Different Learners will show a DVD simulating 
situations that handicap people experience in their every day lives. 
 
ITEM H – CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Martin Howrylak, Councilman, suggested at a Council meeting that it could be 
advantageous for Troy to accept donations of corporate gifts if used to improve City 
facilities.  We as a Committee support this suggestion. 
 
ITEM I – ADJOURN 
Pietron made a motion to adjourn at 8:53 which was seconded by Burt. 
 
 
                                                                 _______________________________ 
                         Angie Done, Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                  MARCH 1, 2006 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:34 A.M., on Wednesday, February 1, 2006 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Bill Nelson 
   Tom Rosewarne 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Marlene Struckman, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF FEBRUARY 1, 2006 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Nelson 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of February 1, 2006 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  BASEMENT EXPERTS, 1493 OAKCREST, for 
relief of Section R305 of the 2003 Michigan Residential Code to convert a basement to 
habitable space. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the 2003 Michigan 
Residential Code to finish a basement that includes the installation of a suspended 
ceiling with finished ceiling heights of 6’-9” and 6’-11”.  The plans also indicate a 
dropped ceiling for ductwork with a 6’-4” ceiling height.  The 2003 Michigan Residential 
Code, Section R305, requires a 7’ minimum ceiling height in finished basements and 6’-
6” for dropped ceilings under beams and ductwork. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of February 1, 2006 and was 
postponed to this meeting to allow the petitioner the opportunity to explore the 
possibility of finishing the basement with a code compliant height for the ceiling; and, 
also to have the petitioner draw up additional plans indicating the location of ductwork 
and plumbing lines. 
 
Mr. David Dubay and Mr. Steve Attar of Basement Experts were present.  They 
presented the Board members with new drawings indicating that they had added 
additional interior walls showing a ceiling height of 6’-11” everywhere except under the 
ductwork.  Mr. Dubay stated that this area would still have the 6’-4” ceiling height.  They  

 1

CampbellLD
Text Box
J-01e



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                  MARCH 1, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
have attempted to tighten up the plywood as much as possible and have been unable to 
bring this ceiling height up any farther. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked for clarification regarding the new plan the petitioners presented to the 
Board.  One of his concerns was the 1 ½’ wide area going from the beam to the 
unfinished area.  Mr. Dubay stated that the heat duct runs parallel to the beam.  Mr. 
Dubay also explained that there are supply lines and additional ductwork in the area 
where the beam drop is 3’ wide.  They have attempted to make the ceiling as tight as 
possible, but the ceiling height would still be 6’-4”.  Mr. Stimac also asked whether the 
corner that is indicated on the outside wall is a sharp corner.  Mr. Attar stated that as 
shown, it would be a 90º angle.  Mr. Stimac asked if they would be able to soften that 
corner at all.  Mr. Attar said that they would be able to change that corner to become a 
45º angle. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what was in the unfinished part of the basement.  Mr. Dubay said that 
this was the furnace room, which also contains the hot water tank and sump pump.  Mr. 
Kessler then asked how wide the basement was and the petitioner stated that it is 28 ¼’ 
wide and the finished area is about 16’.   
 
Mr. Kessler asked how much space was between the finished ceiling and the ductwork.  
Mr. Dubay said that there is ½” plywood and behind the wood is a ½” furring strip.  Mr. 
Kessler stated that he was hoping that the petitioner would have provided more detailed 
drawings that would have shown more information. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked what the ceiling height would be and Mr. Dubay said that they have 
brought it up to 6’-11” and their main area of concern was under the ductwork.  Mr. Attar 
said that they are also dealing with the air conditioning and gas lines. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he is very concerned about the final 6’-4” height as in his opinion 
it is very low.  Mr. Nelson asked what the height of the ceiling was now in this area and 
Mr. Attar said that it runs from 6’-4 ½” to 6’-5”. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked how far from each corner the wall will come out.  Mr. Attar said that 
they will change the angle to a 45º and it would be about 2” from the inside corner.   
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Kessler 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                  MARCH 1, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Basement Experts, 1493 Oakcrest, relief of Section R305 of the 2003 
Michigan Residential Code to convert a basement to habitable space, with a 6’4” ceiling 
height under the ductwork where 6’6” is required under beams and ductwork. 
 

• Angle on corner will be changed from a 90º to a 45º angle.   
• Ceiling height under beam and ductwork will be 6’-4”. 
• Ceiling height for the rest of the remodeled area will be 6’-11”. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  DAN PACK, QUICKEN LOANS, 800 TOWER, 
for relief of the Sign Ordinance to install a second 190 square foot wall sign on an 
existing building. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to install a 
second 190 square foot wall sign on an existing building.  Section 85.02.05 3a of the 
Sign Ordinance states that buildings in the R-C Zoning District are allowed one wall sign 
for each building, not to exceed 10% of the area of the front of the structure, to a 
maximum of 200 square feet in area.  Presently there is a 190 square foot wall sign on 
this building. 
 
Mr. Dean Downing from Commercial Advertising and Mr. Dan Pack of Quicken Loans 
were present.  Mr. Downing stated that the proposed sign would be identical to the 
existing sign and would afford more visibility to traffic on the I-75 corridor.  Rock 
Financial is continuing to grow and they do not feel that the small lawn sign in front of 
the building aids in their clients finding this building.  The proposed sign will be the same 
fabrication of the existing sign and will fit the building.  Both signs will not be visible at 
the same time, each sign will address a different area of traffic. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked the petitioner if they had taken a look at downsizing this sign at all.  
He believes that the monument sign along the road offers enough visibility for motorists 
looking for this site. 
 
Mr. Downing explained that although there are monument signs, he does not believe 
they offer enough visibility.  The basic configuration of the blue “Rock” followed by the 
word “Financial” makes the sign difficult to read.  Mr. Kessler stated that in his opinion 
this sign could be one-half the proposed size and would be easily visible.    Mr. Pack  

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                  MARCH 1, 2006 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
said that the smaller size does not work out.  Laurel Park Place, which is located right 
off of I-275 and is clearly visible from the highway, has a smaller sign and it is very hard 
to see.   
 
Mr. Nelson asked how the size of the sign was calculated and Mr. Stimac said that the 
petitioner had provided insufficient information for the Building Department to calculate 
the exact size of the sign based on the requirements of the Ordinance.  Mr. Stimac said 
that in looking at the application and with additional information, he felt that 50 square 
feet of the proposed sign could be trimmed off based on the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the existing sign complies with the Ordinance and was informed 
that it does.   
 
Mr. Nelson asked if this request was for 190 square feet.  Mr. Stimac said that the 
Board could approve this request with the sign as shown on the application.  Mr. Nelson 
said that he didn’t have a problem with a 150 square foot sign, but did not like the idea 
of a second 190 square foot sign. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to grant Dan Pack, Quicken Loans, 800 Tower, for relief of the Sign Ordinance 
to install a second wall sign on an existing building. 
 

• Proposed sign approved as presented on the petitioner’s application. 
• Proposed sign will not exceed 150 square feet. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  RON & ROMAN, LLC, REPRESENTING 
KRUSE & MUER RESTAURANT, 911 WILSHIRE, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect two 
(2) additional wall signs for an office development, one that is 76 square feet in area 
and the other, which would be 24 square feet in area. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to erect two 
(2) additional wall signs for an office development.  One of the proposed signs would be 
76 square feet in area on the south side of this restaurant and a second sign is 
proposed to be 24 square feet on in area on the north side of the building.  Section 
85.02.05 3a, permits one wall sign for each building, not to exceed 10% of the area of 
the front of the structure to a maximum size of 200 square feet in area.  This site 
already has been permitted one wall sign, which is 92 square feet in area. 
 

 4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                  MARCH 1, 2006 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Roman, and Mr. Tom Kruse, the owner of the restaurant were present.  Mr. Roman 
said that this restaurant is quite unique.  The existing sign on the west side of the 
building is wonderful as it provides great visibility to traffic along Crooks Road.  The 
proposed sign will be oriented with the south elevation and will face the large parking 
field that you can see from Big Beaver. Mr. Roman said that they would like to be able 
to draw attention to the restaurant, which should be opening within a matter of weeks 
and are vital for identification.   
 
Mr. Kruse stated that they are unsure of why Friday’s left this location, but they do 
believe it was because they were not visible to traffic along Big Beaver.  These signs 
will help to increase visibility to Kruse and Muer’s and will also help them to compete 
with the other restaurants in this area.  The building sits back from the property and 
visibility is very difficult.  
 
Mr. Dziurman asked how many signs would be on this building and Mr. Roman 
explained that there would be four signs.  One of the signs will be used to identify the 
carryout area so that guests would not have to go through the restaurant or hostess 
station to pick up a carryout.  These signs would be directional types of signage. 
 
Mr. Kruse stated that they are primarily interested in providing identification on the north 
side of the building.  The south side will have a separate entrance for carryout orders 
and the signs will call attention to that area. 
 
Mr. Roman stated that the two signs are exactly the same and would be 92 square feet.  
Mr. Stimac said that the Public Hearing was advertised indicating that the petitioner was 
asking to put up an additional 76 square foot sign, and if in fact, they wanted a 92 
square foot sign the Public Hearing notices would have to be re-published.  Mr. Roman 
apologized and said that they forgot to include the “fish” behind the sign in their 
calculations. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Zuazo confirmed that the larger sign would be on the south side of the building.  Mr. 
Kruse said that he did not give it a lot of thought until driving in the area at night and 
realized that the area is very dark.  Mr. Kruse said that he believes the additional 
signage will help immensely in identifying this restaurant. 
 
Motion by Kessler  
Supported by Nelson 
 
 

 5



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                  MARCH 1, 2006 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Ron & Roman, LLC, representing Kruse & Muer Restaurant, 911 
Wilshire, relief of Chapter 85 to erect two (2) additional wall signs for a restaurant, one 
that is 76 square feet in area and the other that will be 24 square feet in area.  
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this application. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:16 A.M. 
 
 
       
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 

 6



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:32 p.m. on March 14, 2006, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Mary Kerwin Lynn Drake-Batts 
Lawrence Littman Fazal Khan 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard K. Carlisle, Carlisle Wortman Associates 
Christopher Kulesza, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-03-040 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Drake-Batts and Khan are excused from attendance at 
this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mr. Miller requested the American Planning Association (APA) travel request for Ms. 
Kerwin be added to the agenda. 
 
It was the consensus of the members to approve the agenda as revised.   
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-03-041 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the February 28, 2006 and March 7, 2006 Special/Study 
Meeting minutes as published. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

Chair Strat announced that five (5) affirmative votes are required for approval and 
recommendations of action of agenda items.  He stated the petitioner has the option to 
postpone the item prior to the presentation to the Planning Commission.   

 
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 5) – Proposed 
Caswell Town Center including 14 single family homes, 74 condominium units, 
±19,000 s.f. retail space and the existing Petruzzello’s Banquet Center, Southeast 
corner of Rochester Road and South Blvd., Section 2 – B-3 (General Business), P-1 
(Vehicular Parking) and R-1D (One Family Residential) Districts 
 
Mr. Miller reported the Planning Consultant’s report dated March 14, 2006 and the 
proposed Resolution prepared by the Planning Department were distributed to the 
members prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.   
 
Richard Carlisle of Carlisle Wortman Associates, the City’s Planning Consultant, 
was present.  Mr. Carlisle provided an overall description of the proposed 
development relating to the site’s characteristics, PUD eligibility, transition to the 
single family homes to the south and east, parking and landscaping.  He addressed 
the revisions to the plan since his last review, dated February 21, 2006, and 
outlined the outstanding items that need to be addressed.  The outstanding items 
are: 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

• FEMA determination. 
• City’s Traffic Engineer review. 
• Multiple family building height. 
• City’s Parks and Recreation Department review. 
• Photometric plan review. 
• Signage. 

 
The petitioner, Brad Byarski of Michigan Home Builders, 13400 Canal Road, 
Sterling Heights, was present.  Mr. Byarski provided a PowerPoint presentation of 
the overall development and displayed renderings and visual boards.  He 
addressed the transition to single family homes to the east, the landscaped buffer 
and lot sizes of the proposed single family homes.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Don Brown of 1221 Cadmus Drive, Troy, Treasurer of Maple Forest of Troy 
Homeowners Association, was present.  Mr. Brown commended the petitioner for 
his professionalism in working with the homeowners and addressing their concerns.   
The concerns related to providing a buffer for visual privacy and adequate 
vegetation for sound absorption.  Mr. Brown said the proposed development would 
be a benefit to both the City and the Maple Forest homeowners, and the 
homeowners would like to see the project go forward.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Discussion followed on: 
• Environmentally protected area near rear yard drainage. 
• Revised parking layout. 
• Submission and review of photometric plan. 
• Setbacks of multiple family homes. 
• Signage and its spatial relationship to development. 
• Elevations and grades. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-03-042 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission has reviewed a Preliminary Plan for a 
Planned Unit Development, pursuant to article 35.60.01, as requested by Michigan 
Home Builders for Caswell Town Center Planned Unit Development (PUD 5), 
located on the south side of South Boulevard and east side of Rochester Road, 
located in Section 2, within the B-3, P-1 and R-1D zoning districts, being 18.62 
acres in size. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

RESOLVED, The proposed PUD meets the Eligibility Requirements set forth in 
Article 35.30.00 and the General Development Standards set forth in Section 
35.40.00.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Planned Unit Development 
consist of the project manual, dated October 10, 2005 and revised on February 1, 
2006, which contain narratives, reduced plans, and full size plans. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Planned Unit Development 
application consists of the project manual, dated October 10, 2005 and revised on 
February 1, 2006, which contain narratives, reduced plans, and full size plans. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City’s Planning Consultant Richard Carlisle 
of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. has prepared a memorandum dated March 14, 
2006 that identifies some issues that still need to be resolved.  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends that 
Caswell Town Center Preliminary Planned Unit Development be postponed to the 
March 28, 2006 Special/Study meeting to address issues identified by the City’s 
Planning Consultant. 
 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
It was noted that Messrs. Miller and Carlisle would not be in attendance at the 
March 28, 2006 Special/Study meeting, and that Mr. Savidant would represent City 
Management on the review of the photometric plan.  
 
There was discussion with respect to the intent of the motion and keeping the Public 
Hearing open for the March 28th meeting. 
 
Messrs. Wright and Waller agreed that the intent of the motion is to make a 
recommendation to City Council at the March 28, 2006 Special/Study meeting after 
review of the photometric plan and that the Public Hearing would be re-opened for 
public comment at that meeting.  
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:35 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:45 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 715) – Proposed Office Use of 
Existing Buildings, West side of Stephenson Hwy, North of Fourteen Mile Road, 
Section 35 – From R-C (Research Center) to O-M (Office Mid-Rise) and/or O-1 
(Office Low Rise) District 
 
Mr. Miller identified three pieces of correspondence distributed to the members prior 
to the beginning of tonight’s meeting; i.e., written request from the petitioner to 
withdraw one parcel from the rezoning request; a proposed Resolution to 
correspond to the exclusion of that parcel, and a boundary survey showing the 
withdrawn parcel.   
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning and noted that the rezoning was advertised for both O-M and O-1.  Mr. 
Miller reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the revised 
rezoning request.   
 
The petitioner, Michael Surnow of Robbins Investments LLC, 7115 Orchard Lake 
Road, West Bloomfield, was present.  Mr. Surnow said the property is needed for 
medical office use.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Motzny confirmed the rezoning request as revised does not need to be re-
advertised and the members could proceed with the request.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-03-043 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
WHEREAS, The applicant has requested that a parcel approximately 3.047 acres in 
size, described in the legal description as Lot 1 of Robbins Executive Park West, 
referred to as 466 Stephenson Highway, be withdrawn from the rezoning application, 
and 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

WHEREAS, The applicant wishes to proceed with the rezoning of the remaining 
portion of the property, described in the legal description as Lot 2 and part of Lot 3 of 
Robbins Executive Park West, referred to as 500 and 550 Stephenson Highway. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends 
to the City Council that the R-C to O-M rezoning request, located on the west side 
of Stephenson Highway, north of Fourteen Mile Road, within Section 35, being 
approximately 13 acres in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

[Mr. Kulesza exited at 8:55 p.m.] 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY 
SITE PLAN APPROVAL (SU 330) – Proposed Auto Dealership, North of Maple, West 
side of Maplelawn, Section 29, Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed auto dealership.  Mr. Savidant reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the special use and site plan as submitted with the 
condition that an alternate tree than proposed is provided within the required 
landscape greenbelt.   
 
The petitioner, Stanley Tkacz of Studio Design, 1529 S. Wayne Road, Westland, 
was present.  Mr. Tkacz said there would be no problem providing an alternate tree 
and indicated the landscaped area would be well maintained.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-03-044 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Special Use Approval and Site Plan Approval, pursuant to 
Section 28.30.05 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Infiniti and 
Hyundai Dealerships, located on the west side of Maplelawn, north of Maple, 
Section 29, within the M-1 Zoning District, be granted, subject to the following 
condition: 
 
1. Provide an alternate tree to Cercis canadensis within the required 

landscaped area. 
 
FURTHERMORE, That the Planned Auto Center be expanded to include the 
subject parcel. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT REQUEST 
(ZOTA 222) – Articles 04.00.00 and 28.25.00  Classic and Antique Auto Sales 
Facilities in the M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
Zoning Ordinance text amendment and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the Planning Commission Public Hearing draft language.   
 
Gregory Need, attorney, 39533 Woodward Avenue, Bloomfield Hills, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. Need announced the two principals of Birmingham 
Auto World were also present.  He provided a brief explanation for the request and 
indicated his clients are supportive of the text revisions presented by City 
Management.  Mr. Need asked the members for a favorable recommendation to 
City Council.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Mr. Vleck addressed Section 28.25.07 (D) of the proposed text that states antique 
or classic automobiles located on site and offered for sale must be in operable 
condition.  He suggested the elimination of the text to also allow inoperable 
automobiles on site.   
 
Mr. Need said his clients have no preference on the wording of that section because 
all their vehicles are in operable condition. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-03-045 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles IV DEFINITIONS and XXVIII M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL 
DISTRICT, pertaining to Antique or Classic Automobile Sales Agencies in the M-1 
District, be amended as printed on the Proposed Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment, Planning Commission Public Hearing Draft.  
 
Yes: Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Vleck 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck said he would prefer the deletion of Section 28.25.07 (D) because it would 
allow more flexibility to potential people who wish to service classic automobiles in 
the M-1 district.   
 
 

STREET VACATION 
 

9. STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV 134-B) – Cherry Street east of Livernois, 
approximately 173 feet abutting Lots 6 and 7, Greenough Heights Subdivision, East 
of Livernois, South of I-75, Section 27 – Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) and R-1E 
(One Family Residential) Districts (the abutting parcels) 
 
Mr. Miller reported the Planning Department received a written request to postpone 
the item to the May Regular meeting because of the death of one of the petitioners.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-03-046 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item to the May 
Regular Planning Commission meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN 
 

10. SITE PLAN REVIEW – Preserves of Timbercrest Site Condominium, 6 units/lots 
proposed, West of Fernleigh, South side of Wattles Road, Section 24, Zoned R-1C 
(One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed site condominium and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the application with the condition that a wetlands 
determination is submitted.   
 
The petitioner, Joe Maniaci of Mondrian Properties, 1111 W. Long Lake Road, Troy, 
was present.  Mr. Maniaci said the width of the lot dictated a private street to 
accommodate buildable lots.   
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment.   
 
Lou Messina of 3910 Forge, Troy, was present.  Mr. Messina voiced opposition to the 
proposed development.  He said the proposed homes would face the back yards of 
the residential homes on Forge and the proposed private road would be behind their 
back yards.  Mr. Messina voiced concern with additional traffic exiting onto Wattles 
Road.  Mr. Messina said residents on Forge have maintained the retention area 
behind their homes.   
 
Shirley Roberts of 3896 Forge, Troy, was present.  Ms. Roberts voiced her concern 
about the private road that would be behind her house.  She enjoys outside activities 
with her small grandchildren and is concerned for their safety.   
 
Michael Long of 3882 Forge, Troy, was present.  Mr. Long voiced opposition to the 
proposed development.  He said the development seems to be poorly designed and 
houses are just being jammed in.  Mr. Long addressed concern with vehicular 
headlights from the cul de sac reflecting on the residential homes on Forge.   
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Mr. Savidant confirmed that the retention area to the rear of the homes on Forge is 
owned by the State of Michigan and is approximately 100 feet in width.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-03-047 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, that the 
Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Preserves of Timbercrest Site Condominium, 
including 6 units, located west of Fernleigh on the south side of Wattles Road, Section 
24, within the R-1C zoning district be granted, subject to the following condition: 
 
1. The applicant must get a wetlands determination for the parcel as per Section 

3.43.01(9).  The Planning Department will ensure that the report is submitted for 
consideration by City Council prior to Preliminary Site Condominium Approval.  If 
the report indicates there are State-regulated wetlands on the parcel, the item 
will come back to Planning Commission for consideration. 

 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Miller explained the wetlands determination is a requirement of the site plan 
application and the Planning Department erred in accepting the application without a 
wetlands determination.  
 
Mr. Littman asked for further information on the retention area.   
 
Larry Hendrick of 3868 Forge was present.  Mr. Hendrick provided information on the 
retention basin.  He said all the subdivision water goes into the basin.  The pumping 
station shuts off with a heavy rainfall [5-year rain].  Mr. Hendrick estimated the basin 
filled up about 15 times since he’s lived there (34 years), and said the overflow water 
goes into the creek at the south end.  He said water would not go on the proposed 
development, nor does it go onto the residential properties on Forge.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the State-owned property as relates to landscaping 
and maintenance.  
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Vleck 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck would prefer a landscaped buffer between the private road and the 
residential homes on Forge.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

11. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 928) – Proposed Industrial Building Parking Lot 
Revisions, North side of Fourteen Mile, East of John R, Section 36 – Zoned M-1 
(Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed site plan and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the site plan as submitted.   
 
The petitioner, John Secco of 977 14 Mile Associates, LLC, 18530 Mack Avenue, 
Grosse Pointe, was present.  Mr. Secco said the plan would provide adequate 
parking for employees and visitors of the proposed user, Innovative Cadence, which 
is a Tier 1 automotive supplier.   
 
There was discussion on the 14 Mile Road frontage landscaping.    
 
Mr. Secco agreed to extend the landscaping along the 14 Mile Road frontage.   
 
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-03-048 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
Industrial Building Parking Lot Revisions, located on the north side of Fourteen Mile 
Road, east of John R, located in Section 36, on approximately 8.4 acres, within the 
M-1 zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the following condition: 
 
1. That the lawn area between the sidewalk and the parking lot just east of the 

west entrance be landscaped consistent with the proposed landscape plan 
for the rest of the property frontage.   

 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

12. AMERICAN PLANNING ASSOCIATION (APA) TRAVEL REQUEST 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-03-049 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission approve Ms. Kerwin’s travel request 
for the American Planning Association (APA) conference on April 22-26, 2006.     
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
There was a brief discussion on budget monies and the transfer of budget line 
items. 
 
Mr. Vleck asked Ms. Kerwin to provide a written report of knowledge gained at the 
conference.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

13. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
Chris Komasara of 5287 Windmill Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Komasara 
addressed the proposed Timbercrest Site Condominium development with respect 
to providing landscaping on State-owned property.  
 
Michael Long of 3882 Forge, Troy, addressed the proposed Timbercrest Site 
Condominium development.  He asked if Troy has any existing residential 
developments where houses are arranged front yard to back yard.  He suggested 
an alternate plan where the homes would face toward the existing condominium 
development.  Mr. Long agreed additional landscaping between the proposed 
development and residential homes on Forge would be beneficial.   
 
Larry Hendrick of 3868 Forge, Troy, addressed the proposed Timbercrest Site 
Condominium development.  He said the looks of the area near the turnaround 
would change because the developer is removing six pine trees that are 
approximately 50 years old and 20 feet tall.  Mr. Hendrick addressed a dead-end 
street versus a turnaround.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

The Planning Commission members encouraged the residents on Forge to address 
their concerns directly to the City Council.   

 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Ms. Kerwin briefly reviewed the presentation given by Environmental Specialist, Jennifer 
Lawson, at the Women’s League of Voters.  She announced that a water management 
panel is scheduled for Leadership Troy on March 22, 2006 at 7:00 p.m. at the Community 
Center.  Ms. Kerwin thanked the members for approval of her attendance at the APA 
conference.   
 
Mr. Schultz announced he is attending an Advanced BZA training session offered by the 
Michigan Association of Planning (MAP) on March 21, 2006.   
 
Mr. Vleck addressed redevelopment in Troy and said the engineering firm going into the 
former Scott Shuptrine furniture store is a great example.  He said the APA conference is a 
valuable tool for opportunity and forward thinking in the City.   
 
Chair Strat apologized if he offended anyone during the discussion of reviewing the 
photometric plan for PUD 5.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 9:48 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Final\03-14-06 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING – DRAFT March 28, 2006 
   
 

TROY DAZE COMMITTEE 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
A special meeting of the Troy Daze Committee was held Tuesday, March 28, 2006 at the 
Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:30 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Members Present: 
Cele Dilley    Kessie Kaltsounis 
Jeff Stewart Bill Hall (left at 9:35 pm) 
Mike Gonda Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski 
Marilyn Musick Bob Preston 
 
City Staff: 
Cindy Stewart Gerry Scherlinck 
Bob Matlick Jeff Biegler 
 
Festival Chair  
Tom Kaszubski 
 
Absent: 
Berj Alexandian 
Bob Berk 
 
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
Resolution #TD-2006-03-54 
 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski 
Seconded by Mike Gonda to excuse Bob Berk and Berj Alexandian 
 
RESOLVED that absent members are excused 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 
Add E1 – Public Comment 
F5 – Appointment of Festival Chairpersons 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Resolution #TD-2006-03-55 
 
Moved by Mike Gonda  
Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis to approve the February 28, 2006 minutes and the March 8, 
2006, minutes with corrections (Bob Preston instead of Bob Berk on subcommittee to review 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING – DRAFT March 28, 2006 
   
candidates for Troy Daze Committee vacancy & Troy Daze Festival Chairperson not general 
chair). 
 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the February and March meetings are approved. 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
CORRESPONDENCE:  
Committee received a thank you from Jim Cyrulewski’s family for the flowers sent when his 
mom died. 
 
 
TREASURER’S REPORT 
February 28, 2006: 
Revenue - $172,608.76.  
Change from January – corporate sponsors posted. 
 
Expenses – No new expenses. 
$144.671.39 
 
Resolution #TD-2006-03-56 
Moved by Bill Hall 
Seconded by Mike Gonda to accept the Treasurer’s Report of February 28, 2006. 
 
RESOLVED that the Treasurer’s report of February 28, 2006 is approved. 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Andrew Corey – Troy Youth Council, President of Teens Taking Action, member of the Troy 
Futures project 
 
Andrew commented that he took issue with some of the decisions the Troy Daze Committee 
made; for example, no Battle of the Bands, closing at 10 pm instead of 11 pm, won’t be 
admitted in to the Festival after 9 pm, no loud music by rides.  He felt these decisions are 
unfair to teenagers.  His peaceful solution – give Friday and Saturday to teens; and have 
Thursdays and Sundays for families and adults. 
 
Tom Kaszubski commented that he has received calls from mostly Troy Athens High teens, 
providing their input that they wouldn’t be able to get out of work on time to make the now 
shortened admittance hours of 9 pm.  Suggestion for Andrew to start a petition from the 
students. 
 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING – DRAFT March 28, 2006 
   
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Miss Troy Proposal - Proposal made by Miss Troy Chair Susan Regina, former Miss 

Troy.  Friday night at 7:30 pm in the Entertainment Tent – no charge. Categories for 
contestants include: evening gown (formal), business attire w/questions from panel of 
judges, fitness routine.  Qualifications for contestants: Must be 17–25 years old, and 
live or work in Troy.  Entry fee: $25 

 
Resolution #TD-2006-03-57 
Moved by Kessie Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Mike Gonda  
 
RESOLVED that the Miss Troy proposal as presented is approved. 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 

 MOTION CARRIED 
 
2. Parade Proposal – Suggestion for a parade route (1.3 miles) from Crooks & 

Maplelawn north to Boulan Park.  Time: 10 am Saturday.  Maplelawn could be used to 
marshal parade groups, since Maplelawn businesses are closed on Saturday.  Big 
Beaver would be closed for a very short period.  Sponsorship: looking for $15,500 to 
sponsor parade (a business has come forward to offer support for this) but we need a 
Parade Chairperson. 

 
Discussion on Parade motion: 
Would first need to contact the businesses along Maplelawn and get their approval to 
park parade participants in lots. The potential parade sponsor - won’t they agree to be 
the overall sponsor of festival? Tom Kaszubski said they have not been asked.  We 
need a parade sponsor & chairperson by next meeting at the earliest.  Mike Gonda 
suggested a subcommittee go and talk to the business.  Tom Kaszubski said that the 
business he has been talking to about sponsorship will only meet with him to discuss 
this proposal. He will go back and ask about the overall festival sponsorship 
opportunity. 

 
Resolution #TD-2006-03-58 
Moved by Kessie Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski  
 
RESOLVED to accept the parade proposal if can get a sponsor for the entire amount 
($15,500) and a chairperson to organize the parade. 
Yeas:  Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski, Bob Preston, Kessie Kaltsounis, Bill Hall  
Nays:  Cele Dilley, Mike Gonda, Jeff Stewart, Marilyn Musick 

 MOTION FAILS 
 
3. Craft Show Proposal - Cele spoke with Karen Mooradian about the possibility of 

chairing the craft show.  She stated that it is too late to go ahead with this endeavor 
this year. Perhaps issue can be revisited next year. Tom Kaszubski had a person 
approach him about submitting a proposal for the April meeting for an idea like “Art in 
the Park” fine art show. 

 
4. Entertainment Proposal -  



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING – DRAFT March 28, 2006 
   

Discussion to eliminate the Outdoor Stage due to too many competing activities.  But 
nice that  people have a variety of entertainment choices and there might be 
scheduling difficulties fitting everything in Entertainment Tent.  
 
Resolution #TD-2006-03-59 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski  
Seconded by Bill Hall 
 
RESOLVED to keep the Entertainment Tent and Outdoor Stage the same as 2005  
Yeas:  All  
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #TD-2006-03-60 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski  
Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis  
 
RESOLVED that Entertainment Chair pursue Jay Sanborn or another DJ for filling in 
entertainment on Friday and Saturday.   
Yeas:  All  
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #TD-2006-03-61 
Moved by Mike Gonda  
Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis  
 
RESOLVED that Jeff Stewart is appointed as the Entertainment Chairperson 
Yeas:  All  
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. Corporate Sponsor Update 

International Transmission – $1,000, Henry Ford Hospital – same as 2006, 
Comcast, WOW – $2500, National City – Magic Cauldron children’s tents. 
Mike Gonda will follow up with Pepsi. 

 
2. Subcommittee Reports 

a. Midway layout, parking and security look good.  After approved, will talk to 
Arnold’s when they get in town (April). 

b. Focus of the Festival - It was suggested to stay at the $7 parking for 4 days; 
Do not open the Magic Cauldron tents on Friday night & do not book more 
entertainment in the Magic Cauldron tents; Sell parking passes and ride 
bracelets at the Community Center. 

c. Hours of Operation/Finance -  Kessie Kaltsounis proposed closing parking at 10 
pm and close rides at 11 pm.  Gerry Scherlinck responded that the committee 
spent hours discussing this issue and thought the committee agreed to a 
reasonable solution – a respectable compromise between City management, 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING – DRAFT March 28, 2006 
   

the festival committee and the Troy Police Department.  Mike Gonda reiterated 
that the intent of the meeting with City Council dealt strongly with hours, and the 
committee agreed to earlier times.  Jeff Stewart agreed that everyone worked 
hard to come together for a compromise on hours and committee should not be 
willing to roll the dice and take a chance by going against professional advice. 

 
Resolution #TD-2006-03-62 
Moved by Kessie Kaltsounis  
Seconded by Bill Hall 
 
RESOLVED that the park is closed at 10 pm with rides closing at 11 pm.   
Yeas: Marilyn Musick, Kessie Kaltsounis, Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski, Bob Preston  
Nays: Cele Dilley, Mike Gonda, Jeff Stewart, Bill Hall 
MOTION FAILS 

 
 

Resolution #TD-2006-03-63 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski  
Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED that a recommendation passed on to City Council that they rethink the 
closing time, as a result of input from teens.  
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #TD-2006-03-64 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski  
Seconded by Mike Gonda  
 
RESOLVED that the Subcommittee Reports with input as noted are approved.  
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. Fee Recommendations 

a. Changes to Non-Commercial Food Vendors (ex. St. Mark Church, Highland 
Lodge), Government Agencies (ex. Post Office) and Politicians  

Inside:  $125 and Outside: $185 
b. Miss Troy – delete general admission 
c. Classic Cars - New Entrants: $15 and Returning Entrants: $10 

 
Resolution #TD-2006-03-65 
Moved by Bob Preston  
Seconded by Jeff Stewart  
 
RESOLVED that the changes to Fee Recommendations are approved 

 Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 

 MOTION CARRIED 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING – DRAFT March 28, 2006 
   
 

Issue with Parking/Dropping Off – Suggestion on parking/dropping off on Crooks Rd – 
charge all at Crooks Road entrance and make Drop off only at Northfield Parkway. 
Gerry Scherlinck wanted to go on record that this will cause conflicts even with 
advance publicity, signage, etc.  Committee wants to keep it this way.  

 
4. Code of Conduct 

Community booth policies should be Booth Policies.  Change #2 to read Children 
under  12 (not 10) years of age must be supervised at all times.  #16 No loitering in the 
park after hours.  Change at the bottom to read - Persons who violate the rules or 
code of conduct may be immediately ejected from the park. Illegal behavior will 
immediately result in action by a Troy Police officer.  Publish Troy Daze “Code of 
Conduct” in Troy Daze Festival Booklet, on signs at entrances and on paper to be 
handed out to all festivalgoers.    

 
Resolution #TD-2006-03-66 
Moved by Kessie Kaltsounis  
Seconded by Bill Hall  
RESOLVED that the rules, policies, code of conduct with changes as noted and input 
from legal counsel be accepted.  
 

 Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 

 MOTION CARRIED 
 

Jeff Biegler said the City Manager would like one memo for all the rules, hours, etc. to 
be submitted for a future City Council agenda. 
 

5. Suggestion List 
Special Children’s Day - Linda Hannan had an issue related to cancellation of the 
event due to unfavorable weather conditions.  A back up location is not feasible. 
Can we just switch date to Thursday, with Friday as the rain date?  She is worried 
about alternate location that is not handicapped accessible, amount of activities 
need to keep them entertained—too many logistical issues. Zion Christian Church 
is a good location, but would take a lot more people to entertain 500 special-needs 
kids for that length of time.  Would need to separate the group. Very worried what 
we can do with them for that length of time.  Autistic kids don’t transition easily to 
change. Outdoors is a different venue.  Need many more activities such as 
coloring, painting. A clown, and band not enough for 500 kids. No problem notifying 
classes on Wednesday if we change from Thursday to Friday. If rains on Thursday, 
would have both groups (Children and Seniors) on Friday. Seniors would be moved 
to Ethnicity Tent.   

 
Special Needs Adults – event cannot begin until 6 pm. The majority work and 
cannot get there until 6 pm.  Rearrange tables for larger dance space. Do not need 
a separate banner. 
 
All chairpersons will have a co-chair. Chairs can name their own co-chairs, but if 
they need names, call Tom Kaszubski. Chairs should write a short description of 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING – DRAFT March 28, 2006 
   

events. Letter will go out to all regarding mandatory April meeting and 
recommendations for their events. 
 
Operations -  Half of the suggestions are cost-prohibitive or unnecessary.  We have 
too many signs and they are costly and time-consuming.  Need to cut back not 
add.  Suggestions that can be done will be done per Mike Gonda. 

 
Resolution #TD-2006-03-67 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski  
 
RESOLVED that the suggestion list with changes as noted be adopted. 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

6. Recommendation of Committee Member to Fill Vacancy 
The subcommittee Contacted the 7 people from City-generated list and 5 from a 
Troy Daze list re: serving on Troy Daze committee.  Only two expressed interest. 

 
 

Resolution #TD-2006-03-68 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski  
Seconded by Marilyn Musick  
 
RESOLVED that the Committee recommends Jeff Super to fill vacancy on Troy Daze 
Board. 

 Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

7. Festival Committee Manual 
Resolution #TD-2006-03-69 
Motion by Marilyn Musick 
Seconded by Bob Preston. 

 
RESOLVED that the Festival Committee Manual item be tabled. 

 Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
MOTION TO ADJOURN 
Resolution #TD-2006-03-70 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee Meeting be adjourned at 10 pm. 
 
 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING – DRAFT March 28, 2006 
   
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED    
  
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cele Dilley, Chairperson 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 
 



campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



campbellld
Text Box
J-02c



campbellld
Text Box
J-02d



DATE:         April 3, 2006

TO:             John Lamerato, Acting City Manager
FROM:        Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:   Permits issued during the Month of March 2006

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Accessory Structure 1 $18,000.00 $271.00
Add/Alter 6 $1,099,250.00 $8,336.00

Sub Total 7 $1,117,250.00 $8,607.00

COMMERCIAL
Tenant Completion 3 $403,000.00 $3,256.00
Add/Alter 16 $2,331,780.00 $18,476.00
Repair 1 $85,000.00 $740.00

Sub Total 20 $2,819,780.00 $22,472.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 4 $741,816.00 $5,788.00
Add/Alter 23 $268,843.00 $4,306.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 2 $3,108.00 $110.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 2 $35,000.00 $431.00
Repair 2 $11,700.00 $290.00
Wreck 2 $0.00 $100.00

Sub Total 35 $1,060,467.00 $11,025.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
Add/Alter 2 $61,660.00 $724.00

Sub Total 2 $61,660.00 $724.00

MULTIPLE
Add/Alter 1 $8,268.00 $145.00

Sub Total 1 $8,268.00 $145.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 6 $495,000.00 $4,335.00

Sub Total 6 $495,000.00 $4,335.00

RELIGIOUS
Add/Alter 1 $20,000.00 $285.00

Sub Total 1 $20,000.00 $285.00

Page 1

CampbellLD
Text Box
J-02e



MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 2 $47,000.00 $540.00
Signs 42 $0.00 $4,830.00
Fences 11 $0.00 $165.00

Sub Total 55 $47,000.00 $5,535.00

TOTAL 127 $5,629,425.00 $53,128.00

PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF MARCH 2006
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 32 $320.00
Cert. of Occupancy 35 $2,046.55
Plan Review 100 $5,360.00
Microfilm 36 $388.00
Building Permits 127 $53,128.00
Electrical Permits 170 $12,319.00
Heating Permits 115 $6,875.00
Air Cond. Permits 44 $2,075.00
Refrigeration Permits 5 $210.00
Plumbing Permits 85 $8,375.00
Storm Sewer Permits 5 $127.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 7 $239.00
Sewer Taps 8 $2,000.00

TOTAL 769 $93,462.55

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF MARCH 2006
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 24 $120.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 41 $615.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 11 $11.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 4 $200.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 2 $20.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 3 $45.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 7 $70.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 5 $75.00

TOTAL 97 $1,156.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2005 2005 2006 2006

JANUARY 93 $6,617,765.00 116 $7,273,163.00

FEBRUARY 133 $8,586,755.00 94 $6,659,691.00

MARCH 143 $19,405,253.00 127 $5,629,425.00

APRIL 234 $16,039,899.00 0 $0.00

MAY 229 $8,974,377.00 0 $0.00

JUNE 207 $14,432,280.00 0 $0.00

JULY 176 $7,490,327.00 0 $0.00

AUGUST 202 $13,132,327.00 0 $0.00

SEPTEMBER 207 $11,424,698.00 0 $0.00

OCTOBER 169 $12,606,760.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 137 $9,014,642.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 91 $13,489,338.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 2021 $141,214,421.00 337 $19,562,279.00



2004 2004

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2006

12 9 4
0

10
20
30
40
50
60

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Apr 3, 2006 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF MARCH 2006Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter HERMAN/STEWART CONSTRUCTION 2800 W BIG BEAVER M-136  473,395
Commercial, Add/Alter THOMAS, SCOTT CONSTR 2800 W BIG BEAVER U-227  160,485
Commercial, Add/Alter SACHSE CONSTRUCTION 2800 W BIG BEAVER Q-111  144,900
Commercial, Add/Alter BURDG-DUNHAM ASSOC 2801 W BIG BEAVER K-248  187,000
Commercial, Add/Alter USZTAN CONSTRUCTION INC 600 STEPHENSON  487,000
Commercial, Add/Alter RUTHER CONST 1450 W LONG LAKE  400  265,000
Commercial, Add/Alter ARISTEO CONSTRUCTION 5725 DELPHI  B  240,800

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  1,958,580

Commercial, Tenant Completion COLUMBIA CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 3129 CROOKS  353,000

Commercial, Tenant CompletionTotal  353,000

Industrial, Add/Alter PERELLI, GJ COMPANY 1104 W MAPLE  160,000
Industrial, Add/Alter ALLEGRA CONSTRUCTION 977 E FOURTEEN MILE  858,000

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  1,018,000

Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter REWOLD, FRANK & SON 44197 DEQUINDRE  200,000
Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter AIM CONSTRUCTION INC 44201 DEQUINDRE GRD FL  190,000

Inst./Hosp., Add/AlterTotal  390,000

Total Valuation:  3,719,580Records  13



  
  

                                                                                     Fire Department 
 Memorandum  
                                                                            
  

 

 
 
March 30, 2006 

 
TO:    John Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:   William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT:     2004 Annual Report 

 
 
 
I am pleased to submit the Troy Fire Department’s Annual Report for 2004.  

This report documents the activities of the divisions and sections of the 
department.  

 
It is worthy to note that in 2004 there was no loss of life due to fire in Troy.  

In addition, total fire responses decreased by 10%; structure fires decreased by 
21%; and fire loss decreased by 16%.   

 
 Major accomplishments during 2004 included: 
 

• Receipt of the 2004 Life Safety Achievement Award from the Residential 
Fire Safety Institute.  

• Adoption of the 2003 International Fire Code. 
• Implementation of the “Engine Maps” computer application in 12 fire 

apparatus. This is an automated mapping application that provides mapping 
and address specific information to responding firefighters.  

• Implementation of the “Fire Personnel Availability Tracking System” in the 
department. This system tracks each volunteer firefighter’s availability for 
responding to incidents and provides a real time reporting ability.  

 
I would like to thank the City Council, you and your staff, and the other city 

departments for their continued support of the Troy Fire Department.  I would also 
like to recognize the members of the department, volunteer and career, and the 
members of the Troy Firefighters Women’s Auxiliary for their dedication and 
support. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02f



   
 

Troy Fire Department 
Mission Statement 

 
________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

To provide the highest possible level of fire protection, rescue and 
hazard mitigation to the community. 
 
This shall be accomplished with a team of professionals, both 
volunteer and career, by providing fire prevention, public education, 
emergency operations and planning. 
 
This Department realizes that the members are the Department’s 
most valuable resource and the key to its future. 
 
 
     
 
     

    
          
 
 
 
 
________________________________________________________________ 
 



  
 
 
 
 

  Troy Fire Department 
Analysis of 2004 Incident Activity 

       
_____________________________________________________________________     

 
 
During 2004 the Troy Fire Department 
responded to 1,228 calls for service.  
This represented a 10% decrease of 
incidents from 2003, which was 1,358. 
 
In fire activity, we experienced a 
decrease of 23%, a total of 181 fires, 
down from 234 in 2003.  Structure fires 
saw a decrease, down 21% from 2003, 
at 75 incidents in 2004 vs. 95 incidents 
in 2003. 
 
The majority of the decrease in structure 
fires occurred in residential structures 
(single family and apartments).  In 
residential occupancies we saw a 
decrease of 20 incidents in 2004 over 
2003. 
 
Fire loss saw a minor decrease.  In 
2003 our loss was $1,931,230.  In 2004 
our fire loss was $1,613,915.  This is a 
decrease of 16%. 
 
During 2004 the Troy Fire Department 
responded to 567 false alarms.  Most of 
those responses were to buildings with 
alarm systems that reported a fire for 
various reasons.  Of that figure, 201 
were confirmed system malfunctions.  
That total figure, 567, represents 46% of 
the department’s responses. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Included in this report are charts that 
outline the activity of the stations.  
These charts show station activity by 
runs, fires, and structure fires.  You will 
note that total station response is higher 
than the total department response.  
This is due to sending multiple stations 
to reported structure fire, and multiple 
alarm responses. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

____________________________________________________________________ 
 























 

Troy Fire Department 
Seniority List 

 
______________________________________
 
 
Station 1 
 
    Years
 
Steve Armstrong  29.04  
Richard Wiles, Jr.  29.03 
Dale Bise   29.02 
John Foster   28.04 
Dan Bise   27.03 
Dale Ballard   25.08 
Randall Kurth  23.05 
David Weaver, Jr.  23.04 
Dane Lawicki   22.08 
John Collins   17.07 
Paul Firth   17.00 
Michael Sackner  16.09 
Thomas Hoerle  14.01 
Charlie Noonan  12.01 
Jeff Gifford   10.11 
Donald Hudson  10.01 
Jason Dalbec  10.01 
John Schoenbeck    8.11 
Thomas O’Herron    7.10 
Steve Didocha    6.07 
Adam Enterkin    6.07 
Adam Kuz     6.07 
Ryan Wolf     6.07 
Thomas Kmiec    4.10 
Brian Dodoro     3.03 
Garry Lenaway    3.03 
Randy Odgers    3.03 
Richard A. Wiles    3.03 
Darren Brewster      .06 
Chris Ackerman      .03 
 
 
 
 

Station 2 
 
    Years
 
Gerald Williams  29.03 
Thomas Duncan  26.06 
Scott Noble   24.08 
James Saylor  23.08 
Tonya Perry   20.02 
Scott Stoglin   18.09 
Joel Barthlow  18.01 
John Milliron   18.04 
Brian Verbruggen  17.01 
Paul Lucas   16.10 
Thomas Berlin  16.02 
Glen Malone   15.11 
Peter Dungjen  15.04 
Steven Bauman  14.05 
Donald Douglas  13.05 
Jerry Bayliss   13.04 
Michael Carter  12.00 
Danny Daniel  10.01 
Terry Smart     8.10 
Jeff Otto     7.02 
Sam Kalef     5.07 
Christopher Steigerwald   5.07 
Michael Koehler    5.00 
Thomas Cleary    4.08 
Wade Rickard    4.08 
Aaron Boryczka    2.11 
Kirk Linton     2.11 
Daniel Inman     2.03 
Jonathan Duncan    2.02 
Drew Ginther     2.02 
     

    

________________________________________________________________________ 



 

Troy Fire Department 
Seniority List 

 
______________________________________
 
 
 
Station 3     
 
    Years
 
 
David Roberts  26.00 
Stan Godlewski  21.03 
Charles (Patrick) White 20.01 
Tim Wren   19.01 
David Balagna  17.11 
Susan Roberts  17.05 
Jeff Bieber   15.05 
Jim Haney   14.01 
Richard Riesterer  13.11 
Orville Allen   13.03 
Eric Caloia   11.11 
Donald Dougherty  10.11 
Tim Dalgleish    8.00 
Michael Rusing    8.03 
Mark McKimson    7.07 
David Basile     7.02 
Rob Bittner     6.07 
Glenn Lanctot    6.05 
Christopher Roberts    6.03 
Paul Orrico     5.04 
Sean Murphy     4.03 
Nicholas Herzek    3.03 
John Thomas    3.00 
Adam Green     2.07 
Kelley St. Cyr    2.08 
William Corsaut    2.02 
Carolyn Davis      .05 
Allan Soriano       .05 
 

 
 
Station 4    

 
Years 

 
 
Walt Verbruggen  26.08 
David Schmidlin  25.01 
Mark Flint   24.08 
Harry Hartfield  24.05 
Greg Latka   23.09 
James Davison  22.02 
Terence Chartier  20.07 
Jack Spreyer   20.01 
Anthony Pabian  17.10 
Robert Bunker  14.11 
Ronald Griffiths  11.00 
Stephen Vaillancourt 10.10 
Larry Schultz     7.08 
Daniel Jackson    6.07 
Shawn Hugg     5.07 
Brian Typinski    5.06 
James Hazen    4.03 
Reid Vandekerkhove   3.07 
Matt Arnold     2.09 
George Hawes                     1.07 
Jay Hernandez                     1.07 
Eric Baroky                           1.03 
Chris Miltimore    1.03 
Jeff Miltimore       .07 
Brian Rebits       .07 
 
 

 
 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 



 

Troy Fire Department 
Seniority List 

 
______________________________________
 
 
 
Station 5

________________________________________________________________________ 

 
    Years
 
Robert Potts   28.09 
William Barr   26.06 
Glenn Plaskon  24.03 
Robert Ziebell  23.05 
Richard Pausch  22.10 
Gary Wood   20.09 
Randy Beachum  18.06 
Jeff Denny   18.03 
Phil Thor   18.02 
Dan Thompson  17.08 
Gerald Ball   17.05 
Michael Viel   17.03 
Jay Reynolds III  16.05 
Gregory McMenamin 12.04 
Mark Merian   12.01 
Harold Kyte   12.01 
Richard Bewick  10.08 
Jason Reynolds     8.02 
Ken Grand     6.07 
Raymond Hella    6.07 
Richard W. Mattot    5.02  
John Schaufler    4.08 
Adam Sinutko    4.08 
Christopher Huck    4.04 
Dan Madden     3.07 
Ken Kiley     1.06 
Mark Vleck     1.04 
Steven McGee    1.01 
Will Wood       .08 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Station 6 
 
    Years
 
Ken Coppock  21.08 
A. M. Leavitt   20.10 
Joseph McKay  20.00 
Daryl Klinko   19.05 
Jim Kauffman  18.08 
Richard Harding  18.03 
Donald Lockard  17.04 
Paul Koehn   15.01 
Mark Colombo  14.11 
Stephen Pallotta  13.11 
Bill Petrusha   13.11 
Dan Carcone   11.11 
Steven Splan   11.06 
Peter Hullinger  11.03 
Steven Gerard    8.02 
Joseph K. LaGarde    8.02 
Charles Roberts    8.02 
Robert Shenk    8.02 
Ali Taqi     6.10 
Fred Reddig     5.07 
Karen Lawson    4.08 
Dustin Lockard    4.04 
Dennis Lundstedt    2.03 
Todd Dudzinski    2.03 
Joseph J. LaGarde    1.11 
Robert Weichert    1.06 
Thomas Schramski       .04 
Kenny Mills       .04 

 
 
 

 



FIRE FIGHTER CREDITED SERVICE BY STATIO ION AS OF 12-31-04

LESS THAN 5 YEARS 5 TO 9 YEARS 10 TO 14 YEARS 15 TO 19 YEARS 20+ YEARS
FIRE STATION 1 7 6 5 3 9
FIRE STATION 2 7 5 5 8 5
FIRE STATION 3 8 8 5 4 3
FIRE STATION 4 9 4 3 1 8
FIRE STATION 5 8 4 4 7 6
FIRE STATION 6 8 6 6 5 3

DEPT. TOTAL 47 33 28 28 34

LESS THAN 5 47
5 TO 9 YEARS 33
10 TO 14 YEARS 28
15 TO 19 YEARS 28
20+ YEARS 34

29%

19%
16%

16%

20%
LESS THAN 5
5 TO 9 YEARS
10 TO 14 YEARS
15 TO 19 YEARS
20+ YEARS



 FIRE PREVENTION DIVISION  
2004 Annual Report 

 

 
 

 
 
 

ENGINEERING 
 
 

 
 

 

 EDUCATION 
 
 
 

 
 

 
ENFORCEMENT 



FIRE PREVENTION DIVISION 
 

Overview 
 
Historically, the United States has the 
largest fire loss of any other 
industrialized nation in the world while it 
spends the most on public fire protection. 
A proactive approach to fire prevention 
principles and practices serves to 
provide for a community free from the 
destructive forces of fire. This approach 
is fulfilled through installed fire protection 
and detection systems with an adequate 
and easily accessible water supply for 
fire extinguishment should it be needed.  
 
The following is the 2004 Annual Report 
for the Fire Prevention Division as 
obtained from data logged by Division 
personnel. This report, however, does 
not reflect time spent in the 
management, planning, supervision, and 
administration of the Division, and cannot 
account for errors in data gathering, nor 
can it account for missing data due to 
program software shortfalls. 
 
Inspections 
 
During 2004, 946.88 hours were spent 
conducting 1,247 construction related 
inspections, 1,023 existing building 
inspections, and 33 miscellaneous or 
other type inspections for a total of 
2,303. 
 
Fees 
 
The Division continued its fee 
assessment for fire protection permits, 
hazardous material permits, fireworks 
permits, special event permits, and false 
fire alarm activations as required by 
ordinance. The Division accounted for 
$81,427.00 from issuing 314 fire 
protection permits and 186 fire alarm 
permits; $1,200.00 from issuing two 
hazardous materials permits; $200.00 
from issuing two fireworks permits, 
$400.00 from issuing eight craft show 
permits, $425.00 from conducting three 
overtime inspections; and $11,700.00 in 
false alarm fees for a total of $95,352.00. 
 

Fire Prevention Activities 
 
The Fire Prevention Division continued to 
perform the normal variety of fire 
prevention activities. While not all activities 
are listed, some of these activities included 
the following: 

 

 
Plan Review 
 
Except for one and two family residences, 
the Fire Prevention Division reviews 
building construction plans, tenant 
renovation plans, individual site plans, and 
residential development plats. The Division 
also has primary plan review responsibility 
for specialized fire protection systems 
such as fire alarm and extinguishing 
systems. The Division reviewed a total of 
936 plans during 2004 including building, 
site, engineering, subdivision, and water 
main plans. The Division coordinates 
regularly, and values a close working 
relationship with the Building, Planning, 
Engineering, and Water Departments. 
 
Construction Related Inspections 
 
The Fire Prevention Division's role in new 
construction includes inspection of 
construction methods as well as inspection 
and testing of fire protection systems 
including fire suppression, fire detection 
and alarm, smoke control, and related 
systems. The Division interfaces on a daily 
basis with the building department’s 
building, electrical, and mechanical 
inspectors to coordinate inspections for 
buildings under construction and 
renovation.  
 
 

01/19/05 



FIRE PREVENTION DIVISION 
 

 
 
 
 
Existing Building Inspections 
 
The Fire Prevention Division performs 
existing building and tenant inspections in 
all types of structures. This also includes 
inspection and testing of fire protection 
systems including fire suppression, fire 
alarm and detection, and related systems; 
and hazardous materials in existing 
occupancies. 

 
Violations 
 
Violation notices are issued when an 
inspection reveals fire code violations and 
safety related hazards. All violations are 
tracked until: 1) they are corrected; 2) they 
are successfully appealed through the 
appeal process; or 3) they are referred to 
the Law Department. The Division issued 
a total of 1,420 violations and cleared 
1,227 violations.  
 
Hazardous Materials &  
Firefighter Right To Know 
 
In order to minimize hazards to responding 
firefighters and to comply with Federal and 
Michigan Right-to-Know requirements, the 
Fire Prevention Division surveys and 
develops site-specific informational 
bulletins for all firefighters. These bulletins, 
known as Haz-Alerts / Pre-Incident 
Surveys (H.A.P.I.S.), contain information 
about hazardous materials and other 
unusual hazards that exist within the 
community. Working with the Local 
Emergency Planning Committee, efforts 
have been made to assist businesses in 
Troy as well as in Oakland County to 
report hazardous materials and make 
appropriate information available to fire 
fighters for purposes of pre-incident 
planning. 
 

 
 
 
 
Inspection Related Activities 

 
Division personnel perform various fire 
inspection related activities including 
preparing inspection reports and violation 
notices, researching codes and standards, 
researching hazardous materials, and 
inputting data in the computerized fire 
records management system (FRMS). In 
addition, Division personnel attend a 
variety of meetings. These include 
planning and design meetings with 
architects, engineers, owners, developers, 
and contractors regarding new 
construction and renovation projects.  
 

 
 
Public Education & Training 
 
The Fire Prevention Division conducts 
public education by providing public fire 
safety education programs to the citizens 
of the community. This activity includes: 
fire safety lectures; school programs; and 
Fire Safety House demonstrations. 2004 
marked the second year of the “Safe at 
Home” fire safety education program 
within the Troy School District. With 
cooperation and planning from key TSD 
personnel, this program is delivered within 
every Troy elementary school with 
curriculum for 1st, 3rd, and 5th grades. This 
program continues to be successful and 
will be further enhanced as needed in the 
future. A total of 254 public education 
programs were conducted in 2004 
reaching 8,719 children and 1,662 adults 
for a total of 10,381 people. The Fire 
Prevention Division also occasionally 
assists with the training of firefighters by 
conducting various training programs for 
the stations and assisting at the fire 
training academy. 
 

01/19/05 



FIRE PREVENTION DIVISION 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Administrative Activities 
 
Division personnel perform various 
administrative tasks in the fire department 
offices. These include reviewing journals 
and technical publications, and returning 
telephone calls. In addition, Division 
personnel attend a variety of meetings. 
These include Division as well as office 
staff, department officer, safety, and open 
house committee meetings; department 
training meetings; traffic committee 
meetings; Troy Daze committee meetings; 
and various professional organization 
meetings.  
 
Support Activities & Other Assigned 
Duties 
 
The Fire Prevention Division continues to 
take part in numerous other activities in 
support of the overall mission of the fire 
department, some of which include the 
following: 
 
Incident Responses & Investigations 
 
Division personnel continue to respond to 
incidents to support fire suppression 
personnel. In addition, one Division 
member is available 24 hours a day 
serving as the department duty officer in 
order to respond to and conduct fire 
investigations, investigate hazardous 
conditions, overcrowding complaints, and 
miscellaneous requests and notifications. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Training Attended 
 
In order to maintain skill proficiency, 
expertise, and job certification, personnel 
attend continuing education as necessary. 
Division personnel attend training 
programs related to such topics as code 
enforcement, plan review, fire protection 
systems, alarm systems, and hazardous 
materials.  
 
False System Alarms 
 
The Division continued tracking and 
billing for false alarm activations in all 
properties within the city and by visiting 
commercial properties, after the 
occurrence of two or more false alarms, 
to discuss maintenance requirements 
with responsible individuals. Out of 1,229 
total incidents in 2004, 567 were 
classified as “false calls.” Of these false 
calls, activated system alarms overall 
totaled 528, (496 commercial, 32 
residential) down 97 or 16% from 2003. 
Approximately 62% of these false alarms 
were attributed to 20 businesses that 
generated between 5 and 14 false 
activations. Other incidents classified as 
false calls included malicious and/or 
mischievous, carbon monoxide, central 
station error, and bomb scares.  
 
False system alarms accounted for 43% 
of total incident responses, placing an 
unnecessary burden and risk on the 
department. The “System Trouble/Test” 
and “System Impairment” entries into the 
C.A.D. system, however, continued as 
an aid to reduce the number of 
responses to false alarms. This 
potentially prevented unnecessary 
dispatching of fire stations to false alarm 
activations from known testing and 
maintenance to these systems. 
 

01/19/05 



FIRE PREVENTION DIVISION 
 

 
 
Explorer Post 911 
 
Members of the Explorer Post support 
the Division and the department by 
participating in the annual Troy Daze 
community fair and the department’s 
annual open house. Additionally, post 
members staffed and operated a booth 
at Troy’s annual Community 
Kaleidoscope and operated the Fire 
Safety House at various events in and 
around Troy. The members educated 
and informed many people in matters 
related to fire and life safety. Members 
continue to participate in the annual 
March of Dimes Walk America, 
monitoring the safety and security of 
walkers. Members continue to learn as 
well as develop professionally within the 
post.  
 

 
Accomplishments 
 
The Fire Prevention Division remains a 
staunch advocate of installed fire 
protection, usually in the form of 
automatic sprinklers, because of their 
undisputed record of providing life safety 
and property protection.1 During 2004, 
nearly one third of commercial buildings 
in Troy remain equipped with automatic 
fire sprinklers. This equates to 
approximately 65% of existing,  
 
 

                                            
1 Statistics reveal that there has never been a multiple 
loss of life from fire in occupancies where an automatic 
fire sprinkler system was installed and operational. 
Sprinkler systems are both effective and affordable. So 
much so that national building and fire prevention codes 
make allowances to site development, construction 
methods and occupancy practices where fire protection 
is installed. 
 

 
 
 
 
commercial / industrial floor space 
protected by automatic fire sprinklers. 
 
The Division continued it’s Fire 
Inspection Resource Allocation Model 
method for identifying and completing 
existing building inspections based upon 
occupancy type.  
 
The Fire Prevention Division added a 
part-time clerk typist to its staff to assist 
with data entry and clerical functions.  
Over the Christmas holidays, the Division 
participated with Wayne State 
University’s Physician Assistant Studies 
Program and donated 12 smoke 
detectors to needy families of a Detroit 
elementary school. The Division also 
participated with the Troy People 
Concerned charity organization by 
delivering food baskets and installing 
three smoke detectors in homes of 
needy families in Troy. 

01/19/05 



Troy Fire Department 
Fire Investigation/Juvenile Fire Setters 

______________________________________ 
 

 
Fire Investigation 
 
Both the number of structure fires 
and the number of fires requiring the 
investigative unit were down from 
2003.  But overall, the percentage of 
fires being investigated by the unit 
stayed at 22% or 40 investigations.  
These 40 investigations consumed 
429 man-hours. Of the 40 fires 
investigated, 11 were juvenile 
related.  The fires caused  by 
juveniles fell into three groups:  
playing with matches, fireworks, and 
arson.   
 
Six of the fire investigations were 
found to be arsons.  The most 
common single cause of accidental 
fires we had in 2004 was candle 
related. 
 
The Fire Investigation unit consists 
of one Assistant Fire Chief, five Fire 
Lieutenants, and one Police 
Sergeant.  In 2004, the members of 
the unit attended over 174 hours of 
fire investigative training.  Members 
of the investigation unit also served 
on three different boards of directors 
for fire investigation organizations. 
 
They published articles related to fire 
investigation and have taught at 
numerous seminars and classes on 
fire investigation.  The unit also  
 
 

 
hosted the first Courtroom Testimony 
Class to be offered to Fire 
Investigators. 
 
Our arson-to-structure-fire ratio is 
3% in Troy.  This is far below the 
national average of over 13%.  But 
both nationally and in Troy, juveniles 
accounted for 50% of these arsons.  
According to the FBI 2003 statistics, 
only 17% of the arson offenses were 
solved.  In Troy last year, we cleared 
50% of our arson offenses. 
 
Juvenile Fire Setters 
 
Fires which are started by juveniles 
are not all determined as incendiary 
or arson fires.  Fires classified as 
children playing with matches, 
lighters or fire play are handled 
internally.  There are several times, 
however, when the juvenile fire 
setters need more specialized 
intervention at which time we refer 
then to the Straight Talk Program 
that is sponsored by the U of M Burn 
Center.  In 2004 we referred 8 
juveniles to this program and one 
juvenile was admitted to the burn 
unit at Detroit receiving Hospital.  
The goal of these programs is to 
raise the awareness of the 
individuals as to what can happen 
and change the dangerous behavior 
that they have demonstrated. 
 
 

________________________________________________________________



 
 

Troy Fire Department 
Training Section Report 

_______________________________________________________
 
 
The training section of the Troy Fire 
Department is responsible for the 
ongoing training of our firefighters, 
new recruit training (in cooperation 
with the Oakland Fire Training 
Institute), training new Police Service 
Aids, and continuing education for 
the Police Service Aids. The training 
division staff is responsible for 
providing subject content, equip-
ment, and record keeping for all 
training activities. The training 
division is also responsible for 
updating the fire dispatch portion of 
Computer Aided Dispatch System.  
 
The continued success of our 
firefighting training is due to the 
firefighters’ commitment to training 
and the efforts of the station training 
officers.  Each year every Troy 
firefighter is required to attend a 
minimum of sixty hours of instruction. 
In 2004, Troy firefighters attended a 
total of 19,609 hours of instruction 
covering more than seventy different 
subject matters relating to fire 
suppression, investigation  and pre-
vention. The total number of training 
hours is a slight increase over the 
2003 number of hours.  
 
One member of each fire station 
serves as that station’s training 
officer. The station training officer 

(with the support of training division 
staff) is responsible for providing 
training that is pertinent, challenging, 
and up to date with constantly 
changing fire suppression tactics and 
technology.    
  
As in past years, the Troy Fire 
Department along with the Oakland 
Fire Training Institute presented the 
Firefighter I & II Academy.  This year 
we held classes on Monday and 
Thursday evenings. There were also 
several Saturday all day sessions.  
The new academy started in 
October, 2004, and will end in April, 
2005.  We have 6 students enrolled 
in this year’s academy. During the 
six months of the academy, the 
students each receive about 300 
hours of instruction.  One member 
attended a Firefighter I & II Academy 
presented by the Orion Township 
Fire Department.  The training 
division provided instructional 
assistance to this Academy. 
 
In 2004 one new Police Service Aid 
was given forty hours of training on 
fire dispatch. In addition, forty hours 
of continuing education training on 
fire dispatch were provided to 
existing Police Service Aids. 
 

 
 

 

________________________________________________________________ 



In 2004 the Department continued 
the process of training its members 
on Rapid Intervention Teams.  This 
prepares Firefighters to rescue fellow 
Firefighters in the event that they 
become lost or trapped in a structure  
fire. 
 
The Fire Department was fortunate 
to have two houses that were slated 
for demolition donated for training.  
These houses were used for live fire, 
rescue and Rapid Intervention Team 
training. 
 
In February, two presentations were 
offered on nutrition and physical 
fitness for Firefighters.  These were 
classroom sessions presented by a 
Certified Physical Fitness Trainer.  
Heart attacks and other 
cardiovascular events account for 
approximately forty per cent of the 
Firefighter deaths in the United 
States each year.  Muscular strains 
and sprains account for 
approximately forty-seven per cent of 
the Firefighter on-duty injuries in this 
country on an annual basis.  These 
sessions addressed what our 
members need to do in terms of 
exercise and nutrition to help prevent 
one of these events from happening 
to them.  These sessions were 
attended by over one hundred and 
twenty of the department members. 
 
In the spring, four of the stations had 
their members participate in live fire 
flashover training at the CREST site 
at the Oakland Community College 
Auburn Hills Campus.  Being caught 
in a flashover in a structure fire has 
been one of the leading causes of 
on-scene Firefighter fatalities in the 
United States for the past several 
 

years.  This training has Firefighters 
actually experience the evolution of a 
flashover in a safely controlled 
environment and teaches them how 
to recognize this phenomenon and 
how to avoid or escape this type of 
situation. 
 
In the summer of this year an 
ongoing series of trainings were 
introduced and are being delivered to 
the stations.  These are called five 
minute trainings.  The intent is that 
on the training nights at the stations, 
five minutes are taken at the 
beginning of the session to present 
and discuss the topic of the five 
minute training.  With some relevant 
and timely exceptions, the topics 
presented in these trainings focus on 
some element of safety as it relates 
to firefighting.  The goal is accident 
and injury prevention.  New five 
minute trainings are being sent to the 
stations on a bi-weekly and 
frequently weekly basis. 
 
In September, one station took 
advantage of the excellent facilities 
at the CREST Center by conducting 
search and rescue drills using 
buildings in the simulated city at that 
site. 
 
Also, in August, training sessions 
were held for all stations at our 
Taining Center on proper 
suppression techniques for 
magnesium fires.  These were 
classroom and hands-on, live fire 
training sessions with actual 
magnesium fires.  Magnesium and 
other combustible metals are 
becoming more and more prevalent 
in automobile and truck components.   
 

________________________________________________________________ 



 
This was uniquely valuable training 
because fighting fires in which these 
metals are involved is much more 
difficult than fighting fires involving 
ordinary combustible materials. 
 
With the introduction of the Fire 
Department Intranet site, the delivery 
of training materials to the stations 
went through a significant 
evolutionary step in 2004.  All texts, 
lesson plans, PowerPoint presenta-
tions and videos that are in our 
training library are continuously 
available to the stations by 
accessing this site.  All of these 
materials can be viewed anytime 
including viewing videos, which can, 
are streamed through this site.  All of 
the stations are set up so that via the 
station computers the PowerPoint 
presentations and videos can be 
shown in the station classrooms.  
The five minute trainings (described 
above) which were previously being 
e-mailed to the stations are now 
posted on this site. 
 
Members of the department also 
participated with outside agencies in 
joint training sessions which covered 
a wide variety of topics including 
vehicle extrication and advanced 
vehicle stabilization, hazardous 
material training, fire officer training, 
live fire training, instructor develop-
ment, fire prevention training and 
public education training. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                                                         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_________________________________________
 

_______________________ 



 
 

 

Troy Fire Department 
Apparatus Section 

_______________________________________________________
 
 
 
Fire Department owns, operates and 
maintains a fleet of 27 vehicles, 1 
trailer mounted air compressor, an 
SRU trailer, a light trailer, and a Fire 
Safety House trailer.  The fleet 
includes the following: 
 
 
9 Pumpers 
1 Reserve Pumper 
1 Training Aerial/Pumper 
3 Aerial Platforms 
3 65’ Aerial/Pumpers 
3 Special Response Vehicles 

 (1 owned by Oakland County) 
1 Trailer Mounted Air 

Compressor 
1 Vehicle Mounted Air 

Compressor 
1 Grass Fire Unit 
1 SRU Trailer 
1 Fire Safety House Trailer  
1 Light Trailer 
3 Utility Vehicles 
1 Mobile Command Vehicle  
1  Antique Pumper 
 
During 2004, the Troy Fire 
Department received a new 
Hazardous Materials vehicle from 
Oakland County.  This vehicle is 
used for the Oakland County “East”  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
response team.  It will respond to 
incidents in Troy, as well as when 
called upon for incidents in the 
county. 
 
During 2004, the department also 
developed specifications and 
solicited bids for the replacement of 
Engine 4-2.  4-1 is a 1989 Darley 
pumper. 
 
One of the goals of the Troy Fire 
Department is to replace pumpers 
when they are between 15 to 18 
years old, and ladder trucks when 
they are between 20 and 25 years 
old.  Presently the average age of 
front line fire apparatus is 9 years 
old. 
 
Maintenance on our apparatus is a 
high priority.  Every piece of 
apparatus must be ready to run at 
full capacity, for many hours when 
called upon.  Our apparatus have 
extensive systems built into them, 
such as pumping systems, foam 
systems, communications systems, 
including computers, electrical 
systems, both 12 volt and 110 volt, 
and other complex components 
needed to perform their functions. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
 



 
 
 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
Every piece of apparatus receives 
two complete services and a 
complete checkover while at the 
Motor Pool facility.  The Motor Pool 
provides other services, such as 
brake system repairs, suspension 
repairs, and tire replacement. 
 
Below are some brief statistics 
concerning the Troy Fire Department 
apparatus capabilities: 
 
Pumping Capacity – 
 22,500 gallons per minute 
 
Water Carried – 
 10,700 gallons 
 
Truck Mounted Deluge Guns – 
 11,000 gallons per minute 
 
Elevated Master Streams – 
 6,000 gallons per minute 
 
Elevated Ladders –  480 feet 
 
Ground Ladders – 965 feet 
 
5” Supply Line – 6,900 feet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 



 
 

Troy Fire Department 
Special Response Unit 

 
________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
The Special Response Unit is a 
multi-jurisdictional team consisting of 
firefighters, police officers, and public 
safety officers from Troy, Clawson, 
Bloomfield Hills, Franklin-Bingham, 
Berkley, Beverly Hills, Oak Park, and 
Huntington Woods. These members 
are trained and equipped to manage 
the following types of incidents: 
 
1. Hazardous material incidents 
including leaks, spills, and reactions 
of chemicals, which may be hazard-
ous due to toxicity, radioactivity, 
corrosiveness, or flammability. 
2. Technical rescue situations 
such as high angle and confined 
space rescue. 
3. Fires where large quantities of 
foam are required such as 
flammable liquid fires or aircraft 
accidents. 
4. Weapons of Mass Destruction 
(CBRNE-chemical, biological, radio-
logical, nuclear and explosive) 
 
The unit, established in 1980, is a 
member of the RRTN (Regional  
 
 

 
 
Response Team Network) estab-
lished by the Michigan State Police 
to deal with hazardous materials and 
terrorism incidents within the state. 
The role of the unit is to act as a 
resource for the Incident 
Commander (IC) and to provide 
technical expertise and specialized 
equipment as required.  Unit 
members are trained to the 
Hazardous Materials Technician 
level and a number of members 
have completed advanced training at 
specialized programs across the 
country. 
 
The unit operates with three vehicles: 
SR-1, a 1996 Darley with custom cab 
and body which functions as a 
communication center, research 
center, and carries monitoring equip-
ment, personal protective equipment, 
and hazardous materials abatement 
equipment; SR-2, a 2003 Pierce with 
custom cab and body that carries 
decontamination, technical rescue and 
other equipment; and SR-3, a 1986 
GMC/Marion Haz-mat, carries foam 
and associated equipment.  
 

 
 
 
________________________________________________________________ 



________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
During 2004, the unit responded to 
four hazardous material incidents 
within the city.  The hazardous 
material incidents involved chemical 
spills, and an ammonia and chlorine 
gas leak.  In addition, Unit members 
assisted in threat assessment 
activities and standbys during the 
Woodward Dream Cruise, Ryder 

Cup, Presidential visits, and other 
events. 
 
SRU members held sessions totaling 
1100 hours of in-house and outside 
training in 2004. Several members 
attended specialized Weapons of 
Mass Destruction training sponsored 
by the U.S. Dept. of Justice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
________________________________________________________________ 



Board of Review

Report

2006

CITY of TROY

Assessment Roll

&

campbellld
Text Box
J-02g



 

City of Troy

2006 Board of Review:

2006 ASSESSMENT ROLL

ANNUAL REPORT

Board of Review

James Hatch, Chairman

Submitted by:   Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor

Frank Howrylak
Eileen Turner



 i

April  3, 2006 
 
TO: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor 
 
 
RE: 2006 Assessment Roll Report and Board of Review Minutes 
 
   I am pleased to present to you the 2006 Assessment Roll Report for the City of 
Troy.  This roll is the product of a full year’s effort by the entire Assessing 
Department staff.  Without their assistance and concerted aid, this roll would 
surely suffer in accuracy and completeness.  We are most appreciative of the 
efforts they expend every year in the service of the community. 
   The 2006 Assessment Roll is summarized as follows: 
  

Total  Total Residential Commercial Industrial Personal 
Assessed Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable 

Value Value Value Value Value Value 
            
6,608,804,750 5,435,035,442 3,076,070,702 ,1,376,175,120 502,914,670 479,874,950 

 

   The Assessed Value increase for 2006 is $ 82,730,420 or a 1.27% increase 
over 2005.  This is the 26th highest dollar value increase in the City’s history, and 
it 2nd lowest percentage increase ever.  The Taxable Value increase is 
$170,683,892, an increase of 3.24%.   
   The following chart represents a 5-year history of Assessed and Taxable 
Values: 
 

Year Assessed Increase % Taxable Increase % 
  Value     Value     

              
2006 6,608,804,750 82,730,420 1.27 5,435,035,442 170,683,892 3.24
2005 6,526,074,330 149,138,717 2.98 5,264,351,550 169,593,327 3.33
2004 6,337,222,973 149,138,717 2.41 5,094,758,223 116,494,786 2.34
2003 6,188,084,256 232,386,858 3.90 4,978,263,437 116,622,789 2.40
2002 5,955,697,398 303,133,456 5.36 4,861,640,648 175,389,706 3.74

 
 
 



 ii

   The Consumer Price Index in Michigan for 2006 Taxable Values was set at 
3.30%.  Our total Taxable Value has increased slightly below this number.   
   It is important to take notice of the difference in Assessed and Taxable Values.  
Since the passage of Proposal “A”, the ratio of Taxable Value to Market Value 
has been dropping steadily.  The statute providing the limitation on the increase 
in Taxable Value to inflation (or 5%, whichever is less), plus new construction, 
had been dramatically eroding the tax base of the City. 
   This is the second year where the increase in Assessed Value is actually less 
than the increase in Taxable Value.  These are the only two (2) times that this 
has happened since the passage of Proposal A, in 1994.    
   Last year the chart was expanded to show the ratio of Taxable Value to Market 
Value, minus Personal Property.  Historically, Personal Property has the same 
assessed and taxable value.  Therefore, in order to achieve a more accurate 
reflection of the erosion of the tax base, the Personal Property totals need to be 
removed. 
   As can been seen in the following chart, the 2006 Taxable Value including 
Personal Property, is at 41.12 % of Market Value.  In 2005 this percentage was 
at 40.33% of Market Value.  
   By removing the Personal Property totals from the calculation, the truer 
percentage of Taxable Value to Market Value is 40.42% for 2006, as compared 
with 39.53% for 2005. 
   The following chart details the ratio of Taxable Value to Market Value (2 times 
the Assessed Value) with and without Personal Property, since the passage of 
Proposal “A”. 

Ratio of Taxable Value to Market Value since 1994 

Year Assessed Value Taxable Value Ratio All Personal 
Property 

Ratio No 
Personal 

2006 6,608,804,750  5,435,035,442 41.12  479,874,950  40.42  
2005 6,525,074,330 5,264,351,550 40.33  503,497,670 39.53  
2004 6,337,222,973 5,094,758,223 40.20  536,093,423 39.34  
2003 6,188,084,256 4,978,263,437 40.22  584,236,696 39.21  
2002 5,955,697,398 4,861,640,648 40.82  619,964,538 39.75  
2001 5,652,563,942 4,686,250,942 41.45  649,562,212 40.34  
2000 5,218,597,300 4,373,072,080 41.90  643,070,690 40.76  
1999 4,696,926,183 4,183,560,453 44.54  666,496,353 43.63  
1998 4,284,960,814 4,005,628,276 46.74  626,129,990 46.18  
1997 3,954,663,960 3,775,248,837 47.73  579,417,710 47.34  
1996 3,672,996,870 3,573,652,298 48.65  522,531,950 48.42  
1995 3,463,173,910 3,425,410,880 49.45  507,025,520 49.36  
1994 3,308,095,110 3,308,095,110 50.00  453,375,110 50.00   

 
 



 iii

   The Personal Property Roll for 2006 is $ 479,874,492, a decrease of 
$23,622,720, or 4.69%.  This represents the 12th highest dollar value Personal 
Property Roll in the history of the City of Troy.   
   As a dollar value decrease, it is the 6th largest decrease in value since 1976 
(when inventory was made exempt). 
   A decreasing Personal Property Roll is trending as an ongoing phenomenon.  
Five of the last six years have shown a decrease in the Personal Property totals 
for the City of Troy.   
   This decrease is a result of two separate factors.   
   The first contributing factor is the new Multiplier Tables adopted by the State of 
Michigan in 2000.  These tables depreciate Personal Property at a vastly 
accelerated rate from previous tables.  This trend will continue to erode the tax 
base of the City for many years to come.   
   The Personal Property Roll actually had a $88,469,500 increase in value due to 
new purchases and new companies in the City.  However, this was offset by a 
$108,962,250 loss in value from the changes in depreciation schedules, and the 
second factor, vacancies in the commercial and industrial rental market. 
      The following chart illustrates the 5-year Personal Property Roll history. 
 
 

5 Year Personal Property History 
Year Assessed/Taxable Value Change % +,- 
        
2006 479,874,950 (23,622,720) (4.69) 
2005 503,497,670 (32,595,753) (6.08) 
2004 536,093,423 (48,143,273) (8.24) 
2003 584,236,696 (35,727,842) (5.76) 
2002 619,964,538 (29,597,674 (4.56) 

 



 iv

 
   The Industrial Facilities Tax Abatement Roll shows a decrease of $7,259,900, 
or –22.10%.    
   There are normal fluctuations expected in an IFT roll due to depreciation, new 
equipment purchases, and the expiration of abatements.  
     The chart below reflects a 5 year history of the tax abatement roll. 
 

5 Year Industrial Facilities Tax Abatement History 
Year Assessed/Taxable Value Change % +,- 
        
2006 25,483,720 (7,259,900) (22.10) 
2005 32,843,620 (509,640) (1.53) 
2004 33,353,260  3,949,450  13.43  
2003 29,403,810  5,990,800  25.59  
2002 23,413,010  7,074,140  43.30  

 



 v

    
   The total 2006 Downtown Development Authority Roll is at $664,121,560, a     
0.34% decrease from the 2005 Roll.  Real Property is up 1.35% or $7,191,180.  
The Personal Property portion has decreased 5.99% or $8,000,420. 
   Subsequently, the captured amount of the DDA is now at $234,843,030, a 
0.30% decrease from 2005.  In dollars, the captured portion of the DDA has 
decreased $809,240.     
 
  The following chart details the history of the DDA since its inception. 

DDA History and Capture Changes 
Year TOTAL DDA Real Personal Capture Capture %+,- 
2006 664,121,560 538,571,100 125,550,460 234,843,030 (0.34) 
2005 664,930,800 531,379,920 133,550,880 235,652,270 3.74 
2004 656,443,260 522,118,430 134,324,830 227,164,730 (12.06) 
2003 687,610,440 524,793,130 162,817,310 258,331,910 (4.68) 
2002 700,292,970 520,281,770 180,011,200 271,014,440 5.05 
2001 687,261,110 493,426,640 193,834,470 257,982,580 3.91 
2000 677,550,840 469,734,570 207,816,270 248,272,310 10.60 
1999 653,782,621 432,998,790 220,783,831 224,504,091 9.60 
1998 634,117,140 430,125,100 203,992,040 204,838,610 33.44 
1997 582,784,390 391,782,920 191,001,470 153,505,860 82.80 
1996 513,251,790 366,197,830 147,053,960 83,973,260 55.38 
1995 483,321,290 334,906,240 147,415,050 53,042,760 152.49 
1994 450,682,090 338,797,800 111,886,290 21,403,560  
1993 429,278,530 342,342,400 86,936,130 0  

 
 



 vi

 
   The Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Roll has had another large increase 
this year.  Most of the condominiums are now on the roll, in various stages of 
completion.  Some additional Commercial space was filled, resulting in a 
Personal Property increase of $2,909,970.  The base value for the roll is 
$5,421,830 (2000).  The total value of the roll for 2006 is $62,560,380, of which 
$55,397,480 is Real Property, and $7,162,900 is Personal Property.  This 
equates to a captured Taxable Value of $57,304,708.  And this is an increase of 
$5,600,000 in captured Taxable Value in one year, a 10.83% increase. 
  The following chart illustrates the brief history of the Brownfield Redevelopment 
Authority. 

BRA History and Capture Changes 
Year Total BRA Real Personal    Capture Capture %+,- 
2006 62,560,380        55,397,480        7,162,900 57,304,708 10.83 
2005 56,912,680 52,659,750 4,252,930 51,704,708 19.68  
2004 48,623,370 43,966,490 4,656,880 43,201,540 40.36  
2003 36,200,760 31,045,190 5,155,570 30,778,930 63.57  
2002 24,239,170 19,359,200 4,879,970 18,817,340 483.12  
2001 9,316,800 9,316,800 0 3,894,970 71.84 
2000 5,421,830 5,421,830 0 0   

   
   This is the 3rd active year for the Smart Zone (SZ) in Troy.  This is the 
development occurring at the old Troy Airport site.   
   The initial base value for the area is $14,447,380.  The 2006 Taxable Value is 
$23,405,930, which equates to a captured Taxable Value of $8,958,550.  The 
Real Property component is $16,888,080, and the Personal Property component 
is $6,517,850.  There is an 11.50 % increase in Captured Taxable Value.   

SmartZone Totals 
Year     TOTAL SZ Real Personal    Capture Capture %+,- 
2006 23,405,930 16,888,080 6,517,850 8,958,550 11.50  
2005 22,482,220 16,372,300 6,109,920 8,034,840 48.22  
2004 19,867,910 15,089,770 4,778,140 5,420,530   
 



 vii

 
   For the 2006 Assessment Year there are 23,297 residential improved parcels 
in the City of Troy (excluding condominiums).  They have an average Assessed 
Value of $152,430, and an average Market Value of $304,860.  The average 
Taxable Value for these parcels is $121,749. 
   There are currently 2,447 condominium units in the City of Troy.  They have an 
average Assessed Value of $102,731 and an average Market Value of $205,462.  
The average Taxable Value of these parcels is $91,076. 
   Combining Condominiums and Residential property yields a total improved 
Residential parcel count of 25,744.  The average Residential Assessed Value is 
then $147,706, with an average Market Value of $295,412 and an average 
Residential Taxable Value of $123,636 for 2006. 
   There were 922 residential sales in the 2005 calendar year.  The total sales 
price for these parcels was $306,174,507, for an average selling price of  
$332,076.  The lowest recorded residential sale was $94,000 and the highest 
recorded residential sale was $1,100,000.    
   There were also 322 sales of condominiums in 2005.  They had a total selling 
price of $73,072,454, for an average sale price of $226,933.  The lowest 
recorded condominium sale was $105,000 and the highest recorded 
condominium sale was $465,947.    
   There were 2,607 deeds processed by the Clerical staff in the Assessing 
Department.  The vast majority of these lead to the filing of a Property Transfer 
Affidavit that is processed by this department.  In addition, we handle 
approximately the same amount of Principal Residence Exemption  Affidavits 
annually. 
 



 viii

 
    There are currently 1,925 Commercial or Industrial zoned parcels in the City of 
Troy.  These parcels encompass 6,815 businesses that file Personal Property 
returns in the City.  The Personal Property returns are mailed to the businesses 
at the end of the calendar year.  The filing deadline is February 20th, of any given 
year.  All of these returns are processed before the last scheduled session of the 
Board of Review. 
   Additionally, I have added a Summary Sheet of the Assessment Roll for 2006.  
Much of the information in this report is summarized in this “Quick Facts” sheet.  
It also contains the Top 20 Taxpayers in the City for 2006. 
   Finally, the minutes of the Board of Review close out this report.  I hope you 
will appreciate, as I do, the valuable work performed by the staff of the Assessing 
Department, on behalf of the citizens of the City of Troy.  We look forward to 
serving them in the future and we thank you for the opportunity to assist you in 
serving the citizens of the City.  
  I am available to answer any questions you may have. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by, 
 
 
Leger A. (Nino) Licari 
City Assessor   



Type Count Assessed Value Taxable Value
Commercial Real 949 1,698,562,740 1,376,175,120
Industrial Real 976 590,798,830 502,914,670
Residential Real 27,014 3,839,568,230 3,076,070,702

Total Real 28,939 6,128,929,800 4,955,160,492

Commercial Personal 5,328 277,436,280 277,436,280
Industrial Personal 1,467 160,326,470 160,326,470
Utility Personal 20 42,112,200 42,112,200
Deletes 532
Total Personal 7,347 479,874,950 479,874,950
Total of Roll 36,286 6,608,804,750 5,435,035,442

Assessed Value Percent Change Taxable Value Percent Change
% %

Residential (all) 4.91 Residential (all) 6.33
     Residential 4.86     Residential 5.96
     Condo 5.72     Condo 11.25
Commercial (3.40) Commercial 0.45
Industrial (2.28) Industrial 0.99
Personal (4.69) Personal (4.69)

Overall A/V 1.27 3.24

% %
Commercial 25.32 Real 91.17
Industrial 9.25 Personal 8.83
Residential 56.60
Personal 8.83

 
Total 100.00 Total 100.00

949 Commercial 5,328
Commercial Vacant 122
Commercial Improved 749
Apartment Vacant 3
Apartment Improved 64
Utility 11

976 Industrial 1,467
Industrial Vacant 106
Industrial Improved 870

27,014 Utility 20
Residential Vacant 692
Residential Improved 23,297
Condo Vacant 58 Deletes 532
Condo Improved 2,447
Exempt 520
Total Real 28,939 Total Personal 7,347

Parcel Count (36,286) Breakdown

2006 Assessment Roll Summary

Percent of Total Roll (Taxable Value)

Percent Changes by Class

Industrial

Residential

Personal PropertyReal Property
Commercial



2006 Assessment Roll Summary

Sale Market Assessed Taxable 
Price Value Value Value

Residential 332,076 304,860 152,430 121,749
922 Sales @ $306,174,507  

Condo 226,933 205,462 102,731 91,076
322 Sales @ $73,072,454

Total Market Value (including Personal Property) 13,217,609,500
Total Taxable Value (including Personal Property) 5,435,035,442

Ratio of T/V to M/V (including Personal Property) % 41.12

Total Market Value (No Personal Property) 12,257,859,600
Total Taxable Value (No Personal Property) 4,955,160,492

Ratio of T/V to M/V (No Personal Property) % 40.42

By Type (No Personal Property) Market Taxable
Value Value Ratio

Commercial 3,397,125,480 1,376,175,120 40.51
Industrial 1,181,597,660 502,914,670 42.56
Residential 7,679,136,460 3,076,070,702 40.06

Base 06 T/V 06 Capture
Real 342,342,400 538,571,100 196,228,700
Personal 86,936,130 125,550,460 38,614,330

Total 429,278,530 664,121,560 234,843,030

Base 06 T/V 06 Capture
Real 5,421,830 55,397,480 50,481,295
Personal 0 7,162,900 6,823,413

Total 5,421,830 62,560,380 57,304,708

Base 06 T/V 06 Capture
Real 13,016,380 16,888,080 3,871,700
Personal 1,431,000 6,517,850 5,086,850

Total 14,447,380 23,405,930 8,958,550

Troy Smart Zone (SZ) Statistics

Averages

Ratio of Taxable Value to Market Value

DDA Statistics

Troy Brownfield (TBRA) Statistics



2006 Assessment Roll Summary

School Code School P.R.E July P.R.E Dec Total P.R.E Non-H July Non-H Dec Total Non-H

260 TROY 27.0549 8.7279 35.7738 33.0924 15.0652 48.1576
010 Avondale 26.4210 8.3938 34.8148 34.8442 16.8171 51.6613
030 Birmingham 29.7292 8.4094 38.1386 34.2994 12.9796 47.2790
035 Brownfield 29.7292 8.4094 38.1386 34.2994 12.9796 47.2790
040 Bloomfield 27.0568 9.1256 36.1824 32.1026 14.0631 46.1657
160 Lamphere 31.0284 13.1813 44.3897 32.9759 14.9488 47.9247
230 Royal Oak 27.9899 3.8896 31.8795 42.4360 3.8896 46.3256
262 Warren 2 Troy 27.1320 8.7279 35.8599 33.1786 15.0652 48.2438
265 DDA 27.0459 8.7279 35.7738 33.0924 15.0652 48.1576
268 SmartZone 27.0459 8.7279 35.7738 33.0924 15.0652 48.1576
750 Warren 31.5795 3.8896 35.4691 42.9757 3.8896 46.8653

Rank 06 A/V 06 T/V Activity Parcels

1 Frankel Forbes Cohen 73,898,660 64,659,870 Somserset N & S 3
2 Liberty Property 64,268,550 44,522,510 Office Leasing 26
3 Nykel 40,726,630 40,726,630 Somerset Apts 24
4 Detroit Edison 33,499,410 33,492,740 Utility 16
5 888 W Big Beaver Assoc 34,073,130 33,211,240 Office Leasing 2
6 Kelly Services 40,239,380 32,362,130 Temp Help & Corp 12
7 Rigg's & Co 42,206,590 29,623,050 Office Leasing 2
8 Oakland Mall 35,597,250 29,151,420 Retail 9
9 Lasalle Bank 32,726,920 27,965,270 Banking & HQ 2
10 Teachers Insurance 55,619,970 27,812,420 Office Leasing 2
11 Nemer Troy Place 49,185,600 25,719,770 Office Leasing 5
12 Top of Troy 27,142,110 25,580,430 Office Leasing 1
13 Sheffield Office 24,014,210 24,014,210 Office Leasing 4
14 E A & S 25,836,220 21,187,270 Office Leasing 6
15 First Industrial 26,996,770 21,181,280 Industrial Leasing 33
16 Diamond Troy 20,506,670 20,506,670 Former Kmart Site 2
17 Flagstar 24,743,610 19,368,730 Banking & HQ 2
18 Sunstone Big Beaver 16,611,520 16,611,520 Hotel (Marriott) 1
19 E I DuPont 17,852,810 16,238,420 Automotive Finish 7
20 Delphi 20,192,950 16,081,640 Corporate HQ 2

Name
Top Twenty Taxpayers

2005 Millage Rates (2006 rates are not known until late Fall of 2006)

P.R.E. = Principal Residence Exemption (Homestead),   Non-H = Non=Homestead



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

TUESDAY, MARCH 7, 2006

12:45 P.M. -The 2006 Board of Review met at the Troy City offices.
James Hatch was elected Chairman,  Also serving on the Board were
Frank Howrylak and Eileen Turner.  City Assessor, Nino Licari
presented the 2006 Assessment Roll to the Board.  There were
no corrections, additions, or ommissions or errors noted by the
Board.  The Board was then called to order to here all appeals of
Assessments placed against property within the City of Troy.  Nino
Licari served as Secretary of the Board.  The following appeals were
heard by the Board between 1:00 P.M. and 9:00 P.M.



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/07/06 Appt Time 1:00 PM # 06.001

Phone: (home) 248-637-0339 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/01/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n VINCENT PROCOPIO
add 3474 GRESHAM
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
20D COL 3,480 202.21 830
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

20-327-028 401 351,020 288,980 351,850 298,510 351,850 298,510 0

Mr Procopio arrived with his wife.  They went over some comparables for his area, 
indicating houses weren't selling, and those that did were for far less than twice the 
Assessed Value.  He had a big issue with his taxes, telling the Board he pays 
$1,000.00 per month in taxes.  The Board explained that lowering his assessed value 
would not change his taxes.  The Board voted no change would be made based on 
the sales study.

1



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/07/06 Appt Time 1:10PM # 06.002

Phone: (home) 248-879-0284 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/01/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ERNEST AMICI
add 947 HANNAH
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
03D R 1,948 132.97 14,980
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

03-276-010 401 114,530 101,330 129,510 104,670 124,000 104,670 0

Mr & Mrs Amici arrived and were introduced to the Board.  They indicated that 
properties in their area were being rezoned commercial, which was of great concern 
to them.  They also told the Board they were having a hard time with traffic because 
of a new church in the area and Rochester Road being a high traffic street.  Due to 
the commercial properties around them and traffic in their area, the Board voted to 
reduce their Assessed Value to $124,000.

2



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/07/06 Appt Time 1:20PM # 06.003

Phone: (home) 248-828-9995 Phone:(work) 248-576-4947

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/01/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JUN LU
add 458 BELLE MEADE
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
04K COL 4,854 132.04 14,690
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

04-451-032 401 305,760 305,760 320,450 315,850 320,450 315,850 0

Mr Jun Lu compared other homes by the same builder to his.  He felt his taxable 
value was too high, and slightly above half of what he paid for his home in 2003.  He 
estimates $300,000. Would be fair.  It was also brought up to the Board that he 
bought his home in 2003 for $600,000. and added a sprinkler system and grass which
was at lease $4,000. more.  The Board voted for no change based on the sales on 
homes in his area.

3



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/07/06 Appt Time 1:30PM # 06.004

Phone: (home) 248-879-7784 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/01/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n LEONARD FREDERICK
add 6647 JOHN R
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
02L COL 3,416 198.28 28,220

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

02-279-070 401 310,440 306,960 338,660 317,080 338,660 317,080 0

Mr Fredrick was at the Board last year, and has a current appeal pending before the 
MTT.  He said he is still trying to work things out with the City.  Mr Fredrick also 
brought in an article about Mortgage Fraud, indicating his assessment was based on 
a higher sale that was 100% financed by the previous owner, who then went into 
forclosure.  He said it was unfair to raise his Assessed Value again, comparing other 
homes in his neighborhood being lower than his.  The Board determined his main 
comparison was smaller than his home by at lease 500 square feet.  The Board voted 
for no change based on the sale of similar homes in his area.

4



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/07/06 Appt Time 1:40PM # 06.005

Phone: (home) 248-879-3243 Phone:(work) 248-763-4071

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/01/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DAVID YOUNGS
add 6633 PINEWAY
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
05D R 2,714 166.14 7,750
S.D.
010

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

05-203-022 401 217,700 165,080 225,450 225,450 187,950 187,950 -37,500

Mr Youngs was introduced to the Board.  He passed a handout to the Board 
members.  He said he bought his home in forclosure after it was on the market for 8 
months.  Mr Young also inducated he works in the Banking Industry and that his 
home is located in an area that shares two school districts.  The Board was shown 
comparables across the street that were on the market for a considerable time.  The 
Board voted that the Assessed Value should be half of the purchase price, and 
reduced the Assessment to $187,950.

5



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/07/06 Appt Time 1:50PM # 06.006

Phone: (home) 248-267-1212 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n HERBERT & MILDRED BURNS
add 5162 VINEYARDS
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
7K COL 3,984 239.06 55,830

S.D.
040

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

07-351-050 401 420,380 372,700 476,210 384,990 437,500 384,990 0

Mr Burns was concerned about his Assessed Value.  He said he lives next to a small 
development in which most of the homes are older, and he has an odd shaped lot.  It 
was also indicated that homes in this area have many extras that his does not, such 
as marble floors, granite countertops and finished basements.  His home also needs 
paint and the driveway needs to be fixed.  Mr Burns indicated his Assessed Value is 
unrealistic.  Although the Board determined that adjusting the Assessment would not 
change the taxes, they lowered the Assessed Value to $437,500.  The Board made 
this determination due to sales of other homes in the area. 

6



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/07/06 Appt Time 2:10PM # 06.007

Phone: (home) 248-641-8115 Phone:(work) 248-515-4491

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/01/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n LENORE D PAXTON
add 5900 SUSSEX
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
7A COL 3,705 134.95 (71,350)

S.D.
040

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

07-102-016 401 321,350 189,510 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 0

Ms. Paxton appealed to the Board saying there have been no improvements to the 
property and much repair is needed.  She has lived in this home since 1972, caring 
for her parents, who have since passed away leaving her this home in their trust.   
The Board indicated there is considerable value in this land.  In a split decision, the 
Board voted for no change based on the market in the area.

7



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/07/06 Appt Time 2:50PM # 06.008

Phone: (home) 248-202-3372 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n YING ZHAO XIAO LIU-Represtative
add 751 KIRTS
c/s/z TROY MI 48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
C2801 COL 1,282 118.72 480
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

28-151-056 405 75,620 75,620 76,100 76,100 70,000 70,000 -6,100

Sheril Liu, a personal representative for Ying Zhao arrived.  She told the Board this 
was a bank sale.  Ms Liu indicated that homes in this area are not selling, and 
showed some comparisons in the area of Kirts.  She felt the Assessed Value on this 
condo was too high.  The Board voted to reduce the Assessed Value to $70,000. due 
to comparisons of home sales in this area.

8



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/07/06 Appt Time 3:00PM # 06.009

Phone: (home) 248-765-4177 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/01/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n LOUY JEMMOA
add 6245 WALKER
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
2B COL 2,027 78.63 61,210 5,550

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

02-376-016 401 135,350 99,420 79,690 56,250 38,750 38,750 -17,500

Mr Jemmoa addressed the Board indicating his home had fire damage and is a 
Posted Home.  He is now trying to have the insurance company allow him to rebuild 
the entire home instead of just repairing what is left.  The Fire Department stated that 
60% of the house was damaged.  The Board agreed that the house was a total loss, 
and voted to lower the Assessed and Taxable Values to $38,750,  which is half of the 
land value.

9



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/07/06 Appt Time 3:10PM # 06.010

Phone: (home) 248-879-7925 Phone:(work) 248-754-5660

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/01/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n TIMOTHY FLAHERTY
add 1558 PICADILLY
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
20D COL 2,900 193.30 1,420
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

20-326-007 401 278,860 271,870 280,280 280,280 250,000 250,000 -30,280

Mr Flaherty arrived before the Board saying the sales in the area indicate his value to 
be $489,500.  He also said taxes are too high.   One Board member excused herself 
as she is an agent for the same real estate company that presented an offer on Mr 
Flaherty's house.  Mr. Flaherty told the Board the offer is at $499,000. A Board 
member made the observation that due to larger homes in area, assessments on 
smaller homes are being driven upward.  The Board voted to lower the Assessed and 
Taxable Values to $250,000 due to sales of larger homes in area.

10



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/07/06 Appt Time 6:40PM # 06.011

Phone: (home) 586-949-4100X1295 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/01/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DENNIS YARD
add 711 ANDREW
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
04G COL 2,657 142.29 (11,060)
S.D.
010

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

04-132-012 401 200,090 135,560 189,030 140,030 200,000 140,030 0

Mr & Mrs Yard arrived to the Board suggesting that the decreased Assessed Value is 
too dramatic. They made comparisons of other homes and told the Board they are in 
an area which has 20 year old homes a block away, and 30 year old homes three 
blocks away.  It was explained to Mr & Mrs Yard that their whole subdiviion was 
lowered based on the sales study.  It was pointed out that there would be nothing to 
gain by the homeowner to raise the assessment with a flat market, and the lack of 
sales in their area.  After some discussion, the Board voted to raise the Assessed 
Value to $200,000. based on newer sales, not in the study.

11



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/07/06 Appt Time 7:00PM # 06.012

Phone: (home) 248-524-9844 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DA-WEI YANG
add 4514 CLARK
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
14E COL 2,335 130.06 3,120
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

14-177-009 401 148,730 99,060 151,850 102,320 151,850 102,320 0

Da-Wei Yang arrived.  He said his Assessed Value is too high.  He made 
comparisons of sales and indicated his home should be worth $270,000.  After the 
Board compared similar homes in the area they voted for no change.

12



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/07/06 Appt Time 7:10PM # 06.013

Phone: (home) 248-267-0169 Phone:(work) 248-512-5829

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n LAURENCE GUINDI
add 5762 ALGONQUIN
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
7J COL 4,569 180.92 19,930

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

07-202-013 401 393,390 393,390 413,320 406,370 400,000 400,000 -6,370

Mr Guindi arrived saying he would like to see his Assessed Value lower than his 2003 
sale.  He brought 2004 and 2005 sales to compare.  After much discussion, Mr 
Guindi still believed he should only be assessed at $377,000 because he overpaid for 
the property and it was on the market for a year before he purchased it.  The Board 
voted to reduce his assessment to $400,000. after a comparison of other homes in 
the area.

13



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/07/06 Appt Time 7:20PM # 06.014

Phone: (home) 248-689-9789 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/01/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n RIMA KALOTHIA
add 1254 HARTLAND
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
23J COL 2,363 128.11 (2,170)

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

23-378-024 401 153,530 145,630 151,360 150,430 151,360 150,430 0

Mr & Mrs Kalotha arrived and indicated the Assessed Value does not reflect their 
home's value.  They felt their home is different than others in their area.  They 
showed pictures of elevations, exterior and interior differences and views from their 
windows.  A new business tenant behind their home is now a concern due to noise, 
heavy traffic, and the unsightly view from their windows.  The Board saw no reason 
for change since they are still assessed less than what the home was purchased for. 

14



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/07/06 Appt Time 7:30PM # 06.015

Phone: (home) 248-528-9746 Phone:(work) 248-753-4414

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/01/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n CHANGMING WANG
add 3319 TROY 
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
22G COL 1,982 137.25 4,300
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

22-352-022 401 131,710 123,750 136,010 127,830 127,500 127,500 -330

Changming Wang arrived at the meeting.  He stated he bought this property in 2001 
for $230,000 and the value has not increased since then.  The comparisons Mr Wang 
made were not in our current sale study.  His home is on a crawl space because of a 
nearby drain.  Because of the home being on a crawl space, while other homes in the 
immediate area are not, the Board voted to lower the Assessed Value to $127,500.

15



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/07/06 Appt Time 7:40PM # 06.016

Phone: (home) 248-224-8204 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/02/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/08/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n YELENA ROZENTULER
add 959 KIRTS
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
C28 COL 1,350 112.19 1,030
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

28-151-218 405 74,700 73,770 75,730 75,730 75,730 75,730 0

Ms. Rozentuler stated that she moved into this home in 2002, when she purchased 
the house for $141,000.  Because of the condition of the unit she feels she is over 
assessed.  She indicated the home needs much repair to walls, plumbing and tile. Ms 
Rozentuler felt she underestimated the work needed to bring the house up to date.  
The Board voted for no change due to the fact that once updated the house would be 
marketable at more than the Assessed Value, and that she probably got the house at 
a good value due to improvements that were needed.   

16



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

MONDAY, MARCH 13, 2006

9:00 A.M. - The second meeting of the Board of Review was  
called to order by the Chairman, James Hatch.  Also present
were Frank Howyrlak and Eileen Turner.  Nino Licari, City 
Assessor, served as Secretary of the Board.  The Board is required
to be in session between the hours of 9:00 A.M. and 5:00 P.M.
The following appeals were heard by the Board during this
session.



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/06 Appt Time 9:00AM # 06.017

Phone: (home) 248-879-2528 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/20/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n WILLIAM BEYER
add 62 ASPINWALL
c/s/z TROY MI  48098-1851

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
4A R 2,190 153.34 18,850

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

04-426-013 401 149,060 92,410 167,910 95,450 167,910 95,450 0

Mr Beyer arrived..  He said his home is 30 years old, with an old floor plan and 
smaller rooms.  He is also in a mixed area and feels his Assessed Value is too high.  
It was explained to Mr Beyer that changing his Assessed Value would not lower his 
taxes.  The Board also explained Proposal A.  The Board voted for no change, due to 
comparable sales in the area.

17



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/06 Appt Time 9:10AM # 06.018

Phone: (home) 248-641-0242 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/20/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n LOIS TRAPP
add 5357 CHELTENHAM
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
07C COL 2,839 140.17 2,120
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

08-303-018 401 196,850 146,220 198,970 151,040 190,000 151,040 0

Mr & Mrs Trapp arrived.  They are basing their complaint on similar homes in their 
area that have many updates and have sold for far less than they are being appraised 
at.  Other homes in their area have finished basements, new windows and roofs, 
updated flooring and new countertops, while they have none of this.  After watching 
the market, Mr Trapp concluded his Assessed Value is from $8,000-$10,000 too high. 
The Board voted to lower the Assessed Value to $190,000, due to the market and the 
condition of home.

18



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/06 Appt Time 9:20AM # 06.019

Phone: (home) 248-680-7211 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/20/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n CHAN CHUNG
add 1189 GARWOOD
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
14J COL 2,914 131.46 (21,140)

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

14-351-073 401 212,670 175,860 191,530 181,660 182,500 181,660 0

Mr Chung stated that he has an illegally operating Group Daycare home next door to 
him.  He felt that if these activities are allowed to continue, his taxes should be lower, 
as the value of his home is affected.  He indicated the many problems he is having 
with the daycare next door to him, and that he feels that he would have a very hard 
time selling his home because of children and employees arriving every morning right 
next to his bedroom.  The Board agreed that a reduction in value was warranted due 
to this problem, and reduced his Assessed Value to $182,500.

19



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/06 Appt Time 9:30AM # 06.020

Phone: (home) 248-828-9301 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/20/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DAVID JOHNSON
add 2376 TALL OAKS
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
7G COL 4,357 188.40 21,180

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

07-251-009 401 389,240 389,240 410,420 402,080 390,000 390,000 -12,080

Mr Johnson appealed to the Board of Review.  He had been offered a reduced 
assessment by Assessing Department staff, which he declined.  He purchased a 
home, under foreclosure, for $705,000.  He showed comparisons in the area.  He told 
the Board he had a concern about the floors when he purchased the home.  The 
Board voted to lower his Assessed and Taxable Value to $390,000.due to 
comparable sales in the area.

20



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/06 Appt Time 9:40AM # 06.021

Phone: (home) 248-879-9259 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/20/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n RICHARD BROSER
add 6349 EMERALD LAKE
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
02L COL 2,006 169.27 10,300

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

02-378-040 401 159,480 124,770 169,780 128,880 169,780 128,880 0

Mr Broser explained to the Board that he lives on the north-east corner of the lake 
which requires much maintence.  He indicated the taxes, in his opinion, should be 
lower due to all the cleaning up of weeds, leaves and debris on his part.  It was 
suggested that he contact his Homeowners Association for help with this problem.  
The Board voted for no change. 

21



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/06 Appt Time 10:10AM # 06.022

Phone: (home) 248-310-5085 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/20/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JERRY WHITE
add 2711 W SOUTH BLVD
c/s/z TROY MI 48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
BUN BUN 1,164 147.51 10,050
S.D.
010

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

05-100-016 401 75,800 62,850 85,850 64,920 85,850 64,920 0

Mr & Mrs White requested an explaination for the $10,000 increase in Assessed 
Value, as they are not realtors or tax people.  They told the Board that they felt the 
value was in the land, not the home.  It was indicated that the land was valued at 
$100,000. while the house only was valued at $35,000.  The Board voted no change, 
based on the sale of comparable properties.

22



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/06 Appt Time 10:20AM # 06.023

Phone: (home) 248-643-0470 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/20/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n STUART G VEDDER
add 1884 HAMMAN
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
14B TRI 1,404 138.59 3,420
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

14-279-007 401 93,870 80,030 97,290 97,290 85,000 85,000 -12,290

Mr. Stuart Vedder indicated to the Board that his home was in forclosure and due to a 
bidding process to obtain the house, he overpaid.  He would like a break until he can 
fix it up.  He told the Board there were no floor coverings, broken windows, no 
kitchen, plumbing problems, and much repair to be done.  Due to the fact that he is 
paying non-homestead taxes and the economy is down he is in much need of some 
help with his taxes.   The Board voted to lower the Assessed and Taxable Values to 
$85,000 based on all of the repairs needed in the home.

23



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/06 Appt Time 10:30AM # 06.024

Phone: (home) 248-267-9855 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/09/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/20/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n NEIL SOHLIN
add 5693 HUNTERS GATE
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
07B COL 3,446 158.81 20,370
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

07-176-008 401 253,260 231,340 273,630 238,970 273,630 238,970 0

Mr Sohlin feels his home is over assessed.  Comparisons were presented to the 
Board members which were not in the current sales study.  Based on all of the sales, 
and his desirable neighborhood of larger homes, the Board voted no change.

24



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/06 Appt Time 10:40AM # 06.025

Phone: (home) 248-219-6667 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/09/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/20/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n PAUL BECK
add 2101 MCINTOSH
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
06B COL 2,779 128.77 7,100
S.D.
010

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

06-226-034 401 171,830 134,140 178,930 138,560 178,930 138,560 0
14-101-003 201 97,910 97,910 95,490 95,490 95,490 95,490 0

Mr Beck showed the Board members a comparable sale, which was not an arms-
length transaction.  He also challanged the Sales Study and didn't agree with the 
explanation of an arms-length sale.  After much discussion, the Board determined the 
sale used as a comparison was not one they could use to make a change.  Mr. Beck 
has an ongoing appeal for this property at the Michigan Tax Tribunal.  The Board 
voted for no change.  Mr. Beck also indicated he owned another property at 4932 
Rochester Road that he wished to discuss.  He told the Board that commercial 
property is only 62% occupied with a 38% vacancy rate.  The City Assessor disputed 
this statement. He then decided to withraw his protest for the commercial property.    

25



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/06 Appt Time 10:50AM # 06.026

Phone: (home) 248-577-1332 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/20/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n SOUAD WARDIA
add 2029 KEMP 34117 DEQUINDRE
c/s/z BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI  48302-0144 TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
36C R 1,036 130.64 1,350
S.D.

750
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

36-277-037 401 66,320 63,480 67,670 65,570 67,670 65,570 0

Mr Wardia stated that he comes to the Board every year to appeal.  He told the Board 
he feels his house in worth only $90,000 or less, and there would be no buyers.  The 
Board indicated that this price range of homes are selling the best right now, and that 
his Assessed Value is fair.  The Board voted for no change.

26



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/06 Appt Time 11:30AM # 06.027

Phone: (home) 248-362-3222 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/20/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JOSEPH MCKEEVER
add 840 HUNTSFORD CT
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
21B COL 2,325 135.03 (1,800)
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

21-176-003 401 158,770 144,320 156,970 149,080 156,970 149,080 0

Mr & Mrs McKeever asked the Board if they could protest their Assessed and Taxable 
Value, and were told they could.  They purchased their home in 2002 and felt the 
Taxable Value should be adjusted back to the 2003 level of $137,910.  They indicated
the economy and market are down right now.  They passed out a comparison of 
market values in a one mile radius of their home by a local Realtor.  The comparison 
indicated people have sold for less than listed and some have withdrawn from selling 
at all.  The Board indicated that the home looked to be assessed correctly and voted 
for no change.  

27



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/06 Appt Time 01:00PM # 06.028

Phone: (home) 248-828-4287 Phone:(work) 248-828-4269

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/20/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DAN SIMIONESCU
add 691 OTTAWA
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
03B COL 3,828 143.99 52,090
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

03-401-012 401 223,500 210,130 275,590 217,060 275,590 217,060 0

Mr. Simionescu told the Board that he feels his home is over assessed.  He showed 
some comparable sales near his house.  He also showed the Board some pictures, 
on his camera, of water standing in his back yard, and stated that the Engineering 
Department is aware of this problem.  The Board noted the lot of this home is much 
larger than the comparables.  The Board voted for no change based on the 
comparable sales in his area.

28



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/06 Appt Time 1:10PM # 06.029

Phone: (home) 248-641-0520 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/20/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DARRELL MCDANIEL
add 4664 TIPTON
c/s/z TROY MI  48098-4469

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
17C R 2,215 158.85 7,930
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

17-252-003 401 168,000 129,750 175,930 134,030 170,000 134,030 0

Mr. McDaniel told the Board he is appealing the Assessed and Taxable Values on 
recent Market Values and sales.  He noted resent newspaper articles and a realtor 
who estimated he could get $315,000 for his house.  Mr. McDaniel also presented a 
hand-out to the Board, and explained the data.  The Board of Review voted that after 
deducting for unfinished basement, this home should be worth around $340,000.  The 
Assessed Value was changed to $170,000.

29



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/06 Appt Time 1:30PM # 06.030

Phone: (home) 248-689-4226 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/20/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n GEORGE CURRY
add 201 CARTER
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
16B R 1,712 152.42 10,470
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

16-477-002 401 120,000 90,210 130,470 93,180 120,000 93,180 0

Mr Curry told the Board his Assessed Value is too high.  He felt his home is worth 
$230,000 because it is an old style that isn't selling.  He compared another home near
him that sold last summer.  The Board voted for a decrease in Assessed Value to 
$120,000 based on recent sales in the area.

30



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/06 Appt Time 2:00PM # 06.031

Phone: (home) 248-689-1746 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/20/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ROBERT BUTCHER
add 1043 HARTLAND
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
23E R 1,320 151.91 8,830
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

23-352-039 401 91,430 91,430 100,260 94,440 92,500 92,500 -1,940

The petitioner stated he was applying for a mortgage for this home and received an 
appraisal at $160,000.  A week later he received his Assessment Notice which 
indicated the Market Value of $200,520.  It was noted that this property is non-
homestead, because his son lives in the house.  He showed an appraisal for the 
mortgage to the Board members.  The Board concurred that the appraisal had errors 
in it, and was not indicative of the value of the property.  The Board did vote to lower 
the Assessed Value to $92,500, based on adjustment that they made to the mortgage 
appraisal.

31



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/06 Appt Time 3:30PM # 06.032

Phone: (home) 248-421-6607 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/20/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n LOWELL ROBINSON
add 4540 ODETTE
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
18E COL 3,621 181.84 16,510
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

18-251-010 401 312,220 241,990 329,220 249,970 329,220 249,970 0

Mr Robinson presented a listing of some comparable sales, and current listings of 
homes in his area.  He indicated that homes aren't selling right now in his immediate 
area.  He feels his Market Value should be $550,000.  The Board determined that 
they saw many sales that support the current assessment, and no change was made.

32



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/13/06 Appt Time 4:40PM # 06.033

Phone: (home) 248-823-5936 Phone:(work) 248-390-4333

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/20/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n RAJEEV SHARMA
add 6936 SHELLDRAKE
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
02F COL 2,306 140.84 12,120

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

02-201-065 401 150,270 92,760 162,390 162,390 162,390 162,390 0

Mr. Sharma feels he overpaid for his home.  He paid $337,500 in 2005, which is 
higher than the City's appraisal for 2006.  He showed a deed when he purchased the 
home, and pictures of a part of his lot with a conservation easement on it, where he is 
not allowed to build.  The Board pointed out that Mr. Sharma's lot is larger than the 
average lot in his subdivision, and his land value has been reduced to reflect the 
unbuildable status of the portion in the easement.  The Board voted for no change.

33



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

TUESDAY, MARCH 14, 2006

1:00 P.M. - The third meeting of the Board of Review was called
to order by the Chairman, James Hatch.  Also present were
Frank Howrylak and Eileen Turner.  Nino Licari, City Assessor,
served as Secretary of the Board.  The Board is required to be
available to hear appeals between the hours of 1:00 P.M. and 
9:00 P.M.  The following appeals were heard by the Board at
this session.



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 1:00PM # 06.034

Phone: (home) 248-879-7936 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n TIMOTHY CREECH
add 6934 DUCHESS
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
06B COL 2,836 124.71 7,680
S.D.
010

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

06-227-003 401 169,160 160,660 176,840 165,960 176,840 165,960 0

Mr.Creech stated he had checked our website for comparable recent sales. He would 
like his Assessed Value placed at $152,500 as his property backs up to Coolidge. 
The Board mentioned that he has more depth on his lot than neighbors, and also 
stated the time frame of the sales study used.  The Board agreed to no change in 
value.

34



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 1:10PM # 06.035

Phone: (home) 248-227-9557 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n HELLER MACHINE TOOLS
add 1225 EQUITY
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
ILM80 LI 93,324 97.45 13,356,701 (115,960)
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

32-226-032 301 5,999,030 5,031,560 4,547,400 4,040,360 4,547,400 4,040,360 0

Representatives from Heller Machine Tools appeared before the Board to have their 
appearance recorded and protect their right to appeal further to the Michigan Tax 
Tribunal.  They did not present any data to support an assessment reduction.  The 
Board noted their protest and affirmed the current Assessed Value.

35



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 1:20PM # 06.036

Phone: (home) 248-649-2437 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/09/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n CORINNE GROWNEY
add JOHN GROWNEY
c/s/z 1975 AXTELL #2

TROY MI  48084-4426

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
C2902 R 1,012 136.52 4,100
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

29-357-014 405 64,980 47,640 69,080 69,080 69,080 69,080 0

Ms. Growney appeared before the Board and stated it was not logical to her that her 
Assessed Value had increased.  Condo owners have to pay for their own street signs, 
garbage pickup and other services that are normally provided by the City.  The Board 
noted that the condo association pays for their maintenance. It was pointed out that 
her Assessed Value is lower than half of the purchase price.  The Board voted for no 
change. 

36



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 1:30PM # 06.037

Phone: (home) 248-267-2334 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/10/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n SCOTT & CLAUDIA JARNAC
add 2851 DEVONWOOD
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
07A TRI 2,202 199.73 9,900
S.D.
040

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

07-152-009 401 210,000 210,000 219,900 216,930 219,900 216,930 0

Mrs. Jarnac presented the Board with eight comparable sales to protest her assessed 
value. They originally purchased the home with extra land and have since sold the 
land.  The Board reviewed her comparables and determined they were in very 
different neighborhoods. After studying land value and school districts the Board 
voted for no change.

37



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 1:40PM # 06.038

Phone: (home) 248-342-9595 Phone:(work) 248-879-3400

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/10/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n BRIAN CAROLAN
add 4593 CAHILL
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
17C R 2,044 171.45 1,710
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

17-256-011 401 173,510 166,850 175,220 172,350 165,000 165,000 -7,350

Mr. Carolan, who is a Realtor, appeared before the Board to represent himself. He 
had appeared last year for his client. He wanted his Taxable and Assessed Values 
lowered and brought comparables for ranches. His house needs maintenance and is 
not as updated. After reviewing the comparables the Board agreed to lower the 
Assessed and Taxable Value.                                                                                          

38



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 1:50PM # 06.039

Phone: (home) 248-879-0552 Phone:(work) 248-629-5004

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/10/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n MADHU CHATTERJEE
add 6628 CRABAPPLE
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
05E R 2,764 182.81 4,360
S.D.
010

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

05-129-057 401 248,290 234,650 252,650 242,390 252,650 242,390 0

Mr. Chartterjee appeared before the Board, he was also in last year.  Mr. Chatterjee 
had recent photos of his property showing that he has a water drainage problem on 
his property. He stated his property is under water most of the time and it creeps up 
to his deck. His is the oldest house on the block, his neighbors have drains on their 
property and his doesn't.  The City Assessor advised Mr. Chatterjee he could check 
with the Engineering Department with regard to his drainage.  The Board agreed to no
change.

39



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 2:00PM # 06.040

Phone: (home) 248-641-8164 Phone:(work) 248-890-8374

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n GARY RENARD
add 1344 BRADBURY
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
17E COL 2,629 165.41 14,770
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

17-451-006 401 202,660 156,290 217,430 161,440 217,430 161,440 0

Ms. Renard appeared before the Board to protest the Assessed Value. She felt is was
a bad time to raise values and that the sales study we currently use is flawed. She 
presented homes currently listed for sale as comparables and had an appraisal for 
$410,000 for her home. The Board reviewed our sales study and voted for no change.

40



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 2:10PM # 06.041

Phone: (home) 248-828-7621 Phone:(work) 248-203-3500X50043

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JAMES CROSBY II
add 6413 ELSEY
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
05B COL 2,261 160.72 6,230
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

05-429-003 401 175,460 124,370 181,690 128,470 177,500 128,470 0

Mr. Crosby presented sheets with comparable sales to the Board, stating that he has 
talked with realtors.  He would like to change his Assessed Value to reflect his 
estimate of the Market Value of $342,000.  The Board agreed, and lowered his 
Assessed Value to $177,500.

41



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 2:20PM # 06.042

Phone: (home) 248-879-1022 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n LORI JOHNSON
add 6297 EMERALD LAKE
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
02L TRI 1,886 172.07 9,500

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

02-378-063 401 152,760 117,760 162,260 162,260 162,260 121,640 -40,620

Ms. Johnson appeared and stated that she is the trustee for this property and she has 
two sisters.  Her parents were the original owners and it is currently vacant. The 
house has not been updated, the carpet and kitchen are original, the basement is not 
finished.  The house is on the lake. The property has been uncapped due to the 
transfer by the trust in 2005.  The City Assessor explained the types of changes in 
ownership and requested that Ms. Johnson brings in the trust by Friday to review 
whether a 100% uncapping was required.  Pending this review, the Board voted for 
no change.                                                                                       The trust 
documents were supplied on March 16, 2006, and the Taxable Value should not have 
been uncapped, as this was not a transfer.  The correct Taxable Value is now 
$121,640.

42



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 2:30PM # 06.043

Phone: (home) 248-302-2139 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JEFF TENNISWOOD
add 440 E MAPLE
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
IL IL 12,884 41.94 5,660

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

28-401-007 301 264,530 253,050 270,190 261,400 270,190 261,400 0
34-126-005 301 1,330,300 1,166,930 1,338,470 1,205,430 1,338,470 1,205,430 0
34-127-043 301 342,170 342,170 341,290 341,290 286,800 286,800 -54,490

Mr. Tenniswood, along with his son, and son-in-law requested a review of the 
assessments on three loft style buildings they own and lease.  The newest building 
has a Taxable value that is considerably higher per square foot than the two older 
buildings.  The City Assessor explained that the new building has received no benefit 
from the capping process, as have the two older buildings.  He also stated that the 
only way to reduce the Taxable value would be to lower the Assessed Value, and in 
order to do this, the Assessor and Board would need to review income and expense 
information on the three buildings.  Mr. Tenniswood agreed to provide the information 
by Friday, March 17, for a possible Board action on March 21, 2006.  Pending this 
review, the Board voted for no change.     The Income and Expense information was 
supplied, and based on the review of this information the Board reduced the 
Assessed and Taxable values of 88-20-34-127-043 to $286,800.

43



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 2:50PM # 06.044

Phone: (home) 248-528-3692 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n VALERIE & JOSEPH AVORE
add 780 LONGFELLOW
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
15G R 2,130 152.84 18,470
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

15-426-041 401 144,300 98,350 162,770 101,590 151,000 101,590 0

Mr. & Mrs. Avore appeared before the Board to protest their assessed value and 
stated they have made no changes to the house.  After reviewing the sales study the 
Board agreed to lower Assessed Value to $151,000.

44



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 3:00PM # 06.045

Phone: (home) 248-267-8227 Phone:(work) 248-515-4479

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/10/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n NADIA HAK
add 2466 OAK RIDGE
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
07G COL 3,704 202.39 14,750
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

07-252-011 401 360,080 360,080 374,830 371,960 374,830 371,960 0

Mr. & Mrs. Hak presented the Board with copies of comparable Taxable Value 
analysis for 2004 and 2005.  They purchased their house in April 2004 and felt the 
Taxable Value was too high. The Board explained the uncapping of Taxable Value 
the year following a transfer of ownership, and which sales market we are now using, 
and how that will measure today's market next year.  The Board voted for no change.

45



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 3:10PM # 06.046

Phone: (home) 248-879-9040 Phone:(work) 248-334-4934

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DANIEL BRIDGES
add 2850 SANTIA
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
12H COL 2,972 143.94 (13,340)
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

12-427-008 401 194,500 163,700 213,890 169,100 199,000 169,100 0

Mr. Bridges appeared before the Board.  It is his third year appearing.  He complained
about today's housing market and presented listings of homes for sale in his area. Mr. 
Bridges felt that his increase in Assessed Value is not justified as he had a reduction 
in value from the Michigan Tax Tribunal for 2005.  The Board explained to Mr. 
Bridges that we are not yet measuring the current market.  Based on our sales study 
the Board reduced the Assessed value to $199,000.

46



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 3:20PM # 06.047

Phone: (home) 248-952-5457 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n VERNA GREEN
add 2433 OAK RIDGE
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
07G COL 4,290 285.19 38,090
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

07-251-020 401 573,640 316,390 611,730 326,830 456,000 326,830 0

Ms. Green feels her Assessed Value is much higher than her neighbors.  She is the 
original owner.  The home was built in 1991 and it is a Class A home.  The City 
Assessor explained the sales study and how it works and stated that the Assessing 
Department will review the classification of her home compared to other homes in her 
neighborhood. The Board agreed to lower the Assessed Value to $456,000 based on 
the sales study of comparable homes.

47



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 3:30PM # 06.048

Phone: (home) 248-307-5721 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n CHARLES CHARNAWSKAS
add 4949 RIVERS EDGE
c/s/z TROY MI 48098-4137

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
18E COL 3,276 164.39 11,160
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

18-226-006 401 258,110 207,970 269,270 214,830 269,270 214,830 0

Mr. Charnawskas appeared before the Board and stated that based on his findings 
for homes listed in this declining market, his Assessed Value should be between $238
- 250,000.  He assumed that a reduction in his assessment would also lower his 
Taxable value.  Mr. Licari explained that only by lowering the Assessed Value below 
the current Taxable Value, would the Taxable Value be reduced.  Mr. Charnawskas 
did not understand this provision of the law, and was very dissapointed.  He left the 
meeting without waiting for the Board's decision.  Based on the sales study, the Board
voted for no change.  As with all other Petitioners, Mr. Charnawskas will have this 
decision verified by mail. 

48



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 3:40PM # 06.049

Phone: (home) 248-275-5774 Phone:(work) 313-475-0237

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n TIM LAURA
add 2090 GRENADIER
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
06B COL 2,828 137.80 9,110
S.D.
010

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

06-226-001 401 185,740 180,780 194,850 194,850 160,000 160,000 -34,850

Mr. Laura appeared before the Board with documents showing his appraisal and 
comparables.  He bought the house in 2005 for $299,900 and realizes he got a good 
deal.  There was mold in the basement so the basement finish was removed, and the 
house was in poor condition.  After review of the appraisal the Board agreed to 
change assessed value to $160,000.

49



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 3:50PM # 06.050

Phone: (home) 248-879-7280 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/05 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n SIRISH MISHRA
add 6925 ELM PARK
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
05J COL 4,169 171.36 25,050 45,130

S.D.
010

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

05-101-021 401 287,020 275,440 357,200 309,570 344,700 297,070 -12,500

Mr. & Mrs. Mishra appeared before the Board and stated their Assessed and Taxable 
Value had gone up $25,040, because he finished his basement. They believe they 
would not realize a $50,000 increase in selling price because of the finished 
basement.  Based on sales study, and the Board's estimate of the added value of a 
finished basement, the Board agreed to lower the Assessed Value to $344,700, and 
the Taxable Value to $297,070.  This is 1/2 the original City appraisal of the finished 
basement. 

50



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 4:00PM # 06.051

Phone: (home) 248-641-5011 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n HARRY MACLEAN
add 1886 BRENTWOOD
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
08D R 2,027 172.79 40,910
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

08-351-007 401 134,210 102,200 175,120 105,570 144,000 105,570 0

Mr. MaClean stated that his new Assessed Value was too much, and there weren't 
any ranch homes in the study for comparison.  There is heavy traffic on his street.  
The Board agreed to lower his Assessed Value to $144,000.

51



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 4:20PM # 06.052

Phone: (home) 313-805-0679 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n GIRIDHARAN NAMMALWAR
add 1885 WYNGATE 
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
05M COL 3,747 189.53 301,740 (1,910)
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

05-301-053 401 55,250 55,250 355,080 355,080 355,080 328,070 -27,010

Mr. Nammalwar submitted his sales data to the Board.  His Assessment was 
uncapped for 2005, and again for 2006.  He brought in his building cost documents, 
and requested that only 1/2 of the construction cost should have been added to the 
Taxable Value.  The Board agreed to lower his Taxable Value to $328,070.

52



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 6:00PM # 06.053

Phone: (home) 248-645-9716 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/09/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n MARIA & BIAGIO CACCIOTTOLO
add 2840 DONEGAL
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
06A R 2,155 157.35 13,340
S.D.
010

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

06-101-013 401 156,210 130,210 169,550 134,500 145,000 134,500 0

Mr. & Mrs. Cacciottolo stated that due to the costly repairs that need to be done to 
their home, due to foundation problems, they would like the Assessed Value of their 
home reduced because when the repairs are disclosed to a buyer the house won't be 
worth as much. They are on a fixed income and repairs have cost $30,000 so far with 
additional repairs in the future.  The deck and landscaping had to be removed for 
repairs to be made.  Due to structural conditions to the home not fully remedied the 
Board agreed to change the Assessed Value to $145,000. 

53



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 6:10PM # 06.054

Phone: (home) 248-649-5927 Phone:(work) 586-947-7084

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/09/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n NANTU ROY
add 1465 MUER
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
20C COL 2,653 150.25 6,770 22,720
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

20-427-034 401 169,820 169,820 199,310 199,310 199,310 199,310 0

Mr. Roy appeared before the Board and stated that the Taxable Value is too high. His 
house is next to Crooks Rd., which makes it noisy, and he faces a junky house.  He is 
a first time home buyer and feels the house is worth less than he paid for it.  The 
Board pointed out that the Assessed Value is at less than 50% of his 2005 purchase 
price.  The Board stated that he established the market value when he purchased the 
home and voted for no change.

54



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 6:20PM # 06.055

Phone: (home) 248-649-9699 Phone:(work) 248-203-7800

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n MARY NICOLETTI
add 3861 ESTATES CT
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
19B COL 4,052 119.41 20,000
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

19-203-037 401 221,920 202,510 241,920 209,190 241,920 209,190 0

Mr. Nicoletti appeared before the Board and distributed data he had prepared to 
support lowering his Assessed Value.  He had previously lived directly across from his
present home and moved back to his old neighborhood because they liked it better.  
They have four children and knew he was overbuilding for the subdivision when he 
put on the addition. Based on comparables and our sales study the Board voted for 
no change.

55



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 6:30PM # 06.056

Phone: (home) 248-828-7297 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n W. TSCHERNIWETZ
add 1166 E SOUTH BOULEVARD
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
01D COL 2,317 135.58 (12,990)
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

01-101-028 401 170,060 126,530 157,070 130,700 170,060 130,700 0

Mr. Tscherniwetz wanted his Assessed Value raised to equal what it was in 2005.  
The Board agreed to raise the Assessed Value to $170,060 to reflect the market.

56



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 6:40PM # 06.057

Phone: (home) 248-689-3369 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n KATHLEEN ABOUREZK
add 2689 E BIG BEAVER
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
RAN R 1,203 141.88 (16,540)
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

24-456-016 401 101,880 44,290 85,340 45,750 77,500 45,750 0

Ms. Abourezk appeared before the Board with concern that road widening of E. Big 
Beaver had taken value from her home.  Part of her parcel was purchased for right of 
way by the City of Troy in 1984 and she thought she was still paying taxes on that 
portion.  The City Assessor explained that the Assessing Department does not 
assess land that is in the ultimate right of way. Her property is still on septic.  The 
Board agreed to lower the Assessed Value to reflect the market.

57



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 6:50PM # 06.058

Phone: (home) 248-379-0553 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n KEN SVRCINA
add 6858 NORTH POINTE
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
02S COL 2,525 173.60 28,960
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

02-229-029 401 190,210 183,660 219,170 189,720 202,500 189,720 0

Mr. Svrcina thought the Assessed Value was increased based on comparable sales.  
He presented a comparable sale at 1916 Smallbrook that is the identical house to his, 
with many updates that he did not have. This home sold for $405,000.  The Board 
agreed to lower the Assessed Value to $202,500 based his comparable sale.

58



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 7:00PM # 06.059

Phone: (home) 248-829-8305 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n KENNETH WALKER
add 2196 RADCLIFFE
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
12L COL 3,090 140.72 11,880

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

12-376-031 401 205,540 180,540 217,420 186,490 182,000 182,000 -4,490

Mr. & Mrs. Walker distributed packets to the Board with data on the nineteen homes 
in their subdivision, which is one block long.  Their home is classified as B and the 
other homes are classified BC and they feel their Assessed Value is inflated because 
of this. Based on sales study and the inflated classification the Board agreed to lower 
the Assessed Value to $182,000. 

59



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 7:10PM # 06.060

Phone: (home) 248-646-8227 Phone:(work) 248-219-6995

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n UMIAH FAKHOURI
add 3034 CAMDEN
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
C3101 COL 1,969 153.94 3,030
S.D.
035

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

31-228-017 405 148,520 148,520 151,550 151,550 142,500 142,500 -9,050

Mr. Fakhourqi appeared before the Board and stated that this condominium was on 
the market for a long time and even though he purchased it from a relocation 
company, it was an arms length transaction.  On a split vote, the Board voted lower 
the Assessed Value to $142,500 based on the sales study.

60



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 7:20PM # 06.061

Phone: (home) 248-689-2965 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n BARBARA SCOFIELD
add 84 LETONIA
c/s/z TROY MI 48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
15F BUN 725 284.72 1,660

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

15-353-036 401 101,550 101,550 103,210 103,210 103,210 103,210 0

Ms. Scofield appeared and stated her father had built her home in 1942 and it is on a 
lot and a half.  The comparables she had were of much larger homes than hers, and 
not in her neighborhood. She said it is very difficult to find comparable homes to hers 
in the area.  The Board reviewed the value of large parcels and acreage.  Ms. 
Scofield has three buildable lots and most of the value is on the land.  A land re-
appraisal had raised her Assessed Value.  Due to considerable value in land the 
Board voted for no change.

61



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 7:30PM # 06.062

Phone: (home) 248-828-9980 Phone:(work) 586-575-7847

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n YUNQIANG LI
add 6115 COUNTRY RIDGE
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
05F COL 4,107 136.54 2,580

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

05-354-002 401 277,800 277,800 280,380 280,380 280,380 280,380 0

Mr. Li appeared before the Board and stated the Assessed Value of his house should 
be going down in this market.  He stated he would not currently pay what he paid for 
his home in 2003.  He mentioned some homes that had sold for less than their 
previous purchase price.  After the Board reached a decision, Mr. Li wanted to 
continue debating, and wanted to present more data.  He was informed that the 
Board had made a decision for no change, based on the sales study, and that he was 
not allowed to debate the decision.  He was informed that he could appeal further to 
the Michigan Tax Tribunal.  He was very displeased with the local review process, 
and the quick decision of the Board.

62



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 7:40PM # 06.063

Phone: (home) 248-828-0043 Phone:(work) 248-882-6060

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ROCH MORIN
add 6725 MICHAEL
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
04J COL #DIV/0! 19,940

S.D.
010

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

04-276-059 401 260,230 260,230 280,170 268,810 270,000 268,810 0

Mr. Morin presented the Board with comparables based on sales in his subdivision.  
Three of the houses were built by his builder, Kestral, and the rest by Mike Lamb.  He 
stated that the Lamb built homes have more upgrades and are much more expensive 
than the Kestral built homes.  Based on the sales study the Board agreed to lower the 
Assessed Value to $270,000.

63



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 7:50PM # 06.064

Phone: (home) 248-585-3668 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n RUDOLF LAZE
add 2843 IOWA
c/s/z TROY MI  48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
36C R 1,872 125.52 6,650
S.D.

750
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

36-226-072 401 110,840 109,200 117,490 112,800 112,490 112,490 -310

Mr. & Mrs. Laze stated that they felt the value of his house should be $180,000.  He 
said that market value is down in Michigan, real estate is going down, and there are 
no parks near him.  The property that was rezoned on E. Maple, behind his home, is 
still for sale.  Nothing is being done with this property since his appearance at the 
Board last year.  Mr. Laze feels the square footage the City has for his house is not 
correct, that the house needs work, needs painting and has mildew. The Board 
agreed to lower the Assessed Value to $112,490, to reflect the market value.  Mr. 
Laze disagreed strongly with this Board action, as it did very little towards lowering his 
taxes.  He stated that he does not like the response from the Assessing Department 
to his initial call, was not satisfied with Mr. Licari's handling of his concerns, felt the 
Board would only do what the City Assessor wanted, as they were paid by the City for 
their time, and made other unfounded accusations. 

64



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 8:00PM # 06.065

Phone: (home) 248-879-2180 Phone:(work) 586-506-2026

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ROBERT & LUCY SILVERMAN
add 6602 PINEWAY
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
05D COL 3,187 145.69 8,100
S.D.
010

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

05-204-011 401 224,050 219,770 232,150 227,020 232,150 227,020 0

Mr. Silverman stated that the house next door sold for $460,000.  He put a new roof 
on last year and has bad windows on his house. Based on the sales study, in a split 
vote, the Board voted for no change.

65



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 8:10PM # 06.066

Phone: (home) 248-879-0827 Phone:(work) 313-390-6369

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/08/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n BARRY & ELAINE JOHNSON
add 2835 E SQUARE LAKE
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
RAN R 1,567 147.16 (18,740)
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

01-476-068 401 134,040 68,430 115,300 70,680 134,040 70,680 0

Mr. & Mrs. Johnson and Anna Prochaska appeared before the Board. They were 
representing both 2835 and 2853 E. Square Lake Rd. that had decreases in 
Assessed Value and felt it was not correct.  Mrs. Johnson read from a prepared 
statement of what occurred when she called our department and spoke with various 
personnel.  She went to the City website and found comparable sales on Square Lake
Rd. and asked the Board to search for others in her area. The Board agreed to return 
to the 2005 Assessed Value of $134,040.

66



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 8:20PM # 06.067

Phone: (home) 248-879-0827 Phone:(work) 313-390-6369-ELAINE

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/09/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ELAINE JOHNSON-REP
add ANNA PROCHASKA
c/s/z 2853 E SQUARE LAKE RD

TROY MI  48085

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
RAN R 1,080 132.30 (13,010)
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

01-476-028 401 84,450 62,900 71,440 64,970 84,450 64,970 0

Mr. & Mrs. Johnson and Anna Proschaska appeared before the Board. Mrs. 
Johnson's presentation was for 2853 and 2835 E. Square Lake Rd. and she spoke on 
behalf of Anna Prochaska whose Assessed Value had been reduced.  Mrs. Johnson 
felt based on sales she had researched the value should be restored to the same as 
2005.  The Board agreed to change the Assessed Value to $84,450.

67



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 8:30PM # 06.068

Phone: (home) 248-953-4490 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: 03/10/06 Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n SANDRA SARNACKI
add 3704 FORGE
c/s/z TROY MI 48083

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
24G R 1,755 143.60 580
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

24-179-006 401 125,430 125,430 126,010 126,010 124,000 124,000 -2,010

Ms. Sarnacki appeared before the Board and asked for her Assessed Value to be 
lowered. Based on sales in the area, and her 2004 purchase price of $248,000, the 
Board agreed to lower Assessed and Taxable Value to $124,000.

68



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 8:40PM # 06.069

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JIANMING TAO
add 1971 BLUFF
c/s/z TROY MI  48098

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
17B COL 3,482 152.02 12,660
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

17-102-001 401 252,000 252,000 264,660 260,310 264,660 260,310 0

Mr. Tao appeared before the Board to have his Assessed Value changed back to the 
2005 value. He bought the house in 2004 and feels the market is down since he 
purchased.  It is noisy because the property sides to Coolidge.  The Assessing 
Department has a 10% reduction on the land and building for siding Coolidge.  Based 
on the sales study, and recognizing the proximity to Coolidge, the Board voted for no 
change.  

69



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 8:50PM # 06.070

Phone: (home) 248-321-3948 Phone:(work) 586-492-8956

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n HOWARD WEISS
add 3445 ROXBURY CT
c/s/z TROY MI  48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
30D R 1,582 121.55 8,610
S.D.
030

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

30-126-082 401 87,540 85,310 96,150 88,120 76,150 68,120 -20,000

Mr. Weiss appeared before the Board and presented an estimate of repairs for 
$40,000 to his home due to significant flood damage. All carpet will need to be 
replaced, kitchen cabinets are damaged, the wood floor near the entrance is 
damaged, bathroom walls and vanity and other walls will be checked for mold.  The 
flood was caused by the laundry room. Mr. Weiss said his home was built in 1954 and 
felt it would sell for $145,000. The Board voted to lower the Assessed Value and 
Taxable based on the flood water damage repair estimate.

70



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 9:00PM # 06.071

Phone: (home) 248-225-6289 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n GHIYATH HABRA
add 2335 BELMONT
c/s/z TROY MI  48098-2352

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
07J COL 4,548 185.91 20,170

S.D.
260

Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

07-201-017 401 402,600 402,600 422,770 415,880 422,770 415,880 0

Mr. Habra presented copies of current comparable sales for the Board.  He would like 
an adjustment to his Assessed Value based on those sales.  The Board explained the 
time frame of the 24 month sales study.  Based on that sales study, the Board voted 
for no change.

71



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 9:10PM # 06.072

Phone: (home) 248-219-3091 Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n PING GE & XIAN CHUN JIANG
add 16968 BOULDER 236 REGENT
c/s/z NORTHVILLE MI  48167 TROY MI 48084

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
28D COL 2,092 165.26 4,360
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

28-428-032 401 168,500 135,380 172,860 139,840 161,000 139,840 0

Ping Ge & Xian Chun Jiang appeared before the Board.  They felt their Assessed 
Value should be $160,000 because it would be closer to the current market.  Based 
on our sales study the Board agreed to change the Assessed Value to $161,000.

72



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/14/06 Appt Time 9:20PM # 06.073

Phone: (home) 248-515-8289 Phone:(work) 586-558-0673

Appt. Notice Mailed: MADE TOO LATE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/16/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n CARLA INABNITT
add 2449 LONDON
c/s/z TROY MI  48085

      

Minutes: Minutes

N/C Type SqFt $/SqFt 2005 Loss 2006 Add'n 2006 Adj
13A COL 1,826 118.17 3,280
S.D.

260
Sidwell Use 05 A/V 05 T/V 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

13-180-005 401 104,610 67,080 107,890 69,290 104,625 69,290 0

Ms. Inabnitt mentioned that she thought the Assessed and Taxable Value were 
connected. A Board member explained the difference. Ms. Inabnitt stated she felt we 
were dealing with old data, that home values have dropped, and presented copies of 
newspaper articles to the Board to support this.  There are group homes in her 
subdivision, but no one will tell which ones they are, and she feels the residents of 
these homes create problems. There is a person with a criminal record in the area, 
and she distributed copies from a website and newspaper regarding crimes. Based 
on sales data, the Board agreed to reduce the Assessed Value to $104,625. 

73



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

TUESDAY, MARCH 21, 2006

Correspondence Appeals

Michigan law allows any taxpayer to appeal in writing to the local
Board of Review.  Written appeals are given the same scrutiny as
in-person appeals.  Many of them do not present any evidence
of value and simply request a review by the Board.  The Board 
votes on these appeals and the vote is recorded in the minutes.
These petitioners are also allowed to appeal further to the 
Michigan Tax Tribunal if they are not satisfied with the Board's
action.  The Correspondence Appeals follow.



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.001

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

02-227-014 401 130,240 127,120 132,620 131,310 126,500 126,500 (4,810)
0

03/21/06

248-879-8687

LUIGI VETTRAINO
6805 EMERALD SHORES
TROY MI 48085
      

The Board reduced the Assessed and Taxable Value on this property based on the 
2003 purchase price.

74



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.002

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

06-176-027 401 154,740 111,510 209,190 115,180 209,190 115,180 0
0

03/21/06

JON D EATON
6647 BEACH RD
TROY MI  48098
      

The Board voted for no change.

75



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.003

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

09-228-022 401 145,660 145,660 130,960 130,960 130,960 130,960 0
0

03/21/06

586-263-1911 248-343-3119-Cell

KENNETH L DAVIS
42550 GARFIELD RD # 101B
CLINTON TWP MI  48038
      

Based on a Gross Rent Multiplier, Income and Expenses, and the sales study, the 
Board voted for no change to this rental property.

76



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.004

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

09-151-003 201 7,297,780 4,208,060 7,144,750 4,346,920 7,144,750 4,346,920 0
         

03/21/06

248-351-3000

GARY R GLENN
JAFFE, RAITT, HEUER & WEISS
27777 FRANKLIN RD # 2500
SOUTHFIELD MI  48034-8214

The Board voted for no change on this parcel.  There is an active appeal for this 
property at the Michigan Tax Tribunal.

77



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.005

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

09-151-006 201 7,214,790 3,269,950 7,422,560 3,377,850 7,422,560 3,377,850 0
0

03/21/06

248-351-3000

GARY GLENN
JAFFE, RAITT, HEUER & WEISS
27777 FRANKLIN RD # 2500
SOUTHFIELD MI  48034-8214

The Board voted for no change to this parcel.  There is an active appeal at the 
Michigan Tax Tribunal for this property.

78



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.006

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

12-280-010 401 124,500 91,910 126,390 94,940 126,390 94,940 0
0

03/21/06

248-709-9786

PATRICIA ELDRIDGE
5505 SHALE
TROY MI  48084-3953
      

The Board voted for no change to this parcel based on the market data available.

79



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.007

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

13-428-009 401 182,890 129,450 188,600 133,720 188,600 133,720 0
0

03/21/06

GLENN & MARY ANN WILKINS
4233 BRIGHTWOOD 
TROY MI  48085-7005
      

Based on the sales study, the Board voted for no change.

80



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.008

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

16-601-001 201 0 0 106,530 0 0 0 0
00-338-480 202 0 0 3,760 3,760 0 0 0

03/21/06

248-901-4009

MARK MCGOWAN
PLUNKETT & COONEY
38505 WOODWARD AVE #2000
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI  48304

The Assessed and Taxable values were removed from these parcels while awaiting 
the STC audit and valuation.  The petitioner will then be able to appeal those values 
to the Michigan Tax Tribunal.

81



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.009

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

21-230-014 401 99,400 95,450 104,930 98,590 104,930 98,590 0
0

03/21/06

248-693-6245

JAMES PORRITT JR
436 S BROADWAY # C 170 WENDELTON
LAKE ORION MI  48362 TROY MI  48084
      

Based on the Sales in the area, the Board voted for no change.

82



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.010

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

23-303-038 201 294,760 290,070 349,500 349,500 349,500 349,500 0
0

03/21/06

248-709-3253

DENNIS TORPEY
OLD TROY LLC
12830 RATTALEE LAKE RD
DAVISBURG MI  48350-1212

Based on Income and Expense information supplied by the Petitioner, the Board 
voted for no change.

83



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.011

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

26-176-013 301 2,552,050 2,483,570 2,538,820 2,538,820 2,538,820 2,538,820 0
0

03/21/06

248-333-2373

JOSEPH F KOSIK JR
JFK INVESTMENTS
43252 WOODWARD Ave # 210
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI  48302

The Petitioner requests a reduction due to vacancy, but has not provided any detail of 
the vacancy.  The Assessing Department survey showed this property had 33% 
vacancy in 2005, and is now down to 13% vacancy for 2006.  The Board voted for no 
change. 

84



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.012

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

26-431-038 301 371,700 371,700 369,910 369,910 325,000 325,000 (44,910)
0

03/21/06

248-761-4429

STANLEY PHOTOGRAPHIC INC
PO BOX 82115 1965 LARCHWOOD
ROCHESTER MI  48083 TROY MI  48083
      

The Assessed and Taxable Value were lowered to reflect a newer building in an older 
area.

85



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.013

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

27-101-016 201 600,200 588,630 891,970 891,970 795,340 795,340 (96,630)
0

03/21/06

586-323-6555

DANNA LATTER LLC
47792 VAN DYKE AVE 400 E BIG BEAVER
SHELBY TWP MI  48317-3370 TROY MI  48083
      

The Assessed and Taxable Value were reduced to reflect a 50% completion of the 
new office building.

86



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.014

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

27-201-049 201 595,200 427,900 578,120 442,020 371,560 371,560 (70,460)
0

03/21/06

248-524-3244

DANIEL MACLEISH
CORNERSTONE VILLAGE
650 E BIG BEAVER # F
TROY MI  48083-1432

The Assessed and Taxable Values were reduced due to vacancy.

87



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.015

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

27-279-024 201 1,417,450 1,409,840 1,390,370 1,390,370 1,337,320 1,337,320 (53,050)
27-426-011 202 11,370 11,370 11,370 11,370 11,370 11,370 0

03/21/06

330-562-3335

KENNETH UNGAR
RED ROOF INNS 2350 ROCHESTER CT
251 W GARFIELD RD  #287 TROY MI  48083
AURORA OH  44202

The Assessed and Taxable Values of the main parcel were lowered due to a 
reduction in occupancy.  The total value is reflective of the main parcel, the vacant 
parcel, and the reported Personal Property for this property.

88



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.016

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

27-433-003 301 367,930 289,440 369,410 298,990 231,580 231,580 (67,410)
0

03/21/06

248-549-0830

KEVIN HEINTZ
HEINTZ CONSTRUCTION CO 2135 STEPHENSON HWY
4326 DELEMERE BLVD TROY MI  48083
ROYAL OAK MI  48073

Income and Expense information necessitated a reduction in Assessed and Taxable 
Value.

89



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.017

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

28-151-048 405 80,630 51,850 81,140 81,140 77,430 77,430 (3,710)
0

03/21/06

586-549-4076  

THERESA POROLNICZAK
733 KIRTS BLVD
TROY MI  48084
      

The Petitioner purchased a condominium that was in foreclosure, which is not 
considered an arm's length sale.  The average selling price for these properties in the 
sales study is $154,860.  The Board voted to reduce the Assessed and Taxable 
Values to $77,430.

90



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.018

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

28-430-017 201 666,760 520,370 667,780 537,540 667,780 537,540 0
0

03/21/06

734-427-1788

KAREN ANHEUSER
UNITED MORTGAGE & REALTY DEV
34201 INDUSTRIAL RD
LIVONIA MI  48150

Based on Income and Expense information supplied by the Petitioner, the Board 
voted for no change.

91



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.019

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

29-201-024 201 2,441,970 2,388,670 2,296,030 2,296,030 2,116,200 2,116,200 (179,830)
0

03/21/06

248-740-8700

KRISTEN SCHESTAG
M&B DEVELOPMENT INC 2150 BUTTERFIELD
2146 LIVERNOIS TROY MI  48084
TROY MI  48083

The Assessed and Taxable Values were reduced due to vacancy.

92



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.020

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

27-227-026 201 6,062,880 6,062,880 6,428,630 6,292,210 5,843,880 5,843,880 (448,330)
0

03/21/06

248-932-0060

CAROL S CHAPPELLE
EA&S INVESTMENTS 2125-2155 BUTTERFIELD
7115 ORCHARD LK RD #220 TROY MI 48084
WEST BL0OMFIELD MI  48322

The Assessed and Taxable Values were reduced based on vacancy, Income and 
Expense information, and an independent appraisal for the property.

93



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Coor06.021

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

30-101-058 401 288,830 270,380 288,370 279,300 288,370 279,300 0
0

03/21/06

248-953-7858

RICHARD CZAPSKI
3869 ROSEGLEN CT
TROY MI  48084-2691
      

Based on the sales study, in particular a sale on 09/05 for $631,000, that is 400 
square feet smaller than the subject property, the Board voted for no change.

94



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.022

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

31-228-015 405 124,520 124,520 127,240 127,240 127,240 127,240 0
0

03/21/06

313-496-7670

JOHATHAN BIELFIELD
1498 DEVON LN
TROY MI  48084-7046
      

Based on a range of selling prices for this unit of $230,500 to $269,000, the Board 
voted for no change.

95



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.023

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

31-228-046 405 138,630 131,590 141,520 135,930 141,520 135,930 0
0

03/21/06

313-496-7670

JENNIFER BIELFIELD
3090 CAMDEN DR
TROY MI  48084
      

While the value assessed against this unit is near the top of the range of $257,298 to 
$284,000, the Taxable Value is near the mid-point, the Board voted for no change.  

96



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.024

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

32-126-003 201 1,670,940 1,670,940 1,670,940 1,670,940 1,670,940 1,670,940 0
0

03/21/06

248-540-1000

JAMES MAWSON
COLLIERS INTERNATIONAL
2 CORPORATE DR  #300
SOUTHFIELD MI  48076

The Petitioner's agent states that the property was purchased for $2,489,770, and 
has added $169,226 in improvements to date.  There was a 2000 sale of the Property 
at $4,000,000, and the correct amount of the current sale is $3,001,050.  Additionally, 
the value has remained constant on the property since a 2002 MTT decision.  The 
Board voted for no change.

97



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.025

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

34-101-023 201 3,108,230 2,339,430 2,987,840 2,416,630 2,987,840 2,416,630 0
0

03/21/06

815-206-2920

JEFFERY KING-BURR WOLFF K-MART #4082
454 WEST JACKSON AVE 100 E MAPLE
WOODSTOCK IL  60098 TROY MI  48083
      

The Petitioner's agent requests a valuation that capitalizes the gross sales, based on 
a Tribunal case.  However, the agent has not supplied 2005 sales data, and relies on 
2004.  Additionally, the appraisal uses additional expenses that are not allowed in the 
Tribunal case.  Finally, the property's value is governed by an existing CAF lease, 
which the agent ignores.  At the suggestion of the City Assessor, the Board voted for 
no change.

98



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.026

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

35-126-020 201 9,183,910 5,992,640 9,381,130 6,190,390 6,857,760 5,776,470 (413,920)
0

03/21/06

248-932-0060

CAROL S CHAPPELLE
EA&S INVESTMENTS 850 STEPHENSON
7115 ORCHARD LK RD #220 TROY MI  48083
WEST BL0OMFIELD MI  48322

The Assessed and Taxable Values were reduced due to vacancy and rent 
concessions.

99



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.027

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

35-327-023 201 7,217,020 5,314,130 7,040,410 5,231,770 7,040,410 5,231,770 0
0

03/21/06

248-932-0060

CAROL S CHAPPELLE
EA&S INVESTMENTS 750 STEPHENSON
7115 ORCHARD LK RD #220 TROY MI  48083
WEST BL0OMFIELD MI  48322

The Petitioner requests a reduction as the vacancy is the same as last year.  The 
current Assessed and Taxable Value are less than last year's.  The Board voted for 
no change.

100



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.028

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

36-377-018 301 894,760 659,060 884,050 638,010 884,050 638,010 0
0

03/21/06

ED & DONNA MYLES
3246 WOODVIEW LK RD 308-310 EXECUTIVE
WEST BLOOMFIELD MI  48323-3570 TROY MI  48083
      

The Petitioner requests a decrease in valuation based on data not supplied.  As the 
Taxable Value is $235,700 less than the Assessed Value, and the sales study does 
not suggest a reduction in value, the Board voted for no change.

101



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:15PM # Corr06.029

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: CORRESPONDENCE Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

19-305-009 401 110,840 76,350 113,750 78,860 113,750 78,860 0
34-176-017 301 192,050 142,100 195,950 146,780 195,950 146,780 0

03/21/06

JOYCE KUBICKI 3384 PADDINGTON
PO BOX 587 1183-1185 COMBERMERE
BIRMINGHAM MI  48012-0587
      

The Board voted for no change to either parcel.

102



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

TUESDAY, MARCH 21, 2006

Poverty Exemptions

Poverty Exemptions are appeals for relief of a resident's tax
burden for one year, based on a financial or medical hardship.
Income and Asset guidelines are adopted each year by City
Council.  Each applicant must fill out a confidential affidavit
detailing their eligibility.  State law mandates that the Assessor 
and the Board of Review must agree on any exemption.  There
were twenty-one (21) exemptions applied for at this Board.
The Board's decisions follow.



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # 06.001H

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

08-101-020 401 119,650 0 126,130 123,120 126,130 0 (123,120)

03/21/06

      

The applicant was granted a poverty exemption.

103



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # 06.002H

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

08-101-024 401 108,230 0 113,810 95,910 113,810 0 (95,910)

03/21/06

      

The applicant was granted a poverty exemption.

104



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # 06.003H

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

09-202-015 401 78,540 0 78,460 42,990 78,460 0 (42,990)

03/21/06

      

The applicant was granted a poverty exemption.

105



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # 06.004H

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

09-253-004 401 94,350 0 94,180 59,350 94,180 0 (59,350)

03/21/06

      

The applicant was granted a poverty exemption.

106



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # 06.005H

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

11-377-009 401 99,290 0 103,230 80,360 103,230 0 (80,360)

03/21/06

      

The applicant was granted a poverty exemption.

107



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # 06.006H

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

12-253-015 401 124,570 0 126,460 93,560 126,460 0 (93,560)

03/21/06

      

The applicant was granted a poverty exemption.

108



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # 06.007H

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

14-102-028 401 108,890 0 109,500 42,870 109,500 0 (42,870)

03/21/06

      

The applicant was granted a poverty exemption.

109



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # 06.008H

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

21-226-002 401 107,570 107,570 120,940 120,940 120,940 120,940 0

03/21/06

      

The applicant did not meet the guidelines and was denied an exemption.

110



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # 06.009H

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

21-276-006 401 97,090 0 102,120 77,300 102,120 0 (77,300)

03/21/06

      

The applicant was granted a poverty exemption.

111



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # 06.010H

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

22-253-002 401 86,960 60,920 93,010 62,930 93,010 62,930 0

03/21/06

      

The applicant did not meet the guidelines and was denied an exemption.

112



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # 06.011H

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

22-379-001 401 75,940 0 77,250 44,190 77,250 0 (44,190)

03/21/06

      

The applicant was granted a poverty exemption.

113



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # 06.012H

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

25-127-004 405 64,970 45,950 63,940 47,460 63,940 47,460 0

03/21/06

      

The applicant did not meet the guidelines and was denied an exemption.

114



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # 06.013H

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

25-255-035 401 95,130 0 98,530 66,220 98,530 0 (66,220)

03/21/06

      

The applicant was granted a poverty exemption.

115



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # 06.014H

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

25-276-002 401 96,810 0 98,040 98,040 98,040 0 (98,040)

03/21/06

      

The applicant was granted a poverty exemption.

116



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # 06.015H

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

25-426-029 401 87,940 0 90,960 57,930 90,960 0 (57,930)

03/21/06

      

The applicant was granted a poverty exemption.

117



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # 06.016H

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

27-354-029 401 60,810 0 62,280 31,870 62,280 0 (31,870)

03/21/06

      

The applicant was granted a poverty exemption.

118



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # 06.017H

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

27-403-005 401 64,120 0 65,020 42,200 65,020 0 (42,200)

03/21/06

      

The applicant was granted a poverty exemption.

119



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # 06.018H

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

27-430-024 401 38,890 0 41,940 21,060 41,940 0 (21,060)

03/21/06

      

The applicant was granted a poverty exemption.

120



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # 06.019H

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

28-151-188 405 90,140 0 86,300 60,850 86,300 0 (60,850)

03/21/06

      

The appllicant was granted a poverty exemption.

121



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # 06.020H

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

34-126-011 401 57,080 0 60,430 30,170 60,430 0 (30,170)

03/21/06

      

The applicant was granted a poverty exemption.

122



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: Appt Time 2:30 PM # 06.021H

Phone: (home) Phone:(work)

Appt. Notice Mailed: POVERTY Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n
add
c/s/z

Minutes: Minutes

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change T/V

36-127-011 401 124,680 88,430 128,530 91,340 128,530 91,340 0

03/21/06

The applicant did not meet the guidelines and was denied an exemption.

123

      



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

TUESDAY, MARCH 21, 2006

Protection Appeals

Protection appeals are filed by an owner, or the owner's agent
to protect the right to appeal to the Michigan Tax Tribunal.  An
appeal before the Tribunal is only granted if the Petitioner has
appealed to the local Board of Review.  These appeals present
no data to support a change in assessment.  These appeals 
are "Noted and Denied" by the Board.  Recording them in the
minutes of the Board insures the Petitioner of an appearance at
the local Board, and the right to appeal to the Michigan Tax
Tribunal, if they feel an adjustment in value can be substantiated.
Those appeals follow this introduction.



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.001P

Phone: (#1) Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n OCTAVIO WILLIAMS
add ARVIN MERITOR INC
c/s/z 2135 W MAPLE RD

TROY MI  48084

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
32-126-035 301 12,242,590 12,242,590 12,516,830 12,516,830 12,516,830 12,516,830 Noted & Denied

124



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.002P

Phone: (#1) Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JEFFERY JOHNSON
add BECKER VENTURES
c/s/z 5755 NEW KING CT.

TROY MI  48098

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
35-327-024 201 5,752,310 5,530,720 5,459,530 5,459,530 5,459,530 5,459,530 Noted & Denied

35-327-025 201 5,785,920 5,650,170 5,488,960 5,488,960 5,488,960 5,488,960 Noted & Denied

125



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.003P

Phone: (#1) Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n VICTORIA ENYART
add JOHN BERNARD
c/s/z 304 W FOURTH ST

ROYAL OAK MI  48067

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
06-603-004 212 40,020 40,020 42,630 41,340 42,630 41,340 Noted & Denied

09-603-003 212 41,270 41,270 32,990 32,990 32,990 32,990 Noted & Denied

10-602-002 212 65,570 65,570 69,540 67,730 69,540 67,730 Noted & Denied

14-604-004 212 30,640 30,640 32,630 31,650 32,630 31,650 Noted & Denied

22-601-002 212 19,050 19,050 20,460 19,670 20,460 19,670 Noted & Denied

26-601-003 212 20,230 20,230 20,230 20,230 20,230 20,230 Noted & Denied

28-602-002 211 0 0 0 0 0 0 Noted & Denied

29-604-004 212 16,690 16,690 20,460 17,240 20,460 17,240 Noted & Denied

32-200-032 201 8,901,910 8,638,430 8,525,690 8,525,690 8,525,690 8,525,690 Noted & Denied

34-602-002 212 20,050 20,050 21,340 20,710 21,340 20,710 Noted & Denied

00-226-640 251 26,280 26,280 24,270 24,270 24,270 24,270 Noted & Denied

00-282-040 251 44,920 44,920 1,940 1,940 1,940 1,940 Noted & Denied

00-283-020 251 53,680 53,680 52,270 52,270 52,270 52,270 Noted & Denied

00-283-040 251 71,000 71,000 67,170 67,170 67,170 67,170 Noted & Denied

00-283-400 251 70,190 70,190 76,720 76,720 76,720 76,720 Noted & Denied

00-287-060 351 65,720 65,720 70,330 70,330 70,330 70,330 Noted & Denied

00-290-920 251 50,400 50,400 17,930 17,930 17,930 17,930 Noted & Denied

00-301-960 251 37,870 37,870 34,560 34,560 34,560 34,560 Noted & Denied

00-303-260 251 42,880 42,880 44,570 44,570 44,570 44,570 Noted & Denied

00-310-300 351 42,720 42,720 37,610 37,610 37,610 37,610 Noted & Denied

00-311-900 251 83,960 83,960 77,740 77,740 77,740 77,740 Noted & Denied

00-311-920 251 60,280 60,280 56,800 56,800 56,800 56,800 Noted & Denied

00-311-940 251 44,220 44,220 43,070 43,070 43,070 43,070 Noted & Denied

00-311-960 251 77,550 77,550 61,400 61,400 61,400 61,400 Noted & Denied

00-312-000 251 65,090 65,090 46,950 46,950 46,950 46,950 Noted & Denied

00-317-120 351 41,670 41,670 42,930 42,930 42,930 42,930 Noted & Denied

00-327-180 251 62,820 62,820 50,390 50,390 50,390 50,390 Noted & Denied

00-329-220 251 2,670 2,670 2,330 2,330 2,330 2,330 Noted & Denied

00-329-240 251 2,140 2,140 1,840 1,840 1,840 1,840 Noted & Denied

00-329-260 351 3,490 3,490 2,760 2,760 2,760 2,760 Noted & Denied

00-329-280 251 2,460 2,460 2,460 2,460 2,460 2,460 Noted & Denied

00-329-920 251 55,700 55,700 51,660 51,660 51,660 51,660 Noted & Denied

00-336-360 251 0 0 51,880 51,880 51,880 51,880 Noted & Denied

00-338-680 251 770 770 560 560 560 560 Noted & Denied

continued:
126



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

VICTORIA ENYART
JOHN BERNARD
304 W FOURTH ST
ROYAL OAK MI  48067 continued:

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
00-338-700 251 620 620 490 490 490 490 Noted & Denied

00-339-160 251 1,910 1,910 1,790 1,790 1,790 1,790 Noted & Denied

00-715-370 251 194,300 194,300 64,180 64,180 64,180 64,180 Noted & Denied

00-715-410 251 47,820 47,820 48,700 48,700 48,700 48,700 Noted & Denied

00-717-510 251 60,670 60,670 71,410 71,410 71,410 71,410 Noted & Denied

end
127



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 6.004P

Phone: (#1) Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n CARL RASHID
add BUTZEL LONG
c/s/z 150 WEST JEFFERSON

DETROIT  MI  48226

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
32-200-021 301 1,987,230 1,827,690 1,977,220 1,888,000 1,977,220 1,888,000 Noted & Denied

128



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.005P

Phone: (#1) Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n THOMAS E MCHUGH
add CADENCE INNOVATION
c/s/z 6555 15 MILE RD

STERLING HEIGHTS MI.  48312

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
00-252-380 381 647,450 647,450 463,870 463,870 463,870 463,870 Noted & Denied

129



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.006P

Phone: (#1) Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n MARK CAPALDI
add SIEMENS VDO AUTOMOTIVE
c/s/z PO BOX 159

BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI  48303

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
17-278-014 201 7,252,230 5,923,090 7,252,230 6,118,550 7,252,230 6,118,550 Noted & Denied

35-201-066 301 6,631,440 3,511,380 5,335,650 3,080,650 5,335,650 3,080,650 Noted & Denied

00-239-940 251 0 0 0 0 0 0 Noted & Denied

00-294-820 251 2,401,760 2,401,760 2,356,710 2,356,710 2,356,710 2,356,710 Noted & Denied

130



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.007P

Phone: (#1) Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JULIANNA C WOSTYN
add COLLIERS INTERNATIONAL 
c/s/z 2 CORPORATE DR, SUITE 300

SOUTHFIELD MI 48076

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
05-200-005 201 3,744,030 3,579,440 3,731,030 3,697,560 3,731,030 3,697,560 Noted & Denied

07-480-001 201 276,900 276,000 277,140 277,140 277,140 277,140 Noted & Denied

08-227-002 301 4,003,950 3,645,020 3,879,070 3,765,300 3,879,070 3,765,300 Noted & Denied

08-476-014 201 1,021,930 1,021,930 1,051,560 1,051,560 1,051,560 1,051,560 Noted & Denied

11-226-031 201 1,204,180 846,040 1,205,760 873,950 1,205,760 873,950 Noted & Denied

14-101-042 201 407,910 394,840 408,720 407,860 408,720 407,860 Noted & Denied

15-201-018 202 28,110 28,110 28,110 28,110 28,110 28,110 Noted & Denied

15-201-038 201 383,740 383,740 384,160 384,160 384,160 384,160 Noted & Denied

15-478-015 201 544,500 469,840 546,850 485,340 546,850 485,340 Noted & Denied

17-226-003 201 632,900 571,240 633,540 590,090 633,540 590,090 Noted & Denied

20-376-001 201 30,327,870 26,739,140 32,371,750 27,621,530 32,371,750 27,621,530 Noted & Denied

22-477-060 201 1,122,160 1,117,700 1,108,110 1,108,110 1,108,110 1,108,110 Noted & Denied

23-476-015 201 18,805,730 9,095,860 19,165,580 9,755,870 19,165,580 9,755,870 Noted & Denied

28-101-050 201 3,208,420 2,054,850 3,275,480 2,122,660 3,275,480 2,122,660 Noted & Denied

28-101-051 201 5,276,530 3,907,710 5,468,770 4,036,660 5,468,770 4,036,660 Noted & Denied

29-101-006 201 354,730 332,760 355,170 343,740 355,170 343,740 Noted & Denied

29-201-001 201 1,728,280 1,220,590 1,672,100 1,260,860 1,672,100 1,260,860 Noted & Denied

29-201-022 202 41,940 41,940 41,940 41,940 41,940 41,940 Noted & Denied

29-426-042 301 1,364,950 967,350 1,336,940 999,270 1,336,940 999,270 Noted & Denied

31-226-017 201 2,596,780 2,524,300 2,596,110 2,596,110 2,596,110 2,596,110 Noted & Denied

32-126-003 201 1,670,940 1,670,940 1,670,940 1,670,940 1,670,940 1,670,940 Noted & Denied

32-226-004 201 436,830 419,890 441,740 433,740 441,740 433,740 Noted & Denied

34-101-022 201 422,590 372,420 423,980 384,700 423,980 384,700 Noted & Denied

34-101-028 201 734,750 731,110 725,380 725,380 725,380 725,380 Noted & Denied

36-100-057 201 419,320 402,190 419,640 415,460 419,640 415,460 Noted & Denied

36-351-004 201 426,420 414,350 427,060 427,060 427,060 427,060 Noted & Denied

36-476-032 201 1,148,100 1,140,310 1,150,530 1,150,530 1,150,530 1,150,530 Noted & Denied

00-040-568 351 100,040 100,040 91,990 91,990 91,990 91,990 Noted & Denied

00-056-918 251 636,120 636,120 603,220 603,220 603,220 603,220 Noted & Denied

00-059-004 351 0 0 0 0 0 0 Noted & Denied

00-064-060 251 93,850 93,850 88,210 88,210 88,210 88,210 Noted & Denied

00-272-780 251 21,650 21,650 18,320 18,320 18,320 18,320 Noted & Denied

00-320-120 351 224,590 224,590 231,610 231,610 231,610 231,610 Noted & Denied

131



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.008P

Phone: (#1) Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n CONSUMERS ENERGY
add ONE ENERGY PLAZA
c/s/z JACKSON, MI  49201

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
11-101-016 205 37,760 37,760 37,760 37,760 37,760 37,760 Noted & Denied

17-351-029 205 50,860 50,860 50,860 50,860 50,860 50,860 Noted & Denied

26-101-001 205 8,250 8,250 8,250 8,250 8,250 8,250 Noted & Denied

29-352-003 202 14,380 14,380 14,380 14,380 14,380 14,380 Noted & Denied

00-006-100 551 531,620 531,620 525,240 525,240 525,240 525,240 Noted & Denied

00-006-101 551 417,390 417,390 425,250 425,250 425,250 425,250 Noted & Denied

00-006-102 551 69,380 69,380 69,340 69,340 69,340 69,340 Noted & Denied

00-006-103 551 41,550 41,550 41,000 41,000 41,000 41,000 Noted & Denied

00-006-104 551 29,120 29,120 30,540 30,540 30,540 30,540 Noted & Denied

00-006-105 551 6,347,430 6,347,430 6,338,930 6,338,930 6,338,930 6,338,930 Noted & Denied

00-006-106 551 590,330 590,330 574,410 574,410 574,410 574,410 Noted & Denied

00-707-330 551 98,110 98,110 96,850 96,850 96,850 96,850 Noted & Denied

132



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.009P

Phone: (#1) Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n CIT TECH CORP
add 2285 FRANKLIN ROAD
c/s/z PO BOX 2017

BLOOMFILED HILLS MI  48303-2017

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
00-008-119 251 780,180 780,180 530,670 530,670 530,670 530,670 Noted & Denied

00-705-550 251 122,120 122,120 84,570 84,570 84,570 84,570 Noted & Denied

00-710-870 251 0 0 0 0 0 0 Noted & Denied

00-712-270 251 0 0 0 0 0 0 Noted & Denied

00-725-630 251 0 0 0 0 0 0 Noted & Denied

00-726-930 251 523,010 523,010 310,110 310,110 310,110 310,110 Noted & Denied

00-730-830 251 0 0 0 0 0 0 Noted & Denied

00-730-850 251 0 0 0 0 0 0 Noted & Denied

00-738-450 251 0 0 0 0 0 0 Noted & Denied

133



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.010.P

Phone: (#1) Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n FREDERICK J MAWSON
add CORPORATE TAX RESOURCES
c/s/z 3871 WINDING PINE DR

METAMORA MI  48455

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
03-301-063 201 298,160 212,830 297,410 219,850 297,410 219,850 Noted & Denied

22-477-054 201 461,110 384,170 463,120 396,840 463,120 396,840 Noted & Denied

134



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.011.P

Phone: (#1) Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n SCOTT ASTON
add DELOITTE TAX LLP
c/s/z 600 RENAISSANCE CENTER #900

DETROIT MI  48243

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
09-151-004 201 3,780,050 3,329,660 3,780,050 3,439,530 3,780,050 3,439,530 Noted & Denied

21-476-018 201 16,669,740 16,669,740 16,611,520 16,611,520 16,611,520 16,611,520 Noted & Denied

26-326-024 201 3,907,420 3,236,000 3,825,720 3,342,780 3,825,720 3,342,780 Noted & Denied

135



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.012.P

Phone: (#1) Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n EDWARD U BLANCHARD
add DIVERSIFIED PROPERTY 
c/s/z 26400 LAHSER RD SUITE 307

SOUTHFIELD MI  48304

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
32-226-032 301 5,999,030 5,301,560 4,547,400 4,040,360 4,547,400 4,040,360 Noted & Denied

136



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.013.P

Phone: (#1) Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JERRY HENDERSON
add DETROIT EDISON
c/s/z 2000 SECOND AVE

DETROIT MI  48226

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
06-353-001 205 59,470 59,470 59,470 59,470 59,470 59,470 Noted & Denied

17-200-011 205 56,880 56,880 56,880 56,880 56,880 56,880 Noted & Denied

20-376-005 205 101,190 101,190 101,190 101,190 101,190 101,190 Noted & Denied

24-352-046 205 67,710 67,710 67,710 67,710 67,710 67,710 Noted & Denied

28-227-007 205 512,340 512,340 512,340 512,340 512,340 512,340 Noted & Denied

28-302-012 205 68,470 68,470 68,470 68,470 68,470 68,470 Noted & Denied

32-101-024 205 47,310 47,310 47,310 47,310 47,310 47,310 Noted & Denied

34-227-007 205 87,730 79,660 88,950 82,280 88,950 82,280 Noted & Denied

00-007-000 551 1,602,210 1,602,210 1,600,190 1,600,190 1,600,190 1,600,190 Noted & Denied

00-007-001 551 858,540 858,540 856,890 856,890 856,890 856,890 Noted & Denied

00-007-002 551 797,420 797,420 777,330 777,330 777,330 777,330 Noted & Denied

00-007-003 551 331,050 331,050 308,230 308,230 308,230 308,230 Noted & Denied

00-007-004 551 149,960 149,960 183,160 183,160 183,160 183,160 Noted & Denied

00-007-005 551 25,683,230 25,683,230 25,365,850 25,365,850 25,365,850 25,365,850 Noted & Denied

00-007-006 551 2,580,190 2,580,190 2,541,970 2,541,970 2,541,970 2,541,970 Noted & Denied

00-708-110 551 887,030 887,030 863,470 863,470 863,470 863,470 Noted & Denied

137



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.014.P

Phone: (#1) Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n VICKY CHAPMAN
add EDS
c/s/z 5400 LEGACY DRIVE

PLANO TX  75024

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
00-720-510 251 33,420 33,420 28,640 28,640 28,640 28,640 Noted & Denied

00-720-530 251 767,900 767,900 672,790 672,790 672,790 672,790 Noted & Denied

00-720-550 251 900 900 650 650 650 650 Noted & Denied

00-720-570 251 6,770,190 6,770,190 4,815,600 4,815,600 4,815,600 4,815,600 Noted & Denied

00-720-610 251 1,884,790 1,884,790 1,289,640 1,289,640 1,289,640 1,289,640 Noted & Denied

138



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.015.P

Phone: (#1) Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n BRENDA BECK
add FORD MOTOR COMPANY
c/s/z 4 PARKLANE BLVD  SUITE 330

DEARBORN MI  48126

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
00-065-085 251 109,710 109,710 96,220 96,220 96,220 96,220 Noted & Denied

139



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.016.P

Phone: (#1) 866-614-7562 Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n FAISAL I SHEIKH
add GE CAPITAL SOLUTIONS
c/s/z PO BOX 3649

DANBURY CT  06813-3649

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
00-006-777 251 44,120 44,120 38,690 38,690 38,690 38,690 Noted & Denied

00-006-778 251 810,130 810,130 866,730 866,730 866,730 866,730 Noted & Denied

00-006-779 251 113,030 113,030 88,420 88,420 88,420 88,420 Noted & Denied

00-703-170 251 33,840 33,840 27,950 27,950 27,950 27,950 Noted & Denied

00-707-490 251 635,240 635,240 633,490 633,490 633,490 633,490 Noted & Denied

00-721-610 251 56,980 56,980 49,260 49,260 49,260 49,260 Noted & Denied

00-725-730 251 0 0 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 Noted & Denied

00-725-750 251 3,810 3,810 3,260 3,260 3,260 3,260 Noted & Denied

00-732-270 251 169,470 169,470 100,430 100,430 100,430 100,430 Noted & Denied

00-737-730 251 1,340 1,340 1,150 1,150 1,150 1,150 Noted & Denied

00-737-750 251 139,990 139,990 91,100 91,100 91,100 91,100 Noted & Denied

00-737-770 251 461,410 461,410 403,550 403,550 403,550 403,550 Noted & Denied

00-737-790 251 2,900 2,900 940 940 940 940 Noted & Denied

00-737-810 251 92,790 92,790 77,080 77,080 77,080 77,080 Noted & Denied

00-737-830 251 7,140 7,140 6,140 6,140 6,140 6,140 Noted & Denied

00-739-610 251 9,950 9,950 7,580 7,580 7,580 7,580 Noted & Denied

00-739-630 251 56,580 56,580 145,280 145,280 145,280 145,280 Noted & Denied

00-739-650 251 15,220 15,220 253,180 253,180 253,180 253,180 Noted & Denied

00-739-670 251 6,420 6,420 585,100 585,100 585,100 585,100 Noted & Denied

00-739-930 251 3,500 3,500 3,120 3,120 3,120 3,120 Noted & Denied

00-742-090 251 0 0 18,410 18,410 18,410 18,410 Noted & Denied

00-742-110 251 0 0 3,680 3,680 3,680 3,680 Noted & Denied

00-742-290 251 0 0 1,110 1,110 1,110 1,110 Noted & Denied

140



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.017.P

Phone: (#1) Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ERIN R TONDA
add HALLORAN & ASSOCIATES PLC
c/s/z 541 E GRAND RIVER SUITE 201

EAST LANSING MI  48823

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
23-100-070 201 1,112,560 952,760 1,114,020 984,200 1,114,020 984,200 Noted & Denied

141



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.018.P

Phone: (#1) Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JOHN J PREMO
add KICKHAM HANLEY PC
c/s/z 32121 WOODWARD AVE

ROYAL OAK MI  48073-0999

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
14-226-043 201 556,760 553,690 545,230 545,230 545,230 545,230 Noted & Denied

142



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.019.P

Phone: (#1) Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n HOFFERT & ASSOCIATES, PC
add 30300 NORTHWESTERN HWY #269
c/s/z FARMINGTON HILL MI  48334

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
09-476-034 201 466,700 313,800 467,350 324,150 467,350 324,150 Noted & Denied

09-476-042 201 1,707,650 975,820 1,608,890 1,008,020 1,608,890 1,008,020 Noted & Denied

10-351-018 201 4,348,670 4,071,820 4,335,860 4,206,190 4,335,860 4,206,190 Noted & Denied

10-351-019 201 689,030 466,790 658,120 482,190 658,120 482,190 Noted & Denied

11-226-003 401 496,110 409,930 475,200 423,450 475,200 423,450 Noted & Denied

15-101-025 201 310,560 294,850 314,090 304,580 314,090 304,580 Noted & Denied

27-301-023 201 351,100 300,990 333,900 310,920 333,900 310,920 Noted & Denied

28-151-031 203 383,500 304,600 383,500 314,650 383,500 314,650 Noted & Denied

28-151-032 203 843,710 573,540 843,710 592,460 843,710 592,460 Noted & Denied

28-151-033 203 1,048,250 694,910 1,048,250 717,840 1,048,250 717,840 Noted & Denied

28-301-016 301 745,390 489,070 747,820 505,200 747,820 505,200 Noted & Denied

28-401-063 301 266,360 192,810 272,090 199,170 272,090 199,170 Noted & Denied

28-401-077 301 300,440 199,840 306,900 206,430 306,900 206,430 Noted & Denied

29-352-049 201 1,367,090 947,710 1,380,940 978,980 1,380,940 978,980 Noted & Denied

35-102-037 301 1,047,050 733,500 551,750 551,750 551,750 551,750 Noted & Denied

35-102-038 301 2,260,400 1,345,670 1,334,390 1,334,390 1,334,390 1,334,390 Noted & Denied

35-226-042 201 229,310 177,540 229,280 183,390 229,280 183,390 Noted & Denied

36-302-008 301 1,387,980 1,052,950 1,404,490 1,087,690 1,404,490 1,087,690 Noted & Denied

36-326-037 301 1,588,620 1,336,610 1,585,270 1,380,710 1,585,270 1,380,710 Noted & Denied

36-326-041 301 645,990 426,850 660,560 440,930 660,560 440,930 Noted & Denied

36-326-042 301 744,550 544,010 758,260 561,960 758,260 561,960 Noted & Denied

36-376-019 301 530,610 396,080 542,120 409,150 542,120 409,150 Noted & Denied

36-376-033 301 600,020 433,840 417,430 417,430 417,430 417,430 Noted & Denied

36-376-035 301 339,360 286,030 342,960 295,460 342,960 295,460 Noted & Denied

36-377-020 201 613,380 417,510 584,950 431,280 584,950 431,280 Noted & Denied

00-052-151 251 8,830 8,830 8,980 8,980 8,980 8,980 Noted & Denied

143



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.020P

Phone: (#1) 313-465-7202 Phone:(#2) 248-840-6851

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n LEN KUTSCHMAN
add HONIGMAN MILLER 
c/s/z 660 WOODWARD AVE

DETROIT MI  48226-3583

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
02-251-005 401 179,270 124,840 187,230 128,950 187,230 128,950 Noted & Denied

02-301-010 203 6,840,400 5,332,840 6,840,400 5,508,820 6,840,400 5,508,820 Noted & Denied

08-227-008 201 7,226,060 4,418,150 5,806,210 4,339,750 5,806,210 4,339,750 Noted & Denied

08-276-003 201 5,792,530 3,339,150 4,797,070 3,449,340 4,797,070 3,449,340 Noted & Denied

08-451-004 201 6,841,240 3,281,670 4,363,860 3,201,900 4,363,860 3,201,900 Noted & Denied

08-451-011 201 10,571,990 6,463,240 6,996,630 6,676,520 6,996,630 6,676,520 Noted & Denied

08-451-012 201 10,841,740 5,930,840 11,690,240 5,787,620 11,690,240 5,787,620 Noted & Denied

08-451-014 201 7,460,100 4,259,250 5,212,880 4,259,670 5,212,880 4,259,670 Noted & Denied

08-476-007 201 5,982,590 4,012,320 5,835,480 4,144,720 5,835,480 4,144,720 Noted & Denied

08-476-009 201 6,277,210 6,023,930 6,129,700 6,129,700 6,129,700 6,129,700 Noted & Denied

08-476-011 201 7,792,160 7,592,760 8,021,520 7,843,320 8,021,520 7,843,320 Noted & Denied

08-476-016 201 1,747,900 1,002,060 1,747,030 1,035,120 1,747,030 1,035,120 Noted & Denied

08-476-017 201 8,499,060 4,798,230 8,128,460 4,956,570 8,128,460 4,956,570 Noted & Denied

08-476-018 201 8,837,100 8,732,120 8,416,820 8,416,820 8,416,820 8,416,820 Noted & Denied

08-476-020 301 2,750,000 1,805,380 2,750,000 1,864,950 2,750,000 1,864,950 Noted & Denied

09-151-003 201 7,297,780 4,208,060 7,144,750 4,346,920 7,144,750 4,346,920 Noted & Denied

09-151-006 201 7,214,790 3,269,950 7,422,560 3,377,850 7,422,560 3,377,850 Noted & Denied

09-301-003 201 12,694,650 11,967,490 11,085,770 10,649,010 11,085,770 10,649,010 Noted & Denied

09-301-012 201 14,280,420 10,868,040 14,181,580 10,768,400 14,181,580 10,768,400 Noted & Denied

09-301-014 201 12,149,840 10,812,060 11,140,940 10,045,930 11,140,940 10,045,930 Noted & Denied

09-301-015 201 12,084,200 10,773,220 12,460,890 11,128,730 12,460,890 11,128,730 Noted & Denied

09-302-003 201 13,244,930 10,950,750 13,557,910 11,312,120 13,557,910 11,312,120 Noted & Denied

09-302-004 201 13,363,140 11,535,390 13,645,830 11,916,050 13,645,830 11,916,050 Noted & Denied

13-228-019 201 741,620 738,450 712,970 712,970 712,970 712,970 Noted & Denied

14-351-056 201 1,283,340 1,093,530 1,274,500 1,129,610 1,274,500 1,129,610 Noted & Denied

17-200-026 201 13,282,870 8,686,300 12,814,590 8,972,940 12,814,590 8,972,940 Noted & Denied

17-226-002 201 4,101,380 2,124,270 4,195,890 2,194,370 4,195,890 2,194,370 Noted & Denied

17-226-008 201 4,573,610 4,521,970 4,598,180 4,598,180 4,598,180 4,598,180 Noted & Denied

18-402-032 401 210,870 210,870 209,460 209,460 209,460 209,460 Noted & Denied

19-453-005 201 9,829,990 9,829,990 9,829,990 9,829,990 9,829,990 9,829,990 Noted & Denied

19-453-008 201 7,437,080 7,437,080 7,437,080 7,437,080 7,437,080 7,437,080 Noted & Denied

19-453-009 201 6,733,550 6,733,550 6,733,550 6,733,550 6,733,550 6,733,550 Noted & Denied

20-351-005 201 11,817,930 11,817,930 11,817,930 11,817,930 11,817,930 11,817,930 Noted & Denied

continued:
144



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

LEN KUTSCHMAN
HONIGMAN MILLER 
660 WOODWARD AVE
DETROIT MI  48226-3583 continued:

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
21-351-013 201 16,432,560 16,432,560 16,579,620 16,579,620 16,579,620 16,579,620 Noted & Denied

21-476-019 201 21,742,710 15,030,380 21,592,390 15,099,080 21,592,390 15,099,080 Noted & Denied

22-477-059 201 1,999,270 1,976,060 1,915,190 1,915,190 1,915,190 1,915,190 Noted & Denied

23-303-001 201 445,200 382,680 445,400 395,300 445,400 395,300 Noted & Denied

23-476-016 201 720,710 718,030 695,090 695,090 695,090 695,090 Noted & Denied

25-479-040 202 37,980 37,980 37,980 37,980 37,980 37,980 Noted & Denied

25-479-051 201 2,107,960 1,862,970 2,100,220 1,924,440 2,100,220 1,924,440 Noted & Denied

26-103-014 301 1,318,430 1,223,840 1,287,190 1,264,220 1,287,190 1,264,220 Noted & Denied

26-103-015 301 953,600 898,590 902,910 899,300 902,910 899,300 Noted & Denied

26-200-014 203 2,263,020 1,706,020 2,263,020 1,762,310 2,263,020 1,762,310 Noted & Denied

26-200-020 203 2,428,360 1,931,040 2,428,360 1,994,760 2,428,360 1,994,760 Noted & Denied

26-200-032 301 1,275,070 951,080 1,286,130 982,460 1,286,130 982,460 Noted & Denied

26-200-069 301 3,215,020 2,398,110 3,213,510 2,477,240 3,213,510 2,477,240 Noted & Denied

26-200-078 301 5,119,840 5,119,840 5,995,080 5,466,290 5,995,080 5,466,290 Noted & Denied

26-200-082 301 2,166,660 2,166,660 2,160,130 2,160,130 2,160,130 2,160,130 Noted & Denied

26-326-029 201 20,420,170 10,724,190 20,037,970 11,315,230 20,037,970 11,315,230 Noted & Denied

26-351-016 201 1,533,410 994,150 1,427,630 1,002,740 1,427,630 1,002,740 Noted & Denied

26-351-023 302 424,280 418,410 424,280 424,280 424,280 424,280 Noted & Denied

26-351-024 301 4,517,910 3,173,140 4,503,570 3,277,850 4,503,570 3,277,850 Noted & Denied

26-401-051 301 902,580 762,490 898,330 787,650 898,330 787,650 Noted & Denied

26-451-028 301 376,910 250,830 384,660 259,100 384,660 259,100 Noted & Denied

26-451-039 301 763,140 605,680 760,490 625,660 760,490 625,660 Noted & Denied

26-451-040 301 1,288,840 728,830 1,235,390 752,880 1,235,390 752,880 Noted & Denied

26-480-034 302 31,540 31,540 31,540 31,540 31,540 31,540 Noted & Denied

27-101-060 201 16,940,880 16,100,310 17,493,510 16,631,620 17,493,510 16,631,620 Noted & Denied

27-101-065 201 1,108,510 553,820 1,078,830 572,090 1,078,830 572,090 Noted & Denied

27-201-055 202 70,550 70,550 70,550 70,550 70,550 70,550 Noted & Denied

27-201-057 201 7,388,360 6,584,090 6,934,010 6,486,840 6,934,010 6,486,840 Noted & Denied

27-201-058 202 59,590 59,590 59,590 59,590 59,590 59,590 Noted & Denied

27-201-059 201 655,430 616,840 646,440 637,190 646,440 637,190 Noted & Denied

27-201-060 202 47,170 47,170 47,170 47,170 47,170 47,170 Noted & Denied

27-278-016 301 436,110 388,880 260,860 260,860 260,860 260,860 Noted & Denied

28-101-038 201 26,152,020 24,372,300 27,142,110 25,580,430 27,142,110 25,580,430 Noted & Denied

28-101-041 203 8,067,460 3,454,920 6,615,710 3,568,930 6,615,710 3,568,930 Noted & Denied

28-101-054 201 2,574,480 2,297,180 2,459,640 2,372,980 2,459,640 2,372,980 Noted & Denied

28-101-058 201 182,860 160,410 183,490 165,700 183,490 165,700 Noted & Denied

28-151-029 203 1,033,480 873,000 1,033,480 901,800 1,033,480 901,800 Noted & Denied

28-201-007 202 20,480 20,480 20,480 20,480 20,480 20,480 Noted & Denied

28-201-008 202 20,480 20,480 20,480 20,480 20,480 20,480 Noted & Denied

28-203-034 202 31,660 31,660 31,660 31,660 31,660 31,660 Noted & Denied

28-204-001 202 46,380 46,380 46,380 46,380 46,380 46,380 Noted & Denied

28-204-002 202 22,860 22,860 22,860 22,860 22,860 22,860 Noted & Denied

28-204-003 202 22,520 22,520 22,520 22,520 22,520 22,520 Noted & Denied

continued:
145



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

LEN KUTSCHMAN
HONIGMAN MILLER 
660 WOODWARD AVE
DETROIT MI  48226-3583 continued:

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
28-204-008 202 66,780 66,780 66,780 66,780 66,780 66,780 Noted & Denied

28-251-007 401 30,600 10,430 30,600 10,770 30,600 10,770 Noted & Denied

28-251-009 402 30,600 9,150 30,600 9,450 30,600 9,450 Noted & Denied

28-251-010 402 30,600 9,150 30,600 9,450 30,600 9,450 Noted & Denied

28-251-011 402 30,600 9,150 30,600 9,450 30,600 9,450 Noted & Denied

28-251-012 401 47,680 26,340 43,410 27,200 43,410 27,200 Noted & Denied

28-251-039 201 6,818,640 4,059,510 6,260,640 3,968,180 6,260,640 3,968,180 Noted & Denied

28-252-014 203 2,368,870 1,308,160 2,368,870 1,351,320 2,368,870 1,351,320 Noted & Denied

28-252-015 203 3,063,070 1,810,180 3,063,070 1,869,910 3,063,070 1,869,910 Noted & Denied

28-252-017 201 1,804,000 891,950 1,688,950 899,810 1,688,950 899,810 Noted & Denied

28-252-018 201 1,190,480 1,190,480 1,190,480 1,190,480 1,190,480 1,190,480 Noted & Denied

28-301-003 301 847,610 702,610 813,240 696,360 813,240 696,360 Noted & Denied

28-301-004 301 695,940 405,950 729,520 419,340 729,520 419,340 Noted & Denied

28-301-009 301 521,410 271,530 523,630 280,490 523,630 280,490 Noted & Denied

28-301-014 301 1,315,300 862,770 1,300,240 891,240 1,300,240 891,240 Noted & Denied

28-301-017 301 1,284,480 939,110 1,286,750 970,100 1,286,750 970,100 Noted & Denied

28-302-015 301 984,330 532,260 877,900 496,420 877,900 496,420 Noted & Denied

28-302-016 301 1,283,850 1,283,850 1,222,430 1,222,430 1,222,430 1,222,430 Noted & Denied

28-302-018 301 631,370 599,150 642,640 618,920 642,640 618,920 Noted & Denied

28-302-020 301 1,063,340 689,900 889,070 646,750 889,070 646,750 Noted & Denied

28-302-022 301 769,940 550,000 708,970 511,370 708,970 511,370 Noted & Denied

28-302-030 301 1,565,570 1,286,300 1,442,780 1,328,740 1,442,780 1,328,740 Noted & Denied

28-302-031 301 610,390 463,230 608,720 478,510 608,720 478,510 Noted & Denied

28-303-001 301 726,590 467,490 717,830 482,910 717,830 482,910 Noted & Denied

28-303-009 301 379,840 291,360 387,200 300,970 387,200 300,970 Noted & Denied

28-303-010 301 320,870 312,340 320,840 320,840 320,840 320,840 Noted & Denied

28-303-011 301 232,410 232,410 232,410 232,410 232,410 232,410 Noted & Denied

28-303-013 301 1,696,320 1,346,880 1,531,150 1,255,500 1,531,150 1,255,500 Noted & Denied

28-303-025 301 1,362,160 1,320,190 1,387,260 1,363,750 1,387,260 1,363,750 Noted & Denied

28-303-029 301 1,221,500 966,990 1,219,410 998,900 1,219,410 998,900 Noted & Denied

28-303-035 301 707,460 707,460 698,460 698,460 698,460 698,460 Noted & Denied

28-303-036 301 1,940,820 1,657,170 1,749,580 1,661,400 1,749,580 1,661,400 Noted & Denied

28-304-017 301 450,250 365,290 450,380 377,340 450,380 377,340 Noted & Denied

28-401-103 201 1,020,580 894,930 1,016,610 924,460 1,016,610 924,460 Noted & Denied

28-451-008 301 414,870 303,530 423,900 313,540 423,900 313,540 Noted & Denied

28-451-012 301 925,230 838,280 918,840 918,840 918,840 918,840 Noted & Denied

29-201-025 201 6,806,920 3,999,740 6,618,220 3,914,510 6,618,220 3,914,510 Noted & Denied

29-226-021 402 32,670 18,180 32,670 18,770 32,670 18,770 Noted & Denied

29-226-022 401 70,830 68,990 72,570 71,260 72,570 71,260 Noted & Denied

29-226-023 202 32,670 32,670 32,670 32,670 32,670 32,670 Noted & Denied

29-226-074 201 718,610 690,510 687,410 687,410 687,410 687,410 Noted & Denied

29-226-079 203 10,301,360 7,209,700 10,301,360 7,447,620 10,301,360 7,447,620 Noted & Denied

29-227-021 201 208,780 206,240 202,890 202,890 202,890 202,890 Noted & Denied

continued:
146



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

LEN KUTSCHMAN
HONIGMAN MILLER 
660 WOODWARD AVE
DETROIT MI  48226-3583 continued:

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
29-227-027 203 8,476,250 5,898,840 8,476,250 6,093,500 8,476,250 6,093,500 Noted & Denied

29-326-012 201 1,358,880 1,332,190 1,358,770 1,358,770 1,358,770 1,358,770 Noted & Denied

29-401-020 302 92,940 92,940 92,940 92,940 92,940 92,940 Noted & Denied

29-401-021 301 438,790 390,520 432,940 403,400 432,940 403,400 Noted & Denied

29-401-026 201 2,181,280 2,136,830 2,216,970 2,207,340 2,216,970 2,207,340 Noted & Denied

29-401-027 201 2,201,410 1,806,930 2,222,990 1,866,550 2,222,990 1,866,550 Noted & Denied

29-401-028 201 735,170 701,120 729,920 724,250 729,920 724,250 Noted & Denied

29-426-021 301 927,460 755,030 817,950 779,940 817,950 779,940 Noted & Denied

29-426-027 201 828,960 813,420 823,220 823,220 823,220 823,220 Noted & Denied

29-426-028 302 156,860 156,860 156,860 156,860 156,860 156,860 Noted & Denied

29-426-030 301 2,514,760 2,514,760 3,335,840 3,335,840 3,335,840 3,335,840 Noted & Denied

29-426-032 301 1,036,200 908,220 989,980 938,190 989,980 938,190 Noted & Denied

29-477-013 301 722,970 414,130 550,000 550,000 550,000 550,000 Noted & Denied

29-478-011 201 561,090 371,380 511,510 349,730 511,510 349,730 Noted & Denied

30-276-015 203 4,650,850 3,395,450 4,650,850 3,507,490 4,650,850 3,507,490 Noted & Denied

31-226-009 301 3,404,950 3,404,950 2,631,690 2,631,690 2,631,690 2,631,690 Noted & Denied

31-226-010 301 593,210 421,290 593,390 435,190 593,390 435,190 Noted & Denied

31-226-014 201 5,843,800 5,106,330 5,561,680 5,274,830 5,561,680 5,274,830 Noted & Denied

31-226-018 201 4,470,130 4,175,890 4,369,660 4,313,690 4,369,660 4,313,690 Noted & Denied

31-226-019 201 1,963,930 1,606,460 2,012,620 1,659,470 2,012,620 1,659,470 Noted & Denied

32-200-029 201 4,183,520 3,202,220 4,075,790 3,307,890 4,075,790 3,307,890 Noted & Denied

32-200-031 201 4,052,190 4,052,190 4,052,190 4,052,190 4,052,190 4,052,190 Noted & Denied

32-226-003 301 1,717,820 1,116,060 1,726,550 1,152,880 1,726,550 1,152,880 Noted & Denied

32-226-005 202 51,840 51,840 51,840 51,840 51,840 51,840 Noted & Denied

32-226-013 301 1,681,440 1,286,090 1,614,270 1,328,530 1,614,270 1,328,530 Noted & Denied

32-226-018 301 588,520 406,370 581,670 419,780 581,670 419,780 Noted & Denied

32-226-024 301 1,586,590 1,181,830 1,583,290 1,220,830 1,583,290 1,220,830 Noted & Denied

32-226-025 301 1,724,590 1,234,460 1,606,810 1,275,190 1,606,810 1,275,190 Noted & Denied

32-226-028 301 765,850 571,090 764,570 589,930 764,570 589,930 Noted & Denied

32-226-029 301 936,380 936,380 682,230 682,230 682,230 682,230 Noted & Denied

32-226-037 301 5,450,910 4,553,490 5,437,860 4,703,750 5,437,860 4,703,750 Noted & Denied

34-101-017 201 275,000 275,000 275,000 275,000 275,000 275,000 Noted & Denied

34-101-019 201 405,090 298,980 401,960 308,840 401,960 308,840 Noted & Denied

34-101-023 201 3,108,230 2,339,430 2,987,840 2,416,630 2,987,840 2,416,630 Noted & Denied

34-126-043 301 1,244,190 1,010,330 1,241,580 1,043,670 1,241,580 1,043,670 Noted & Denied

34-151-012 301 528,540 403,440 467,570 346,830 467,570 346,830 Noted & Denied

34-152-002 301 294,470 208,860 322,580 227,900 322,580 227,900 Noted & Denied

34-152-026 301 768,310 548,010 771,970 566,090 771,970 566,090 Noted & Denied

34-177-014 301 274,140 274,140 260,280 260,280 260,280 260,280 Noted & Denied

34-201-064 301 1,207,300 1,013,520 1,198,460 1,046,960 1,198,460 1,046,960 Noted & Denied

34-201-065 301 727,760 659,100 744,420 689,370 744,420 689,370 Noted & Denied

34-226-010 301 425,030 357,980 422,110 369,790 422,110 369,790 Noted & Denied

35-101-019 301 1,887,550 1,186,990 1,892,440 1,226,160 1,892,440 1,226,160 Noted & Denied

continued:
147



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

LEN KUTSCHMAN
HONIGMAN MILLER 
660 WOODWARD AVE
DETROIT MI  48226-3583 continued:

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
35-101-026 301 731,940 559,890 748,510 578,360 748,510 578,360 Noted & Denied

35-101-028 301 892,620 892,620 895,480 895,480 895,480 895,480 Noted & Denied

35-101-029 301 1,302,300 1,040,730 1,320,350 1,075,070 1,320,350 1,075,070 Noted & Denied

35-101-030 301 868,140 608,050 888,300 628,110 888,300 628,110 Noted & Denied

35-102-031 201 8,729,000 8,729,000 9,017,050 9,017,050 9,017,050 9,017,050 Noted & Denied

35-102-040 301 1,581,830 1,302,260 1,612,520 1,345,230 1,612,520 1,345,230 Noted & Denied

35-102-041 301 1,697,540 1,554,040 1,698,260 1,605,320 1,698,260 1,605,320 Noted & Denied

35-151-020 301 3,856,420 2,983,470 3,769,750 3,018,770 3,769,750 3,018,770 Noted & Denied

35-201-066 201 6,631,440 3,511,380 5,335,650 3,080,650 5,335,650 3,080,650 Noted & Denied

35-201-067 301 1,781,070 1,333,000 1,680,940 1,680,940 1,680,940 1,680,940 Noted & Denied

35-226-005 301 1,365,230 847,290 1,374,030 875,250 1,374,030 875,250 Noted & Denied

35-226-008 301 872,080 606,980 849,010 627,010 849,010 627,010 Noted & Denied

35-226-043 301 506,490 317,730 507,060 328,210 507,060 328,210 Noted & Denied

35-226-079 301 1,136,250 637,910 1,142,470 658,960 1,142,470 658,960 Noted & Denied

35-226-086 301 3,457,340 2,018,540 3,329,920 2,085,150 3,329,920 2,085,150 Noted & Denied

35-226-087 201 7,147,670 2,685,010 6,955,390 2,773,610 6,955,390 2,773,610 Noted & Denied

35-226-092 301 2,183,650 1,606,540 1,878,030 1,505,450 1,878,030 1,505,450 Noted & Denied

35-276-002 301 500,250 481,130 554,400 537,250 554,400 537,250 Noted & Denied

35-276-003 301 867,010 632,060 824,630 652,910 824,630 652,910 Noted & Denied

35-276-004 301 582,870 582,870 582,580 582,580 582,580 582,580 Noted & Denied

35-276-006 301 4,092,410 2,547,110 3,938,740 2,631,160 3,938,740 2,631,160 Noted & Denied

35-276-007 201 6,076,880 2,981,830 5,900,480 3,080,230 5,900,480 3,080,230 Noted & Denied

35-327-016 301 480,160 401,270 480,730 480,730 480,730 480,730 Noted & Denied

35-400-022 201 13,173,700 13,173,700 10,119,830 10,119,830 10,119,830 10,119,830 Noted & Denied

36-100-060 203 10,896,180 6,715,060 10,896,180 6,936,650 10,896,180 6,936,650 Noted & Denied

36-302-012 301 378,490 286,260 386,370 295,700 386,370 295,700 Noted & Denied

36-326-018 301 463,740 382,390 470,030 393,850 470,030 393,850 Noted & Denied

36-326-040 301 682,740 498,230 696,310 514,670 696,310 514,670 Noted & Denied

36-351-001 201 2,622,450 2,590,890 2,522,420 2,522,420 2,522,420 2,522,420 Noted & Denied

36-352-010 301 683,070 551,710 634,170 518,420 634,170 518,420 Noted & Denied

36-376-020 301 482,730 441,620 483,600 456,190 483,600 456,190 Noted & Denied

36-376-039 301 587,180 338,710 600,820 349,880 600,820 349,880 Noted & Denied

36-376-040 301 992,560 718,100 1,015,240 741,790 1,015,240 741,790 Noted & Denied

36-376-047 301 1,060,670 1,019,200 1,062,680 1,052,830 1,062,680 1,052,830 Noted & Denied

36-377-012 301 324,930 193,900 331,560 200,290 331,560 200,290 Noted & Denied

36-377-026 301 375,900 235,400 397,690 258,700 397,690 258,700 Noted & Denied

36-401-045 301 406,280 337,800 379,230 379,230 379,230 379,230 Noted & Denied

36-426-029 301 317,410 235,940 320,440 243,720 320,440 243,720 Noted & Denied

36-426-030 302 51,000 51,000 51,000 51,000 51,000 51,000 Noted & Denied

36-426-072 301 299,880 214,890 301,230 221,980 301,230 221,980 Noted & Denied

36-426-073 301 510,890 358,660 359,420 309,900 359,420 309,900 Noted & Denied

36-426-104 301 1,332,280 966,770 1,333,580 998,670 1,333,580 998,670 Noted & Denied

36-451-039 301 260,300 195,400 260,870 201,840 260,870 201,840 Noted & Denied

continued:
148



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

LEN KUTSCHMAN
HONIGMAN MILLER 
660 WOODWARD AVE
DETROIT MI  48226-3583 continued:

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
36-476-056 301 3,505,620 2,288,520 3,510,480 2,364,040 3,510,480 2,364,040 Noted & Denied

36-476-067 301 511,720 294,380 520,560 304,090 520,560 304,090 Noted & Denied

36-476-068 301 572,630 376,040 579,010 388,440 579,010 388,440 Noted & Denied

00-023-833 351 155,530 155,530 143,110 143,110 143,110 143,110 Noted & Denied

00-034-928 251 23,880 23,880 23,870 23,870 23,870 23,870 Noted & Denied

00-049-006 251 1,525,660 1,525,660 1,255,850 1,255,850 1,255,850 1,255,850 Noted & Denied

00-050-524 251 1,208,790 1,208,790 1,242,180 1,242,180 1,242,180 1,242,180 Noted & Denied

00-056-004 251 194,250 194,250 170,280 170,280 170,280 170,280 Noted & Denied

00-056-028 351 3,371,100 3,371,100 3,096,000 3,096,000 3,096,000 3,096,000 Noted & Denied

00-056-217 351 225,370 225,370 266,380 266,380 266,380 266,380 Noted & Denied

00-056-224 351 109,390 109,390 98,300 98,300 98,300 98,300 Noted & Denied

00-056-231 351 106,800 106,800 113,410 113,410 113,410 113,410 Noted & Denied

00-056-238 351 120,900 120,900 116,520 116,520 116,520 116,520 Noted & Denied

00-196-220 351 81,160 81,160 75,130 75,130 75,130 75,130 Noted & Denied

00-223-040 251 70,940 70,940 88,680 88,680 88,680 88,680 Noted & Denied

00-223-120 251 3,740 3,740 3,990 3,990 3,990 3,990 Noted & Denied

00-267-780 251 51,670 51,670 136,670 136,670 136,670 136,670 Noted & Denied

end
149



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.021P

Phone: (#1) 918-422-4442 Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n WILLA LOVETT
add JAMESON ROI
c/s/z 840 N MOSELEY RD

COLCORD OK  74338

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
00-040-055 251 126,610 126,610 85,300 85,300 85,300 85,300 Noted & Denied

00-250-480 251 55,320 55,320 48,260 48,260 48,260 48,260 Noted & Denied

150



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.022P

Phone: (#1) 847-394-0515 Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n ROBERT J PHARR
add RB MELLANDER & ASSOC
c/s/z 800 E NORTHWEST HWY #204

MOUNT PROSPECT IL  60056

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
32-200-032 201 8,901,910 8,638,430 8,525,690 8,525,690 8,525,690 8,525,690 Noted & Denied

151



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.023P

Phone: (#1) 248-244-3000 Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n MATTHEW J KOSKELA
add DOEREN MAYHEW
c/s/z 755 W BIG BEAVER

TROY MI  48084-0231

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
00-214-700 351 24,240 24,240 26,450 26,450 26,450 26,450 Noted & Denied

152



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.021P

Phone: (#1) 713-780-3239 Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n R.GREGG WEST
add NATIONAL PROPERTY TAX MNGT
c/s/z PO BOX 42165 

HOUSTON TX  77242

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
00-741-590 251 0 0 750 750 750 750 Noted & Denied

153



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.025P

Phone: (#1) 630-573-7830 Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n MORGAN E THOMAS
add MARVIN F POER & CO
c/s/z 2211 YORK RD #222

OAK BROOK IL  60523

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
09-302-001 201 8,468,140 4,597,640 8,419,530 4,901,940 8,419,530 4,901,940 Noted & Denied

21-351-012 201 11,805,040 9,207,000 11,916,540 9,622,330 11,916,540 9,622,330 Noted & Denied

25-157-005 203 8,461,360 8,461,360 8,461,360 8,461,360 8,461,360 8,461,360 Noted & Denied

154



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.026P

Phone: (#1) 901-362-8299 Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n LARRY BERRETTA
add PROPERTY TAX MANAGEMENT LLC
c/s/z PO BOX 750007

MEMPHIS TN 38175

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
20-476-036 201 3,180,740 2,387,650 3,051,080 2,466,440 3,051,080 2,466,440 Noted & Denied

155



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.027P

Phone: (#1) 734-667-3115 Phone:(#2) 313-510-0546

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n RANDALL WHATELY
add 44327 PLYMOUTH OAKS BLVD
c/s/z PLYMOUTH MI  48170

 

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
04-100-059 201 472,550 468,950 476,880 476,880 476,880 476,880 Noted & Denied

04-100-060 201 1,227,670 315,390 1,230,420 325,790 1,230,420 325,790 Noted & Denied

04-100-061 203 3,501,850 2,102,290 3,501,850 2,171,660 3,501,850 2,171,660 Noted & Denied

12-351-025 201 132,270 108,240 131,620 111,810 131,620 111,810 Noted & Denied

13-228-019 201 741,620 738,450 712,970 712,970 712,970 712,970 Noted & Denied

23-100-044 201 190,140 146,670 191,160 191,160 191,160 191,160 Noted & Denied

24-352-034 201 310,450 246,580 308,700 308,700 308,700 308,700 Noted & Denied

25-101-017 201 117,950 107,290 117,230 110,830 117,230 110,830 Noted & Denied

27-201-050 201 605,830 443,230 608,840 463,230 608,840 463,230 Noted & Denied

28-302-014 201 127,360 116,700 126,540 120,550 126,540 120,550 Noted & Denied

29-226-040 201 131,270 117,230 130,270 121,090 130,270 121,090 Noted & Denied

29-426-046 301 1,651,870 1,143,990 1,588,330 1,181,740 1,588,330 1,181,740 Noted & Denied

32-101-021 201 811,380 749,820 851,070 814,250 851,070 814,250 Noted & Denied

35-327-021 201 1,200,770 1,195,410 1,148,940 1,148,940 1,148,940 1,148,940 Noted & Denied

36-302-009 301 553,830 553,830 560,280 560,280 560,280 560,280 Noted & Denied

00-052-154 251 26,600 26,600 24,040 24,040 24,040 24,040 Noted & Denied

00-243-720 351 66,380 66,380 65,850 65,850 65,850 65,850 Noted & Denied

156



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.028P

Phone: (#1) 734-422-3806 Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n JAMES SPROUL
add PROPERTY TAX & REALTY GROUP
c/s/z 33150 SCHOOLCRAFT RD # 201

LIVONIA MI  48150

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
32-126-030 301 2,162,730 2,162,730 2,767,920 2,767,920 2,767,920 2,767,920 Noted & Denied

157



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.029P

Phone: (#1) 248-646-0888 Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n DAVID NYKANEN
add STEINHARDT PESICK & COHEN
c/s/z 380 NORTH OLD WOODWARD AVE #120

BIRMINGHAM MI  48009

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
28-304-016 301 336,030 245,380 338,670 338,670 338,670 338,670 Noted & Denied

28-451-002 301 436,900 320,130 445,750 445,750 445,750 445,750 Noted & Denied

28-451-003 301 447,890 347,480 449,070 449,070 449,070 449,070 Noted & Denied

36-326-029 301 359,500 262,970 365,220 365,220 365,220 365,220 Noted & Denied

158



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.030P

Phone: (#1) 908-306-7514 Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n MARGARET ROONEY
add VERIZON WIRELESS
c/s/z PO BOX 7028

BEDMINSTER NJ 07921-7028

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
06-603-002 212 79,310 64,070 83,740 66,180 83,740 66,180 Noted & Denied

09-601-001 212 97,390 71,440 102,270 73,790 102,270 73,790 Noted & Denied

10-602-003 212 39,110 24,060 41,970 24,850 41,970 24,850 Noted & Denied

21-604-002 211 10,310 10,310 11,040 10,650 11,040 10,650 Noted & Denied

23-601-001 212 147,150 86,740 119,090 89,600 119,090 89,600 Noted & Denied

26-601-005 212 44,870 28,000 47,880 28,920 47,880 28,920 Noted & Denied

29-602-001 211 24,250 24,250 52,030 29,220 52,030 29,220 Noted & Denied

34-602-001 212 94,170 47,190 97,900 48,740 97,900 48,740 Noted & Denied

36-604-001 212 58,700 42,080 62,560 43,460 62,560 43,460 Noted & Denied

159



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.031P

Phone: (#1) 239-278-2632 Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n SARAH RADVANSKY
add GE COMMERCIAL DISTRIBUTION
c/s/z 4415 METRO PARKWAY #208

FT MYERS FL 33916

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
00-035-127 211 327,530 327,530 409,410 409,410 409,410 409,410 Noted & Denied

160



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Date: 03/21/06 Appt Time 2:00 PM # 06.032P

Phone: (#1) 239-278-2632 Phone:(#2)

Decision Notice Mailed: 03/22/06

MAIL TO: v Name/Agent  Street, City,State, Zip v Name 2  (if different)

n SARAH RADVANSKY
add HELLER FINANCIAL
c/s/z 4415 METRO PARKWAY # 208

FT MYERS FL 33916

Sidwell Use 2005 A/V 2005 T/V 2006 A/V 2006 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Action
00-036-009 251 190,480 190,480 149,440 149,440 149,440 149,440 Noted & Denied

161



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

2006 Cross Index Listing of Board of Review Appeals

Parcel ID Order to Board of Review Book Page Number



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

Parcel ID Use 06 A/V 06 T/V Board A/V Board T/V Change A/V Change T/V Pet # Page
01-101-028 401 157,070 130,700 170,060 130,700 12,990 0 06.056 56
01-476-028 401 71,440 64,970 84,450 64,970 13,010 0 06.067 67
01-476-068 401 115,300 70,680 134,040 70,680 18,740 0 06.066 66
02-201-065 401 162,390 162,390 162,390 162,390 0 0 06.033 33
02-227-014 401 132,620 131,310 126,500 126,500 (6,120) (4,810) 06.001c 74
02-229-029 401 219,170 189,720 202,500 189,720 (16,670) 0 06.058 58
02-251-005 401 187,230 128,950 187,230 128,950 0 0 06.020p 144
02-279-070 401 338,660 317,080 338,660 317,080 0 0 06.004 4
02-301-010 203 6,840,400 5,508,820 6,840,400 5,508,820 0 0 06.020p 144
02-376-016 401 79,690 56,250 38,750 38,750 (40,940) (17,500) 06.009 9
02-378-040 401 169,780 128,880 169,780 128,880 0 0 06.021 21
02-378-063 401 162,260 162,260 162,260 121,640 0 (40,620) 06.042 42
03-276-010 401 129,510 104,670 124,000 104,670 (5,510) 0 06.002 2
03-301-063 201 297,410 219,850 297,410 219,850 0 0 06.010p 134
03-401-012 401 275,590 217,060 275,590 217,060 0 0 06.028 28
04-100-059 201 476,880 476,880 476,880 476,880 0 0 06.027p 156
04-100-060 201 1,230,420 325,790 1,230,420 325,790 0 0 06.027p 156
04-100-061 203 3,501,850 2,171,660 3,501,850 2,171,660 0 0 06.027p 156
04-132-012 401 189,030 140,030 200,000 140,030 10,970 0 06.011 11
04-276-059 401 280,170 268,810 270,000 268,810 (10,170) 0 06.063 63
04-426-013 401 167,910 95,450 167,910 95,450 0 0 06.017 17
04-451-032 401 320,450 315,850 320,450 315,850 0 0 06.003 3
05-100-016 401 85,850 64,920 85,850 64,920 0 0 06.022 22
05-101-021 401 357,200 309,570 344,700 297,070 (12,500) (12,500) 06.050 50
05-129-057 401 252,650 242,390 252,650 242,390 0 0 06.039 39
05-200-005 201 3,731,030 3,697,560 3,731,030 3,697,560 0 0 06.007p 131
05-203-022 401 225,450 225,450 187,950 187,950 (37,500) (37,500) 06.005 5
05-204-011 401 232,150 227,020 232,150 227,020 0 0 06.065 65
05-301-053 401 355,080 355,080 355,080 328,070 0 (27,010) 06.052 52
05-354-002 401 280,380 280,380 280,380 280,380 0 0 06.062 62
05-429-003 401 181,690 128,470 177,500 128,470 (4,190) 0 06.041 41
06-101-013 401 169,550 134,500 145,000 134,500 (24,550) 0 06.053 53
06-176-027 401 209,190 115,180 209,190 115,180 0 0 06.002c 75
06-226-001 401 194,850 194,850 160,000 160,000 (34,850) (34,850) 06.049 49
06-226-034 401 178,930 138,560 178,930 138,560 0 0 06.025 25
06-227-003 401 176,840 165,960 176,840 165,960 0 0 06.034 34
06-353-001 205 59,470 59,470 59,470 59,470 0 0 06.013p 137
06-603-002 212 83,740 66,180 83,740 66,180 0 0 06.030p 159
06-603-004 212 42,630 41,340 42,630 41,340 0 0 06.003p 126
07-102-016 401 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 0 0 06.007 7
07-152-009 401 219,900 216,930 219,900 216,930 0 0 06.037 37
07-176-008 401 273,630 238,970 273,630 238,970 0 0 06.024 24
07-201-017 401 422,770 415,880 422,770 415,880 0 0 06.071 71
07-202-013 401 413,320 406,370 400,000 400,000 (13,320) (6,370) 06.013 13
07-251-009 401 410,420 402,080 390,000 390,000 (20,420) (12,080) 06.020 20
07-251-020 401 611,730 326,830 456,000 326,830 (155,730) 0 06.047 47
07-252-011 401 374,830 371,960 374,830 371,960 0 0 06.045 45
07-351-050 401 476,210 384,990 437,500 384,990 (38,710) 0 06.006 6
07-480-001 201 277,140 277,140 277,140 277,140 0 0 06.007p 131
08-101-020 401 126,130 123,120 126,130 0 0 (123,120) 06.001h 103
08-101-024 401 113,810 95,910 113,810 0 0 (95,910) 06.002h 104
08-227-002 301 3,879,070 3,765,300 3,879,070 3,765,300 0 0 06.007p 131
08-227-008 201 5,806,210 4,339,750 5,806,210 4,339,750 0 0 06.020p 144

Cross Index  1



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

08-276-003 201 4,797,070 3,449,340 4,797,070 3,449,340 0 0 06.020p 144
08-303-018 401 198,970 151,040 190,000 151,040 (8,970) 0 06.018 18
08-351-007 401 175,120 105,570 144,000 105,570 (31,120) 0 06.051 51
08-451-004 201 4,363,860 3,201,900 4,363,860 3,201,900 0 0 06.020p 144
08-451-011 201 6,996,630 6,676,520 6,996,630 6,676,520 0 0 06.020p 144
08-451-012 201 11,690,240 5,787,620 11,690,240 5,787,620 0 0 06.020p 144
08-451-014 201 5,212,880 4,259,670 5,212,880 4,259,670 0 0 06.020p 144
08-476-007 201 5,835,480 4,144,720 5,835,480 4,144,720 0 0 06.020p 144
08-476-009 201 6,129,700 6,129,700 6,129,700 6,129,700 0 0 06.020p 144
08-476-011 201 8,021,520 7,843,320 8,021,520 7,843,320 0 0 06.020p 144
08-476-014 201 1,051,560 1,051,560 1,051,560 1,051,560 0 0 06.007p 131
08-476-016 201 1,747,030 1,035,120 1,747,030 1,035,120 0 0 06.020p 144
08-476-017 201 8,128,460 4,956,570 8,128,460 4,956,570 0 0 06.020p 144
08-476-018 201 8,416,820 8,416,820 8,416,820 8,416,820 0 0 06.020p 144
08-476-020 301 2,750,000 1,864,950 2,750,000 1,864,950 0 0 06.020p 144
09-151-003 201 7,144,750 4,346,920 7,144,750 4,346,920 0 0 06.004c 77
09-151-003 201 7,144,750 4,346,920 7,144,750 4,346,920 0 0 06.020p 144
09-151-004 201 3,780,050 3,439,530 3,780,050 3,439,530 0 0 06.011p 135
09-151-006 201 7,422,560 3,377,850 7,422,560 3,377,850 0 0 06.005c 78
09-151-006 201 7,422,560 3,377,850 7,422,560 3,377,850 0 0 06.020p 144
09-202-015 401 78,460 42,990 78,460 0 0 (42,990) 06.003h 105
09-228-022 401 130,960 130,960 130,960 130,960 0 0 06.003c 76
09-253-004 401 94,180 59,350 94,180 0 0 (59,350) 06.004h 106
09-301-003 201 11,085,770 10,649,010 11,085,770 10,649,010 0 0 06.020p 144
09-301-012 201 14,181,580 10,768,400 14,181,580 10,768,400 0 0 06.020p 144
09-301-014 201 11,140,940 10,045,930 11,140,940 10,045,930 0 0 06.020p 144
09-301-015 201 12,460,890 11,128,730 12,460,890 11,128,730 0 0 06.020p 144
09-302-001 201 8,419,530 4,901,940 8,419,530 4,901,940 0 0 06.025p 154
09-302-003 201 13,557,910 11,312,120 13,557,910 11,312,120 0 0 06.020p 144
09-302-004 201 13,645,830 11,916,050 13,645,830 11,916,050 0 0 06.020p 144
09-476-034 201 467,350 324,150 467,350 324,150 0 0 06.019p 143
09-476-042 201 1,608,890 1,008,020 1,608,890 1,008,020 0 0 06.019p 143
09-601-001 212 102,270 73,790 102,270 73,790 0 0 06.030p 159
09-603-003 212 32,990 32,990 32,990 32,990 0 0 06.003p 126
10-351-018 201 4,335,860 4,206,190 4,335,860 4,206,190 0 0 06.019p 143
10-351-019 201 658,120 482,190 658,120 482,190 0 0 06.019p 143
10-602-002 212 69,540 67,730 69,540 67,730 0 0 06.003p 126
10-602-003 212 41,970 24,850 41,970 24,850 0 0 06.030p 159
11-101-016 205 37,760 37,760 37,760 37,760 0 0 06.008p 132
11-226-003 401 475,200 423,450 475,200 423,450 0 0 06.019p 143
11-226-031 201 1,205,760 873,950 1,205,760 873,950 0 0 06.007p 131
11-377-009 401 103,230 80,360 103,230 0 0 (80,360) 06.005h 107
12-253-015 401 126,460 93,560 126,460 0 0 (93,560) 06.006h 108
12-280-010 401 126,390 94,940 126,390 94,940 0 0 06.006c 79
12-351-025 201 131,620 111,810 131,620 111,810 0 0 06.027p 156
12-376-031 401 217,420 186,490 182,000 182,000 (35,420) (4,490) 06.059 59
12-427-008 401 213,890 169,100 199,000 169,100 (14,890) 0 06.046 46
13-180-005 401 107,890 69,290 104,625 69,290 (3,265) 0 06.073 73
13-228-019 201 712,970 712,970 712,970 712,970 0 0 06.020p 144
13-228-019 201 712,970 712,970 712,970 712,970 0 0 06.027p 156
13-428-009 401 188,600 133,720 188,600 133,720 0 0 06.007c 80
14-101-003 201 95,490 95,490 95,490 95,490 0 0 06.025 25
14-101-042 201 408,720 407,860 408,720 407,860 0 0 06.007p 131
14-102-028 401 109,500 42,870 109,500 0 0 (42,870) 06.007h 109

Cross Index  2



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

14-177-009 401 151,850 102,320 151,850 102,320 0 0 06.012 12
14-226-043 201 545,230 545,230 545,230 545,230 0 0 06.018p 142
14-279-007 401 97,290 97,290 85,000 85,000 (12,290) (12,290) 06.023 23
14-351-056 201 1,274,500 1,129,610 1,274,500 1,129,610 0 0 06.020p 144
14-351-073 401 191,530 181,660 182,500 181,660 (9,030) 0 06.019 19
14-604-004 212 32,630 31,650 32,630 31,650 0 0 06.003p 126
15-101-025 201 314,090 304,580 314,090 304,580 0 0 06.019p 143
15-201-018 202 28,110 28,110 28,110 28,110 0 0 06.007p 131
15-201-038 201 384,160 384,160 384,160 384,160 0 0 06.007p 131
15-353-036 401 103,210 103,210 103,210 103,210 0 0 06.061 61
15-426-041 401 162,770 101,590 151,000 101,590 (11,770) 0 06.044 44
15-478-015 201 546,850 485,340 546,850 485,340 0 0 06.007p 131
16-477-002 401 130,470 93,180 120,000 93,180 (10,470) 0 06.030 30
16-601-001 201 106,530 0 0 0 (106,530) 0 06.008c 81
17-102-001 401 264,660 260,310 264,660 260,310 0 0 06.069 69
17-200-011 205 56,880 56,880 56,880 56,880 0 0 06.013p 137
17-200-026 201 12,814,590 8,972,940 12,814,590 8,972,940 0 0 06.020p 144
17-226-002 201 4,195,890 2,194,370 4,195,890 2,194,370 0 0 06.020p 144
17-226-003 201 633,540 590,090 633,540 590,090 0 0 06.007p 131
17-226-008 201 4,598,180 4,598,180 4,598,180 4,598,180 0 0 06.020p 144
17-252-003 401 175,930 134,030 170,000 134,030 (5,930) 0 06.029 29
17-256-011 401 175,220 172,350 165,000 165,000 (10,220) (7,350) 06.038 38
17-278-014 201 7,252,230 6,118,550 7,252,230 6,118,550 0 0 06.006p 130
17-351-029 205 50,860 50,860 50,860 50,860 0 0 06.008p 132
17-451-006 401 217,430 161,440 217,430 161,440 0 0 06.040 40
18-226-006 401 269,270 214,830 269,270 214,830 0 0 06.048 48
18-251-010 401 329,220 249,970 329,220 249,970 0 0 06.032 32
18-402-032 401 209,460 209,460 209,460 209,460 0 0 06.020p 144
19-203-037 401 241,920 209,190 241,920 209,190 0 0 06.055 55
19-305-009 401 113,750 78,860 113,750 78,860 0 0 06.029c 102
19-453-005 201 9,829,990 9,829,990 9,829,990 9,829,990 0 0 06.020p 144
19-453-008 201 7,437,080 7,437,080 7,437,080 7,437,080 0 0 06.020p 144
19-453-009 201 6,733,550 6,733,550 6,733,550 6,733,550 0 0 06.020p 144
20-326-007 401 280,280 280,280 250,000 250,000 (30,280) (30,280) 06.010 10
20-327-028 401 351,850 298,510 351,850 298,510 0 0 06.001 1
20-351-005 201 11,817,930 11,817,930 11,817,930 11,817,930 0 0 06.020p 144
20-376-001 201 32,371,750 27,621,530 32,371,750 27,621,530 0 0 06.007p 131
20-376-005 205 101,190 101,190 101,190 101,190 0 0 06.013p 137
20-427-034 401 199,310 199,310 199,310 199,310 0 0 06.054 54
20-476-036 201 3,051,080 2,466,440 3,051,080 2,466,440 0 0 06.026p 155
21-176-003 401 156,970 149,080 156,970 149,080 0 0 06.027 27
21-226-002 401 120,940 120,940 120,940 120,940 0 0 06.008h 110
21-230-014 401 104,930 98,590 104,930 98,590 0 0 06.009c 82
21-276-006 401 102,120 77,300 102,120 0 0 (77,300) 06.009h 111
21-351-012 201 11,916,540 9,622,330 11,916,540 9,622,330 0 0 06.025p 154
21-351-013 201 16,579,620 16,579,620 16,579,620 16,579,620 0 0 06.020p 145
21-476-018 201 16,611,520 16,611,520 16,611,520 16,611,520 0 0 06.011p 135
21-476-019 201 21,592,390 15,099,080 21,592,390 15,099,080 0 0 06.020p 145
21-604-002 211 11,040 10,650 11,040 10,650 0 0 06.030p 159
22-253-002 401 93,010 62,930 93,010 62,930 0 0 06.010h 112
22-352-022 401 136,010 127,830 127,500 127,500 (8,510) (330) 06.015 15
22-379-001 401 77,250 44,190 77,250 0 0 (44,190) 06.011h 113
22-477-054 201 463,120 396,840 463,120 396,840 0 0 06.010p 134
22-477-059 201 1,915,190 1,915,190 1,915,190 1,915,190 0 0 06.020p 145

Cross Index  3



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

22-477-060 201 1,108,110 1,108,110 1,108,110 1,108,110 0 0 06.007p 131
22-601-002 212 20,460 19,670 20,460 19,670 0 0 06.003p 126
23-100-044 201 191,160 191,160 191,160 191,160 0 0 06.027p 156
23-100-070 201 1,114,020 984,200 1,114,020 984,200 0 0 06.017p 141
23-303-001 201 445,400 395,300 445,400 395,300 0 0 06.020p 145
23-303-038 201 349,500 349,500 349,500 349,500 0 0 06.010c 83
23-352-039 401 100,260 94,440 92,500 92,500 (7,760) (1,940) 06.031 31
23-378-024 401 151,360 150,430 151,360 150,430 0 0 06.014 14
23-476-015 201 19,165,580 9,755,870 19,165,580 9,755,870 0 0 06.007p 131
23-476-016 201 695,090 695,090 695,090 695,090 0 0 06.020p 145
23-601-001 212 119,090 89,600 119,090 89,600 0 0 06.030p 159
24-179-006 401 126,010 126,010 124,000 124,000 (2,010) (2,010) 06.068 68
24-352-034 201 308,700 308,700 308,700 308,700 0 0 06.027p 156
24-352-046 205 67,710 67,710 67,710 67,710 0 0 06.013p 137
24-456-016 401 85,340 45,750 77,500 45,750 (7,840) 0 06.057 57
25-101-017 201 117,230 110,830 117,230 110,830 0 0 06.027p 156
25-127-004 405 63,940 47,460 63,940 47,460 0 0 06.012h 114
25-157-005 203 8,461,360 8,461,360 8,461,360 8,461,360 0 0 06.025p 154
25-255-035 401 98,530 66,220 98,530 0 0 (66,220) 06.013h 115
25-276-002 401 98,040 98,040 98,040 0 0 (98,040) 06.014h 116
25-426-029 401 90,960 57,930 90,960 0 0 (57,930) 06.015h 117
25-479-040 202 37,980 37,980 37,980 37,980 0 0 06.020p 145
25-479-051 201 2,100,220 1,924,440 2,100,220 1,924,440 0 0 06.020p 145
26-101-001 205 8,250 8,250 8,250 8,250 0 0 06.008p 132
26-103-014 301 1,287,190 1,264,220 1,287,190 1,264,220 0 0 06.020p 145
26-103-015 301 902,910 899,300 902,910 899,300 0 0 06.020p 145
26-176-013 301 2,538,820 2,538,820 2,538,820 2,538,820 0 0 06.011c 84
26-200-014 203 2,263,020 1,762,310 2,263,020 1,762,310 0 0 06.020p 145
26-200-020 203 2,428,360 1,994,760 2,428,360 1,994,760 0 0 06.020p 145
26-200-032 301 1,286,130 982,460 1,286,130 982,460 0 0 06.020p 145
26-200-069 301 3,213,510 2,477,240 3,213,510 2,477,240 0 0 06.020p 145
26-200-078 301 5,995,080 5,466,290 5,995,080 5,466,290 0 0 06.020p 145
26-200-082 301 2,160,130 2,160,130 2,160,130 2,160,130 0 0 06.020p 145
26-326-024 201 3,825,720 3,342,780 3,825,720 3,342,780 0 0 06.011p 135
26-326-029 201 20,037,970 11,315,230 20,037,970 11,315,230 0 0 06.020p 145
26-351-016 201 1,427,630 1,002,740 1,427,630 1,002,740 0 0 06.020p 145
26-351-023 302 424,280 424,280 424,280 424,280 0 0 06.020p 145
26-351-024 301 4,503,570 3,277,850 4,503,570 3,277,850 0 0 06.020p 145
26-401-051 301 898,330 787,650 898,330 787,650 0 0 06.020p 145
26-431-038 301 369,910 369,910 325,000 325,000 (44,910) (44,910) 06.012c 85
26-451-028 301 384,660 259,100 384,660 259,100 0 0 06.020p 145
26-451-039 301 760,490 625,660 760,490 625,660 0 0 06.020p 145
26-451-040 301 1,235,390 752,880 1,235,390 752,880 0 0 06.020p 145
26-480-034 302 31,540 31,540 31,540 31,540 0 0 06.020p 145
26-601-003 212 20,230 20,230 20,230 20,230 0 0 06.003p 126
26-601-005 212 47,880 28,920 47,880 28,920 0 0 06.030p 159
27-101-016 201 891,970 891,970 795,340 795,340 (96,630) (96,630) 06.013c 86
27-101-060 201 17,493,510 16,631,620 17,493,510 16,631,620 0 0 06.020p 145
27-101-065 201 1,078,830 572,090 1,078,830 572,090 0 0 06.020p 145
27-201-049 201 578,120 442,020 371,560 371,560 (206,560) (70,460) 06.014c 87
27-201-050 201 608,840 463,230 608,840 463,230 0 0 06.027p 156
27-201-055 202 70,550 70,550 70,550 70,550 0 0 06.020p 145
27-201-057 201 6,934,010 6,486,840 6,934,010 6,486,840 0 0 06.020p 145
27-201-058 202 59,590 59,590 59,590 59,590 0 0 06.020p 145

Cross Index  4



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

27-201-059 201 646,440 637,190 646,440 637,190 0 0 06.020p 145
27-201-060 202 47,170 47,170 47,170 47,170 0 0 06.020p 145
27-227-026 201 6,428,630 6,292,210 5,843,880 5,843,880 (584,750) (448,330) 06.020c 93
27-278-016 301 260,860 260,860 260,860 260,860 0 0 06.020p 145
27-279-024 201 1,390,370 1,390,370 1,337,320 1,337,320 (53,050) (53,050) 06.015c 88
27-301-023 201 333,900 310,920 333,900 310,920 0 0 06.019p 143
27-354-029 401 62,280 31,870 62,280 0 0 (31,870) 06.016h 118
27-403-005 401 65,020 42,200 65,020 0 0 (42,200) 06.017h 119
27-426-011 202 11,370 11,370 11,370 11,370 0 0 06.015c 88
27-430-024 401 41,940 21,060 41,940 0 0 (21,060) 06.018h 120
27-433-003 301 369,410 298,990 231,580 231,580 (137,830) (67,410) 06.016c 89
28-101-038 201 27,142,110 25,580,430 27,142,110 25,580,430 0 0 06.020p 145
28-101-041 203 6,615,710 3,568,930 6,615,710 3,568,930 0 0 06.020p 145
28-101-050 201 3,275,480 2,122,660 3,275,480 2,122,660 0 0 06.007p 131
28-101-051 201 5,468,770 4,036,660 5,468,770 4,036,660 0 0 06.007p 131
28-101-054 201 2,459,640 2,372,980 2,459,640 2,372,980 0 0 06.020p 145
28-101-058 201 183,490 165,700 183,490 165,700 0 0 06.020p 145
28-151-029 203 1,033,480 901,800 1,033,480 901,800 0 0 06.020p 145
28-151-031 203 383,500 314,650 383,500 314,650 0 0 06.019p 143
28-151-032 203 843,710 592,460 843,710 592,460 0 0 06.019p 143
28-151-033 203 1,048,250 717,840 1,048,250 717,840 0 0 06.019p 143
28-151-048 405 81,140 81,140 77,430 77,430 (3,710) (3,710) 06.017c 90
28-151-056 405 76,100 76,100 70,000 70,000 (6,100) (6,100) 06.008 8
28-151-188 405 86,300 60,850 86,300 0 0 (60,850) 06.019h 121
28-151-218 405 75,730 75,730 75,730 75,730 0 0 06.016 16
28-201-007 202 20,480 20,480 20,480 20,480 0 0 06.020p 145
28-201-008 202 20,480 20,480 20,480 20,480 0 0 06.020p 145
28-203-034 202 31,660 31,660 31,660 31,660 0 0 06.020p 145
28-204-001 202 46,380 46,380 46,380 46,380 0 0 06.020p 145
28-204-002 202 22,860 22,860 22,860 22,860 0 0 06.020p 145
28-204-003 202 22,520 22,520 22,520 22,520 0 0 06.020p 145
28-204-008 202 66,780 66,780 66,780 66,780 0 0 06.020p 146
28-227-007 205 512,340 512,340 512,340 512,340 0 0 06.013p 137
28-251-007 401 30,600 10,770 30,600 10,770 0 0 06.020p 146
28-251-009 402 30,600 9,450 30,600 9,450 0 0 06.020p 146
28-251-010 402 30,600 9,450 30,600 9,450 0 0 06.020p 146
28-251-011 402 30,600 9,450 30,600 9,450 0 0 06.020p 146
28-251-012 401 43,410 27,200 43,410 27,200 0 0 06.020p 146
28-251-039 201 6,260,640 3,968,180 6,260,640 3,968,180 0 0 06.020p 146
28-252-014 203 2,368,870 1,351,320 2,368,870 1,351,320 0 0 06.020p 146
28-252-015 203 3,063,070 1,869,910 3,063,070 1,869,910 0 0 06.020p 146
28-252-017 201 1,688,950 899,810 1,688,950 899,810 0 0 06.020p 146
28-252-018 201 1,190,480 1,190,480 1,190,480 1,190,480 0 0 06.020p 146
28-301-003 301 813,240 696,360 813,240 696,360 0 0 06.020p 146
28-301-004 301 729,520 419,340 729,520 419,340 0 0 06.020p 146
28-301-009 301 523,630 280,490 523,630 280,490 0 0 06.020p 146
28-301-014 301 1,300,240 891,240 1,300,240 891,240 0 0 06.020p 146
28-301-016 301 747,820 505,200 747,820 505,200 0 0 06.019p 143
28-301-017 301 1,286,750 970,100 1,286,750 970,100 0 0 06.020p 146
28-302-012 205 68,470 68,470 68,470 68,470 0 0 06.013p 137
28-302-014 201 126,540 120,550 126,540 120,550 0 0 06.027p 156
28-302-015 301 877,900 496,420 877,900 496,420 0 0 06.020p 146
28-302-016 301 1,222,430 1,222,430 1,222,430 1,222,430 0 0 06.020p 146
28-302-018 301 642,640 618,920 642,640 618,920 0 0 06.020p 146

Cross Index  5



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

28-302-020 301 889,070 646,750 889,070 646,750 0 0 06.020p 146
28-302-022 301 708,970 511,370 708,970 511,370 0 0 06.020p 146
28-302-030 301 1,442,780 1,328,740 1,442,780 1,328,740 0 0 06.020p 146
28-302-031 301 608,720 478,510 608,720 478,510 0 0 06.020p 146
28-303-001 301 717,830 482,910 717,830 482,910 0 0 06.020p 146
28-303-009 301 387,200 300,970 387,200 300,970 0 0 06.020p 146
28-303-010 301 320,840 320,840 320,840 320,840 0 0 06.020p 146
28-303-011 301 232,410 232,410 232,410 232,410 0 0 06.020p 146
28-303-013 301 1,531,150 1,255,500 1,531,150 1,255,500 0 0 06.020p 146
28-303-025 301 1,387,260 1,363,750 1,387,260 1,363,750 0 0 06.020p 146
28-303-029 301 1,219,410 998,900 1,219,410 998,900 0 0 06.020p 146
28-303-035 301 698,460 698,460 698,460 698,460 0 0 06.020p 146
28-303-036 301 1,749,580 1,661,400 1,749,580 1,661,400 0 0 06.020p 146
28-304-016 301 338,670 338,670 338,670 338,670 0 0 06.029p 158
28-304-017 301 450,380 377,340 450,380 377,340 0 0 06.020p 146
28-401-007 301 270,190 261,400 270,190 261,400 0 0 06.043 43
28-401-063 301 272,090 199,170 272,090 199,170 0 0 06.019p 143
28-401-077 301 306,900 206,430 306,900 206,430 0 0 06.019p 143
28-401-103 201 1,016,610 924,460 1,016,610 924,460 0 0 06.020p 146
28-428-032 401 172,860 139,840 161,000 139,840 (11,860) 0 06.072 72
28-430-017 201 667,780 537,540 667,780 537,540 0 0 06.018c 91
28-451-002 301 445,750 445,750 445,750 445,750 0 0 06.029p 158
28-451-003 301 449,070 449,070 449,070 449,070 0 0 06.029p 158
28-451-008 301 423,900 313,540 423,900 313,540 0 0 06.020p 146
28-451-012 301 918,840 918,840 918,840 918,840 0 0 06.020p 146
28-602-002 211 0 0 0 0 0 0 06.003p 126
29-101-006 201 355,170 343,740 355,170 343,740 0 0 06.007p 131
29-201-001 201 1,672,100 1,260,860 1,672,100 1,260,860 0 0 06.007p 131
29-201-022 202 41,940 41,940 41,940 41,940 0 0 06.007p 131
29-201-024 201 2,296,030 2,296,030 2,116,200 2,116,200 (179,830) (179,830) 06.019c 92
29-201-025 201 6,618,220 3,914,510 6,618,220 3,914,510 0 0 06.020p 146
29-226-021 402 32,670 18,770 32,670 18,770 0 0 06.020p 146
29-226-022 401 72,570 71,260 72,570 71,260 0 0 06.020p 146
29-226-023 202 32,670 32,670 32,670 32,670 0 0 06.020p 146
29-226-040 201 130,270 121,090 130,270 121,090 0 0 06.027p 156
29-226-074 201 687,410 687,410 687,410 687,410 0 0 06.020p 146
29-226-079 203 10,301,360 7,447,620 10,301,360 7,447,620 0 0 06.020p 146
29-227-021 201 202,890 202,890 202,890 202,890 0 0 06.020p 146
29-227-027 203 8,476,250 6,093,500 8,476,250 6,093,500 0 0 06.020p 147
29-326-012 201 1,358,770 1,358,770 1,358,770 1,358,770 0 0 06.020p 147
29-352-003 202 14,380 14,380 14,380 14,380 0 0 06.008p 132
29-352-049 201 1,380,940 978,980 1,380,940 978,980 0 0 06.019p 143
29-357-014 405 69,080 69,080 69,080 69,080 0 0 06.036 36
29-401-020 302 92,940 92,940 92,940 92,940 0 0 06.020p 147
29-401-021 301 432,940 403,400 432,940 403,400 0 0 06.020p 147
29-401-026 201 2,216,970 2,207,340 2,216,970 2,207,340 0 0 06.020p 147
29-401-027 201 2,222,990 1,866,550 2,222,990 1,866,550 0 0 06.020p 147
29-401-028 201 729,920 724,250 729,920 724,250 0 0 06.020p 147
29-426-021 301 817,950 779,940 817,950 779,940 0 0 06.020p 147
29-426-027 201 823,220 823,220 823,220 823,220 0 0 06.020p 147
29-426-028 302 156,860 156,860 156,860 156,860 0 0 06.020p 147
29-426-030 301 3,335,840 3,335,840 3,335,840 3,335,840 0 0 06.020p 147
29-426-032 301 989,980 938,190 989,980 938,190 0 0 06.020p 147
29-426-042 301 1,336,940 999,270 1,336,940 999,270 0 0 06.007p 131

Cross Index  6



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

29-426-046 301 1,588,330 1,181,740 1,588,330 1,181,740 0 0 06.027p 156
29-477-013 301 550,000 550,000 550,000 550,000 0 0 06.020p 147
29-478-011 201 511,510 349,730 511,510 349,730 0 0 06.020p 147
29-602-001 211 52,030 29,220 52,030 29,220 0 0 06.030p 159
29-604-004 212 20,460 17,240 20,460 17,240 0 0 06.003p 126
30-101-058 401 288,370 279,300 288,370 279,300 0 0 06.021c 94
30-126-082 401 96,150 88,120 76,150 68,120 (20,000) (20,000) 06.070 70
30-276-015 203 4,650,850 3,507,490 4,650,850 3,507,490 0 0 06.020p 147
31-226-009 301 2,631,690 2,631,690 2,631,690 2,631,690 0 0 06.020p 147
31-226-010 301 593,390 435,190 593,390 435,190 0 0 06.020p 147
31-226-014 201 5,561,680 5,274,830 5,561,680 5,274,830 0 0 06.020p 147
31-226-017 201 2,596,110 2,596,110 2,596,110 2,596,110 0 0 06.007p 131
31-226-018 201 4,369,660 4,313,690 4,369,660 4,313,690 0 0 06.020p 147
31-226-019 201 2,012,620 1,659,470 2,012,620 1,659,470 0 0 06.020p 147
31-228-015 405 127,240 127,240 127,240 127,240 0 0 06.022c 95
31-228-017 405 151,550 151,550 142,500 142,500 (9,050) (9,050) 06.060 60
31-228-046 405 141,520 135,930 141,520 135,930 0 0 06.023c 96
32-101-021 201 851,070 814,250 851,070 814,250 0 0 06.027p 156
32-101-024 205 47,310 47,310 47,310 47,310 0 0 06.013p 137
32-126-003 201 1,670,940 1,670,940 1,670,940 1,670,940 0 0 06.024c 97
32-126-003 201 1,670,940 1,670,940 1,670,940 1,670,940 0 0 06.007p 131
32-126-030 301 2,767,920 2,767,920 2,767,920 2,767,920 0 0 06.028p 157
32-126-035 301 12,516,830 12,516,830 12,516,830 12,516,830 0 0 06.001p 124
32-200-021 301 1,977,220 1,888,000 1,977,220 1,888,000 0 0 06.004p 128
32-200-029 201 4,075,790 3,307,890 4,075,790 3,307,890 0 0 06.020p 147
32-200-031 201 4,052,190 4,052,190 4,052,190 4,052,190 0 0 06.020p 147
32-200-032 201 8,525,690 8,525,690 8,525,690 8,525,690 0 0 06.003p 126
32-200-032 201 8,525,690 8,525,690 8,525,690 8,525,690 0 0 06.022p 151
32-226-003 301 1,726,550 1,152,880 1,726,550 1,152,880 0 0 06.020p 147
32-226-004 201 441,740 433,740 441,740 433,740 0 0 06.007p 131
32-226-005 202 51,840 51,840 51,840 51,840 0 0 06.020p 147
32-226-013 301 1,614,270 1,328,530 1,614,270 1,328,530 0 0 06.020p 147
32-226-018 301 581,670 419,780 581,670 419,780 0 0 06.020p 147
32-226-024 301 1,583,290 1,220,830 1,583,290 1,220,830 0 0 06.020p 147
32-226-025 301 1,606,810 1,275,190 1,606,810 1,275,190 0 0 06.020p 147
32-226-028 301 764,570 589,930 764,570 589,930 0 0 06.020p 147
32-226-029 301 682,230 682,230 682,230 682,230 0 0 06.020p 147
32-226-032 301 4,547,400 4,040,360 4,547,400 4,040,360 0 0 06.035 35
32-226-032 301 4,547,400 4,040,360 4,547,400 4,040,360 0 0 06.012p 136
32-226-037 301 5,437,860 4,703,750 5,437,860 4,703,750 0 0 06.020p 147
34-101-017 201 275,000 275,000 275,000 275,000 0 0 06.020p 147
34-101-019 201 401,960 308,840 401,960 308,840 0 0 06.020p 147
34-101-022 201 423,980 384,700 423,980 384,700 0 0 06.007p 131
34-101-023 201 2,987,840 2,416,630 2,987,840 2,416,630 0 0 06.025c 98
34-101-023 201 2,987,840 2,416,630 2,987,840 2,416,630 0 0 06.020p 147
34-101-028 201 725,380 725,380 725,380 725,380 0 0 06.007p 131
34-126-005 301 1,338,470 1,205,430 1,338,470 1,205,430 0 0 06.043 43
34-126-011 401 60,430 30,170 60,430 0 0 (30,170) 06.020h 122
34-126-043 301 1,241,580 1,043,670 1,241,580 1,043,670 0 0 06.020p 147
34-127-043 301 341,290 341,290 286,800 286,800 (54,490) (54,490) 06.043 43
34-151-012 301 467,570 346,830 467,570 346,830 0 0 06.020p 147
34-152-002 301 322,580 227,900 322,580 227,900 0 0 06.020p 147
34-152-026 301 771,970 566,090 771,970 566,090 0 0 06.020p 147
34-176-017 301 195,950 146,780 195,950 146,780 0 0 06.029c 102

Cross Index  7



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

34-177-014 301 260,280 260,280 260,280 260,280 0 0 06.020p 147
34-201-064 301 1,198,460 1,046,960 1,198,460 1,046,960 0 0 06.020p 147
34-201-065 301 744,420 689,370 744,420 689,370 0 0 06.020p 147
34-226-010 301 422,110 369,790 422,110 369,790 0 0 06.020p 147
34-227-007 205 88,950 82,280 88,950 82,280 0 0 06.013p 137
34-602-001 212 97,900 48,740 97,900 48,740 0 0 06.030p 159
34-602-002 212 21,340 20,710 21,340 20,710 0 0 06.003p 126
35-101-019 301 1,892,440 1,226,160 1,892,440 1,226,160 0 0 06.020p 147
35-101-026 301 748,510 578,360 748,510 578,360 0 0 06.020p 148
35-101-028 301 895,480 895,480 895,480 895,480 0 0 06.020p 148
35-101-029 301 1,320,350 1,075,070 1,320,350 1,075,070 0 0 06.020p 148
35-101-030 301 888,300 628,110 888,300 628,110 0 0 06.020p 148
35-102-031 201 9,017,050 9,017,050 9,017,050 9,017,050 0 0 06.020p 148
35-102-037 301 551,750 551,750 551,750 551,750 0 0 06.019p 143
35-102-038 301 1,334,390 1,334,390 1,334,390 1,334,390 0 0 06.019p 143
35-102-040 301 1,612,520 1,345,230 1,612,520 1,345,230 0 0 06.020p 148
35-102-041 301 1,698,260 1,605,320 1,698,260 1,605,320 0 0 06.020p 148
35-126-020 201 9,381,130 6,190,390 6,857,760 5,776,470 (2,523,370) (413,920) 06.026c 99
35-151-020 301 3,769,750 3,018,770 3,769,750 3,018,770 0 0 06.020p 148
35-201-066 301 5,335,650 3,080,650 5,335,650 3,080,650 0 0 06.006p 130
35-201-066 201 5,335,650 3,080,650 5,335,650 3,080,650 0 0 06.020p 148
35-201-067 301 1,680,940 1,680,940 1,680,940 1,680,940 0 0 06.020p 148
35-226-005 301 1,374,030 875,250 1,374,030 875,250 0 0 06.020p 148
35-226-008 301 849,010 627,010 849,010 627,010 0 0 06.020p 148
35-226-042 201 229,280 183,390 229,280 183,390 0 0 06.019p 143
35-226-043 301 507,060 328,210 507,060 328,210 0 0 06.020p 148
35-226-079 301 1,142,470 658,960 1,142,470 658,960 0 0 06.020p 148
35-226-086 301 3,329,920 2,085,150 3,329,920 2,085,150 0 0 06.020p 148
35-226-087 201 6,955,390 2,773,610 6,955,390 2,773,610 0 0 06.020p 148
35-226-092 301 1,878,030 1,505,450 1,878,030 1,505,450 0 0 06.020p 148
35-276-002 301 554,400 537,250 554,400 537,250 0 0 06.020p 148
35-276-003 301 824,630 652,910 824,630 652,910 0 0 06.020p 148
35-276-004 301 582,580 582,580 582,580 582,580 0 0 06.020p 148
35-276-006 301 3,938,740 2,631,160 3,938,740 2,631,160 0 0 06.020p 148
35-276-007 201 5,900,480 3,080,230 5,900,480 3,080,230 0 0 06.020p 148
35-327-016 301 480,730 480,730 480,730 480,730 0 0 06.020p 148
35-327-021 201 1,148,940 1,148,940 1,148,940 1,148,940 0 0 06.027p 156
35-327-023 201 7,040,410 5,231,770 7,040,410 5,231,770 0 0 06.027c 100
35-327-024 201 5,459,530 5,459,530 5,459,530 5,459,530 0 0 06.002p 125
35-327-025 201 5,488,960 5,488,960 5,488,960 5,488,960 0 0 06.002p 125
35-400-022 201 10,119,830 10,119,830 10,119,830 10,119,830 0 0 06.020p 148
36-100-057 201 419,640 415,460 419,640 415,460 0 0 06.007p 131
36-100-060 203 10,896,180 6,936,650 10,896,180 6,936,650 0 0 06.020p 148
36-127-011 401 128,530 91,340 128,530 91,340 0 0 06.021h 123
36-226-072 401 117,490 112,800 112,490 112,490 (5,000) (310) 06.064 64
36-277-037 401 67,670 65,570 67,670 65,570 0 0 06.026 26
36-302-008 301 1,404,490 1,087,690 1,404,490 1,087,690 0 0 06.019p 143
36-302-009 301 560,280 560,280 560,280 560,280 0 0 06.027p 156
36-302-012 301 386,370 295,700 386,370 295,700 0 0 06.020p 148
36-326-018 301 470,030 393,850 470,030 393,850 0 0 06.020p 148
36-326-029 301 365,220 365,220 365,220 365,220 0 0 06.029p 158
36-326-037 301 1,585,270 1,380,710 1,585,270 1,380,710 0 0 06.019p 143
36-326-040 301 696,310 514,670 696,310 514,670 0 0 06.020p 148
36-326-041 301 660,560 440,930 660,560 440,930 0 0 06.019p 143

Cross Index  8



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

36-326-042 301 758,260 561,960 758,260 561,960 0 0 06.019p 143
36-351-001 201 2,522,420 2,522,420 2,522,420 2,522,420 0 0 06.020p 148
36-351-004 201 427,060 427,060 427,060 427,060 0 0 06.007p 131
36-352-010 301 634,170 518,420 634,170 518,420 0 0 06.020p 148
36-376-019 301 542,120 409,150 542,120 409,150 0 0 06.019p 143
36-376-020 301 483,600 456,190 483,600 456,190 0 0 06.020p 148
36-376-033 301 417,430 417,430 417,430 417,430 0 0 06.019p 143
36-376-035 301 342,960 295,460 342,960 295,460 0 0 06.019p 143
36-376-039 301 600,820 349,880 600,820 349,880 0 0 06.020p 148
36-376-040 301 1,015,240 741,790 1,015,240 741,790 0 0 06.020p 148
36-376-047 301 1,062,680 1,052,830 1,062,680 1,052,830 0 0 06.020p 148
36-377-012 301 331,560 200,290 331,560 200,290 0 0 06.020p 148
36-377-018 301 884,050 638,010 884,050 638,010 0 0 06.028c 101
36-377-020 201 584,950 431,280 584,950 431,280 0 0 06.019p 143
36-377-026 301 397,690 258,700 397,690 258,700 0 0 06.020p 148
36-401-045 301 379,230 379,230 379,230 379,230 0 0 06.020p 148
36-426-029 301 320,440 243,720 320,440 243,720 0 0 06.020p 148
36-426-030 302 51,000 51,000 51,000 51,000 0 0 06.020p 148
36-426-072 301 301,230 221,980 301,230 221,980 0 0 06.020p 148
36-426-073 301 359,420 309,900 359,420 309,900 0 0 06.020p 148
36-426-104 301 1,333,580 998,670 1,333,580 998,670 0 0 06.020p 148
36-451-039 301 260,870 201,840 260,870 201,840 0 0 06.020p 148
36-476-032 201 1,150,530 1,150,530 1,150,530 1,150,530 0 0 06.007p 131
36-476-056 301 3,510,480 2,364,040 3,510,480 2,364,040 0 0 06.020p 149
36-476-067 301 520,560 304,090 520,560 304,090 0 0 06.020p 149
36-476-068 301 579,010 388,440 579,010 388,440 0 0 06.020p 149
36-604-001 212 62,560 43,460 62,560 43,460 0 0 06.030p 159
00-006-100 551 525,240 525,240 525,240 525,240 0 0 06.008p 132
00-006-101 551 425,250 425,250 425,250 425,250 0 0 06.008p 132
00-006-102 551 69,340 69,340 69,340 69,340 0 0 06.008p 132
00-006-103 551 41,000 41,000 41,000 41,000 0 0 06.008p 132
00-006-104 551 30,540 30,540 30,540 30,540 0 0 06.008p 132
00-006-105 551 6,338,930 6,338,930 6,338,930 6,338,930 0 0 06.008p 132
00-006-106 551 574,410 574,410 574,410 574,410 0 0 06.008p 132
00-006-777 251 38,690 38,690 38,690 38,690 0 0 06.016p 140
00-006-778 251 866,730 866,730 866,730 866,730 0 0 06.016p 140
00-006-779 251 88,420 88,420 88,420 88,420 0 0 06.016p 140
00-007-000 551 1,600,190 1,600,190 1,600,190 1,600,190 0 0 06.013p 137
00-007-001 551 856,890 856,890 856,890 856,890 0 0 06.013p 137
00-007-002 551 777,330 777,330 777,330 777,330 0 0 06.013p 137
00-007-003 551 308,230 308,230 308,230 308,230 0 0 06.013p 137
00-007-004 551 183,160 183,160 183,160 183,160 0 0 06.013p 137
00-007-005 551 25,365,850 25,365,850 25,365,850 25,365,850 0 0 06.013p 137
00-007-006 551 2,541,970 2,541,970 2,541,970 2,541,970 0 0 06.013p 137
00-008-119 251 530,670 530,670 530,670 530,670 0 0 06.009p 133
00-023-833 351 143,110 143,110 143,110 143,110 0 0 06.020p 149
00-034-928 251 23,870 23,870 23,870 23,870 0 0 06.020p 149
00-035-127 211 409,410 409,410 409,410 409,410 0 0 06.031p 160
00-036-009 251 149,440 149,440 149,440 149,440 0 0 06.032p 161
00-040-055 251 85,300 85,300 85,300 85,300 0 0 06.021p 150
00-040-568 351 91,990 91,990 91,990 91,990 0 0 06.007p 131
00-049-006 251 1,255,850 1,255,850 1,255,850 1,255,850 0 0 06.020p 149
00-050-524 251 1,242,180 1,242,180 1,242,180 1,242,180 0 0 06.020p 149
00-052-151 251 8,980 8,980 8,980 8,980 0 0 06.019p 143

Cross Index  9



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

00-052-154 251 24,040 24,040 24,040 24,040 0 0 06.027p 156
00-056-004 251 170,280 170,280 170,280 170,280 0 0 06.020p 149
00-056-028 351 3,096,000 3,096,000 3,096,000 3,096,000 0 0 06.020p 149
00-056-217 351 266,380 266,380 266,380 266,380 0 0 06.020p 149
00-056-224 351 98,300 98,300 98,300 98,300 0 0 06.020p 149
00-056-231 351 113,410 113,410 113,410 113,410 0 0 06.020p 149
00-056-238 351 116,520 116,520 116,520 116,520 0 0 06.020p 149
00-056-918 251 603,220 603,220 603,220 603,220 0 0 06.007p 131
00-059-004 351 0 0 0 0 0 0 06.007p 131
00-064-060 251 88,210 88,210 88,210 88,210 0 0 06.007p 131
00-065-085 251 96,220 96,220 96,220 96,220 0 0 06.015p 139
00-196-220 351 75,130 75,130 75,130 75,130 0 0 06.020p 149
00-214-700 351 26,450 26,450 26,450 26,450 0 0 06.023p 152
00-223-040 251 88,680 88,680 88,680 88,680 0 0 06.020p 149
00-223-120 251 3,990 3,990 3,990 3,990 0 0 06.020p 149
00-226-640 251 24,270 24,270 24,270 24,270 0 0 06.003p 126
00-239-940 251 0 0 0 0 0 0 06.006p 130
00-243-720 351 65,850 65,850 65,850 65,850 0 0 06.027p 156
00-250-480 251 48,260 48,260 48,260 48,260 0 0 06.021p 150
00-252-380 381 463,870 463,870 463,870 463,870 0 0 06.005p 129
00-267-780 251 136,670 136,670 136,670 136,670 0 0 06.020p 149
00-272-780 251 18,320 18,320 18,320 18,320 0 0 06.007p 131
00-282-040 251 1,940 1,940 1,940 1,940 0 0 06.003p 126
00-283-020 251 52,270 52,270 52,270 52,270 0 0 06.003p 126
00-283-040 251 67,170 67,170 67,170 67,170 0 0 06.003p 126
00-283-400 251 76,720 76,720 76,720 76,720 0 0 06.003p 126
00-287-060 351 70,330 70,330 70,330 70,330 0 0 06.003p 126
00-290-920 251 17,930 17,930 17,930 17,930 0 0 06.003p 126
00-294-820 251 2,356,710 2,356,710 2,356,710 2,356,710 0 0 06.006p 130
00-301-960 251 34,560 34,560 34,560 34,560 0 0 06.003p 126
00-303-260 251 44,570 44,570 44,570 44,570 0 0 06.003p 126
00-310-300 351 37,610 37,610 37,610 37,610 0 0 06.003p 126
00-311-900 251 77,740 77,740 77,740 77,740 0 0 06.003p 126
00-311-920 251 56,800 56,800 56,800 56,800 0 0 06.003p 126
00-311-940 251 43,070 43,070 43,070 43,070 0 0 06.003p 126
00-311-960 251 61,400 61,400 61,400 61,400 0 0 06.003p 126
00-312-000 251 46,950 46,950 46,950 46,950 0 0 06.003p 126
00-317-120 351 42,930 42,930 42,930 42,930 0 0 06.003p 126
00-320-120 351 231,610 231,610 231,610 231,610 0 0 06.007p 131
00-327-180 251 50,390 50,390 50,390 50,390 0 0 06.003p 126
00-329-220 251 2,330 2,330 2,330 2,330 0 0 06.003p 126
00-329-240 251 1,840 1,840 1,840 1,840 0 0 06.003p 126
00-329-260 351 2,760 2,760 2,760 2,760 0 0 06.003p 126
00-329-280 251 2,460 2,460 2,460 2,460 0 0 06.003p 126
00-329-920 251 51,660 51,660 51,660 51,660 0 0 06.003p 126
00-336-360 251 51,880 51,880 51,880 51,880 0 0 06.003p 126
00-338-480 202 3,760 3,760 0 0 (3,760) 0 06.008c 81
00-338-680 251 560 560 560 560 0 0 06.003p 126
00-338-700 251 490 490 490 490 0 0 06.003p 127
00-339-160 251 1,790 1,790 1,790 1,790 0 0 06.003p 127
00-703-170 251 27,950 27,950 27,950 27,950 0 0 06.016p 140
00-705-550 251 84,570 84,570 84,570 84,570 0 0 06.009p 133
00-707-330 551 96,850 96,850 96,850 96,850 0 0 06.008p 132
00-707-490 251 633,490 633,490 633,490 633,490 0 0 06.016p 140

Cross Index 10



 2006 City of Troy March Board of Review

00-708-110 551 863,470 863,470 863,470 863,470 0 0 06.013p 137
00-710-870 251 0 0 0 0 0 0 06.009p 133
00-712-270 251 0 0 0 0 0 0 06.009p 133
00-715-370 251 64,180 64,180 64,180 64,180 0 0 06.003p 127
00-715-410 251 48,700 48,700 48,700 48,700 0 0 06.003p 127
00-717-510 251 71,410 71,410 71,410 71,410 0 0 06.003p 127
00-720-510 251 28,640 28,640 28,640 28,640 0 0 06.014p 138
00-720-530 251 672,790 672,790 672,790 672,790 0 0 06.014p 138
00-720-550 251 650 650 650 650 0 0 06.014p 138
00-720-570 251 4,815,600 4,815,600 4,815,600 4,815,600 0 0 06.014p 138
00-720-610 251 1,289,640 1,289,640 1,289,640 1,289,640 0 0 06.014p 138
00-721-610 251 49,260 49,260 49,260 49,260 0 0 06.016p 140
00-725-630 251 0 0 0 0 0 0 06.009p 133
00-725-730 251 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 0 0 06.016p 140
00-725-750 251 3,260 3,260 3,260 3,260 0 0 06.016p 140
00-726-930 251 310,110 310,110 310,110 310,110 0 0 06.009p 133
00-730-830 251 0 0 0 0 0 0 06.009p 133
00-730-850 251 0 0 0 0 0 0 06.009p 133
00-732-270 251 100,430 100,430 100,430 100,430 0 0 06.016p 140
00-737-730 251 1,150 1,150 1,150 1,150 0 0 06.016p 140
00-737-750 251 91,100 91,100 91,100 91,100 0 0 06.016p 140
00-737-770 251 403,550 403,550 403,550 403,550 0 0 06.016p 140
00-737-790 251 940 940 940 940 0 0 06.016p 140
00-737-810 251 77,080 77,080 77,080 77,080 0 0 06.016p 140
00-737-830 251 6,140 6,140 6,140 6,140 0 0 06.016p 140
00-738-450 251 0 0 0 0 0 0 06.009p 133
00-739-610 251 7,580 7,580 7,580 7,580 0 0 06.016p 140
00-739-630 251 145,280 145,280 145,280 145,280 0 0 06.016p 140
00-739-650 251 253,180 253,180 253,180 253,180 0 0 06.016p 140
00-739-670 251 585,100 585,100 585,100 585,100 0 0 06.016p 140
00-739-930 251 3,120 3,120 3,120 3,120 0 0 06.016p 140
00-741-590 251 750 750 750 750 0 0 06.024p 153
00-742-090 251 18,410 18,410 18,410 18,410 0 0 06.016p 140
00-742-110 251 3,680 3,680 3,680 3,680 0 0 06.016p 140
00-742-290 251 1,110 1,110 1,110 1,110 0 0 06.016p 140

Cross Index 11



  
 

April 10, 2006 
 
 
 
TO:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT:    Agenda Item – Final Reporting - BidNet On-Line Auction  
 
 
SUMMARY 
In compliance with Resolution #2004-02-075, final reporting is being presented for four (4) 
computers, miscellaneous laser print cartridges, and one (1) gasoline power unit, which were 
auctioned on-line through BidNet the City’s e-procurement website, on February 28, 2006 and 
closed on March 12, 2006. All sold, but the miscellaneous laser print cartridges – which were 
recycled.  
 
Resolution #2006-01-022-E-4b, authorized the sale of two (2) Tymco street sweepers that 
were posted for sale on the Tymco website.  Each street sweeper was sold on March 24, 
2006 for $50,000.00 each,  $15,000.00 more than the trade in value of $35,000.00 each, as 
offered on bid proposal ITB-COT 05-49. 
 
Final sale amounts and fees are listed below:     
DESCRIPTION   PROCEEDS   SUB-TOTAL NET INCOME 
4 Computers, 1 Gasoline Power Unit & Misc. items 377.03  
2 Tymco street sweepers (4485978457 & 4485978458) 100,000.00  

    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:  100,377.03  
                                                                              FEES:   
5% Fee (Computers, Power Unit & etc)   (18.85)   
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL: (18.85)  
Sales Tax +6% (Computers, Power Unit, etc): 22.63   
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:  22.63  
   100,380.81

                                                      
BACKGROUND 
 
Resolution #2004-02-075 established the auction fee of 5% and provided approval to 
use BidCorp with the provision that other on-line auction service options would be 
considered.  BidNet moved forward and implemented the on-line surplus auction service 
for MITN (Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network), which can be accessed through 
the City of Troy home web page.  MITN is Purchasing’s official e-procurement website 
used for posting bids, tabulations, quotations, and award information. It was a 
Purchasing goal that one e-procurement site would be operational for all functions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report and Communication – Auction Report – March 2006 
Prepared by Linda Bockstanz, Associate Buyer 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02h







April 7, 2006 
 
 
 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Transmittal of Proposed Fiscal Year 2006/07 Annual Budget 
 
 
 
The proposed fiscal year 2006/07 budget is being submitted for your review.  The first 
25 pages of this document provide a concise summary of the entire budget.  Based on 
your direction to me at our January 16, 2006 study session, as well as my instructions to 
staff, this budget advances the following: 
 
1) The City’s millage rate remains at 9.45 mils for the 5th consecutive year. 
2) The total City budget of $144.4 million increased by $6.2 million or 4.5% from the 

previous year. 
3) The undesignated General Fund reserves are anticipated to equal at least $10.5 

million or 16.2% of the recommended budget.  In addition, $1 million will be 
transferred to the Budget Stabilization Fund and $2.5 million will be transferred to 
the Retiree Medical Benefit Trust Fund. 

4) Capital project funds totaling $33.3 million are contained on pages 216-267 of the 
proposed budget and I’ll once again be providing a condensed listing of proposed 
projects greater than $50,000. 

5) We have reduced the full-time workforce by 9 positions to a lean 476.  Our full-
time work force equates to 5.49 employees for every 1,000 Troy residents, and 
with an estimated citywide workforce of 136,000, this equates to about 4.53 full-
time City of Troy employees per 1,000 people who work here.   

 
The 9 positions that were reduced through attrition are as follows: 
 
     Department      Position
 
City Manager’s Office   Assistant to the City Manager (1) 
Library     Librarian I     (1) 
Library     Library Aide     (2) 
Parks and Recreation   Office Assistant II   (1)  
Police      Animal Control Officer  (1) 
Public Works - Streets & Drains   Storm Water Utility Engineer (1) 
Public Works - Water Division  Clerk/typist    (1) 
Real Estate & Development  Sr. Right-of-Way Representative (1) 

 
 

-1- 

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
J-02i



Transmittal of Proposed Fiscal Year 2006/07 Annual Budget 
Page Two 
April 7, 2006 

 
 
 
 
Of course, we will endeavor to maintain the same level of service by 
redistributing tasks amongst current employees and through the addition of part-
time employees. 

 
Thank you for your direction, which assisted greatly in developing this document.   
 
In closing, I would like to thank Mary Redden and Beth Tashnick of the City Manager’s 
Office for assembling one of the finest budget documents to date. 
 
If you have any questions or comments, please feel free to call. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2006\04.17.06 - Transmittal of Proposal 2006-07 Annual Budget 

-2- 



The budget document will be delivered to 
Council Members with their April 17, 2006 

City Council agenda packet. 
 
 

The budget is available to the public at the 
City Clerk’s Office, the Troy Public Library, 

and on the City of Troy web page. 



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



-----Original Message----- 
From: S. Craig Nardi [mailto:CNardi@NAIDGHART.COM] 
Sent: Monday, April 03, 2006 8:51 AM 
To: Paula P Bratto 
Cc: Mark F Miller 
Subject: RE: Could you please help 
Importance: High 

Paula: 
 
I got it.  Thank you very much!  I especially appreciate your getting it done for us on Thursday, in 
anticipation of your being out on Friday.  I wish that more people working for the different cities 
with which we have dealings were as responsive as you were on this issue. 
 
Hope you have a good week. 
 
Craig 
 

S. Craig Nardi  
Director - Corporate Services  
NAI DG Hart  
415 Madison Avenue - Seventh Floor  
New York, NY 10017  

Telephone:   212-405-2487  
Facsimile:  212-207-8011  

 
 

From: Paula P Bratto [mailto:BrattoPP@ci.troy.mi.us]  
Sent: Monday, April 03, 2006 8:37 AM 
To: S. Craig Nardi 
Subject: RE: Could you please help 

I was not in on Friday but I had given the letter to the secretary to sent out upon receipt of the 
check.  She says that she sent it out on Friday. 

-----Original Message----- 
From: S. Craig Nardi [mailto:CNardi@NAIDGHART.COM] 
Sent: Friday, March 31, 2006 1:37 PM 
To: Paula P Bratto 
Subject: RE: Could you please help 

Paula: 

I understand that the $100 was dropped off today and also that you were taking the off as 
well.  Can you please give me an ETA as to getting the zoning letter from you. 

Thanks and hope you have/had a great weekend. 

Craig 

campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



S. Craig Nardi  
Director - Corporate Services  
NAI DG Hart  
415 Madison Avenue - Seventh Floor  
New York, NY 10017  

Telephone:   212-405-2487  
Facsimile:  212-207-8011  

 

 

From: Paula P Bratto [mailto:BrattoPP@ci.troy.mi.us]  
Sent: Wednesday, March 29, 2006 1:02 PM 
To: S. Craig Nardi 
Subject: RE: Could you please help 

That property is zoned M-1 Light Industrial. 

Paula Preston Bratto  
City of Troy  
Planner  
248.524.3365  
www.ci.troy.mi.us  

-----Original Message----- 
From: S. Craig Nardi [mailto:CNardi@NAIDGHART.COM] 
Sent: Wednesday, March 29, 2006 11:55 AM 
To: Paula P Bratto 
Subject: Could you please help 

I would like to confirm that the property located at 1304 East Maple 
Road, Troy is in fact zoned M-1.  Could you please advise accordingly. 

Thank you, in advance, for your assistance with this matter.  

Craig  

S. Craig Nardi  
Director - Corporate Services  
NAI DG Hart  
415 Madison Avenue - Seventh Floor  
New York, NY 10017  

Telephone:   212-405-2487  
Facsimile:  212-207-8011  

 



campbellld
Text Box
J-04a





campbellld
Text Box
J-04b



mccombca
Text Box
J-05







April 7, 2006 
 
To: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From: Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
 
Re: Agenda Item – State of Michigan MiDEAL Purchasing Program –   

Office Supply Contract with Office Max 
 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN CONTRACT  
Effective January 18, 2006, the State of Michigan awarded their request for proposal 
(RFP) for Office Supplies to Office Max (contract #071B6200135). A contract was 
established for a period of three (3) years with an option to renew for two (2) additional 
one (1) year periods.  Four proposals were received with Office Max selected as the 
bidder providing the most comprehensive, tested, and cost effective solution.  The City 
of Troy Purchasing department is implementing the competitively bid contract which 
allows all Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN) cooperative members to 
participate with potential rebates totaling 7% and an overall product savings of at least 
6.5%.       
 
Thirty-two (32) political subdivisions have committed to the office supply program and 
include cities, counties, townships, road commissions, and other governing authorities.  
2005 annual purchases for the entire cooperative were approximately $2.1 million, of 
which Troy spent $136,750.00.  Under the new contract, rebate checks of 3% will be 
issued quarterly to each entity based upon their total volume.  In addition, e-commerce 
incentives of 1% encourage participation when 90%+ of all order transactions are 
processed electronically.  Other incentives include 1% for EFT payment and a 1% or 2% 
discount depending upon annual average order size in excess of $200.00.    
 
It should be noted that a core list of 1300+ high use office supply items are discounted 
up to 85% off list prices with firm prices for the first twelve months of the agreement.  
The off contract catalog items equate to a 48% Net DFL on their full line of office 
products catalog.  
 
SUMMARY 
Staples and Office Depot both offered cooperative type contracts, which were 
used as a comparison to determine the best value for the City.  The evaluation 
committee reviewed the following areas:  competition, participation, lead agency, 
bid evaluation, contract valuation, product analysis, volume pricing levels, 
rebates, restocking fees, and order minimums.  (See Appendix I – Office Supply 
Contract Analyses) 
 
Overall, the Office Max contract provides the best value when the objective is to 
obtain the right services, in the right quantity for delivery at the right time to the 
right place from the right source at the right price.  
 
Prepared by: Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Systems Administrator   
 
G:/Bid Award 05-06/Report – Office Supply Contract.doc 

CampbellLD
Text Box
J-06



APPENDIX I 
 

Page 1 of 2 

OFFICE SUPPLY CONTRACT ANALYSES 
 
 
 OFFICE MAX STAPLES OFFICE DEPOT 
    
COMPETITION Three week lead time Local advertisement National Advertisement 
 Posted on State’s website Sole Bidder Three Bidders 
 Bidders notified via postcards  Held Pre-bid meetings 
PARTICIPATION  

Four major suppliers –  
Office Depot – Office Max 
Staples – Corporate Express 

Staples chose only to bid on the 
local Los Angeles County 
agreement, and not the national 
RFP. 

 
 
RFP was emailed directly to each 
office supply company. 

    
  No agency in Michigan utilizes the 

NJPA contract. 
 
MITN Cooperative 

    
LEAD AGENCY    
  

State of Michigan 
NJPA and not a stakeholder 
solicited the bid. 

 
Los Angeles County 

    
BID 
EVALUATION 

   

  
Discounts off list prices are firm 
for entire contract period. 

 
No benchmarks to determine how 
aggressive the prices were.  

Public purchasing officials from 
other national agencies assisted in 
the evaluation. 

    
 1,329 items on the core list 

Prices adjusted annually with 
documented changes in the market 

No firm pricing structure Bidders required to submit net 
product pricing on all items with 
UPC codes for analysis purposes. 

  Customization allowed  
    
    
    



APPENDIX I 
 

Page 2 of 2 

 OFFICE MAX STAPLES OFFICE DEPOT 
    
VALUE OF 
CONTRACT 

$29+ Million Not established $350+ Million 

   Collective purchasing power 
VOLUME 
PRICING LEVEL 

   

  
Best Customer, Best Price within 
State 

 
Not guaranteed to receive the 
lowest prices. 

 
Favored Nations Clause – 
Guaranteed lowest prices 

REBATES     
  Volume – 5% Volume – 2%  
 E-commerce – 1%  E-commerce  - 1% 
 1% N10 EFT Payment Terms   
 1% if average order size between 

$200-300 or 2% if average annual 
order is $301 or higher 

  

 Volume – 3% Savings minimal  
    
  Reports supplied inaccurate – 

numerous errors 
Key advisory board members – 
representation from both the east 
and west regions 

RESTOCKING 
FEES 

$0 within 60 calendar days  < 15% - Staples waived?? $0 

   Special orders are non-returnable 
MINIMUM 
ORDERS 

 
None 

  
None 

    
CONTRACT 
TERM 

 
3 years w/ 2 one-year options 

 
Extendable up to 5 years 

 
4 years w/2 one-year options 

 
 
G:/Cooperative Issues/OfficeSupplyContractAnalyses 02-06.doc 



TO: Members of the Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
DATE: April 10, 2006 

  
  

SUBJECT: Law Day 2006  
 

 
 
 

Part of the mission of the City Attorney’s Office is to educate the City officials, board 
and committee members, employees, and the general public.  In furtherance of this goal, our 
office has actively participated in an annual Law Day Program, which is promoted by the 
American Bar Association (ABA).  Each year, the ABA selects a theme for Law Day, and 
suggests relevant activities for the annual event.   The theme for Law Day 2006 is “Liberty 
Under the Law:  Separate Branches, Balanced Powers.”  The separation of powers of the 
executive, legislative, and judicial branches is a theme that easily lent itself to an essay 
contest for high school students who resided in Troy.   

Information about the Law Day 2006 Essay Contest was disseminated to the schools, 
and there were several high school students who submitted entries.  Our office is currently 
judging the essays, and will determine the 1st, 2nd, and 3rd place entries.   

The competition is very stiff, since there were several excellent essays submitted.  In 
recognition of the outstanding and altruistic efforts of these high school students, we are 
planning a cake and coffee reception for all participants and their families on Monday, May 8, 
2006, starting at 6:30 pm.  We encourage all City Council members to attend this reception 
and meet these talented students.  Informational brochures will also be available at this time.  
The Law Day Program is funded only by the donations of our staff, and there is no monetary 
prize for the finalists.  As an added recognition for the finalists, we would like to have the 1st, 
2nd, and 3rd place winners recognized at the City Council meeting immediately following the 
reception.  If Council so desires, the first place essay could be read at the City Council 
meeting that evening.  The top three essays will also be featured in the Law Day displays, 
which will appear in the Troy Library and the Troy Museum during the month of May.   

Also enclosed please find a proposed proclamation for Law Day 2006, which we hope 
to have passed by the Troy City Council.   

As always, if you have any questions, please let us know.        

 
    

campbellld
Text Box
J-07



CITY OF TROY 
LAW DAY PROCLAMATION 

May 1, 2006 
 
WHEREAS, Law Day is a celebration of our great heritage of liberty, justice, and 
equality under law; and 
 
WHEREAS, our nation’s Founders created a doctrine of separation of powers among 
the three branches of government – executive, legislative, and judicial; and 
 
WHEREAS, in an effort to balance any accumulation of power, our nations’s Founders 
included a system of checks and balances in the Constitution, and this system ensures 
that each branch serves as a constraint on, and is constrained by, the powers of other 
branches; and 
 
WHEREAS, our system of separation of powers and checks and balances stands as a 
model for other nations of the world; and 
 
WHEREAS, the theme of Law Day 2006 , “Liberty Under the Law: Separate Branches, 
Balanced Powers,” provides an opportunity to acknowledge that although the separate 
branches of government have their separate spheres and separate powers, they work 
together for the common good. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy 

proclaims Monday, May 1, 2006, as Law Day.  We urge the citizens, schools, 
businesses, and media of the City of Troy to use this occasion to dedicate ourselves to 
preserve and strengthen the rule of law. 
 

 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  

 
Cristina Broomfield, Mayor Pro Tem  David A. Lambert, Councilman 

 
Robin E. Beltramini, Councilwoman  Wade Fleming, Councilman 

 
Martin Howrylak, Councilman  Jeanne M. Stine, Councilwoman 
 



 
April 7, 2006 

 
 
To:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
Subject: Agenda Item - Water Main Tapping Crew and Continuing Education 
 
 
 
The American Water Works Association (AWWA) promotes professionalism through 
educational opportunities and competition.  Each spring the AWWA Michigan Chapter 
program includes training sessions, continuing education units, and a water main 
tapping contest. 
 
It is with great pride that we report the City of Troy tapping team won this year’s 
competition. The competition entails tapping into a live pressurized water main.  They 
use the same equipment and procedure to provide a new water service for residential 
and commercial water customers in the City of Troy. 
 
A standard ductile iron water main is placed on a stand and pressurized with water. The 
team must take a tapping machine, drill, tap, and insert a valve into the water main. 
Simultaneously, a copper pipe is prepared and run from the valve in the water main to a 
curb stop, which is the valve in front of your house that can be shut off in case of an 
emergency. From the curb stop another piece of copper is prepared and run to a faucet. 
When all the connections are made, the water is turned on and checked for leaks.  
 
The team of Mark Pniewski, Jake Diepholz, Mike Schlegelmann and Coach Steve 
Bauman accomplished this feat in an unbelievable time of 1 minute and 18 seconds. 
They will now attend the national conference and tapping competition in San Antonio, 
Texas.  The Michigan AWWA chapter pays 100% of the cost.  They receive full benefit 
of attending the concurrent educational sessions over three days of training.  There are 
well over 200 educational opportunities to follow many different tracks from 
management to reuse of limited resources.  One such track that is going to affect the 
City of Troy is the hot topic of residuals in our water distribution system. 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Timothy Richnak Public Works Director 
 
 
(G) Woodward\DPW\Tapping Crew and Continuing Edu.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
J-08



April 10, 2006 
 
 
TO:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: James A. Nash, Financial Services Director 
  Stephen Cooperrider, Risk Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – City Employees’ Short-term Disability (STD), Long-term  

Disability (LTD), Life, and Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D) 
Insurance Coverage 

 
The City of Troy has consistently acted to provide insurance benefits at a reasonable 
cost.  City administration has always selected the insurers for this coverage based on 
cost and coverage required by collective bargaining agreements.   
 
While reviewing disability and life insurance, Risk Management directed our insurance 
agent, Willis, Inc. to assist us in obtaining quotes from other insurance carriers.  Our 
Willis agent, requested quotes from seventeen nationally recognized insurance 
companies. They included:  AIG, Assurant, Aetna, Cigna, GE Financial, Guardian, The 
Hartford, Highmark, ING, Lafayette Life, MetLife, Prudential, Reliance Standard, The 
Standard, SunLife, Unimerica, and UnumProvident.  We received seven quotes that 
included all coverage.  Four declined to quote, three chose not to respond to the 
request for proposal, and three chose not to quote the LTD coverage.  The four that 
declined to quote indicated their underwriting platform could not accommodate for the 
risk profile (i.e. Police and Fire Department staff).   
 
Our Willis agent presented the quotes and coverage to the Employee Insurance 
Benefits Committee for review and questions.  Through the interest based bargaining 
format in 2002, the City proposed to all five union groups to create an employee 
insurance benefits committee.  All five union groups agreed to the creation of this 
committee.  The committee consists of a representative from each union, a classified 
group employee, and City management. The mission of the committee is to develop a 
common insurance benefits platform for all full-time employees.  The committee 
investigates and evaluates ways to reduce costs, recommends appropriate coverage for 
employees, evaluates insurance carriers, and provides an open forum to exchange 
insurance benefit information. 
 
Our agent and the Committee (unanimously) are recommending the Standard 
Insurance Company (3/3/3 year rate guarantee) Option 2 to City Management. The 
savings in premium in the first year is estimated at $36,027 (a 13.28% savings) 
compared to the estimated premium to be paid if we remain with our current insurance 
carrier Jefferson-Pilot Financial. The Committee also agreed that it would be more 
efficient to have only one carrier for the STD and LTD coverage.  Our agent concurred 
with the Committee indicating this would reduce insurer administrative errors, and cause 
fewer problems for doctor’s having to provide medical documentation to more than one 
insurer for the same claim. Quotes from the various insurers are provided below and 
include the Life and AD&D, STD, and LTD, coverage combined.   

campbellld
Text Box
J-09



April 10, 2006 
Page 2 
 
Insurer    Estimated Annual Premium 
The Standard (3/2/3) Option 1 $219,233 
The Standard (3/3/3) Option 2 $235,205 
UnumProvident (3/2/3)  $239,745 
Unimerica (2/1/2)   $249,184 
Prudential (3/2/2)   $251,303 
CIGNA (3/2/3)   $255,649 
MetLife (3/2/2)   $281,461 
Reliance Standard (3/3/3)  $299,924 
 
  
The Standard quote was the lowest for the STD and LTD coverage combined, and the 
life and AD&D coverage.  The City requested a three-year rate guarantee on all 
coverage (Life/STD/LTD).  Only The Standard and Reliance Standard provided such a 
quote.  In addition, the benefit level for The Standard program is what the City 
requested.  The coverage can also be modified to include enhancements that will 
benefit both the City and the employees at no additional cost.  In fact, the 
enhancements could actually help the City reduce claim costs thereby reducing future 
premiums.   
    
The Standard is currently the insurer for several governmental entities in Michigan.  The 
list includes, among others: 
 
 City of Berkley   Grand Rapids Public Schools     
 City of Kalamazoo   City of Pontiac  
 Rochester Community Schools  City of Saginaw   
 County of Saginaw   City of Trenton    
 Troy School District   City of Warren 
   
The Risk Management Department has contacted all the governmental entities listed for 
references on The Standard program.  All are pleased with the service they have 
experienced through The Standard.  The Standard also maintains offices in Troy. 
 
As with other insurance coverage we explored the possibility of a self-insurance 
program.  The advantage to self-insuring is there is no premium. The disadvantages to 
the City would include cost for claims and an administrative fee per covered employee.    
There could also be some fluctuation in claims from one month to the next that could 
create cash flow problems.  
 
After conducting the review of the recent years’ annual premium paid versus the annual 
claims paid we determined there is no benefit to the City or the employees to go to a 
self-insured program for the STD, LTD, life, and AD&D insurance coverage at this time.  
We will revisit self-insuring this coverage should it become more cost effective. 



TO: Members of the Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: April 10, 2006 

  
  

SUBJECT: City of Troy v. Ronald Greismayer  
 

 
 
 

Due to uninhabitable conditions at the home at 2766 Rhodes in the City of Troy, the 
City filed a nuisance lawsuit against the property owner, Ronald Greismayer.  This lawsuit 
was filed only after the City had exhausted other means of abating the nuisance and 
obtaining compliance with the City of Troy ordinances.  The City was especially concerned 
about this home, since the home was infested with pests and vermin.   

The City’s continuing compliance efforts, coupled with the pending lawsuit, led the 
home owner to eventually take action to get the home in a habitable condition.  Specifically, 
the property owner was able to sell the home to a person that had resources to complete the 
necessary abatement of the nuisances.  This sale occurred in March, and the new property 
owner has already removed all of the litter and debris in the home, which has since been 
gutted to allow for necessary improvements.     

The lawsuit was filed against Mr. Griesmayer, who sold his interest in the home, and 
vacated the home, in favor of alternative lodging arrangements.  After the sale of the home, 
the nuisance was abated, which was the ultimate goal of the City’s lawsuit.  Therefore, it is no 
longer necessary to pursue the civil lawsuit against Mr. Griesmayer.  At the City’s request, 
the Court entered a voluntary dismissal of the case on March 29, 2006.  A copy of the 
dismissal is attached for your information.  

If you have any questions concerning the above, please let us know.     

 
    

campbellld
Text Box
J-10







campbellld
Text Box
J-11

































campbellld
Text Box
J-12



April 11, 2006 
 
 
 
TO:  John Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - State of Michigan Homeland Security Grant 
 
 
 
Pursuant to a grant application, the City of Troy (through the police department) 
has been awarded a State of Michigan Homeland Security Grant totaling 
approximately $71,600.  The nature of this grant requires that the department 
identify specific items that enhance and/or allow us to maintain our ability to 
provide emergency response to critical incidents.  The grant does not require 
local legislative approval, and the items specified are purchased directly by 
Oakland County (designated by the State of Michigan as a sub-grantee) and 
forwarded to the city. 
 
The funds this grant provides have been designated for the following items: 

• AM Radio Emergency Notification System – This is a low power radio 
transmitter that broadcasts up to a 15 minute loop of information to a 
restricted geographic area.  The City of Sterling Heights currently operates 
such a station, and other cities are in the process of acquiring the system.  
The broadcast range will cover the City of Troy, and the system will be 
utilized to disseminate emergency information and instructions.  When not 
used for emergencies, civic programming will be broadcast.  Operational 
plans will be developed in the near future.   

• Tactical and personal protection equipment for police officers and other 
first responders. 

• Security system upgrades for City Hall and emergency sheltering areas. 
• Information Technology Security Upgrade – software to enhance the 

security of our wired and wireless access points.  
 
If needed I would be happy to provide additional information on the grant and/or 
the items being purchased.  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-13



campbellld
Text Box
J-14


	AGENDA: April 17, 2006
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET:  Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	a\) Recording for the Blind & Dyslexic W�


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 376 Colebrook
	C-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment ( File Number ZOTA 201) 
	C-3 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 222) – Article XXV
	C-4 Rezoning Application – Proposed Medical Office, East Sid

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:
	a\) Proclamation – Recording for the Bli�
	b\) Law Day Proclamation – May 1, 2006

	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  B�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  A�
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  B�
	d\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  A�
	e\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  A�

	E-5 Request for Special Event Sign to be Placed on Civic Cen
	E-6 Private Agreement for Boys & Girls Club of Troy – Projec
	E-7 Request for Acceptance – Permanent Sanitary Sewer Easeme
	E-8 Private Agreement for Longfellow Site Condominiums – Pro

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Adviso
	F-2 Traffic Committee Recommendations – March 15, 2006
	F-3 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Preserves of Timbe
	F-4 Proposed Co-location on Sylvan Glen Golf Course Communic
	F-5 Reconsideration of Resolution #2006-04-177 – Bid Waiver 
	F-6 Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – Contract Renewals – E
	F-7 Request for Special Meeting – Review of Applications for

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a\) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1970 Lar�
	b\) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5361 Liv�
	c\) Proposed Budget for the Fiscal Year �

	G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Historic District Study Committee/Final – January 3, 2006
	Historic Commission/Final – January 24, 2006
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – Mar
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – Mar
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – March 1, 2006
	Planning Commission/Final – March 14, 2006
	Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – March 28, 2006

	J-2 Department Reports:
	a\) Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Tr�
	b\) Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Tr�
	c\) Council Member Dave Lambert’s Travel�
	d\) Council Member Dave Lambert’s Travel�
	e\) Building Department – Permits Issued�
	f\) Troy Fire Department – 2004 Annual R�
	g) 2006 City of Troy Assessment Roll and Board of Review Report
	h\) Purchasing Department – Final Report�
	i\) City Manager’s Office – Transmittal �

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	a\) Letter of Thanks to Tonni Bartholome�
	b) Letter of Appreciation to Lori Bluhm from Troy Community Coalition Regarding the Presentation at the Troy Town Hall Meeting
	c) Letter of Thanks to Paula Bratto from Craig Nardi Regarding Excellent Service

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	Resolution from the City of Oak Park Supporting Full Formula
	Resolution from the City of Royal Oak Encouraging the Oaklan

	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Communication from the Purchasing Department Regarding 
	J-7  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regarding
	J-8  Communication from the Department of Public Works Regar
	J-9  Communication from Risk Management Regarding City Emplo
	J-10  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regardin
	J-11  Communication and Requests from the Troy Daze Committe
	J-12  Communication from the Police Department Regarding the
	J-13  Communication from the Police Department Regarding Sta
	J-14  Order of Case Dismissal from the State of Michigan Dep

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT



